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PREFACE

This Manual has been prepared by the General Counsel of the National Labor
Relations Board pursuant to his authority under Section 3(d) of the Act. It is designed
only to provide operational and procedural guidance for the Agency’s staff in
administering the National Labor Relations Act. It is not intended to be a
compendium of substantive or procedural law, nor a substitute for a knowledge of the
law, evidence, or procedure. The matters contained herein are not General Counsel or
Board rulings or directives and are not a form of authority binding on the General

Counsel or the Board.
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This Manual is the exclusive property of the National Labor Relations Board

and is not the property of any of its individual agents. This Manual, or any of
its contents, should not be permanently removed from the offices of the Board
without the express permission of the Regional Director or the agent in
charge. This manual, or any of its contents, in its current form, should not be
released to the public. Redacted copies are available to the public from the
General Counsel’s Freedom of Information Officer in Washington, D.C.
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10(j) MANUAL

USER’S GUIDE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This is the first major revision of the 10(j) Manual. The last revision, in June 1996, was
partial; the current revision is comprehensive. The User's Guide has been completely rewritten
and extensively expanded. Sample arguments have been updated to incorporate developments in
recent 10(j) caselaw and theories regarding the need for injunctive relief. A wider variety of
model papers are provided to assist the Regions in preparing and litigating their 10(j) cases in
district court.

The 10(j) Manual is intended to be a general guideline for the processing of Section 10(j)
cases. The Manual consists of two parts: the User's Guide and the Appendices which follow.
The User's Guide will explain each step in the process, from identification and investigation
through litigation in federal district court, instruct Board agents on their responsibilities in
processing 10(j) cases, identify various issues that may arise in processing a case, and provide
necessary information to successfully address those issues.

A

To assist in meeting those responsibilities, this guide contqu?ﬁna?eor\ial to help identify
the situations in which interim injunctive relief under %eég;ion ‘}\f)%) may be necessary. It also
explains how to conduct an investigation toB%@ai'aVéWdence relevant to determining whether
Section 10(j) relief is "just and prope "o'lri\‘é’barticular case. This guide provides instruction on
the procedure to follow @oRegional office has decided that a case warrants immediate
injunctive relief, gwmm preparation of the memorandum recommending 10(j) relief, the
preparation of papers for district court, how to argue the case in district court, and how to address
any other litigation issues that may arise.

The appendices that follow the User's Guide contain material to support Board agents
throughout the 10(j) process. Among other things, there are checklists, suggested questions for
investigation, sample documents, model arguments, and citations to relevant research material.
Of course, Board agents should use these documents to the extent they are relevant to their 10(j)
case, and modify them as needed to fit the facts or particular legal theories in their case. For ease
of use, Board agents can obtain access to many of these documents on the Agency's Intranet.
This will allow Board agents to download into their computers the necessary documents for
processing their 10(j) cases.

This manual was prepared by the Injunction Litigation Branch with the sole purpose of
supporting the Regions in their efforts to achieve a prompt and effective remedy in those cases
which require immediate 10(j) injunctive relief. The material was prepared based on the
knowledge and experience of legions of Board agents who have litigated 10(j) cases throughout
the country. Please contact the Injunction Litigation Branch if additional assistance is needed at
any time.



1.1  General 10(j) Principles

Section 10(j) of the Act authorizes the Board to seek injunctive relief in U.S. District
Court in situations where, due to the passage of time, the normal adjudicative processes of the
Board likely will be inadequate to effectively remedy the alleged violations. Such injunctive
relief may be sought as soon as an unfair labor practice complaint is issued by the General
Counsel and remains in effect until the unfair labor practice case is finally disposed of before the
Board. It may be requested by the charging party or sought by the Regional Office, sua sponte.
It is imperative that Board agents be aware of the types of situations where such relief may be
appropriate, the requirements of the investigative process in those situations, and the internal
procedures to be followed in such cases.

Congress created Section 10(j) relief as a means to preserve or restore the lawful status
quo ante, so that the purposes of the Act are not frustrated and the final order of the Board is not
rendered meaningless by the passage of time. Congress recognized that a respondent's illegal
acts could, in some cases, permanently alter the situation and prevent the Board from effectively
remedying the violations by its final order. Thus, to justify Section 10(j) relief, the Board must
demonstrate how the alleged violations threaten statutory rights and the public interest while the
parties await a final Board order.

This involves two elements of proof: A
{29 201
. : : . ot &7
1. a sufficient showing that an unfair labor practige ﬁﬁ@\éccurred; and

e
g A
2. a sufficient showing thia& ghete‘i?%%threat that the Board's ultimate

0(@.1
remedi\g\l@_rdér‘*w(fu be a nullity.
prat

The first element is often referred to as the "merits analysis,” and the latter element is
often referred to as a threat of "remedial failure." In most circuits these elements are tested under
the two-prong analysis of whether there is "reasonable cause to believe™” that the Act has been
violated as alleged in the unfair labor practice complaint; and whether interim injunctive relief,
pending a final Board order, is "just and proper.” The First, Seventh, Eighth and Ninth Circuits
have abandoned the "reasonable cause™ test as the limit of a district court's inquiry into the merits
of the unfair labor practice case and held that requests for Section 10(j) injunctions should be
evaluated under traditional equitable principles. A more precise definition of the standards for
each circuit is set out in the Model 10(j) standards for each circuit contained in Appendix D.

The merits analysis of a 10(j) case is the same as the merits determination of any unfair
labor practice charge. What distinguishes a 10(j) case from other unfair labor practice cases is
the threat of remedial failure. This threat may be demonstrated by the nature and extent of the
alleged violations, and the anticipated and actual impact of the unremedied violations upon
statutory rights that is expected to continue until a Board order issues. For instance, if an unfair
labor practice complaint alleges that an employer unlawfully discharged an employee during a
union organizing campaign, interim reinstatement of the discriminatee may be necessary to avoid
"chilling" the remaining unit employees' support for the union or their willingness to engage in
protected union activities during the Board proceedings.



Courts differ as to whether the Board must introduce direct evidence of "chill" to
establish that such injury, or chill, is threatened. Generally, many courts have been willing to
examine the very nature and extent of the particular unfair labor practices to determine, by
inference or presumption, whether the violation will, over time, tend to chill or undermine
remaining unit employee support for a union. Other courts appear less likely to infer a chilling
effect on employee statutory rights; instead, they insist upon evidence that the violation is
actually having a chilling effect. In either case, however, direct evidence of chill is always
probative as to the need for Section 10(j) relief and should be sought in every Section 10(j) case.

The quantum of evidence required to establish the need for Section 10(j) relief varies
depending upon the type of case involved, the applicable case law, and the judicial circuit in
which injunctive relief is sought. The absence of direct evidence of impact in a particular case
does not necessarily mean that Section 10(j)proceedings are inappropriate. The existence or
absence of such evidence is always relevant to the evaluation of a case, however, and the
Regions should always attempt to obtain such evidence.

2.0 IDENTIFYING POTENTIAL 10(j) CASES

Early identification of potential 10(j) cases is critical to avoid the threat of remedial
failure. When a case warrants 10(j) relief, the longer it takes to obta fmat \lef the greater the
threat of remedial failure. For this reason, Board agents gf‘@ul‘bl“@valuate every new charge to
determine whether it might be a potential 10(12 case. arc“‘

Most potential 10(j) \g\j‘\g\sg@are ‘i\g%ntlfled at the outset by the charging party who requests
10(j) relief. Howev \a Substantial portion of 10(j) requests are sua sponte, i.e., the regions
identify the case a% requiring 10(j) relief even if the charging party does not. For this reason,
Board agents should "think 10(j)" even if there is no specific request. In addition, although most
10(j) cases are identified around the time an initial charge is filed, in others the need for
injunctive relief might not arise until the respondent has demonstrated a pattern of violations
over a period of time. Therefore, Board agents should be alert at every stage of case processing
for the potential need for a 10(j) injunction.

2.1  Categories of Section 10(j) Cases

The Board may seek Section 10(j) injunctions for any alleged violation of the Act, other
than those enumerated in Section 10(l). The following categories of cases, however, are
particularly likely to threaten the efficacy of the Board's order.!

! A separate list of the 10(j) categories in outline form is located in Appendix A of this Manual.



1. Interference with Organizational Campaign (No Majority Union Support)

In these cases the union has either not obtained a card majority from employees in an
appropriate unit or the Region's complaint does not seek a remedial bargaining order for some
other reason. Section 10(j) proceedings are authorized to prevent the irreparable destruction of a
union's nascent organizational campaign. These cases usually involve an employer's response to
an organizational campaign with serious, if not massive, unfair labor practices: threats, coercive
interrogations, surveillance of protected activities, improper grant of benefits, and unlawful
employee discipline, including discriminatory discharges. Such violations virtually "nip in the
bud" the union's campaign or clearly threaten to do so if not immediately enjoined. Accordingly,
an order is typically sought to enjoin the violations alleged, as well as an affirmative order to
reinstate any discriminatees. See, generally, Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating,
Inc., 250 F.3d 962 (6th Cir. 2001); Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130 (10th Cir.
2000); Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F.3d 69 (1st Cir. 2001); Pascarell v. Vibra Screw, Inc., 904
F.2d 874 (3rd Cir. 1990); Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d 744 (9th Cir. 1988).

2. Interference with Organizational Campaign (Majority Union Support)

These cases are the same as those in the previous category, except that the union has
obtained a card majority in an appropriate unit, and the Region's complaint pleads that the unfair
labor practices are sufficiently egregious to preclude the holding of a fair election and thus
warrant the |mp05|t|on of a remedial bargaining order under NLRB vnelﬁeﬁbacklnq Co., 395
U.S. 575 (1969).% In such cases, the relief typlcally S0 a broad cease and desist
order, an affirmative order to reinstate any discri Fi% |scharged employees and, to ensure
that the Board's ultimate remedial Gisse Obat’:@éfl |ng order will not be a nullity--i.e., for the
benefit of a union totally berefé&fpe loyee support--an interim bargaining order will also be
requested. See, gener\z\ll\y \SEDtE V. Stephen Dunn & Assoc., 241 F.3d 652 (9th Cir. 2001); NLRB
v. Electro-Voice 5ifit., 83 F.3d 1559 (7th Cir. 1996); Seeler v. The Trading Port Inc., 517 F.2d 33
(2d Cir. 1975). Accord: Levine v. C&W Mining Co., Inc., 610 F.2d 432 (6th Cir. 1980); Asseo
v. Pan American Grain Co. Inc., 805 F.2d 23 (1st Cir. 1986).

3. Subcontracting or Other Change to Avoid Bargaining Obligation

These cases involve an employer's implementation of a major entrepreneurial-type
decision which impacts adversely on unit employees: for example, subcontracting or relocating
entire plants, departments, or product lines. Such changes may be discriminatorily motivated--
i.e., designed either to interfere with an organizational campaign or to escape from an incumbent
union--and, therefore, may violate Section 8(a)(3). In addition, these changes can independently
violate Section 8(a)(5) if undertaken without bargaining over the decision, when required, with
the incumbent union. In these types of cases, the Board seeks Section 10(j) relief, including the
affirmative restoration of operations, because of the devastating impact such decisions can have
on the affected bargaining units--namely, elimination of all or a substantial part of the unit and
termination of unit employees. The injury done to the union, either the incumbent or the one

2 All Gissel cases must be submitted to the ILB for 10(j) consideration. See Memorandum GC
99-8 Guideline Memorandum Concerning Gissel. Also, for guidance on preparing the court
papers for a Gissel 10(j), see Appendix G-2 of this Manual.




seeking recognition, is very often fatal unless injunctive relief is obtained. Moreover, by
restoring and preserving the status quo ante, injunctive relief freezes the circumstances, thereby
permitting the Board to issue a final restoration order which will not be judged later by an
enforcing circuit court as too burdensome on the respondent because of the passage of time or
the alienation of the old facility or equipment. See, generally, Hirsch v. Dorsey Trailers, 147
F.3d 243 (3d Cir. 1998); Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico. Inc., 722 F.2d
953 (1st Cir. 1983); Aguago V. Quadrtech Corp., 129 F.Supp.2d 1272 (C.D. CA 2000); Dunbar
v. Carrier Corp., 66 F.Supp.2d 346 (N.D.N.Y. 1999).

4. Withdrawal of Recognition from Incumbent

These cases involve an employer's withdrawal of recognition from, or its refusal to
bargain a new agreement with, an incumbent union, where the employer is unable to prove an
actual loss of the union's continued majority status. Very often, such a withdrawal of recognition
is accompanied by other independent unfair labor practices designed to undermine employee
support for the incumbent union. This category includes withdrawal of recognition from a newly
certified union, when the union is first attempting to establish itself among the employees.
Section 10(j) relief is sought in these cases, including affirmative bargaining orders, to ensure that
the employees will not be denied the benefits of union representation for the entire period of
litigation before the Board and to prevent the irreparable injury to the union's support among the
employees which predictably would occur if the union were unable to represent them. See,
generally, Dunbar v. Park Associates, Inc., 23 F. Supp.2 ugpz‘ 18, 159 LRRM 2353
(N.D.N.Y.), affd. mem. 166 F.3d 1200 (2d Cir. 1998 ﬁreﬁ)vﬂ . Pacific Telephone & Telegraph
Co., 218 F.2d 542 (9th Cir. 1955); D'Amica Va@%évﬁsend Cullnarv Inc., 22 F. Supp.2d 480, 492
(D. Md. 1998); Overstreet v. TucgomR%aH’y Mix, Inc., 11 F. Supp.2d 1139, 1148-49 (D. Ariz.
1998): De Prospero v. House-bf the Good Samaritan, 474 F.Supp. 552 (N.D. N.Y. 1978); Sachs
V. Daws&HemD?mPP\Thc 295 F.Supp. 142 (D. Md. 1969), affd. 71 LRRM 2126 (4th Cir. 1969),
vacated as moot and opinion withdrawn, 72 LRRM 2879 (4th Cir. 1969);.

5. Undermining of Bargaining Representative

This category closely resembles the previous category in that the cases involve a variety
of employer unfair labor practices designed to undermine employee support for an incumbent or
newly certified union; however, in this category, the employer has not literally withdrawn
recognition from the union but has taken action which belittles the union in the eyes of
employees and impairs the union's authority to effectively represent employees. The violations
can include threats, the discharge of key union officers or activists, or implementing important
changes in working conditions either discriminatorily or without bargaining with the union. The
need for Section 10(j) relief is to prevent the predictable, irreparable erosion of employee support
for the incumbent union. See, generally, Arlook v. Lichtenberq & Co., 952 F.2d 367 (lith Cir.
1992); Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d 874 (3d Cir. 1990); Eisenberg v. Wellington Hall
Nursing Home. Inc., 651 F.2d 902 (3d Cir. 1981); Morio v. North American Soccer League, 632
F.2d 217 (2d Cir. 1980); Overstreet v. Thomas Davis Medical Centers, 9 F.Supp.2d 1162 (D.
Ariz. 1997); Silverman v. Major League Baseball Player Relations Committee, Inc., 880 F.Supp.
246 (S.D.N.Y.), aff'd 67 F.3d 1054 (2d Cir. 1995).




6. Minority Union Recognition

Cases in this category typically involve alleged violations of Section 8(a)(2) and
8(b)(1)(A) where an employer grants exclusive recognition to a union that does not represent an
uncoerced majority of employees in the unit. The cases can also include a wide variety of illegal
assistance to and/or domination of a labor organization. The danger posed by such cases is that,
absent interim relief, the assisted union will become so entrenched in the unit that the affected
employees will be unable freely to exercise their Section 7 right to select or reject union
representation. See, generally, Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1033-1035 (2d Cir.
1980); Fuchs v. Jet Sprav Corp., 560 F.Supp. 1147, 1156 (D. Mass. 1983), aff'd per curium 725
F.2d 664 (1st Cir. 1983). Accord: Zipp v. Dubuque Packing Co., 112 LRRM 3139 (N.D. Ill.
1982).

One court rejected this theory as grounds for interim relief because, under the status quo,
employees enjoyed the benefits of a fair contract and the result of an injunction would have been
to leave employees unrepresented during the time the Section 8(a)(2) case was pending before
the Board. Eisenberg v. Hartz Mountain Corporation, 519 F.2d 138 (3d Cir. 1975). A Section
10(j) injunction to withdraw recognition from a minority union may be appropriate
notwithstanding such considerations where the injunction makes an election possible before the
Board decision issues. Thus, we have sought Section 10(j) if the petitioning union indicates it
will, upon issuance of an injunction, make a request to proceed to an election and agree to
withdraw the 8(a)(2) charge if the allegedly assisted union wins (cf. Carlson®urniture Industries,
157 NLRB 851 (1966)), and the Regional Director is satisfiedﬂtlg@@h%‘ i?ﬁfmction will restore the
conditions necessary to a free and fair election. s aroniNe 0
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7. Successor am%?‘%hecognize and Bargain

In this cal%g?ﬁ}\ﬁ\]an employer acquiring a business and becoming the legal "successor" to
an existing bargaining relationship under NLRB v. Burns International Security Services, 406
U.S. 272 (1972), and Fall River Dyeing & Finishing Corp. v. NLRB, 482 U.S. 27 (1987), has
refused to recognize and bargain with the predecessor employer's incumbent union. In some
cases, the finding of a successorship may be predicated on the employer's allegedly
discriminatory refusal to hire the predecessor's employees in a deliberate attempt to avoid any
bargaining obligation. The danger of irreparable injury is similar to that present in the
withdrawal of recognition situation--i.e., that the employees are denied the benefits of union
representation for the entire duration of the Board proceeding and the passage of time
foreseeably will sever employee ties and loyalty to the union. See, generally, Bloedorn v.
Francisco Foods, Inc. d/b/a Piggly Wiggly, 276 F.3d 270 (7th Cir. 2001) Hoffman v. Inn
Credible Caterers, Ltd., 247 F.3d 360 (2d Cir. 2001); Frye v. Specialty Envelope, Inc., 10 F.3d
1221 (6th Cir. 1993); Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d 445 (1st Cir. 1990); Scott v.
El Farra Enterprises. Inc., 863 F.2d 670 (9th Cir. 1988).

8. Conduct During Bargaining Negotiations

In these cases, one party to a collective-bargaining relationship has engaged in a refusal
to bargain in good faith. The violation may be based upon a wide variety of situations--such as a
refusal to meet and bargain, a refusal to supply relevant and necessary information requested by



the other party, an insistence to impasse during negotiations on a permissive or illegal subject of
bargaining, or a course of conduct reflecting a bad-faith refusal to bargain with an open mind and
a sincere desire to reach an acceptable agreement. Where such violations pose a real danger of
creating industrial unrest and/or of undermining employee support for the union, Section 10(j)
relief may be appropriate. See, generally, Rivera-Vega v. ConAgra, Inc., 70 F.3d 153 (1st Cir.);
aff'g 876 F.Supp. 1350 (D. P.R. 1995); Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d 1401
(6th Cir. 1992); Fleischut v. Burrows Paper Corp., 162 LRRM 2719, 2723 (S.D. Miss. 1999);
Silverman v. Reinauer Transportation Co., 130 LRRM 2505 (S.D.N.Y. 1988), aff'd mem. No.
89-6010 (2d Cir. June 23, 1989); Boire v. SAS Ambulance Services. Inc., 108 LRRM 2388
(M.D. Fla. 1980), aff'd per curium 657 F.2d 1249 (5th Cir. 1981); Douds v. I.L.A., 241 F.2d 278
(2d Cir. 1957).

9. Mass Picketing and Violence

This category encompasses cases in which a labor organization or its agents have
engaged in restraint or coercion of employees, typically those who choose to refrain from
engaging in Section 7 activities such as a strike. These violations of Section 8(b)(1)(A) include:
mass picketing which blocks ingress and egress to the plant or worksite; violence and threats
thereof at or away from a picket line; and, damage to private property. In these cases, there is, of
course, a concurrent state interest which may be protected through local police authorities and
the state court system. However, there are cases in which state authoritigs' are unwilling or
unable to control the situation; in those cases, Section 10(]j ‘{@@eﬁ‘% warranted because the
threatened injury cannot be adequately remedied b q\-\&sh order issued many months later.
See, generally, Frye v. District 1199, 996 ,@aﬁ%&nh Cir. 1993); Squillacote v. Local 248.
Meat & Allied Food Workers, 53@19[31.\8@-7 (7th Cir. 1976). As to the comity issues, compare
Clark v. International Unigﬁ‘rﬁJWNA (Clinchfield Coal, 714 F.Supp. 791 (W.D. Va. 1989) and
Clark v. Internatignal'Union UMWA (Covenant Coal), 722 F.Supp. 250 (W.D. Va. 1989).

10.  Section 8(d) and 8(g) Notice Requirements for Strike or Picketing

These cases involve union strikes or picketing undertaken in contravention of the notice
and waiting periods set forth in Section 8(d) (federal and state mediation) and 8(g) (notices to
health care institutions). When unions engage in such violations, and where the economic
activity is having or threatens to have a substantial adverse impact on the other party's
operations, Section 10(j) relief is often sought. Absent quick relief, the Board's final order may
not adequately restore the status quo, ensure that the parties’ dispute will be open to the
ameliorative effects of mediation under Section 8(d), or that adequate arrangements for the
continuity of patient care may be made by the affected institution under Section 8(g). The relief
sought includes the cessation of the strike and picketing unless and until the union properly
complies with the requirements of 8(d) or 8(g). See, generally, McLeod v. Compressed Air, etc.,
Workers, 292 F.2d 358 (2d Cir. 1961). Accord: McLeod v. Communications Workers of
America, 79 LRRM 2532 (S.D. N.Y. 1971).

11. Refusal to Permit Protected Activity on Private Property

These cases involve an employer's interference with the right of employees to engage in
protected Section 7 activity in nonworking areas on the private property of an employer. Such



activity can include employee picketing or handbilling arising from a labor dispute; it may, in
certain circumstances, encompass honemployee efforts to disseminate organizational material to
employees. Such cases involve an analysis of the employer's private property rights, the Section
7 rights being exercised or restrained, and any alternative means of communication; Where the
protected rights prevail, an employer's denial of or interference with such rights violates Section
8(a)(1) of the Act. See, Hudgens v. NLRB, 424 U.S. 507 (1976); Lechmere, Inc. v. NLRB, 502
U.S. 527 (1992). When the employer's illegal conduct is having a substantial adverse impact on
the protected activity, Section 10(j) relief may be warranted, inasmuch as these disputes are often
of a temporal nature. Absent quick relief, the Board's ultimate remedial order will come too late.
See, Eisenberg v. Holland Rantos Co., Inc., 583 F.2d 100 (3d Cir. 1978). But see Silverman v.
40-41 Realtv Associates, Inc., 668 F.2d 678 (2d Cir. 1982).

Section 10(j) relief also may be appropriate where the denial of access to an incumbent
union constitutes a unilateral change in terms and conditions of employment. See Sheeran v.
American Commercial Lines, Inc., 683 F.2d 970 (6th Cir. 1982).

12. Union Coercion to Achieve Unlawful Object

These cases typically involve union conduct violative of Section 8(b)(1)(B), 8(b)(2) or
8(b)(3) of the Act. Very often the misconduct arises in negotiations where the union insists to
the point of impasse that an employer agree to a permissive or illegal subi'@qt\of bargaining, or
where the union’'s conduct amounts to restraint or coercion of tgg\ﬂ\r?p%yer in its selection of
representatives for the purposes of collective bargainin dp@ﬁévance adjustment. Where the
union's misconduct creates industrial unresli5@84sa"1ﬂ?aving substantial adverse impact on the
employer's operations, or is affect'ng\\emb?éyees in a unique and possibly irreparable manner,
Section 10(j) relief becorr\egabﬁ%éﬁate. See, generally, Boire v. I.B.T., 479 F.2d 778 (5th Cir.
1973), rhg. denie(:késb\ﬁiZd 924. Accord: Kobell v. United Paperworkers Int'l Union, 965 F.2d
1401 (6th Cir. 1992); D'Amico v. Industrial Union of Marine and Shipbuilding Workers, 116
LRRM 2508 (D. Md. 1984).

13. Interference with Access to Board Processes

These cases involve employer or union retaliation against employees for having resorted
to the processes of the Board, typically for filing charges or giving testimony under the Act.
Such retaliation may include threats, discharges, the imposition of internal union discipline, or
even the institution of groundless lawsuits meant to retaliate or harass employees for their resort
to the Board's processes. Such violations are often worthy of Section 10(j) relief, inasmuch as the
chilling impact of such misconduct may preclude other employees from filing timely charges
with the Board, or from giving testimony needed in ongoing administrative proceedings. See,
generally, Sharp v. Webco Industries, 265 F.3d 1085 (10th Cir. 2001); Humphrev v. United
Credit Bureau, 99 LRRM 3459 (D. Md. 1978). Accord: Wilson v. Whitehall Packing Co., 108
LRRM 2165 (W.D. Wisc. 1980). But see Szabo v. P.I.E., 878 F.2d 209 (7th Cir. 1989).

14.  Segregating Assets

These cases involve situations where a respondent has allegedly committed unfair labor
practices which are being litigated before the Board and the ultimate Board remedy may include



some measure of backpay for affected employees. During litigation, the respondent begins to
close down operations and/or to liquidate its physical assets. These circumstances create a
danger that, after liquidation, the respondent's assets will be dispersed and there will be no assets
to satisfy the Board's backpay order. Section 10(j) relief is sought to restrict the respondents
alienation of assets unless or until it establishes an escrow or bond in an amount of money equal
to the Region's best estimate of anticipated net backpay plus interest. See, generally Blyer v.
Unitron Color Graphics of NY, Inc., 1998 WL 1032625 (E.D.N.Y. 1998); Aguayo v. Chamtech
Service Center, 157 LRRM 2299 (C.D. Cal. 1997); Jensen v. Chamtech Service Center, 155
LRRM 2058 (C.D. Cal. 1997); Maram v. Alle Arecibo Corp., 110 LRRM 2495 (D.P.R. 1982).

15. Miscellaneous

These cases involve imminent threats to statutory rights which do not fit into any of the
first fourteen categories. Examples of these cases may include injunctions against the
prosecution of certain lawsuits, employer violence, and interference with employee activities for
mutual aid and protection. See, generally Lineback v. Printpack, Inc., 979 F. Supp. 831 (S.D.
Ind. 1997) (enjoin prosecution of alleged baseless and retaliatory Section 303 LMRA suit); Sharp
v. Webco Industries, 265 F.3d 1085 (10th Cir. 2001)(enjoin prosecution of preempted state court
lawsuit).

The foregoing categories are not exclusive. Cases may arlse in vari@us contexts that are
not encompassed by these categories but that still warrant extr |njunct|ve relief. The
common denominator for all cases in which Sectlon 1069 @@IFQ [ sought is that the Board's
ultimate remedial order will be unable to g@.ﬁéréY completely the status quo and, thereby,
neutralize the damage caused by th% vwd:aﬁgns

Thereforevwh‘e\q\’ t}a/}qng a charge or investigating a case which falls within one of the
above categories, or when circumstances otherwise suggest a threat of remedial failure, Board
agents should be particularly alert for the potential need for 10(j) relief.

3.0 NOTICE TO PARTIES & EXPEDITION OF 10(j) CASES

As soon as it appears that 10(j) relief may be considered, the Region immediately should
notify all parties of this fact and invite the parties to submit evidence and argument relevant to
the 10(j) consideration. See Casehandling Manual Section 10310.1.

Although Section 10(j) cases do not have statutory priority, the Agency has determined
that, based upon policy considerations, any cases involving Section 10(j) relief should have
priority over all other non-statutory priority cases in the Region (see Casehandling Manual
10310.6 and 102.94(a) Rules and Regulations). This expedition is necessary because inordinate
delay in processing a Section 10(j) case diminishes the effectiveness of any relief obtained.
Delay may entirely preclude relief where the situation has so changed that restoration of the
status quo is impossible or would be no more effective than the Board's order in due course.
Regions should therefore be reluctant to grant postponements to parties for production of
witnesses and position statements.



4.0 INVESTIGATING AND ANALYZING "JUST AND PROPER"

As noted above, a 10(j) case differs from other unfair labor practice cases because the
circumstances of the case make it likely that the Board's ultimate order will be ineffective to
restore the status quo. Accordingly, when investigating an unfair labor practice charge that
includes 10(j) consideration, the Board Agent will determine whether there is evidence
establishing a violation of the Act, but should also conduct additional investigation and analysis
to determine whether a Board order in due course will be inadequate to protect statutory rights.
To make these determinations, the 10(j) investigator should focus on the impact of those unfair
labor practices on statutory rights. The Region should also determine the type of interim relief
that is needed to preserve the status quo so that the Board can issue an effective remedy.

The quantum of evidence required to establish the need for Section 10(j) relief will vary
depending upon the type of cases involved, the applicable case law, and the judicial circuit in
which injunctive relief is sought. Although some courts are willing to infer the irreparable injury
to statutory rights from certain violations, others may require actual evidence of harm. For this
reason, the existence or absence of direct evidence of impact in a particular case is always
relevant to the evaluation of the need for 10(j) relief. Its absence does not necessarily mean that
Section 10(j) proceedings are inappropriate. But, the ability of the CRe{gions to adduce
demonstrable evidence of irreparable harm or undermining effects\gﬁ?l%%nfair labor practices
increases the Board's chances for success in litigating '_'jjg%t@m@“b oper" issues in Section 10(j)
proceedings. coBh arct

In any case being ¢ idﬂ‘éﬁ‘}\(\)? 10(j) relief, the Board Agent should routinely question
witnesses about t gai(mpacf\o the alleged violations on statutory rights, including possible "chill"
on Section 7 rights, and include witness responses in their initial affidavits. In some instances,
evidence of chill will be apparent from the nature of the violations, such as the discharge of a
prominent activist or threats of plant closure made by high level officials at captive audience
meetings. In any event, Board Agents should make every attempt to obtain both objective and
subjective evidence which can be put before a district court. Objective evidence would include
such things as a drop in the number of union authorization cards obtained after the onset of the
unfair labor practices or a decrease in attendance at union organizing meetings. Subjective
evidence is usually provided in statements given by employees, or union or employer
representatives about the state of mind of employees as a result of the unfair labor practices; e.g.
fear of job loss or anger at the Union. Although evidence from the affected employees is most
persuasive, evidence can be obtained from another employee or union business representative to
whom the affected employee expressed concern.®> Union representatives can provide useful
evidence in a variety of circumstances, such as whether a respondent's unlawful conduct has had
an impact on an organizing campaign or the bargaining process.

¥ See the model argument to support the use of hearsay evidence in Section 10(j) proceedings, in
Appendix G-4.
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In developing the appropriate questions, Board Agents should determine whether the case
falls within one of the 15 categories of Section 10(j) cases and consider the nature of the remedy
the Region would seek in a 10(j) proceeding. These categories are discussed above in Section
2.1 and outlined in Appendix A. Board Agents should then refer to Appendix B of this Manual
which provides a checklist of questions designed to adduce relevant evidence as to the need for
interim relief. The checklist is grouped by the types of violations alleged and is cross-referenced
to the 15 Section 10(j) categories.

If a charged party refuses to cooperate in an investigation and, as a result, the Region
lacks sufficient evidence to evaluate the propriety of Section 10(j) relief, the Region should
consider setting the case for an expedited administrative hearing within 28 days after complaint
issues, in accordance with the applicable procedures.* After respondent produces its evidence
pursuant to either procedure, the Region should reevaluate the need for Section 10(j) relief.

4.1  Region's Evaluation of Whether to Seek 10(j) Relief

After the Region completes its 10(j) investigation, it should evaluate whether 10(j)
proceedings are appropriate. In determining whether to recommend the institution of 10(j)
proceedings, the Region should consider the strength of the violations as well as the threat of
remedial failure. The Region should also consider the case in light of the "just and proper"
theories set forth in established 10(j) caselaw,” as well as the "just and proped' 'gvidence adduced
during the Region's investigation and provided by the parties. The @g@fi@hgevaluatlon generally
should be made at the same time that it determines Whethgatm&‘ﬁ% complaint on the allegations
in the charge(s). 50%h arc™

4.2  Region Concludes l{wmoﬁbn‘\\Proceedlngs Not Warranted
AN
Except mFélrcumstances where 10(j) submissions are mandatory, regions may conclude
that Section 10(j) proceedings should not be instituted. In those instances, it should inform the
parties of its decision that injunctive relief is not warranted.

5.0 SUBMISSION OF 10(j) CASE TO THE BOARD
5.1 Relationship between the Unfair Labor Practice Proceeding and 10(j) Proceeding

In considering whether to seek injunctive relief, the Region should keep in mind the
relationship between the administrative proceeding and any injunction proceeding that is
instituted under Section 10(j) of the Act. The statute provides that the Board may petition a
district court for temporary relief "upon issuance of a complaint." Therefore, an administrative
unfair labor practice complaint is a necessary predicate for seeking injunctive relief.

The Board may not seek relief in district court for a violation that is not alleged in the
complaint. Similarly, the Board may not argue in district court a theory of violation that is not

* See Memorandum GC 94-17, Expedited Hearings.
> See Appendix E of this Manual for a list of court cases for each 10(j) category.
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also being argued in the ancillary administrative proceeding. However, the converse is not true.
Thus, while the violations alleged in the 10(j) petition must be alleged in the administrative
complaint, it is not always necessary to seek interim relief on every violation alleged in the
administrative complaint. Instead, in every 10(j) case, the Region should evaluate the unfair
labor practice complaint to determine which violations must be remedied on an interim basis in
order to restore the status quo. [2 lines redacted, Exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

Regions should remain vigilant about recommending 10(j) proceedings in cases even
when there are related charges still unresolved in the Region. If a case is 10(j) worthy, the
Region should not wait for additional related charges to be resolved before submitting the
original case to Washington. If those related charges are ultimately found to be meritorious and
also worthy of 10(j) relief, the Region should call the Injunction Litigation Branch.®

5.2  Preparing the Section 10(j) Memorandum to the General Counsel

After the Region determines that a case has merit and believes 10(j) proceedings are
appropriate, the Region makes a recommendation in writing to the General Counsel, through the
Injunction Litigation Branch (ILB) of the Division of Advice, as to whether it believes that
Section 10(j) relief is warranted. The 10(j) memorandum should be submitted to the ILB within
14 days of the merit determination. If the General Counsel agrees that 10(j) proceedings should
be sought, the Region's memorandum provides the foundation for the GeneBa\I\Counsel's request
for authorization from the Board. Therefore, the Region's memgg&ﬂ@u% should contain the
necessary information, analysis, and recommendations fo%gﬂerd%‘h%ral Counsel and the Board to
decide whether to recommend and to authogz&ggmiﬁﬁq\ﬁ(j) relief in the case.

AO-
5.2.1 Content of the 10@(Mem‘6>ra\ﬁ\8um
\N-

[Bracketgéas%\étions are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney

work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General

Counsel.]

[If the Region concludes 10(j) relief is warranted, its memorandum should detail the
"merits" analysis and the analysis of the threat of remedial failure necessary to prove a 10(j) case
in district court. This memorandum should set forth:

e the relevant facts and legal arguments and authorities establishing the violations,
omitting analysis of minor violations

e responses to defenses raised by the respondent

® See Memorandum OM 01-33, Timely Processing of Section 10(j) Case When Multiple Related
Charges are Filed.
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e the Region's analysis including relevant facts and case law regarding why interim
injunctive relief is necessary and a Board order in due course will be insufficient’

e responses to arguments against 10(j) raised by the respondent

e a proposed order listing specific interim remedies to be sought before the district
court

e attach a copy of the unfair labor practice complaint,? the answer (if filed), any 10(j)
position statements submitted by the parties, and a list of counsel representing the
parties]

5.2.2 Resources for preparing the 10(j) Memorandum

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[There are several resources available to help Board Agents prepare the Region's 10(j)
memorandum. An outline of a model 10(j) memorandum is included in Appendix C of this
manual. In addition, the Regions may obtain copies of prior 10(j) memoranda,\tp the Board in the
ILB's research database on the agency's Intranet. These memorand @gatz% arguments used in
prior 10(j) cases and may have legal arguments—both on t Q)méﬂ% and on the need for relief—
that can be used in preparing the 10(j) memorg Qm“‘ y searching through the ILB database
with key words or by 10(j) category Wr "Go 10(j)#3™), one can review and copy from
the hundreds of memoranda‘tga@ba% |ssued over the years.]

[Also, theFfEB has prepared a number of model arguments that are frequently used (i.e.,
need for an interim bargaining order, need for interim reinstatement, delay should not preclude
injunctive relief) which are found in Appendix G of this Manual. A list of important 10(j) cases,
grouped by 10(j) categories, is located in Appendix E.]

[While the ILB, General Counsel, and Board are considering the case, the Region should
continue to investigate the effects of the unfair labor practices, pursue settlement, and, in cases
where the likelihood of obtaining authorization to seek Section 10(j) relief is high, begin the
preparation of the appropriate papers for filing in court.]

" [If the evidence adduced during the investigation demonstrates that the irreparable injury is
imminent, the Region should consider, and explain in its memo, why a temporary restraining
order (TRO) should be sought. For example, TRO's are often needed where there is ongoing
violence or where a respondent has immediate plans to dispose of its assets. See Guidelines for
Filing Motions for Temporary Restraining Orders Under Section 10(j) in Appendix J of this
Manual.]

8 [The Region should not hold the 10(j) memorandum if complaint has not issued, but instead
immediately forward the complaint after submitting the case to ILB.]
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5.3 Division of Advice Evaluation

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[Once the Division of Advice receives the Region's recommendation to institute 10(j)
proceedings, the case is assigned to an ILB attorney for an independent review and evaluation
and presented to the ILB managers for a decision. When the Division of Advice agrees with the
Region's recommendation that injunctive relief is appropriate, it prepares a cover memorandum
on behalf of the General Counsel which is attached to the Region's memorandum requesting
injunctive relief. Together, these two documents constitute the General Counsel's request to the
Board for authorization to institute 10(j) proceedings. The cover memorandum includes items
not included in the Region's memorandum and necessary for the Board to make a full and
reasoned evaluation of the case. Also, as discussed below, the combination of these two
documents serves as a road map for the Region in ultimately preparing the appropriate papers for
filing in court.]

[After the General Counsel reviews and signs ILB's cover memorandum to the Board, the
entire case, including the Region's memorandum and attachments, is submitted to the Board.
The ILB will also fax or transmit by electronic mail to the Region a copy (S{\the memorandum
sent to the Board. At this point, at the latest, the Region should Ug}m@d ely begin preparing
papers to file in district court.] ‘(\Ned on PV
g aC
5.4  Inform ILB of Changed Clrc\gms@n\a?

GorP-

The Reglon w@uld’%utlnely keep the Injunction Litigation Branch updated on any new
developments in “Cases submitted for 10(j) authorization at all stages of 10(j) processing,
including after Board authorization. [redacted 3 lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and

7(B)]
5.5 Board Authorization and Timing of Filing Petition

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

If the Board authorizes Section 10(j) proceedings, the ILB will immediately notify the
Region. The Region must file the Section 10(j) petition within 48 hours after notice by the ILB
that the Board has authorized the use of Section 10(j). If a settlement is imminent, the Regional
Office should consult with the Injunction Litigation Branch to seek telephone authorization to
file the petition outside the 48-hour deadline.

During the 48 hours from the authorization of Section 10(j) proceedings until the filing of
the Section 10(j) court papers, settlement efforts should be vigorously pursued. [Experience
demonstrates that the authorization of Section 10(j) proceedings is a strong catalyst for
settlement of the underlying case.]
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6.0 PREPARING 10(J) PAPERS FOR DISTRICT COURT

As mentioned above, the Region must file the 10(j) petition in district court within 48
hours after notice by the ILB that the Board has authorized the use of Section 10(j). The typical
documents to be filed in the U.S. District Court include:

e Petition for Injunctive Relief (attach charge, complaint and Regional Director's
affidavit)

e Proposed Order to Show Cause

e Memorandum of Points and Authorities

e Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

e Proposed Temporary Injunction Order (should track the 10(j) memo to Board)

Examples of these basic pleadings, as well as others that may be applicable (i.e, a sample motion
for a Temporary Restraining Order) are included in Appendix H of this Manuzil,\9
20

The Region should always check the local district court wgsl%ﬁ%j%iermine the procedures
that should be followed in filing the papers. Thes&dwle%dc%n be obtained from Westlaw, and
some courts maintain their own website c%ua‘h% the rules and other pertinent information. It
may be helpful to contact attorerg(@ir\\\me area who are well practiced in civil litigation to help
explain the vagaries %Lh@fdﬁa district court. It could also prove worthwhile to telephone the
court and establigti €ontact with someone in the clerk's office who can provide help on some of
these procedural matters.

In preparing the papers for filing, the Region should ensure that the court is made aware
at the outset that the Board's 10(j) petition should be given expedited treatment under 28 U.S.C.
Section 1657(a) (gives priority to preliminary injunction cases in federal courts). Typically, this
may be accomplished by indicating in the cover letter accompanying the filing of the court
papers that treatment of the case is governed by Section 1657(a).

6.1 The Evidence

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[The Region should decide how to make or place an evidentiary record before the district
court judge. The Region's evidence should support both its petition allegations on the merits of

° If the Board has authorized a 10(j) protective order to sequester assets, refer to Appendix I for
samples of the model pleadings.
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the case, as well as the petition allegations on the propriety of granting injunctive relief. Some
district courts permit or require the Board to litigate 10(j) cases purely on affidavits. In those
circumstances, check with the district court or judge's law clerk as to when the affidavits should
be filed in court. The Region should then prepare for filing with the court a volume of the
affidavits and exhibits upon which it intends to rely.]

[In some cases, a record already compiled in the administrative proceeding before an
administrative law judge (or relevant portions thereof) can be used in place of, or in conjunction
with, affidavits. The administrative record will generally only support the merits of the
violations, and not the need for injunctive relief. For this reason, 10(j) cases heard on the
administrative record also will need supplementary evidence on the need for interim relief either
in the form of affidavits or live testimony before the district court judge.]

[In either event, unless the district court has approved as a general rule the use of
affidavits or administrative transcripts in 10(j) proceedings,'® the Region should file a motion to
hear the case on affidavits or the administrative record. This, preferably, should be filed
simultaneously with the petition. Sample motions and a model memorandum to support such
motions are contained in Appendix K of this Manual. In some instances, a district court will
insist on hearing live testimony to prove the violations or just and proper allegations in the
petition. In that case, the Region should be prepared to present witnesses at a 10(j) hearing in
district court to prove the merits of the petition allegations.] 9O

6.2  The Memorandum of Points and Authoritieiwed o
~Z\!

In preparing the Memorandu _R@ﬁégg)r?d Authorities, the Region should keep in mind
that the district court judge Q(,\magi@trate is unlikely to be as familiar with labor law principles as
an administrative lawdjudge. Thus, the Board's memorandum in support of the Petition for
Injunctive Reliefghould lay out a theory of violation in greater detail than the Region is likely to
do in its administrative litigation, and should avoid labor law jargon.

The Region's memorandum regarding Section 10(j) relief and the General Counsel's
memorandum to the Board serve as a blueprint for the district court petition and brief and a
repository of solutions for anticipated litigation problems in the particular case. The Region is
not expected to perform additional research to prepare its court papers. Rather, the Region
should rely upon these two documents, together with other resources, such as the Model 10(j)
standards in Appendix D, the list of important 10(j) cases in Appendix E, sample arguments in
Appendix G, and sample 10(j) pleadings in Appendix H, to draft papers in appropriate format for
the district court. In addition, the attorney should review prior memoranda of points and
authorities in support of a 10(j) petition to obtain the proper format for drafting the
memorandum.

Basically, every memorandum of points and authorities should include, in the following
order:

19 TFor example, district courts in the Ninth Circuit require preliminary injunction cases to be
tried on affidavits as a matter of course.]
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e an introduction to the case which describes briefly the nature of the case and why the
Board is before the court

e an overview of the statutory scheme of Section 10(j) of the Act
e the applicable 10(j) standard that should be applied in the case

e a chronological narrative containing the facts of the case, including all facts necessary to
support the allegations in the petition and the need for relief, with annotations referring to
any attached affidavits

e an analysis of how the facts support each of the violations alleged in the petition
(applying either the "reasonable cause” or "likelihood of success" test), with citation to
applicable Board and court authority

e adescription of the specific relief the Board is seeking, together with an analysis of why
that relief is needed in the case, relying upon, where available, evidence of the impact of
the violations

e aconclusion

If sample memoranda of points and authority are unavailable in th Sxergmﬁ%p?)ffice, the Region
can request samples from the Injunction Litigation Branch, o& Héﬁng of recommended samples
available from ILB is located in Appendix F of this Mnval. In addition, special instructions and
model arguments for briefing Gissel 1&@) ¢8ses are located in Appendix G-2 of this Manual.
00(9.1

The respondaqmisﬁﬁc\;\rded the opportunity to file answering papers and, where relevant,
counter-affidavits and exhibits. The Region may need to file a reply brief and rebuttal affidavits
and exhibits to answer unanticipated arguments raised by the respondent. Check the local
district court rules to determine whether these are permitted as a matter of course or by motion.

7.0 ORAL ARGUMENT IN DISTRICT COURT

Once the Region files the initial 10(j) papers in district court, the case will be assigned to
a judge who should schedule a hearing."* As shown in the following sections, numerous
resources are available to assist Board attorneys in their preparation to argue before a federal
district court judge. In addition to these resources, the Injunction Litigation Branch is available
at all times to provide additional guidance and support as the 10(j) hearing approaches.

1 |f the judge does not set a date for a hearing after 30 days from the filing of the petition, refer
to section 9.2 on District Court Delay in Issuing 10(j) Decision regarding how to proceed.
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7.1  Preparation for the 10(j) Hearing

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[Unless the court has specifically limited the issues to be addressed at hearing, the Board
attorney should be prepared to address all aspects of the 10(j) case. In most instances, the
Region will have filed with its initial papers a motion to either hear the case on affidavits or on
the ALJ transcript. If the court has granted the motion, than it is doubtful that there will be any
need to present live testimony on the merits of the unfair labor practice allegations. However, it
may be advisable for Board counsel to prepare and bring to the hearing at least one key witness
since it is within the court's discretion to ask for live testimony at any time.]

[On the other hand, it is also possible that the court will not have ruled on the motion,
even as the hearing date approaches. In that event, the Board attorney should contact the judge's
clerk and attempt to get a ruling on the motion prior to the hearing, or at least get a sense of
which issues the court anticipates addressing during the hearing. If, at the time of the hearing,
the court has still not ruled on the outstanding motion to try the case on either affidavits or ALJ
record, than the Board attorney should be prepared to put on a full evidentiary hearing on both
the merits of the unfair labor practice allegations as well as the need for igjgl%c\ti\ve relief.]

29,

[Generally, however, the district court hearing, ds Ph&\w)?gvidentiary, providing an
opportunity to present oral arguments in suppo, %gfathé“\betition. The Board attorney should be
prepared to argue all the affirmative gl\%neﬁtégb the case. Typically, these include the standard
to be applied by the court fo{\,qmd%g whether to grant injunctive relief, the low burden of proof
on the merits, th (g\z@a\its ‘themselves (applying either the "reasonable cause™ or "likelihood of
success standards), and why injunctive relief is necessary in the case before the court. In
addition, the Board attorney should address the defenses which respondent may have raised in its
opposition memorandum.]

[In preparation for the district court hearing, the Board attorney should review "Questions
By The Court and Possible Answers in Section 10(j) Proceedings” which is found in Appendix L
of this Manual. This document lists questions which are frequently asked by judges in district
court proceedings.] [redacted 2 lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)] [The
suggested answers will provide guidance on how to address these concerns.]

[There are certain steps the Board attorney should take prior to the hearing to help
address these preeminent concerns of the district court. First, the Board attorney should notify
the ALJ assigned to the case that 10(j) relief has been sought, and request expedited treatment of
the unfair labor practice case. Having accomplished this task, Board counsel can fairly report to
the judge that the Board has done everything possible to expedite the case. In this vein, the
Board attorney should avoid and oppose any delay in the administrative hearing — trial
postponements and extensions for filing briefs can indicate a lack of urgency. Second, the Board
attorney should confirm prior to the hearing that any discriminatees involved in the case still
desire reinstatement. It would be awkward to argue before the court about the need for
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reinstatement, only to have Respondent counter that the discriminatee is no longer interested in
reinstatement.]

7.2  Charging Party Intervention

Occasionally, a charging party may wish to intervene as a party in the Section 10(j)
proceeding. Board counsel should oppose any effort by the charging party to intervene.'? Instead,
the Region should support amicus status for the charging party. If possible, this matter can be
handled informally between the parties. However, if the charging party files a motion for
intervention in district court, the Region should oppose that motion and support amicus status at that
time. A sample argument to support a motion to oppose intervention is in Appendix M of this
Manual.

7.3 Moot Court

A moot court session prior to a district court hearing may be advisable. A moot court
provides the Board attorney with a greater level of familiarity and experience articulating the
arguments. It also provides exposure to another point of view. Board attorneys can arrange a
moot court with the supervisors or managers in their Regional office. In addition, the ILB is
available to conduct a moot court session, either by telephone or via the agency's video
conferencing equipment.

29 20"
7.4  Atthe District Court Hearing or Oral Argumentd on AugY
aroniN®
[redacted 2 pages, exem. 5, attorc\%yy@arkgfg’lé'oduct, 2 and 7(E)]

—(\/\ Co(pn
gran¥ Y-
8.0 DISCOVERY IN 10(j) LITIGATION

[ redacted 5 lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)] These guidelines are
designed to assist Board attorneys in responding to discovery requests by:

e setting forth the primary Agency objectives in handling discovery requests;

e summarizing how Regional Offices should deal with several general types of
requested discovery material; and

e providing examples of strategies successfully used in the past to effectively respond
to discovery requests while controlling the scope of discovered information.

Board attorneys should read these guidelines in conjunction with the Model
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of a Motion for a Protective Order to Limit
Discovery Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c)(1) (Model Memorandum), in Appendix N of this

12 See Memorandum GC 99-4, Participation by Charging Parties in Section 10(j) Injunction and
Section 10(j) Contempt Proceedings, located in Appendix M of this Manual.
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Manual. The Model Memorandum supplements the legal issues outlined here with more
comprehensive arguments and citation to case authority.® [redacted 4 lines, exem. 5, attorney
work product, 2 and 7(E)]

The Region should immediately contact the Injunction Litigation Branch whenever it
receives a discovery request in a Section 10(j) case.

8.1 Discovery Objectives

[redacted 3 paragraphs, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]
8.2  Types of Discovery Requests

[redacted 5 pages, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]
8.3  Successful Strategies for Carrying Out Board's Discovery Objectives

[redacted 5 paragraphs, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

9.0 OTHERLITIGATION ISSUES 2 90\
ust &7
9.1  Impact of ALJID on 10(j) Litigation e on RV
g 2fC
[Bracketed sections are exe _ﬁ‘bfﬁ?%isclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney

work product, ZHQ{L\CCG‘GE), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.L ook ¥

[Frequently, an ALJ issues a decision in an unfair labor practice case when there is a
related 10(j) petition pending before a district court. In that event, the Board attorney should
review the ALJD and determine whether the ALJ's findings support or undercut the allegations
in the 10(j) petition. The Region should also immediately notify the Injunction Litigation
Branch of the issuance of the ALJD.]

[A favorable ALJD supports the Board's effort to convince a district court judge that
there is either "reasonable cause™ to believe respondent violated the Act as alleged in the 10(j)
petition, or that there is a "likelihood of success” in proving the violations before the Board.
Therefore, if the ALJ's findings support the 10(j) petition allegations, then the Region should
submit a copy of the ALJ's decision to the district court judge who is presiding over the 10(j)
petition. The Region should send a cover letter which explains how the ALJ's decision supports

13 Appropriate portions of the Model Memorandum should be filed in support of a motion to
limit discovery. A model motion and order limiting discovery are also in Appendix N of this
Manual. Note that the Model Memorandum discusses numerous types of discovery
problems that arise in 10(J) proceedings; therefore, a Region should be careful to use only
those parts of the Memorandum, Model Motion and Model Order which concern its
particular discovery request.
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the 10(j) petition. A proposed cover letter, with relevant arguments and case citation, is included
in Appendix O of this Manual.]

[In the event of an adverse ruling by an ALJ, Board Rule 102.94(b) requires notification
of the district court. Therefore, if the ALJ recommends dismissal of some or all of the complaint
allegations which are contained in the 10(j) petition, the Region should immediately notify the
ILB. The Region should evaluate the impact of the ALJ's decision on the critical allegations
contained in the 10(j) petition and should consider the viability of proceeding with the 10(j)
litigation in district court in the face of an adverse ALJ decision. This determination will be
based, in part, on whether the Region will take exceptions to the ALJ's adverse rulings. The
Region should then make a prompt recommendation to the Injunction Litigation Branch as to
whether or not to withdraw the 10(j) petition or, at least, the losing allegations.]

9.2  District Court Delay in Issuing 10(j) Decision

The Board authorizes the use of injunction proceedings when immediate interim relief is
needed to preserve the effectiveness of the Board's ultimate remedial order. For this reason, time
is always of the essence in a 10(j) case. Just as the Agency makes every effort to expedite
internal agency processes in every 10(j) case, the district court also should act quickly to resolve
the 10(j) petition.

For this reason, the Region should be prepared to take act mﬁﬁ? does not receive a
prompt decision from a district court judge. [redacteg&\HHSS exem. 5, attorney work
product, 2 and 7(E)] A complete timeline, Wé Ap@mbf\é%enswe instructions and model papers
for obtaining a prompt 10(j) demsmrggrom “odistrict court, are located in Appendix P of this
Manual. The Region shoulg\,ke&pq apprised of all developments concerning expediting the
Section 10(j) decglg‘w\\l

9.3  Withdrawal or Dismissal of the 10(j) Petition

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[For various reasons, it may be necessary for the Region to consider withdrawing or
seeking dismissal the Section 10(j) petition while it is pending in district court and before the
court issues a decision. This may occur if the parties have settled the underlying labor dispute,
or if there are other changed circumstances which render injunctive relief no longer appropriate.
The Section 10(j) petition should not be withdrawn or dismissed, however, without the Region
first conferring with the Injunction Litigation Branch.]

10.0 POST INJUNCTION PROCEDURES
A number of issues may arise after a district court issues a decision either granting or

denying the Board's 10(j) petition. As always, the Region should immediately inform the
Injunction Litigation Branch of the issuance of a district court's decision in any 10(j) matter, and
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promptly send by facsimile transmission a copy of the 10(j) decision or order. However, the
granting or denial of a 10(j) injunction is not the end of a 10(j) case. Whether the decision is a
win or a loss, the Board attorney should be aware of a number of issues may arise.

10.1 Notification to ALJ or Board

Depending on the stage of the administrative proceeding, the Region must notify either
the presiding ALJ or the Board whenever a district court issues an Section 10(j) injunction in a
pending unfair labor practice case and request that the case be expedited. Section 102.94(a) of
the Board's Rules and Regulations requires that the Board give expedited treatment to any
complaint which is the basis for interim injunctive relief.

10.2  Modification or Clarification of 10(j) Order

When a district court issues an order granting interim injunctive relief under Section 10(j)
of the Act, the Region immediately should determine whether the relief granted differs from that
which was requested in the 10(j) petition. If the relief granted does not exactly track the
language of the petition and the proposed 10(j) order, the Region should determine whether the
relief obtained is clear, capable of compliance, and provides the relief necessary to restore the
status quo. If the order is vague, or omits relief the district court obviously intended to grant,
then the Region should consider whether to file a motion to clarify the orde A If the Region is
aware of a change in circumstances, or has otherwise obtained newug\/imr%% which, had it been
heard by the district court would have affected the case, _théa& thePRegion should consider whether
to ask for a modification of the order. In eithen, instarice, the Region should confer with the
Injunction Litigation Branch regardi Oansb'f)éssible defects in the district court order and for
authorization to file a moti\g\r\l\rqlejt'»fying or modifying the order.

\.

Al
10.3 Appeal C%Ws(}deration if 10(j) Relief is Denied

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

The Injunction Litigation Branch evaluates each Section 10(j) loss, in part or in total, as a
potential appeal. The Board, as a federal agency, has 60 days from entry of the district court
order to file a notice of appeal (Fed. R. App. P. 4(a)(1)(B)). Consequently, Regions should
immediately inform the ILB of the entry of a final order in district court, followed up by a fax of
the decision and order. This will trigger the appeal consideration process by ILB personnel.

In addition to the district court decision itself, the ILB bases the propriety of an appeal on
three sets of documents: the record before the district court, a transcript of district court
proceedings, and the Region's recommendation as to the merits of an appeal. Generally, regions
should send the district court record to the ILB as soon as possible, including the petition;
supporting memoranda of points and authorities, as well as opposing briefs; and the record
evidence submitted by both parties upon which the court relied (e.g., affidavits or the transcript
of an ALJ hearing). The Region, however, should consult with the ILB to determine whether the
case warrants transmission of the entire district court record.
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Consideration of an appeal generally warrants review of the district court transcript. The
Region is responsible for ordering the transcript and, if in doubt about the need for a transcript,
should contact the ILB. A transcript may be unnecessary in certain circumstances, such as
situations where the district court granted most of the requested relief and an appeal by
Respondent is unlikely. The Region should advise the ILB of the transcript's delivery date and
arrange for the court reporter to deliver it directly to the ILB, if possible.

[The Region's role in an appeal consideration culminates with the submission of a written
recommendation. Although it is unnecessary to reiterate the merits of the petition, the Region
should briefly relate the procedural history of the case before the district court, including the date
the Region filed the petition; the date, nature and disposition of pertinent, substantive motions
that bear on the ability to secure the requested relief (e.g., motions to dismiss); the hearing dates;
and the evidentiary basis upon which the case was tried (e.g., affidavits or ALJ transcript). Since
the 10(j) loss is reviewed in light of the evidentiary posture at trial, it is crucial to identify any
material record evidence which differed from the facts upon which the Board authorized
injunctive proceedings and analyze what, if any, impact the changed record would have on an
appeal consideration. The Region should also identify any evidence which the court discredited
and analyze the propriety of the credibility resolution according to circuit law.]

[The Region also should consider whether the decision is subject to reversal pursuant to
the standard of review in the relevant circuit. Although standards differ, %s\analyms generally
involves determining whether any of the court's adverse findlng‘>r Q@aétgwere clearly erroneous;
whether the court based its legal conclusions on an errgg@@ﬂ!s egal standard; and whether the
failure to grant Section 10(j) relief constitute @gza@uge of discretion. The Region should draw
upon supporting, in-circuit precedeng\oas\%é? as analyses of adverse caselaw. The Region
should also review the 'SAdverse inferences, if any, to determine whether they were
reasonably based;i(gﬂ@ﬁ‘[‘ of record evidence or, alternatively, constituted an abuse of discretion.
The Region should further weigh the relative merits of likely respondent defenses to our
arguments on appeal, as well as articulating possible rebuttals to those defenses.]

[The Region should next determine whether the denied relief continues to be needed,
indicating any changed circumstances as well as the charging party's viewpoint.] [redacted 2
lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

[Finally, the Region should analyze any policy considerations that support or negate
taking an appeal. These would include the possible effect of adverse legal precedent resulting
from a loss before the appellate court and any impact of an unappealed district court decision on
future 10(j) litigation.]

10.4 Monitoring Compliance with the 10(j) Injunction

To ensure the effectiveness of a 10(j) decree, the Region should monitor the respondent's
compliance with all aspects of the district court's order, especially any affirmative provisions,
such as reinstatement, bargaining, or rescission orders. The Region should take the following
steps in order to monitor compliance:
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e Once the injunction is issued, the Region should maintain contact with the charging
party, employees, or other interested parties to stay apprised of respondent's post-
injunction conduct.

e The Region should keep in mind any deadlines contained in the injunction (e.g., for
reinstatement offers to be made, for the affidavit of compliance to be filed) and check
that respondent has taken appropriate action within the prescribed time periods.

e The Region should also inquire whether any triggering events or actions required by
the charging party, such as a union's request for bargaining or for rescission of
unilateral changes, have taken place.

10.5 Investigating Possible Contempt of the 10(j) Injunction

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[If a respondent appears to be in noncompliance, the Region should conduct a contempt

investigation.

Post-injunction monitoring and contempt proceedings are essential tools in

making sure that Section 10(j) decrees fulfill their purpose. The foIIowm(g;\@re guidelines for
these important post-injunction procedures. ot 29,7

If the Region believes the respo gngv@‘l?ﬁ noncompllance with the court's order,
the Region should |de %ecmc provisions of the order that are not being
followed T Ragi@n should analyze exactly what the order requires, of whom,

nd identify the acts or omissions it believes are noncompliant with those
requirements.

The Region should conduct an investigation, obtaining witness affidavits or
documentary evidence, to establish how those specific provisions of the order are
being disregarded. For example, in a reinstatement case, it may be necessary to
obtain affidavits from each discriminatee to establish that no reinstatement offers
have been made or that the offers are insufficient. In a refusal to bargain case,
affidavits from union representatives, copies of bargaining demands or other
correspondence between the parties may be required.

In conducting this investigation, the Region should bear in mind the higher
standard of proof required to show civil contempt, i.e., "clear and convincing"
evidence of noncompliance.** But, the elements of contempt may be proven by

4 [NLRB v. Blevins Popcorn Co., 659 F.2d 1173, 1184-86 (D.C. Cir. 1981); Squillacote v.

Local 248, Meat & Allied Food Workers, 534 F.2d 735, 746-47 (7" Cir. 1976).] [Corresponds
to original fn. 42.]
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circumstantial evidence.®® Moreover, contempt violations do not have to be
willful or intentional, and good faith is not a defense.*®

e During the investigation, the Region should contact respondent to ascertain that
respondent received a copy of the district court's order. The Region should advise
respondent that it believes there is noncompliance with the order and that it is
conducting a contempt investigation. Respondent should be given an opportunity
to respond and present evidence of compliance or raise defenses to contempt.

e The purpose of civil contempt sanctions are intended to coerce compliance with
the order and compensate a party for damages resulting from noncompliance.'’

e Contempt orders generally include payment to the Board of compensatory
damages for the costs and expenditures incurred in investigating and prosecuting
the contempt proceeding, including attorney fees of Board personnel. In order to
calculate the Board's damages, Regional professional personnel should maintain a
daily record of the time spent on the contempt case during this investigatory phase
and continuing through prosecution of the contempt case. these records should be
maintained in increments of tenths of one hour (or, every six minutes) and should
include specific details of activities. Please contact ILB for further instructions
and to obtain the appropriate forms for recording time.] o 90\

st &>
10.6  Submitting a Contempt Recommendation toGYI\l\qu on pugt
A ot
[Bracketed sections are exe _fr%Ba?sclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, ZHggdzd‘(ﬁE), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]ﬁan\«\\l-

[If the Region's post-decree investigation indicates that the respondent is not complying
with the 10(j) injunction, and the Region determines there is "clear and convincing"” evidence to
indicate that the respondent is in contempt, the Region should submit the case to the Injunction
Litigation Branch with a recommendation regarding whether to institute contempt proceedings.
The Region's memorandum should include the following:

e a description of the 10(j) order, attaching a copy of the district court's opinion an
order, including any modifications or clarifications;

e identify the specific provisions of the order with which the respondent is failing to
comply;

15 [Walker v. City of Birmingham, 388 U.S. 307, 312 n. 4 (1967).] [Corresponds to original
fn. 43.]

16 [Asseo v. Bultman Enterprises, 951 F. Supp. 307, 312 (D. P.R. 1996).] [Corresponds to
original fn. 44.]

7 [Gompers v. Buchs Stove & Range Co., 221 U.S. 418, 441-444 (1911).] [Corresponds to
original fn. 45.]
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e describe the evidence of noncompliance obtained in the Region's investigation;
e summarize respondent's position on the contempt allegations;

e analyze the investigation results and respondent's defenses, and explain the basis
for the Region's conclusion, applying the appropriate contempt standard (e.g.,
"clear and convincing" evidence for civil contempt);

e state the Region's recommendation as to contempt proceedings and a proposed
contempt order.]

[A sample contempt memorandum issued by the ILB containing relevant contempt principles,
arguments, and the suggested format for a contempt decree, is located in Appendix Q of this
Manual.]

10.7 Impact of an Informal Settlement Agreement on a Section 10(j) Order.

[Bracketed sections are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but are disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]

[From time to time, cases in which the Board has obtained intg{iig 15‘2&:“[?0n 10(j) relief are
subsequently settled by an informal settlement agreement. Iggwe@é’r, the language contained in
the standard informal settlement agreement ma%/ggrgatle“‘éecompliance problem when there is an
outstanding 10(j) decree.] No. A0\

Co(pn

[redactedv%aQ\Q( agraph, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

[In order to preserve the Board's authority to seek contempt sanctions under the Section
10(j) decree, the Region should modify the language of the standard informal settlement
agreement to make it clear that the respondent's entering into the settlement will not result in the
immediate withdrawal of the complaint, dismissal of the charge, or the vacating of the 10(j)
injunction. Rather, the complaint will be withdrawn after compliance is complete. The Region
should modify the standard informal settlement agreement with the model language set forth in
Memorandum OM 01-62, Use of Special Informal Settlement Language in cases with

Outstanding Section 10(j)-10(I) Injunctions, which is located in Appendix R of this Manual.]

10.8 Adjustment of the Section 10(j) case

There may be occasions when a respondent is willing to adjust the Section 10(j) case
while the case is pending in district court but desires to litigate the underlying unfair labor
practice case before the Board. In those circumstances, the Region has two Section 10(j)
settlement options: a consent injunction or a settlement stipulation. First, a respondent can enter
into a consent injunction by which it agrees to entry of a Section 10(j) order that tracts the
proposed order to the district court. If a respondent violates the consent injunction, it will be
subject to contempt proceedings. [redacted 2 lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and

7(B)]
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Alternatively, a respondent can enter into a stipulation by which it agrees to terms
equivalent to a consent injunction and to an indefinite postponement of the case in district
court.’® Under this type of settlement stipulation, if respondent breaches the injunctive terms, the
court will conduct an expedited hearing to determine only whether there is reasonable cause to
believe (or likelihood of success in showing) that the respondent has failed to comply with the
settlement undertakings. Once a breach is shown, respondent agrees to entry of a consent
injunction. [redacted 4 lines, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

10.9 Issuance of Board Decision in Underlying Unfair Labor Practice Case

A 10(j) order is designed to provide interim relief during the pendency of the
administrative proceeding and preserve the Board's ability to issue a meaningful order.
Therefore, at some point while a 10(j) injunction is in effect, the Board will issue its final order
in the underlying unfair labor practice case. When the final Board order issues, the 10(j)
injunctive decree dissolves as a matter of law.*

When a 10(j) order is in effect, and the Board issues an order in the underlying case, the
Region should immediately advise the ILB of the issuance of the Board's order. ILB can provide
sample papers to instruct the Region on the best method for informing the district court of the
issuance of the Board decision and its impact on the 10(j) decree. The Region should also
consider and, where appropriate, discuss with ILB and the Appellate Court I%t;@nch whether there
is a need for a Section 10(e) injunction to protect statutory ri%htsugeri@ir?g enforcement of the
Board order. __gon P9

Section 10(j) of the Act remains a powerful tool for this Agency to effectively enforce the
rights guaranteed by the Act. The ILB is committed to providing Agency personnel with the
resources to help identify, investigate and litigate Section 10(j) cases. Please feel free to contact
the ILB to discuss any questions or problems which may arise during the course of processing a
10(j) case.

juinjlit\User'sGuide.doc
September 2002

18 See Appendix S, "Stipulation and Order Continuing Case under 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)."

19 Barbour v. Central Cartage, Inc., 583 F.2d 335, 336-337 (7th Cir. 1978); Johansen v. Queen
Mary Restaurant Corp., 522 F.2d 6 (9th Cir. 1975).
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Appendix A

APPENDIX A

SECTION 10(j) CATEGORIES

Interference with organizational campaign (no majority)

. includes traditional “nip in the bud” unfair labor practices, such as threats, coercive
interrogations, surveillance of protected activities, improper grant of benefits, and
unlawful employee discipline, including discriminatory discharges

. if it includes shutdown or relocation of operations, subcontracting, or transfer of
operations to alter ego or single or joint employer, see Category 3

. if it includes minority union recognition, see Category 6
2. Interference with organizational campaign (majority)
20\
. : : . . 29 .
. includes Gissel cases where union has obtained a F;} of authorization cards and
employer engaged in serious and egregidqga\wﬂ‘?alr labor practices (see Memorandum
GC 99-8 Guideline Memorandunt@®ncerning Gissel)
o. '
- Cfo“)" o
. will mc(l\Wq _uhﬁl\r abor practices similar to Category 1
Fra
3. Subcontracting or other change to avoid bargaining obligation
. these involve an employer’s implementation of a major entrepreneurial-type decision

which may include shutdown or relocation of operations, transfer of operations to alter
ego or single or joint employer

. changes may be discriminatorily motivated in violation of Section 8(a)(3) and/or
independently violative of Section 8(a)(5)
4. Withdrawal of recognition from incumbent
4. Undermining of bargaining representative
. includes implementation of important changes in working conditions, either

discriminatorily or without bargaining with the union

. may include any of the additional types of violations listed in Category 1, above
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. see also successor refusal to bargain (Category 7) or conduct during bargaining
(Category 8)
6. Minority union recognition
. includes variety of illegal assistance to and/or domination of a labor organization
7. Successor refusal to recognize and bargain
. includes discriminatory refusal to hire predecessor’s employees
8. Conduct during bargaining
. includes refusal to provide relevant information, delay or refusal to meet, insistence to

premature impasse or impasse on permissive or illegal subject g{bargaining,
unlawful course of conduct in bargaining, or surfacg\\?@ggeﬂc‘ﬁn%

QA arcnNe o
9. Mass picketing and violence No- \OAE’Q
,‘\,\ CO“O"
ank\ V-
. inclgées mass picketing which blocks ingress and egress to the plant or worksite,

violence and threats thereof, and damage to property
10.Notice requirements for strikes or picketing under Section 8(d) and 8(g)
. includes strikes or picketing undertaken in contravention of the notice and waiting

periods set forth in Section 8(d) (federal and state mediation) and 8(g) (notices to
health care institutions)

11. Refusal to permit protected activity on property

. may include employee picketing or handbilling arising from a labor dispute, or
nonemployee efforts to disseminate organizational material to employees

. may also include a unilateral change in past practice or contractual term granting
access to an incumbent union
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12. Union coercion to achieve unlawful objective

. may involve union insistence to impasse on permissive or illegal subject of
bargaining, or union conduct that amounts to restraint or coercion of the employer in
its selection of representatives for the purposes of collective bargaining or grievance
adjustment

13. Interference with access to Board processes

. may involve employer or union retaliation against employees for having resorted to
the processes of the Board

. retaliation may include threats, discharges, the imposition of internal union discipline
or the institution of groundless lawsuits

14. Segregating assets

o\t
W u‘:‘:"zg‘z
. includes any alienation of assets which ma [ \[@@]Kﬂ‘?‘ebh %rotective order to preserve
7 .afc
respondent’s assets for backp%’ \5931\
15.  Miscellaneous (7n core
grand V-
. includes injunction against certain lawsuits, employer violence, interference with
employee activities for mutual aid and protection
16. Interference with organizational campaign (no majority)
. includes traditional “nip in the bud” unfair labor practices, such as threats, coercive

interrogations, surveillance of protected activities, improper grant of benefits, and
unlawful employee discipline, including discriminatory discharges

. if it includes shutdown or relocation of operations, subcontracting, or transfer of
operations to alter ego or single or joint employer, see Category 3

. if it includes minority union recognition, see Category 6

17. Interference with organizational campaign (majority)



Appendix A

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

. includes Gissel cases where union has obtained a majority of authorization cards and
employer engaged in serious and egregious unfair labor practices (see Memorandum
GC 99-8 Guideline Memorandum Concerning Gissel)

. will include unfair labor practices similar to Category 1

Subcontracting or other change to avoid bargaining obligation

. these involve an employer’s implementation of a major entrepreneurial-type decision
which may include shutdown or relocation of operations, transfer of operations to alter
ego or single or joint employer

. changes may be discriminatorily motivated in violation of Section 8(a)(3) and/or
independently violative of Section 8(a)(5)

Withdrawal of recognition from incumbent

o\
yed of A9
Undermining of bargaining representati‘\@ggﬁ\ aron
no. 1©
L GO

. inch&g&\imblementation of important changes in working conditions, either

discriminatorily or without bargaining with the union
o may include any of the additional types of violations listed in Category 1, above
. see also successor refusal to bargain (Category 7) or conduct during bargaining

(Category 8)
Minority union recognition
. includes variety of illegal assistance to andior domination of a labor organization
Successor refusal to recognize and bargain
. includes discriminatory refusal to hire predecessor’s employees

Conduct during bargaining
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. includes refusal to provide relevant information, delay or refusal to meet, insistence to
premature impasse or impasse on permissive or illegal subjects of bargaining,
unlawful course of conduct in bargaining, or surface bargaining

24. Mass picketing and violence

. includes mass picketing which blocks ingress and egress to the plant or worksite,
violence and threats thereof, and damage to property

25. Notice requirements for strikes or picketing under Section 8(d) and 8(g)

. includes strikes or picketing undertaken in contravention of the notice and waiting
periods set forth in Section 8(d) (federal and state mediation) and 8(g) (notices to
health care institutions) -

26. Refusal to permit protected activity on property

. on
A ‘a‘,c\(\\\le

. may include employee pi@@ﬂﬁg\ggﬁandbilling arising from a labor dispute, or
nonemployee \ﬁ‘mﬂ@f&dlsseminate organizational material to employees
gran¥ Y-
. may also include a unilateral change in past practice or contractual term granting

access to an incumbent union

27. Union coercion to achieve unlawful objective

. may involve union insistence to impasse on permissive or illegal subject of
bargaining, or union conduct that amounts to restraint or coercion of the employer in
its selection of representatives for the purposes of collective bargaining or grievance
adjustment

28. Interference with access to Board processes

. may involve employer or union retaliation against employees for having resorted to
the processes of the Board

. retaliation may include threats, discharges, the imposition of internal union discipline
or the institution of groundless lawsuits



Appendix A
29. Segregating assets

¢ includes any alienation of assets which may require a protective order to preserve
respondent’s assets for backpay
30. Miscellaneous

¢ includes injunction against certain lawsuits, employer violence, interference with
employee activities for mutual aid and protection



The following questions may help to elicit evidence relevant to the analysis of whether 10(j)

Appendix B
Checklist for Investigation of Requests
for Section 10(j) Relief

relief is "just and proper™ in a particular case. It should be emphasized that Section 10(j)

determinations are made on a case-by-case basis, following careful examination, by the Office of

the General Counsel and the Board, of all relevant facts and law. These determinations are not
dependent upon the presence or absence of any particular fact. The questions are grouped

according to the types of violations for which relief is sought.” For each type of violation we have

cross-referenced the applicable categories of cases.

A. Unlawful Antiunion Activities and Discharge of Employees (Categories 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5)

1.

Are ULPs isolated or do they form a pattern aimed at destruction of organizing
campaign?

Size of bargaining unit (greater impact in small unit).
Number and percentage of unit employees subjected toULPs.
: . _ o\t
Was knowledge of unfair labor practices W|desprea£u%(§gn‘2§5e%1ployee5?
on

Were violations committed by sgg&gma\iﬁ@yeer officials?
AO-

0.
Were 8(a)(3) V{'g{a@i@f@s&mmitted in @ manner to intimidate other employees?
: 0‘&\\{‘\/.\ T
Wefe Qiscriminatees active in union?
a) what did they do?
b) were they perceived as leaders by other employees?
c) are they willing to resume the campaign if reinstated?

Are ULPs blocking a representation case or a scheduled election?

a) is union willing to revive campaign and/or proceed to an election if court orders

injunctive relief?
Any scattering of employees "to the four winds"?

a) Which discriminatees desire reinstatement?

" This checklist is designed to assist Board agents in conducting investigations, and is not intended
as an exhaustive list of relevant inquiries. Board agents should pursue all relevant leads based upon

the facts of the case and current law and consult with their supervisor about the scope of the

investigation.



10.

11.

b)

If employees do not desire reinstatement, why not (fear, intimidation, better
job elsewhere)?

Types of interim employment discriminatees have obtained: wage rates,
locations in relation to employer's facility (scattering of employees reduces
likelihood of return to employer).

Evidence of chill/loss of support on organizing activities.

a)

b)

Evidence of chill/loss of support for incumbent union (drifting away of
members, deterioration of union's legitimacy with members). Employees
refuse to talk to union organizers, take union literature or cards, wear union
insignia or assume leadership positions.

Statements by employees that they are afraid for their jobs, afraid to support
the union, or, in case of grant of benefits, no longer see a need for the union
(hearsay statements from a union business agent may be admitted to show
employee state of mind).

Lower attendance at union meetings.

Employees revoke or seek return of union authorizatioEOO@fds.
9,
. . _ ust 2
Reduction in rate at which cards aﬁ\%gnﬁd%ﬁer ULPs commenced.
. a4 21 L
Employees crosswg_m@aﬁ%aﬂonal/recogn|t|0nal picket lines.
CO“O"

9) F(a‘@wlb\jgés sign antiunion petition.

Evidence of chill/loss of support for incumbent union (drifting away of members,
deterioration of union's legitimacy with members).

a)

b)
)

d)

f)
9)

Drop in union membership, including the absence of new members where
membership has been on the increase.

Cancellation of dues checkoff.

Decrease in number of grievances filed or fear of filing grievances (assuming
employer is complying with grievance machinery).

Statements of dissatisfaction by employees, including desire to strike, engage
in work stoppages, or violence.

If there is a strike, number and percentage employees who cross picket lines
after ULPs.

Lower attendance at union meetings.

Reluctance to talk to union officials or become involved in union activities.



h) Employees sign antiunion petition.

i) Longevity of employment, and intimacy/cohesiveness of employees in unit.

Unlawful Employer Refusal to Recognize and Bargain (Including Gissel Bargaining
Order, Unlawful Withdrawal of Recognition, Successor Refusal to Recognize,
Unlawful Conduct during Negotiations--Insistence on Change in Unit or other
Nonmandatory Subject, Refusal to Meet and Deal) (Categories 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, and 8)

1. Length of collective-bargaining relationship (likelihood of loyalty to union).
2. Size of bargaining unit (small size accentuates any 8(a)(1) and (3) violations).
3. Number and percentage of employees in bargaining unit affected by ULPs.

4, Actual loss of support for union (see A.10, above).

5. Any problems with union's majority status (coerced or tainted cards) or with

appropriate unit? In "good faith doubt™ cases, how strong is employer's defense?

6. Has the union threatened to strike or has it already comn\eggeﬂ%\s\trike? (Industrial
unrest favors interim bargaining order.) 400 AUGYS
(cnv®
a) What kind of strike is\g,(é}§§AlJaLP strike, economic strike, or unprotected

strike\)/\?ﬂ’\ Corp- WO

\.
b) FYa‘\\X)hat effect, if any, is the strike having on the employer’s operations? Is
public interest being affected by strike, e.g., municipal/state construction, or
other quasi-public services?

C) Has union made unconditional offer to return to work? Has employer hired
permanent replacements?

7. Have employees been locked out? Have they been replaced?

8. Have employer's bargaining violations caused, exacerbated or prolonged strike; or
precluded negotiations on other subjects?

9. Is there a history of amiable bargaining between the parties? Is this bargaining for a
first agreement? Is bargaining following a recent Board election? Was representation
case protracted?

10. In Gissel bargaining order cases:
a) How large was the union's card majority?

b) Any demonstrable loss of majority?



Fraﬂ@

1) Withdrawal or revocation of union authorization cards.

2) Union lost Board-conducted election.

3) Lower attendance at union meetings.

4) Employees resigned from union membership.

5) Employees sign antiunion petition.

6) Employees reluctant to take leadership positions in union.

Serious nature of violations, including "hallmark" violations (e.g., discharges,
threats to close, 8(a)(1) violations committed by senior employer agents).

Any dissemination of violations among employees: number and who
affected and knew of violations

Have unfair labor practices continued?

Any mitigating circumstances between time majority established and 10(j)
hearing.
9,20\

1) Substantial employee turnover no(.\qnﬂésémployers ULPs (e.g.,

seasonal business). aron ned

,\598A

5\1&9 m\\ﬂanagement or management policies toward union;

A3\ al of agents who committed ULPs.

3) Employer's voluntary remedy for some of violations, e.g., reinstate
some of 8(a)(3)s

C. Unlawful Unilateral Changes (Categories 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, and 8)

1.

Did changes affect important working conditions? Were substantial numbers of unit
employees affected? Are employees upset? Is union being blamed for its inability to
correct changes? (See A.10, above.)

a)

b)

Has employer discontinued health-care coverage for unit employees? Have
any employees foregone medical care as a result?

Has employer eliminated nonmonetary benefits at core of union's
representational status (e.g., refused to process grievances, denied union
representatives access to plant)?

Has employer failed to pay benefit fund contributions? Are any union benefit
funds insolvent, or in serious risk of insolvency, as a result?



d) Has union acceded to unlawful employer demands in grievance handling or
negotiations?

2. Were unremedied unilateral changes a major stumbling block to the parties'
negotiations?

3. Are unilateral changes isolated in nature or is there a pattern? History of prior ULPs?

4. Does union want prior working conditions restored?

5. Is union pursuing any Section 301 remedy?

6. In cases involving a successor's refusal to recognize union that represented
predecessor's employees, how do terms and conditions of predecessor differ from
successor?

Unlawful Refusal to Provide Relevant Information ""Categories 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, and 8)

1. Avre parties now bargaining?
2. How, if at all, does the absence of requested information @E@ﬂ@ﬁé likelihood that
parties will reach agreement? on AUGYS
WEe
. . qre
3. Is information requested {\eley@mﬁﬁ%ajor issue in dispute?
0.

CO"Q.s
gran¥ Y- w

Unlawful Shutdown of Operations (Including relocation or subcontracting) (Category
3)

1. Extent of employer's alienation of property.
a) Is plant/equipment presently offered for sale or lease?
b) What assets has employer already relocated/moved/ sold?

C) Did employer dispose of any critical assets while ULP proceeding pending?
(If so, restoration order may already be burdensome.)

2. Was there a legitimate loss of work, i.e., would restoration fail to restore jobs
because they were lost as a result of lawful economic changes?

3. Does restoration order threaten employer's viability, given size of company and
extent of operations?

4, Number and percentage of employees affected by relocation/subcontracting closing.
(See, also A, above.)



5. Number and extent of ULPs (the more flagrant, the more equitable the restoration
relief). (See, also A, above.)

6. If shutdown in violation of bargaining obligation, how would restoration, or lack
thereof, affect bargaining? Would a bargaining order without restoration be
effective?

Unlawful Employer Recognition of Assisted Union (Category 6)

1. Extensiveness of employer interference (e.g., percentage of unit employees
unlawfully influenced to support minority union)?

2. Is there an incumbent union or rival union with majority support? Could QCR be
raised?
3. If so, has the support for the incumbent/majority union been diminished by ULPs

(see A.10, above)?

4. Has rival union petitioned for election; is it willing to file Carlson waiver and request
to proceed to election if 10(j) decree is granted? . SO
\' L]
5. If there are accompanying Section 8(a)(1) angd(g)\\ﬁéfh\f?ons, are they continuing?
N
o _ p aro™
6. Is minority union contra%\t\(l)n/@jfééﬁf?’
) A 2 uni ity clause?
a S Ve a union security clause?
Fraty g
b) Is it favorable or unfavorable to employees?
7. Is 8(a)(2) union unlawfully dominated, or merely assisted?

Unlawful Violence and other Picket-Line Misconduct (Category 9)

1. Nature of violations speaks for itself. However, how strong is evidence for union
agency?

2. Union action to stop violence and misconduct.
a) Has union disavowed violence and/or disciplined any members, withheld

strike benefits, or prohibited offending members from picketing?

b) Has union effectively aided misconduct (e.g., provided strike benefits to
picketers engaged in misconduct; provided legal assistance or paid bail bond
of members arrested for misconduct)?



3. State authorities' willingness and ability to control the misconduct.

a) What effort has state or local police made to stop the misconduct? To what
extent have these efforts been successful in halting the misconduct?

b) Has charging party resorted to state court? Has state court issued any
injunctions and/or contempt citations to stop misconduct? To what extent
have these state court orders been successful in stopping the misconduct?

H. Unlawful Strikes and Picketing in Violation of 8(d) and 8(g) Notice Provisions
(Category 10)

1. What is economic impact of strike or picketing on normal operations of employer or
customers? In Section 8(g) cases, has strike interrupted continuity of patient care
(e.g., disruptions to normal services to patients, cutback in elective surgery,
disruptions of receipt of supplies, refusals of patients or other employees to cross
picket lines)?

2. Has any party requested mediation by FMCS or the state mediation services? How
much mediation took place? Did charging party frustrate mediggipn”
5129
3. Has employer replaced strikers? (If so, operaé@avrﬁé‘s‘/%ot be disrupted.)
aYC
4. Has union offered to sup\%( qﬂt‘tfé? employees despite strike?
T\,\ CO“Q
F(a‘\\‘\ .

. Unlawful Denial of Access to Property” (Category 11)
1. Union's use of alternative means of communications with its intended audience.

a) What methods of contacting audience has union used (e.g., mass media,
requested employee names/addresses from employers?

b) How successful have these efforts been?
C) Has the employer attempted to block these efforts?
2. Has the employer attempted to make some accommodation (e.g., inside v. outside

mall entrances)?

3. If access is sought to solicit employees, would it occur during working or
nonworking time?

4. Is the closest public location for picketing/handbilling hazardous? If so, how?

2

Many of these questions may already be answered as part of the investigation of the merits of an
access case under Lechmere.



10.

11.

12.

If union is only handbilling, could union lawfully picket and communicate essence of
message to public?

Has union picketing continued on disputed property without incident after access
was initially denied?

If incumbent union is seeking access to established bargaining unit, are there any
grievance matters on site, e.g., safety problems, needing union physical inspection?

Will the purpose of the union's picketing be over before the Board order issues (e.g.,
union's economic strike, construction project, political campaign, safety problem)?

If union is engaged in an organizing campaign:

a) Had union obtained any authorization cards before it began picketing? After
picketing began? If so, how many? How were they obtained?

b) How many employees attended union meetings before picketing began? After
picketing began?

C) Did union ask employer for list of employee names and addresses? What was
employer's response? . SO\
o . . st 22 T
If union is protesting area standards, is there a )6@\%}93% that primary employer's
substandard benefits threaten to u d{x;[(rgid@‘\hmon benefits elsewhere, e.g., union is
about to negotiate maste(\\qgr'em?\? t and union employers demand concessions
because of pg\ q\g\ry;employer?

ok Y- . N
Hasvﬁ?cketmg caused any work cessation or other disruption to date? Are there any
allegations that union engaged in threats or violence, blocked ingress?

Is union's intended audience located in inherently inaccessible place? (E.q., out-of-
state employees, logging camp, ships without public facilities nearby.)

Union Coercion (Strike, Threats, Fines, etc.) to Achieve Unlawful Object (Categories

12 and 13)

1. What, if any, adverse impact is union's conduct having on the employer's operation
(e.g., affecting relationship with customers, bidding on work)?

2. What, if any, adverse impact is union's conduct having on employees (e.g., is union
attempting unlawfully to enforce contract, prevent implementation of contract, or
impair employee rights to select union)?

3. Is employee victim of unlawful discipline precluded from participating in intraunion
political affairs?

4. Is internal union discipline threatening labor contract stability with an employer?



5.

Is union's conduct disrupting negotiations, or an employer's choice of bargaining
representative?

Unlawful Filing and/or Maintenance of Civil Lawsuit to Interfere with Protected
Activity, Internal Union Discipline (Categories 12 and 13)

1.

Have any employees abandoned protected activity as a result of suit?
Has respondent publicized lawsuit, fines to other employees?

What relief is respondent seeking in its lawsuit (damages, how much; jail term in
criminal complaint cases)?

When is trial scheduled (more imminent, the greater need for interim relief)?
Has employee been required to pay union fines or is payment required imminently?
Can sued employee afford legal representation?

Has sued party moved state court to stay proceeding in light of Board sULP
complaint? If so, what result? If not, why not? 0, 20\

Q Ay pgust?
Is suit unlawful because it lacks reasgF \b%gls in fact of law under Bill Johnson's
or, alternatively because pree\r@ptéa?b or "unlawful object” (Bill Johnson's footnote

5)? \/\_‘ 9 CorP-

Is aﬁ@‘base being blocked by respondent's misconduct?

Unlawful Interference with Access to Board Processes (Including Fines, Lawsuits)
(Category 13)

1.

Have any employees expressed fear of filing charges, or declined to file charges,
cooperate in Board investigation, give testimony or otherwise participate in Board
processes?

Have any employees changed prior testimony given in an affidavit or Board hearing
as a result of employer or union action?

For lawsuits, union discipline, initiated in retaliation for participation in Board
proceedings, see also Section K, above.

Where conduct complained of is discharge for going to Board, are employees other
than those discriminated against aware of discrimination? For what reasons do these
employees believe that discriminatees were discharged? (Most relevant in small
plant.) See also Section A, above.



M.  Alienation of Assets to Avoid Board Liability (Protective Orders) (Category 14)

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

What is estimated monetary liability from ULPs?
Has employer indicated intent to close operation and/or liquidate its assets?

Has employer begun to liquidate its assets (e.g., removed equipment or materials,
closed plant or placed it on market? When?

Any evidence that assets were transferred with motive to evade backpay liability?
Is public auction scheduled to sell assets? When?

Avre assets under judicial control, i.e., bankruptcy court, state proceeding to protect
creditors, receivership, where? Can Board file a proof of claim?

Where the business is winding down, what is the likelihood that the liquidated assets
will exceed the claims of secured creditors, current bona fide business expenses and
liens of record?

Has employer expressed willingness to post bond to COVE r@gl’éﬁﬁél monetary
liability or give written assurances to set aside suffei unds to satisfy its financial
liability? cnived

A
Has employer reftégdpto\ﬁ?c‘)vide Board with reasonable method of oral/written
commu(l;{qutiﬂﬁ r address? Are whereabouts of the employer known?
Fra
Has employer refused to comply with investigative subpoena regarding alienation of
assets?

Has employer demonstrated propensity to misuse corporate form (creation of alter
egos, commingling personal and corporate funds, inordinate salaries to officers or
distribution of dividends to shareholders in closely held corporation)?

Is Region prepared to amend complaint or issue backpay specification to name
another entity as a derivative respondent with backpay liability, e.g., single
employer, joint employer, alter ego, Perma Vinyl successor? (Presence of deep
pockets may moot need for protective order.)

j:injlit\10jmanual\AppendixB.doc
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APPENDIX C

SUGGESTED OUTLINE FOR REGIONAL MEMORANDUM
RECOMMENDING SECTION 10(j) RELIEF

[Appendix C exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work product, 2, and
7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

BACKGROUND

A.

Procedural history, including date charge(s) filed, by whom, date complaint issued, and
scheduled hearing date, if any

B. If related representation case, include procedural history of representation case, such as
date representation petition filed, date election held or scheduled to be held, outcome of
election, or present status of representation proceeding

C. Brief description of parties
1. location and nature of employer's operations
2. size of overall workforce as well as number of employees i |q relevant unit

20
3. collective-bargaining history, if any, mcluc{m@@#ﬁ% of most recent collective-
bargaining agreement fch\\‘e
584 °
10-\
FACTS _,No-
ofP
T C
AL .

A. Describe"évents in chronological order

B. Include titles of managers/supervisors

C. Include all facts relevant to support prima facie case for each violation alleged in
complaint

D. Include all facts relevant to rebut respondent defenses

E. Include all facts relevant to prove "just & proper” (ie, evidence of impact)

MERITS ANALYSIS

A

B.

Indicate appropriate standard for circuit in which case arises

Provide analysis for each unfair labor practice that is alleged in complaint and that you
recommend litigating in the 10(j) proceeding. Minor independent violations of Section
8(a)(1) may be treated summarily.

1. use all facts necessary to support the allegation

2. where credibility disputes exist, provide explanation for resolution of dispute



VI.

C.

3. indicate other anticipated evidentiary problems and how Region expects to
resolve them

4, cite Board and, where possible, relevant circuit court law to support the theory
of violation alleged in the complaint (not necessary for routine violations)

5. address adverse precedent in the circuit in which the case would be heard

6. provide analysis to show why Board would grant any special remedies requested

in administrative case (i.e., Gissel bargaining order, restoration of operations)
and circuit court law enforcing those remedies

Provide analysis to rebut respondent defenses

JUST AND PROPER ANALYSIS

A Indicate test for judging propriety of relief for circuit in which case arises
B. Explain why interim relief is necessary to preserve efficacy of final Board order using
theories of just and proper, e.g., chill, threat of scattering, absence of leaders,
undermining of union support, impediment to bargaining, etc.
1. Use evidence adduced during investigation 29 2O\
ust £~
2. Use inferences permitted by 10(j) caselg\\(ved on RS
gA 3
C. Distinguish the case from aéjvg{@e‘(ﬁﬁ]? precedent, if any
CO‘
D. If appllc@(lgm\neﬂps\nd to respondent's arguments that injunctive relief would be unduly
burdensome
E. Where the recommended injunctive relief differs from that which is sought in the
underlying administrative proceeding, explain the discrepancy
PROPOSED ORDER

A. Include separate sections for the cease and desist and affirmative provisions (including

catch-all, narrow or broad cease-and-desist)

The proposed relief should track the relief sought in the underlying administrative
proceeding (but see IV.E., above)

Include relief which is unique to 10(j) proceedings such as posting of the district court's
order, affidavit of compliance, and where applicable, access to books and records (e.g., to
monitor preferential hiring list)

ATTACHMENTS

A. Include a sheet listing all counsel of record in the case

B.

Send with the 10(j) recommendation any position statements submitted by the parties which
address the issue of 10(j) relief
2



C. Send a copy of the administrative complaint and if available, answer If complaint not
ready, send to ILB when issued.

jinjlit\10jmanual\outline10jmemo.doc
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APPENDIX D

SECTION 10(j) STANDARDS BY CIRCUIT
[Substance of Appendix D is exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5,
attorney work product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General
Counsel.]
First Circuit
Second Circuit
Third Circuit
Fourth Circuit
Fifth Circuit

Sixth Circuit

Seventh Circuit  AugY

Eighth Circuit (0698 o

" .
Ninth Circuit pon C° °
gran¥ Y-

Tenth Circuit

Eleventh Circuit

D.C. Circuit

j:10jmanual\AppendD.doc
September 2002
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Section 10(j) Standards - First Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act® authorizes United States district courts to grant temporary
injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice proceedings. Congress
recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are protracted. In many
instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its unlawful objective
before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby render a final Board

order ineffectual. See Fuchs v. Hood Industries, Inc., 590 F.2d 395, 396 (1st Cir. 1979),

citing S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp. 8, 27 (1947), reprinted at | Legislative

History of the Labor Management Relations Act of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing

: . : _ o\
Office 1985). Thus, Section 10(j) was intended to prevent the p&t@ﬂ&lw?rustratmn or
ed on M
nullification of the Board's remedial authon%ggtﬁeﬂ‘ﬁy the passage of time inherent in

A0-
Board administrative I|t|gza|%ﬂse§\°e g., Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d
445, 454-55 (J;statf,\hX 1990) Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655, 659-60 (10th Cir. 1967), cited

in Sharp v. Webco Industries, 225 F.3d 1130, 1135 (10th Cir. 2000)

To resolve a 10(j) petition, a district court in the First Circuit considers only two
issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that a respondent has violated the

Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” Pye v. Excel Case

! Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within any
district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have occurred
or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate temporary
relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the court shall
cause notice thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon shall have
jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or restraining order as
it deems just and proper.



Ready, 238 F.3d 69, 72 (1st Cir. Jan 26, 2001); Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900

F.2d at 450, 453; Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23, 25-26 (1st Cir. 1986).

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been

violated, the district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Asseo v. Centro

Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d at 450; Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto

Rico, 722 F.2d 953, 958-959 (1st Cir. 1983). Rather, the court's role is limited to
determining whether "the Regional Director's position was fairly supported” by the

evidence. Maram v. Universidad Interamericana, 722 F.2d at 959; Asseo v. Centro

Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d at 450. The district court "is not the ultimate fact-

finder, but merely determines what facts are likely to be proven to determine if the

standard for an injunction has been met." Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F. \3d at71,n. 2.

The district court should not resolve contested factual P@i;x&igrnd should defer to the
yed o°
Regional Director's version of the facts if W@Q\O\/ﬁ?ﬁn the range of rationality.” Maram v.
A0

Universidad Interamerlcana GQ@F\\Z\d at 958. Accord: Fuchs v. Hood Industries, 590 F.2d

at 397 (district é8urt S functlon is limited to whether contested factual issues could
ultimately be resolved by the Board in favor of the General Counsel). The district court

also should not attempt to resolve issues of credibility of witnesses. See Fuchs v. Jet Spray

Corp., 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-51 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664
(1st Cir. 1983); Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 493, 494 (6th Cir. 1987) (district court

is not permitted to resolve conflicts in evidence; respondent's attack on credibility of

Board's witnesses merely establishes conflict in evidence); NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc.,
83 F.3d 1559, 1570 (7" Cir. 1996), cert. denied 519 U.S. 1055(1997).
Similarly, on questions of law, the Regional Director need only establish that the

legal theories relied on are "not without substance.” Union de Tronquistas de Puerto Rico,

Local 901 v. Arlook, 586 F.2d 872, 876 (1st Cir. 1978)(Section 10(I) proceeding).?

2 Section 10(1) of the Act (29 U.S.C. Section 160(1)) is a companion provision to Section
10(j); it mandates the Board to seek temporary injunctions involving certain enumerated



Accord: Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d 744, 748 (9th Cir. 1988) ("'substantial

and not frivolous" legal theory satisfies “reasonable cause" test); Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit

Diesel, 859 F.2d 26, 29 (6th Cir. 1988)(same).

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Interim injunctive relief is appropriate to preserve and restore the status quo "when
the circumstances of a case create a reasonable apprehension that the efficacy of the
Board's final order may be nullified, or the administrative procedures will be rendered

meaningless. . . " Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d at 455, quoting Angle v.

Sacks, 382 F.2d at 660. District courts in the First Circuit rely on the traditional standards

for granting preliminary injunctive relief to make that judgment. Pye v. Excel Case Ready,

238 F.3d at 73; Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d at 454. Under those

standards, relief is appropriate if the Board demonstrates: (1) a likelihood of success on the
merits; (2) the potential for irreparable injury in the absence cgJ@i%‘fz%3) that such injury
outweighs any harm preliminary relief wog{glggﬁﬂ%?on t?\e defendant; and (4) that
preliminary relief is in t\t\mg\m@rbi@m\?grest Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F.3d at 73, n.7;

ASSeo V. Centfdfl\v/?edlco del Turabo, 900 F.2d at 454.

The First Circuit has also recognized that the public interest is served by granting
interim injunctive relief that strengthens the collective bargaining process. Asseo v.

Centro Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d at 455. Section 10(j) interim relief "is designed

to prevent employers from using unfair labor practices in the short run to permanently

destroy employee interest in collective bargaining.” Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F.3d at

75.
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violations, such as secondary boycotts. The legal analysis under the two sections is
basically the same. See, e.g., Boire v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d
778, 787 n. 7 (5th Cir. 1973); Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1084 (3d Cir.
1984).




Section 10(j) Standards - Second Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,* authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby

render a final Board order ineffectual. See Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d

1047, 1055 (2d Cir. 1980); Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33 38 (2d Cir,

1975), citing S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp 8%2@@’9%% reprlnted at |

Legislative History of the Labor ManaggmaagR@l‘&lons Act of 1947 414, 433
(Government Prmtmg g{(,\ce,d@%s\ Thus, Section 10(j) was intended to prevent the
potential frusﬁé?t‘lon or nullification of the Board's remedial authority caused by the
passage of time inherent in Board administrative litigation. See, e.g., Seeler v. The

Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at 37-38.

To resolve a 10(j) petition, a district court in the Second Circuit considers only

two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that a respondent has violated

! Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in subsection (b)
charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an unfair labor practice, to
petition any United States district court, within any district wherein the unfair labor
practice in question is alleged to have occurred or wherein such person resides or
transacts business, for appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing
of any such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person,
and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See, e.g., Silverman

v. J.R.L. Food Corp. d/b/a Key Food, 196 F.3d 334, 335 (2d Cir. 1999)and the cases cited

therein.

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been

violated, the district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Kaynard v. Mego

Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1032-1033 (2d Cir. 1980). Rather, the court's role is limited to
determining whether there is "reasonable cause to believe that a Board decision finding

an unfair labor practice will be enforced by a Court of Appeals.” Kaynard v. Mego

Corp., 633 F.2d at 1033, quoting McLeod v. Business Machine and Office Appliance

Mechanics Conference Board, 300 F.2d 237, 242 n. 17 (2d Cir. 1962). The district court

should not resolve contested factual issues; the Regional Director's \éejsz@% of the facts

"should be given the benefit of the doubt" (Seeler vh\'ﬂbé ‘P?‘a‘émq Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at
ook &
37) and, together with the mfer%nc\qs)th&e rom, "should be sustained if within the range
cor
of rationality"Fg I§zw(nar’fﬂl Mego Corp.), 633 F.2d at 1031). The district court also

should not attempt to resolve issues of credibility of witnesses. Kaynard v. Palby

Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d at 1051-1052, n. 5. See also NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83

F.3d 1559, 1570, 1571 (7th Cir. 1996), cert. denied 519 U.S. 1055 (1997); Fuchs v. Jet
Spray Corp., 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-51 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d
664 (1st Cir. 1983).

Similarly, on questions of law, the district court "should be hospitable to the

views of the [Regional Director], however novel." Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d at

1031, quoting Danielson v. Joint Board of Coat, Suit and Allied Garment Workers'

Union, I.L.G.W.U.), 494 F.2d 1230, 1245 (2d Cir. 1974). The Regional Director's legal

position should be sustained "unless the [district] court is convinced that it is wrong."

Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d at 1051. Accord: Silverman v. Major League




Baseball Player Relations Comm., Inc., 67 F.3d 1054, 1059 (2d Cir. 1995)(""appropriate

deference must be shown to the judgment of the NLRB, and a district court should
decline to grant relief only if convinced that the NLRB's legal or factual theories are

fatally flawed").

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
The Second Circuit has recognized that Section 10(j) is among those "legislative
provisions calling for equitable relief to prevent violations of a statute™ and courts should
grant interim relief thereunder "in accordance with traditional equity practice, as
conditioned by the necessities of public interest which Congress has sought to protect.™

Morio v. North American Soccer League, 632 F.2d 217, 218 (2d Cir. 1980), quoting

Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at 39-40. In applying these principles the

Second Circuit has concluded that Section 10(j) relief is warranted \Aigerméénous and

uoM
pervasive unfair labor practices threaten to render tp@dB@é%‘Ei %processes "totally
ok 2%
ineffective™ by precluding a megnl‘qgmpﬁ}mal remedy (Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d
CO
at 1034, dlscussw\g\Seé’fgr v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at 37-38); or where interim

relief is the only effective means to preserve or restore the status quo as it existed before

the onset of the violations (Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at 38); or where the

passage of time might otherwise allow the respondent to accomplish its unlawful

objective before being placed under any legal restraint (Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc.,

625 F.2d at 1055). Accord: Silverman v. Major League Baseball Player Relations

Comm., Inc., 880 F. Supp. 246, 255 (S.D.N.Y.), aff'd. 67 F.3d 1054 (2d Cir. 1995).
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Section 10(j) Standards - Third Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby

render a final Board order ineffectual. See Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d

1076, 1091 n. 25 (3d Cir. 1984), citing S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp. 8, 27

(1947), reprinted at | Legislative History of the Labor Manaqemen{ E%ela,tioﬁs Act of
ust &7
1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Office 1985).Ch®g@o®6‘: Pﬁgscarell v. Vibra Screw

5oBh &

Inc., 904 F.2d 874, 878 (3d Cir. 1990)A0-"
To res&l\a/(%@ééf‘is\ncl%g; petition, a district court in the Third Circuit considers

only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that a respondent has

violated the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See, e.g.,

Hirsch v. Dorsey Trailers, Inc., 147 F.3d 243, 247 (3d Cir. 1998); Pascarell v. Vibra

Screw Inc., 904 F.2d at 877; Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1078.

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within any
district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate
temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the
court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon
shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, a district court may not decide the merits of the case and the Regional Director

need not adduce evidence sufficient to prove a violation. See Kobell v. Suburban Lines,

Inc., 731 F.2d at 1083-1084. See also Eisenberg v. Wellington Hall Nursing Home, Inc.,

651 F.2d 902, 906 (3d Cir. 1981) (improper for district court to pass upon ultimate issue

of alleged proscribed employer motivation for discharges). Instead, the reasonable cause
standard imposes a "low threshold of proof" on the Regional Director. See Eisenberg v.

Wellington Hall Nursing Home, 651 F.2d at 905; Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731

F.2d at 1084. This standard is satisfied as long as (1) the Regional Director's legal theory
is "substantial and not frivolous™ and (2) viewing contested factual issues favorably to the

Board, sufficient evidence supports that theory. Pascarell v. Vlbra S,Q{emmﬁc 904 F.2d

at 882, citing Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F\,g@baﬁt%gh In making this
g A
examination, the district court sgong Aot é?tempt to resolve issues of credibility of
v Cof
witnesses. See Q&ttﬁl&gv Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 493, 494 (6th Cir. 1987). Accord:

Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corp., 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-51 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per

curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir. 1983).

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Injunctive relief is "just and proper™ under Section 10(j) "when the nature of the
alleged [violations] are likely to jeopardize the integrity of the bargaining process and
thereby make it impossible or not feasible to restore or preserve the status quo pending

litigation." Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d at 878. Thus, a district court must

focus on the public interest in protecting the integrity of the bargaining process. Hirsch

v. Dorsey Trailers, Inc., 147 F.3d at 247, citing Pascarell v. Vibra Screw, 904 F.2d at

879; Eisenberg v. Wellington Hall Nursing Home, Inc., 651 F.2d at 906-907. The

"critical determination” for the court is "whether, absent an injunction, the Board's ability



to facilitate peaceful management-labor negotiation will be impaired.” Pascarell v. Vibra

Screw Inc., 904 F.2d at 879. An injunction is appropriate when a failure to grant interim
relief likely would "prevent the Board, acting with reasonable expedition, from

effectively exercising its ultimate remedial powers.” Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731

F.2d at 1091-1092. Accord: Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1133 (10th

Cir. 2000), citing Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655 (10th Cir. 1967).

j:10jManual\3dcir.doc
June 2001

No
\\ " cow
fran



Section 10(j) Standards - Fourth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2 and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby
render a final Board order ineffectual. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp.
8, 27 (1947), reprinted in | Legislative History of the Labor Ma,nageﬁ?er?tolgz?elations Act

oY\
of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Offlggﬁ\lm\' cﬁed in Sharp v. Webco Industries,

A0
Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1136 (JégkpCﬁ‘OZOOO) Thus, Section 10(j) was intended to prevent
\,\
the potential ﬁfu%‘%tlon or nullification of the Board's remedial authority caused by the

passage of time inherent in Board administrative litigation. See NLRB v. Aerovox Corp.,

389 F.2d 475, 477 (4th Cir. 1967) (10(e) case applying 10(j) standards), quoting Angle v.
Sacks, 382 F.2d at 660. Accord: Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d at 1133;

Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d 1401, 1406 (6th Cir. 1992).

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in
an unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within
any district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for
appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any
such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such
person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such
temporary relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper.



To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Fourth Circuit considers
only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe™ that a respondent has
violated the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” NLRB v.

Aerovox Corp., 389 F.2d at 477.

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, the district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Humphrey v.
International Longshoremen's Assn., AFL-CIO, 548 F.2d 494, 497-498 (4th Cir. 1977)

(Section 10(1) proceeding).2 See also D'Amico v. Cox Creek Refining Co., 719 F. Supp.

403, 407 (D. Md. 1989). Rather, the Regional Director need only demonstrate that there
is "some reasonable possibility that the Board will ultimately enter an enforceable order"
on the Director's complaint. Humphrey v. International Lonqshorg«ﬁ@n S Assn AFL-

ed O°
CIO, 548 F.2d at 498. As to matters of both é%w ard fact, the district court should accord

"considerable deference" \Egé@@e‘ﬁf)onal Dlrectors "resolution of disputed issues™ and it
"should be esﬁe@i‘é‘l\ly reluctant to conclude that the [Director's] contentions are without

merit." 1bid. Accord: Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 493, 494 (6th Cir. 1987)

(district court is not permitted to resolve conflicts in the evidence; respondent's attack on
credibility of Board's witnesses merely establishes conflict in the evidence); Arlook v. S.

Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d 367, 372-373 (11th Cir. 1992).

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard

2 Section 10(1I) of the Act (29 U.S.C. Section 160(l)) is a companion provision to Section
10(j); it mandates the Board to seek temporary injunctions involving certain enumerated
violations, such as secondary boycotts. The legal analysis under the two sections is
basically the same. See, e.g., Boire v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d
778, 787 n. 7 (5th Cir. 1973); Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1084 (3d
Cir. 1984).




Section 10(j) implements the public interest to protect the Board's remedial power
from compromise by the passage of time inherent in obtaining an enforceable Board

order. Thus, Section 10(j) relief is "just and proper" whenever "the circumstances of a
case create a reasonable apprehension that the efficacy of the Board's final order may be
nullified or the administrative procedures will be rendered meaningless." NLRB v.

Aerovox Corp., 389 F.2d at 477, quoting Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 660. See also

Sachs v. Davis & Hemphill, Inc., 71 LRRM 2126, 2129, vacated as moot 72 LRRM 2879

(4th Cir. 1979); Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d at 1135. Accordingly, the

relief to be granted is that which will preserve, or restore as nearly as possible, the status

quo existing before the alleged unfair labor practices occurred. See NLRB v. Aerovox

Corp., 389 F.2d at 477; Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d at 1135, quoting Angle

v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 660. Accord: Pascarell v. Vibra Screw})l\np‘@(?ﬁf”lé2 2d 874 878 (3d

Cir. 1990) (10(j) relief warranted where VIOB%@@SCY&}IE ?I kely to jeopardize the integrity
A0-
of the bargaining process\’a\r@cmer(?ﬁ?/ make it impossible or not feasible to restore or

preserve the staﬁig‘}quo pending litigation™).
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Section 10(j) Standards - Fifth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2 and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby
render a final Board order ineffectual. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp.
8, 27 (1947), reprinted in | Legislative History of the Labor Ma,mage%?er?t Relatlons Act

oY\
of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Off@g@&%‘)\'esee also Boire v. Pilot Freight

Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d 1%’{3601@88“\@5&1 Cir. 1975), reh. and reh. en banc denied 521 F.2d
795, cert. dened @26 5s. sa4 (1976).

To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Fifth Circuit considers
only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe™ that a respondent has
violated the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See Boire

v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d at 1188-1189 and the cases cited therein.

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in
an unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within
any district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for
appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any
such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such
person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such
temporary relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper.



In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, the district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Boire v. Pilot

Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d at 1191. Rather, the district court's role in evaluating

"reasonable cause™ is limited to determining whether the Regional Director's "theories of
law and fact are not insubstantial and frivolous.” Id., 515 F.2d at 1189.

As to questions of law, the district court should be hospitable to the views of the
Regional Director, even if the legal theories relied on are considered novel or untested.

Boire v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d 778, 789-792 (5th Cir. 1973),

reh. and reh. en banc denied 480 F.2d 924 (1973); Lewis v. New Orleans Clerks &

Checkers, I.L.A. Local No. 1497, 724 F.2d 1109, 1114-1115 (5th Cir. 1984) (Section

10(1) proceeding).2
As to factual matters, the Regional Director need present onl%/ "eﬂpugh evidence. .
. to permit a rational factfinder, considering the ewdeng@ u\i\t‘ﬁgc‘hght most favorable to

5, avc
the Board, to rule in favor of the B\gard\tﬂ Wﬁook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d

367,371 (11th Cl&\lﬁm\’\Accord Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1031 (2d
Fral
Cir. 1980). In determining whether the Regional Director has met this "minimal burden™

(Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d at 1189), a district court should not attempt

to resolve conflicts in the evidence or the credibility of witnesses. Arlook v. S.

Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372-373; Gottfried v. Frankel), 818 F.2d 485, 493,

494 (6th Cir. 1987) (district court is not permitted to resolve conflicts in the evidence;
respondent's attack on credibility of Board's witnesses merely establishes conflict in the

evidence); Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corp., 560 F.Supp. 1147, 1150-1151 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983),

affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir. 1983) (same).

2 Section 10(1) of the Act (29 U.S.C. Section 160(1)) is a companion provision to Section
10(j); it mandates the Board to seek temporary injunctions involving certain enumerated
violations, such as secondary boycotts. The legal analysis under the two sections is
basically the same. See, e.g., Boire v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d
at787n. 7.




B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Injunctive relief is "just and proper” under Section 10(j) whenever the facts
demonstrate that, without such relief, "any final order of the Board will be meaningless or
so devoid of force that the remedial purposes of the Act will be frustrated.” Boire v. Pilot

Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d at 1192. Accord: Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co. Inc.,

952 F.2d at 372, 374 ("just and proper" standard met where Section 10(j) interim relief
would be "more effective™ to protect employee statutory rights than a final Board order);

Boire v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d at 788 (interim relief

warranted where, absent such relief, "Board processes would be of little avail™ to the
affected employees). Thus, in the Fifth Circuit, the question is one of "equitable

necessity"” (Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d at 1192), that is, whether

interim relief is necessary to preserve the lawful status quo ante pendlngl(tj’\e Board's

ultimate administrative adjudication. Id., 515 F.2d at L LE30 ’%&%ord Pascarell v. Vibra

Screw Inc., 904 F.2d 874, 878 (3d \&er '\IQQ@??(lO(j) relief warranted where violations "are

likely to jeopardlz\g\maf\'ﬁ‘fégrlty of the bargaining process and thereby make it impossible
Fral
or not feasible to restore or preserve the status quo pending litigation."); Asseo v. Centro

Medico del Turabo, Inc.), 900 F.2d 445, 454-455 (1st Cir. 1990) (same).
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Section 10(j) Standards - Sixth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby

render a final Board order ineffectual. See Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing &

oY
Heating, Inc., 250 F.3d 962, 970; Levine v. C & W Mining Co.,‘\l\gc.’l%*l?O F.2d 432, 436-
ed on ™
437 (6th Cir. 1979), quoting S. Rep. No. 10%8&05"@8”9 1st Sess., 27 (1947), reprinted

A0
in | Legislative History (%f the,\Lcab‘c}\roManaqement Relations Act of 1947 433

\,\
(Governmentﬂr&ﬁ\ﬁng Office 1985). Accord: Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc., 859
F.2d 26, 28-29 (6th Cir. 1988). Thus, Section 10(j) was intended to prevent the potential
frustration or nullification of the Board's remedial authority caused by the passage of

time inherent in Board administrative litigation. See Kobell v. United Paperworkers

Intern., 965 F.2d 1401, 1406 (6th Cir. 1992).

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in
an unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within
any district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for
appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any
such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such
person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such
temporary relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper.



To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Sixth Circuit considers
only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe™ that a respondent has
violated the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See, e.g.,

Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc., 250 F.3d at 969; Kobell v. United

Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d at 1406; Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 493 (6th Cir.
1987).

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been

violated, a district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Schaub v. West

Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc., 250 F.3d at 969; Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d at

493. Instead, the Regional Director's burden in proving "reasonable cause" is "relatively

insubstantial." See Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Incng’ZBO F.3d at 969;
s’&

Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d 1486 h,emr’fe‘\(% C & W Mining Co.,

A aroe™

Inc., 610 F.2d at 435. Thus, the dl\itrlc't@—(ﬁ@& must accept the Regional Director's legal

theory as long as \<\'§ \S{Xb’étantlal and not frivolous." Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel,
Fral
Inc., 859 F.2d at 29; Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d 1407. Factually,

the Regional Director need only "produce some evidence in support of the petition."

Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern., 965 F.2d at 1407. The district court should not

resolve conflicts in the evidence or issues of credibility of witnesses, but should accept
the Regional Director's version of events as long as facts exist which could support the

Board's theory of liability. See Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc., 250

F.3d at 969; Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493 and 494.

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Injunctive relief is "just and proper™ under Section 10(j) where it is "necessary to
return the parties to the status quo pending the Board's processes in order to protect the

Board's remedial powers under the NLRA." Kobell v. United Paperworkers International




Union, et al., 965 F.2d at 1410, quoting Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d at 495.2 Accord:

Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc., 250 F.3d at 970. This standard is

less "stringent™ than traditional equitable principles and does not require consideration of

elements such as irreparable harm. See Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc., 859 F.2d

at 30 n. 3. Thus, "[i]nterim relief is warranted whenever the circumstances of a case
create a reasonable apprehension that the efficacy of the Board's final order may be
nullified or the administrative procedures will be rendered meaningless.™ Sheeran v.

American Commercial Lines, Inc., 683 F.2d 970, 979 (6th Cir. 1982), quoting Angle v.

Sacks, 382 F.2d 655, 660 (10th Cir. 1967). Accord: Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel,

Inc., 859 F.2d at 30-31.
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2 The "status quo"” referred to in Gottfried v. Frankel is that which existed before the
charged unfair labor practices took place. See Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc.,
859 F.2d at 30 n. 3.




Section 10(j) Standards - Seventh Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby
render a final Board order ineffectual. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp.
8, 27 (1947), reprinted in | Legislative History of the Labor Man&g\eiaeﬂﬂ%lations Act
of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing OﬁiceAlg&wueﬁé&‘iﬁ“NLRB V. P*I*E
Nationwide, Inc., 894 F.2d 887, 8%7&9’&??.81990). Thus, Section 10(j) was intended to

R . .
prevent the p%t‘eéq{wml’ﬁgtratlon or nullification of the Board's remedial authority caused

by the passage of time inherent in Board administrative litigation. See Kinney v. Pioneer

Press, 881 F.2d 485, 493-494 (7th Cir. 1989).
Section 10(j) directs district courts to grant relief that is "just and proper.” The

Seventh Circuit holds that to determine what relief is "just and proper,"” district courts

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b)charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within
any district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for
appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any
such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such
person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such
temporary relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper.



should apply the general equitable standards for considering requests for preliminary

injunctions. NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d 1559, 1566 (7th Cir. 1996); Kinney v.

Pioneer Press, 881 F.2d at 490. That is, the court must evaluate (1) the likelihood that the
petitioner will succeed on the merits; (2) whether the petitioner has an adequate remedy
at law; (3) whether the petitioner would be irreparably harmed if the injunction did not
issue and whether the threatened injury to petitioner outweighs the threatened harm an
injunction would inflict on defendant; and (4) whether the granting of a preliminary

injunction serves the public interest. NLRB v. Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at 1566-67. The

greater the likelihood of success on the merits, the less the harm the petitioner need show

in relation to the harm the defendant will suffer. Bloedorn v. Francisco Foods, Inc., d/b/a

Pigaly Wiggly, 276 F.3d 270, 286-287, 298; (7th Cir. 2001), citing NLRB v. Electro-

Voice, 83 F.3d at 1567-68, citing Roland Machinery Co. v. Dresser IndusotrLes Inc., 743
200

F.2d 380, 387 (7th Cir. 1984). o AugY
WEe
. "Likelihood of Succ\eoss&'g)ggﬁ\f arc
No-
The Reglonal [%{gg@t@pfﬁakes a threshold showing of likelihood of success by

showing that ft% chances are "better than negligible.” NLRB v. Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at

1568; Roland Machinery Co. v. Dresser Industries, Inc., 743 F.2d at 387. In assessing

whether the Regional Director has met this burden, a district court must take into account
that Section 10(j) confers no jurisdiction to pass on the ultimate merits of the unfair labor

practice case (NLRB v. Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at 1567) and that, ultimately, the Board's

determination on the merits will be given considerable deference (Bloedorn v. Piggly

Wigaly, 276 F.3d at 287.). Thus, in a 10(j) proceeding, the district court should sustain
the Regional Director's factual allegations if they are "within the range of rationality"
and, "[e]ven on an issue of law, the district court should be hospitable to the views of the

[Director], however novel." Bloedorn v. Piggly Wigaly, 276 F.3d at 287. The district

court should not resolve credibility conflicts in the evidence but rather focus on whether

the Regional Director's evidence is sufficient to show a "better than negligible™ chance of



success. NLRB v. Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at 1570, 1571. See also Gottfried v. Frankel,

818 F.2d 485, 493, 494 (6th Cir. 1987).
B. Balancing the Equities
The irreparable harm to be avoided in a Section 10(j) case is the threatened
frustration of the remedial purpose of the Act and of the public interest in deterring

continued violations. Squillacote v. Local 248, Meat & Allied Food Workers, 534 F.2d

735, 744 (7th Cir. 1976), cited with approval in Kinney v. Pioneer Press, 881 F.2d at
491.2 n evaluating whether irreparable injury to the policies of the Act is threatened, as
well as in balancing such harms against any threatened harm to the respondent or the
public interest, the hardships, the district court must "take into account the probability
that declining to issue the injunction will permit the allegedly unfair labor practice to

reach fruition and thereby render meaningless the Board's remedial authont,y " Miller v.

California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460, citing Amoco Prod. %o VBMG)H&EJ% of Gambell 480
U.S. 531, 545 (1987). Accord: Asseo v Cemﬂsé R‘ﬁe\alco del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445,

No.
455 (1st Cir. 1990) (Se\gl‘lp(ﬂ@@) relief is appropriate whenever the circumstances create
a reasonable gﬁSrehensmn that, absent an injunction, the efficacy of the Board's final

order may be nullified or frustrated during regular Board litigation).
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2 NLRB v. Electro-Voice notes that when equitable relief is the ultimate relief sought, an
additional element "no adequate remedy at law™" is part of traditional equity analysis for
which petitioner must show that an award of damages would be "seriously deficient.” 83
F.3d at 1567, quoting Roland Machinery v. Dresser Industries, 749 F.2d at 386-87. As
here, a Board proceeding resulting in permanent injunctive relief is the sole avenue of
relief for conduct made unlawful under the National Labor Relations Act. Thus, in
Section 10(j) cases, the "adequate remedy at law" inquiry is whether, in the absence of
immediate relief, the harm flowing from the alleged violation cannot be prevented or
fully rectified by the final jJudgment. Roland Machinery Co. v. Dresser Industries, Inc.,
749 F.2d at 386. This inquiry effectively is the same as the question of "irreparable
harm" to the petitioner. NLRB v. Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at 1572-53.




Section 10(j) Standards - Eighth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby

: . : A\
render a final Board order ineffectual. See Minnesota Mlnlnq\?n(i;MﬁnG‘Pacturmq Co. v.
AUO
on
Meter, 385 F.2d 265, 269-270 (8th Cir. 19%@8@&@6\% Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st
20-\
Sess. 27 (1947), regrmtgggrUON’LI&\B Legislative History of the Labor-Management
prand ¥
Relations Act, 1947, at 414, 433 (1985)). Thus, Congress intended for Section 10(j) to

prevent the potential frustration or nullification of the Board's remedial authority caused

by the passage of time inherent in Board administrative litigation. Minnesota Mining, 385

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint . . . charging that
any person has engaged in or is engaging in an unfair labor practice, to
petition any United States district court, within any district wherein the unfair
labor practice in question is alleged to have occurred or wherein such person
resides or transacts business, for appropriate temporary relief or restraining
order. Upon the filing of any such petition the court shall cause notice
thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction
to grant to the Board such temporary relief or restraining order as it deems
just and proper.



F.2d at 271 (citing Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655, 660 (10th Cir. 1967)). Accord: Sharp

V. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1133 (10th Cir. 2000).

Section 10(j) directs district courts to grant relief that is "just and proper." In the
Eighth Circuit, district courts apply a traditional equitable analysis to consider whether

interim relief is just and proper. Sharp v. Parents in Community Action, Inc., 172 F.3d

1034, 1039 (8th Cir. 1999). That is, the court must evaluate: "1) the threat of irreparable
harm to the movant; 2) the balance between the harm to the movant and the harm to other
parties if the injunction is granted; 3) the movant's probability of success on the merits;

and 4) the public interest." Id., 172 F.3d at 1038, n.2 (citing Dataphase Systems, Inc. v.

CL Systems, Inc., 640 F.2d 109 (8th Cir. 1981) (en banc)). In evaluating the warrant for

interim relief, the court must take a flexible and pragmatic approaglzi&bﬁj’ahcing the

factors, and no one factor is determinative. ng}fag‘Q@seéS\/%f\em?\&O F.2d at 113. Where
the irreparable harm to th\e’\ r&g\/\gmﬂ@g\rgégr than the possible injury to other parties, the
need to showﬁfid@é’l‘f%b\a“()f success is lower, and conversely, where the harm is greater to

the other parties than to the movant, the burden of showing likelihood of success is great.

Dataphase Systems, 640 F.2d at 112-113. See Henderson v. Bodine Aluminum, Inc., 70

F.3d 958, 961 (8th Cir. 1995) ("preliminary injunctions become easier to obtain as the
plaintiff faces progressively graver harm™).

A. Balancing the Equities

In deciding whether a Section 10(j) injunction is "just and proper,” the court

focuses initially on the question of irreparable injury. Parents in Community Action, 172

F.3d at 1039. The irreparable harm to be avoided in a Section 10(j) case is the "harm to

the collective bargaining process or to other protected employee activities if a remedy



must await the Board's full adjudicatory process.” Id. at 1038, 1040. An interim
injunction is appropriate when it is "necessary either to preserve the status quo or prevent

frustration of the basic remedial purposes of the Act." Parents in Community Action, 172

F.3d at 1039 (quoting Minnesota Mining, 385 F.2d at 270).

In evaluating whether irreparable injury to the policies of the Act is threatened, as
well as in balancing such harms against any threatened harm to the respondent or the
public interest, the district court must "take into account the probability that declining to
issue the injunction will permit the allegedly unfair labor practice to reach fruition and

thereby render meaningless the Board's remedial authority." Miller v. California Pacific

Medical Center, 19 F.3d 449, 460 (9th Cir. 1994) (en banc). Accord: Asseo v. Centro

Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445, 455 (1st Cir. 1990). And, %@tﬁmﬁnterim
ust &7’

W
injunctive relief to strengthen the coIIective-ba&gg(i&(n@ﬁr%%ess serves the public interest.
[
. 0-A59
See Asseo v. Centro Medico deJ\Tu\fab}). Inc., 900 F.2d at 455.
\/\,‘\,\ Co'yY
. AN
B. LikefiPOod of Success

Once the Regional Director has established irreparable injury, the district court
examines likelihood of success on the merits, not in isolation, but "in the context of the

relative injuries to the parties and the public." Parents in Community Action, 172 F.3d at

1039 (quoting Dataphase Systems, 640 F.2d at 113). In evaluating the likelihood of
success, the district court considers only whether there are "suspected" statutory

violations. Parents in Community Action, 172 F.3d at 1038. In assessing whether the

Regional Director has met this requirement, the district court must take into account that
it has no jurisdiction under Section 10(j) to adjudicate the merits of an unfair labor

practice case. Parents in Community Action, 172 F.3d at 1039. See NLRB v. Electro-




Voice, 83 F.3d 1559, 1567 (7th Cir. 1996), cert. denied, 519 U.S. 1055 (1997). The court
must also factor in the deference accorded to the Board's determination on the merits by

courts of appeals. Miller v. California Pacific Medical Center, 19 F.3d at 460; NLRB v.

Dorothy Shamrock Coal Co., 833 F.2d 1263, 1265 (7th Cir. 1987)). See NLRB v. Swift

Adhesives, 110 F.3d 632, 634 (8th Cir. 1997)(Eighth Circuit reviews a final Board order
"with great deference™). The district court should sustain the Regional Director's factual
allegations if they are "within the range of rationality,” and "[e]ven on an issue of law, the
district court should be hospitable to the views of the [Director], however novel."

Danielson v. Joint Board, 494 F.2d 1230, 1245 (2d Cir. 1974), cited with approval in

Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460. The district court should not resolve

credibility conflicts in the evidence, but rather focus on whether therlgéegﬁ@mal Director's
\' )
S - pugY®
evidence is sufficient to show a "better than negl é%meé@ﬁ’é\nce of success. NLRB v.
0
. 0-\9
Electro-Voice, 83 F.3d at 1568, . wo.
neo

-
gran¥ Y- "
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Section 10(j) Standards - Ninth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its

unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint. See Scott v. Stephen

Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d 652, 659 (9th Cir. 2001); Miller v. California Pacific

Medical Center, 19 F.3d 449, 455 n.3 (9th Cir. 1994) (en banc), quojz@gzs\ﬁep No. 105,

9
80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp. 8, 27 (1947), reprlnted@;\,bﬂé&\slatlve History of the Labor

Management Relations Act of 1@94‘2\6&@’@3 (Government Printing Office 1985).
CO‘
Sectlon 1‘%)udi?e ts district courts to grant relief that is "just and proper.” In the
Ninth Clrcwt, district courts rely on traditional equitable principles to determine whether

interim relief is appropriate. Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 459-460, cited with

approval in Scott v. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 660. Thus, the courts

consider (1) the likelihood that the petitioner will succeed on the merits; (2) the

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within any
district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate
temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the
court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon
shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



possibility of irreparable injury to the petitioner if relief is not granted; (3) the extent to
which the balance of hardships favors the respective parties; and (4) whether the public

interest will be advanced by granting relief. Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 456.

These elements are evaluated on a "sliding scale™ in which the required degree of
irreparable harm increases as the probability of success decreases, and vice versa.

Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 661, and cases there cited; Miller v. California

Pacific, 19 F.3d at 459-460.2 The traditional equitable criteria should be considered in
the context of the underlying purposes of Section 10(j), which is to protect the integrity
of the collective bargaining process and to preserve the Board's remedial powers. Scott

v. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 667, citing Miller, 19 F.3d at 461.

A. Likelihood of Success
The Regional Director makes a threshold showing of I|keI|hood gjfsuccess by
producing "some evidence" in support of the unfair Ia%qma%’t’l%e charge ‘together with
an arguable legal theory." Stephen Dm@%ssomates 241 F.3d at 662, 664, quoting

Miller v. Callfornla Pae\"ﬂ@ C19 F. 3d at 460. In the context of a 10(j) petition, the
Fratt
Regional Director need not prove the allegations by a preponderance of the evidence as

required in an administrative proceeding. Rather, only "a better than negligible chance of

success” need be shown. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 662. At a minimum,

the Regional Director must demonstrate a "fair chance of success on the merits." Miller

v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460, citing Arcamuzi v. Continental Air Lines, Inc., 189

F.2d 935,937 (9th Cir. 1987); Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 662, 666.

2 The following formulation reflects this sliding scale, and thus must be shown by the
Regional Director in order to secure relief: "either (1) a combination of probable success
on the merits and the possibility of irreparable harm, or (2) the existence of serious
questions going to the merits, the balance of hardships tipping sharply in its favor, and at
least a fair chance of success on the merits." Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at
661, quoting Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 456.




In assessing whether the Regional Director has met this burden, a district court
must take into account that it lacks jurisdiction over unfair labor practices; and that,
ultimately, the Board's determination on the merits will be given considerable deference.

Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460, and cases there cited. See also Photo-Sonics,

Inc. v. NLRB, 678 F.2d 121, 123 (9th Cir. 1982). Thus, in a 10(j) proceeding, the district
court should sustain the Regional Director's factual allegations if they are "within the
range of rationality” and, "[e]ven on an issue of law, the district court should be

hospitable to the views of the [Director], however novel." Danielson v. Jt. Board, 494

F.2d 1230, 1245 (2d Cir. 1974) cited with approval in Miller v. California Pacific, 19

F.3d at 460. Accord: Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1031 (2d Cir. 1980). The

district court should not resolve credibility conflicts in the evidence. NLRB v. Electro-

Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d 1559, 1571 (7th Cir. 1996). Accord: Stephen Dunn,&\Assouates

L)

241 F.3d at 662 (conflict in the evidence does not prevg@bmg‘ﬁxs%uance of 10(j) relief).

Rather, the court should focus on v&het{@ﬁﬁﬁ%%Board has produced "some evidence" t

support the unfal(r\\(@@pﬂﬁ\%&lce allegations. Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460;
Fra
Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 662.

B. Balancing the Equities
In applying traditional equitable principles to a 10(j) petition, district courts must
consider the matter through the "prism of the underlying purpose of Section 10(j), which
is to protect the integrity of the collective bargaining process and to preserve the Board's

remedial power while it processes the charge.” Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at

661, quoting Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 459-460. As the California Pacific

court noted, the public interest is an important factor in the exercise of equitable

discretion. 19 F.3d at 460. Weinberger v. Romero-Barcelo, 456 U.S. 305, 312 (1982).

In 10(j) cases, "the public interest is to ensure that an unfair labor practice will not
succeed because the Board takes too long to investigate and adjudicate the charge.” Scott

v. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 657, quoting Miller v. California Pacific, 19




F.3d at 460. Accordingly, in evaluating whether irreparable injury to the policies of the
Act is threatened, as well as in balancing the hardships, the district court must “take into
account the probability that declining to issue the injunction will permit the allegedly
unfair labor practice to reach fruition and thereby render meaningless the Board's

remedial authority.” Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460, citing Amoco Prod. Co.

v. Village of Gambell, 480 U.S. 531, 545 (1987); Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d

at 667-668, 669.3
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3 Under the "sliding scale," approach used in the Ninth Circuit, if the respondent
concedes the substance of the unfair labor practice charge, or if the Board demonstrates
that it is likely to prevail on the merits, irreparable harm will be presumed. On the other
hand, if the charge is disputed, or if the Board has only a fair chance of succeeding on the
merits, the court will expressly consider the possibility of irreparable injury. See Miller
v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460, citing United States v. Nutri-Cology, Inc., 982 F. 2d
394, 398 (9th Cir. 1992); Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d at 666-667.




Section 10(j) Standards - Tenth Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby
render a final Board order ineffectual. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp.

8, 27 (1947), reprinted in | Legislative History of the Labor Manaqement Relations Act

of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Office 1985), C|ted |R\§hm’\pz\9 Webco Industries,

Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1136 (10th Cir. 2000@5@%!‘1%1“@ V. Sacks 382 F.2d 655, 659-660
(10th Cir. 1967). Thus %gc@omld%ﬁ was intended to prevent the potential frustration or
nullification cff‘fﬁé Board s remedial authority caused by the passage of time inherent in

Board administrative litigation. Id. at 659. Accord: Kobell v. United Paperworkers

Intern., 965 F.2d 1401, 1406 (6th Cir. 1992).
To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Tenth Circuit considers

only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe™ that a respondent has

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within any
district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate
temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the
court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon
shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



violated the Act and whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See Sharp

v. Webco Industries, 225 F.3d at 1133, 1137; Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 658, 660.

A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, a district court in the Tenth Circuit may not decide the ultimate merits of the

case. Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 661 (merits of unfair labor practice allegations to be

resolved by the Board). Accord: Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 494 (6" Cir. 1987).

Rather, the Regional Director "must only produce some evidence ‘that [its] position is

fairly supported by the evidence." Sharp v. Webco Industries, 225 F.3d at 1134, quoting

Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445, 450 (1st Cir. 1990). Further, the

Regional Director need only advance legal theories that are vahd,&@s‘ﬁ&w\lal and not
p\ug‘)
frivolous" in order to "permit a rational factflggegmmﬁ%?dermg the evidence in the light
4059
most favorable to the Boxa\,\d@tgwulg\m favor of the Board." Sharp v. Webco Industries,

225 F.3d at 1f§2 quotlng Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d 367, 371 (11th

Cir. 1992). The district court should not resolve contested factual issues. See Scott v. El

Farra Enterprises, Inc., d/b/a Bi-Fair Market, 863 F.2d 670, 673 n. 6 (9th Cir. 1988),

citing Fuchs v. Hood Industries, Inc., 590 F.2d 395, 397 (1st Cir. 1979); Kaynard v.

Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1031 (2d Cir. 1980). Nor should it attempt to resolve issues

of credibility of witnesses. See Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493, 494 (district court

is not permitted to resolve conflicts in evidence; respondent’s attack on credibility of

Board's witnesses merely establishes conflict in evidence). Accord: Fuchs v. Jet Spray




Corp., 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-51 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664

(st Cir. 1983).

B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Section 10(j) implements the public interest to protect the Board's remedial power
from compromise by the passage of time inherent in obtaining an enforceable Board
order. Thus, for Section 10(j) relief to be just and proper, "the circumstances of the case
must demonstrate that there exists a probability that the purposes of the Act will be

frustrated unless temporary relief is granted.” Sharp v. Webco Industries, 225 F.3d at

1135, quoting Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 660. Accordingly, the relief to be granted is

that which will preserve, or restore as nearly as possible, the status quo existing before

the alleged unfair labor practices occurred. See Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 661. See

also Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d at 878 (10(j) relleféqggtr’é%tg’g where

violations "are likely to jeopardize the mte%%\,g‘@mﬁ%e\‘%argammg process and thereby
make it impossible or not \Leég\tqje ‘t‘borestore or preserve the status quo pending
litigation”). Fra
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Section 10(j) Standards - Eleventh Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work
product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS
SOUGHT: THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,1 authorizes United States district courts to grant
temporary injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
proceedings. Congress recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted. In many instances, absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its
unlawful objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby
render a final Board order ineffectual. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp.

8, 27 (1947), reprinted in | Legislative History of the Labor Manaqement Relations Act

of 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Office 1985). See aLs\\gCAslé)& V. S Lichtenberg

& Co., Inc., 952 F.2d 367, 371 (11th Cir. 18@@, d&ﬁ‘tlng Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers,
Inc., 515 F.2d 1185, 11818\,(@be|er975) reh. and reh. en banc denied 521 F.2d 795, cert.
denied 426 FSY34 (1976).

To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Eleventh Circuit
considers only two issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that a
respondent has violated the Act and whether injunctive relief is "just and proper." See

Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 371 and the cases cited therein.

1 Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in
subsection (b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in an
unfair labor practice, to petition any United States district court, within any
district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to have
occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate
temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the
court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon
shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard
In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, the district court may not decide the merits of the case. See Arlook v. S.

Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372-373, citing Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc.,

515 F.2d at 1191. Rather, the district court's role is limited to evaluating whether (1) the
Regional Director's theory of violation is "substantial, nonfrivolous [and] coherent” and
(2) the evidence, considered in the light most favorable to the Board, would permit a

rational factfinder to rule in the Board's favor. Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952

F.2d at 371-372. Accord: Boire v. Int'l Bhd. of Teamsters, 479 F.2d 778, 789-92 (5th

Cir. 1973), reh. and reh. en banc denied 480 F.2d 924 (1973) (legal theories need only be

"substantial and not frivolous"). In determining whether the Reglqngé Ditéctor has met
p\ug‘)
this "minimal burden” (Boire v. Pilot Frelqht Qagr«emﬁ%c 515 F.2d at 1189), a district
4092
court should not attempt t\g @gowe\\t:onfllcts in the evidence or the credibility of

witnesses. Aﬁf)ok V. Llchtenberq & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372-373; Gottfried v. Frankel,

818 F.2d 485, 493, 494 (6th Cir. 1987) (respondent's attack on credibility of Board's

witnesses merely establishes conflict in the evidence); Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corp., 560 F.

Supp. 1147, 1150-1151 n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir.
1983) (same).
B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
Injunctive relief is "just and proper™ under Section 10(j) "whenever the facts
demonstrate that, without such relief, any final order of the Board will be meaningless or
so devoid of force that the remedial purposes of the [NLRA] will be frustrated.™ Arlook

v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372, quoting Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers,




Inc., 515 F.2d at 1192. In the Eleventh Circuit, injunctive relief is shown to be "equitably
necessary” where, for example, union organizationl efforts are being extinguished by
employer unfair labor practices, unions and employees have already suffered substantial
damage from probable violations and future violations are likely to be repeated absent an

injunction. Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372. Therefore, it is "just

and proper" for a district court to grant interim relief where a Section 10(j) injunction
would be "more effective" to protect employee statutory rights than a final Board order.

1d., 952 F.2d at 374. Accord: Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d 874, 878 (3d Cir.

1990) (10(j) relief warranted where violations "are likely to jeopardize the integrity of the

bargaining process and thereby make it impossible or not feasible to restore or preserve

the status quo pending litigation."); Asseo v. Centro Medico del Tst{rl@bo’z@ﬁé., 900 F.2d
AUy
_ 0
445, 454-455 (1st Cir. 1990) (same). 1598 A a(c;hwe
Q- NO- i
g W
prant V-
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Section 10(j) Standards - D.C. Circuit

[This section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney work product, 2,
and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

THE STATUTORY SCHEME PURSUANT TO WHICH INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS SOUGHT:
THE APPLICABLE STANDARDS

Section 10(j) of the Act,' authorizes United States district courts to grant temporary
injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice proceedings. Congress
recognized that the Board's administrative proceedings often are protracted. In many instances,
absent interim relief, a respondent could accomplish its unlawful objective before being placed
under any legal restraint. See S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., at pp. 8, 27 (1947), reprinted
at | Legislative History of the Labor Management Relations Act of 19351 %%@@83 (Government

i)

A
Printing Office 1985). Thus, Section 10(j) was integdg(@g&@@e%nt the potential frustration or

AB90
@gtﬁ@ri})gl caused by the passage of time inherent in Board

nullification of the Board's remedial
T &

\.
administrative Iitiga@éﬁ.\ See, e.g., Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1133 (10th Cir.

2000); citing Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655, 659 (10th Cir. 1967); Kobell v. United Paperworkers

International Union, 965 F.2d 1401, 1406 (6th Cir. 1992).

! Section 10(j) (29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)) provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint as provided in subsection
(b) charging that any person has engaged in or is engaging in anunfair labor practice, to
petition any United States district court, within any district wherein the unfair labor
practice in question is alleged to have occurred or wherein such person resides or
transacts business, for appropriate temporary relief or restraining order. Upon the filing
of any such petition the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon such person,
and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary relief or
restraining order as it deems just and proper.



To resolve a 10(j) petition, the district court in the District of Columbia considers only two
issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that the Act has been violated and whether
the "remedial purposes of the law will be served by pendente lite [injunctive] relief." See Int'l.

Union, U.A.W. v. NLRB (Ex-Cell-O Corp.), 449 F.2d 1046, 1051 (D.C. Cir. 1971) Section 10(e)

(29 U.S.C. Section 160(e)) temporary injunction case, citing NLRB v. Aerovox Corporation of

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina, 389 F.2d 475, 477 (4th Cir. 1967)(equating 10(e) standards with

10(j) criteria). Most circuits have adopted this two part standard, the second half of which is also

characterized as whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper.” See, e.g., Arlook v. S.

Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d 367, 371 (11th Cir. 1992) and the cases cited therein.
A. The "Reasonable Cause" Standard

The Regional Director has a minimal burden to establish reasonal;zl(g cauise to believe that

\
. AUGUS _
the Act has been violated; he or she need meet only A?gggxw&ﬂr%old of proof." Eisenberg v.
4590
Wellington Hall Nursing Home, In&@(ﬁﬁ@F@d 902, 905 (3rd Cir. 1981). See, also Kobell v.

i
\.
Suburban Lines, IrYd.,a"fé\l F.2d 1076, 1084 (3d Cir. 1984). The district court may not decide the

merits of the case. See, e.g., Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 372-73. Nor should it

resolve contested factual issues or credibility disputes. See, e.g. Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485,

493 and 494 (6th Cir. 1987); Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corp., 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-1151 n. 2 (D.

Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir. 1983). Rather, the court should consider the

evidence "in the light most favorable to the Board" (Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d

at 371-72) and should limit its inquiry to whether factual issues could ultimately be resolved by the

Board in favor of the Regional Director (Fuchs v. Hood Industries, 590 F.2d at 397).

Similarly, on propositions of law, the Regional Director need only establish that the legal

theory is "substantial and not frivolous.” Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d at 371-72




("substantial, nonfrivolous, coherent legal theory™); Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d 874,

882 (3d Cir. 1990)("substantial, non-frivolous legal theory, implicit or explicit").
B. The "Just and Proper" Standard
As the District of Columbia Circuit has recognized, interim injunctive relief is appropriate
to protect the remedial purposes of the Act and, in particular, to preserve the Board's remedial

powers from compromise by the passage of time inherent in obtaining a Board order. Int'l. Union

U.AW. v. NLRB(Ex-Cell-O Corp.), 449 F.2d at 1051, citing NLRB v. Aerovox Corp., 389 F.2d at

477; Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 659. Thus, Section 10(j) relief is appropriate when "the

circumstances of a case create a reasonable apprehension that the efficacy of the Board's final order
may be nullified, or the administrative procedures will be rendered meaningless” unless such relief

is granted. Id. at 660, cited in Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3({ %[aliatl;\Pascarell v. Vibra
ust <

AU
Screw Inc., 904 F.2d at 878 (injunctive relief is warﬁr\ag(tgg\wﬁe?i“the alleged violations "are likely to
4590

jeopardize the integrity of the t\:;/ergg@ain@%r%%ess and thereby make it impossible or not feasible to
\

restore or preserve?ttﬁé‘&atus quo pending litigation™). In determining what interim relief is "just
and proper," the district court should consider what is necessary to preserve or restore as nearly as

possible the status quo before the alleged violations occurred. See Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc.,

225 F.3d at 1134, citing Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d at 661; Kobell v. United Paperworkers Intern.,

965 F.2d 1401, 1410 (6th Cir. 1992); Int'l. Union, U.A.W. v. NLRB (Ex-Cell-O Corp.), 449 F.2d at

1051, n. 25.
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APPENDIX E

List of Court Cases for Each 10(j) Category
and Relevant Law Review Articles
[W=win; L= loss]
[*= more important case]
(parentheticals indicate additional issues addressed in the case)

[Parentheticals indicating additional issues addressed in the cases and * indicating
more important cases are exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemption 5,
attorney work product, but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

1. Interference with Organizational Campaign
(no majority)

Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655 (10th Cir.)
(W) (classic "nip in the bud" case)[*]

Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor, 853 F.2d 744

(9th Cir.) (W) (discharge of union organizing

committee members; protect potential

collective-bargaining process; rights of

replacements subordinate to discriminatees) 2O\

Sharp v. Parents in Community Actionekhé);
172 F.3d 1034 (8th Cir. 6;,\)5(3&5\&‘}5hc interest
served by reinst&;gn@wt of single 8(a)(3))
P ©°
F&N\\%F}man v. JRL Food Corp., 196 F.2d 334
(2d Cir.) (W) (must give deference to ALJD)

Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130 (10th Cir.) (W)
(discriminatory selection for layoffs; union attempting to revive stalled
campaign)[*]

Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F.3d 69 (1* Cir.)
(W) (loss of union support coincides with
unlawful discharges)

Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc.,
250 F.3d 962 (6th Cir.) (W)

(reinstatement of single 8(a)(3) in early stages

of campaign)

NLRB v. Ona Corp., 605 F.Supp. 874 (N.D.
Ala.) (W) (single 8(a)(3); good evidence of
"chilling" impact)

Silverman v. Whittal & Shon, 125 LRRM




2.

-2 -
2150 (S.D.N.Y.) (W) (good language on chill)

Sharp v. La Siesta Foods, Inc., 859 F.Supp.
1370 (D. Kan.) (L) (union lost election and
campaign had stopped)[*]

D'Amico v. U.S. Service Industries, Inc., 867
F.Supp. 1075 (D. D.C.) (W) (inform unit
employees about terms of decree;

multi-site in scope)

Fleischut v. Avondale Industries, Inc., 148
LRRM 2685 (E.D. La.) (L) (insufficient
showing of irreparable harm to union's
campaign)

Blyer v. P & W Electric, Inc., d/b/a Pollari
Electric, 141 F.Supp. 326 (E.D.N.Y. 2001)

(W) (reinstatement of 3 employees in unit of 15)

Interference with Organizational Campaign
(Majority)

one
Seeler v. The Trading Pmt\E?%AF 2d 33

(2d Cir.) %W)C@mré?ﬁ’wew of status quo)[*]

F@owe v. Pilot Freight Carriers, 515 F.2d

1185 (5th Cir.) (L) (incorrect view of status quo)[*]

Levine v. C & W Mining Co., 610 F.2d 432

(6th Cir.) (W) (also read the district court opinion)

Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, 625 F.2d 1047
(2d Cir.) (W) (disputed unit not bar to relief;
good language on risk of error)

Kaynard v. MMIC, 734 F.2d 950 (2d Cir.) (W)
(unresolved election not bar to relief)

Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23
(1st Cir.) (W) (quotes Tiidee)

NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d 1559 (7th
Cir.) (W) (follows Seeler view of status quo;
good lanaguage on need to reinstate)[*]




Scott v. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 241 F.3d 652
(9th Cir.) (W) (8(a)(1) Gissel)

Gottfried v. Mayco Plastics, 472 F.Supp.
1161 (E.D. Mich.) (affd. C.A.6) (W) (union lost election;
mass reinstatement; also good language on delay)

Lightner v. Dauman Pallet, Inc., 823 F.Supp. 249
(D. N.J.)(affd. C.A.3) (W) (has good evidentiary
ruling on chilling impact)

Garner v. Macclenny Products, Inc., 859 F.
Supp. 1478 (M.D. Fla.) (W) (only 8(a)(1)
violations; unresolved election)

Hoeber v. KNZ Construction, Inc., 879 F.Supp.
451 (E.D. Pa.) (W) (good language on need
for interim bargaining order)

Ahearn v. Beckley Mechanical, Inc., 161 LRRM 2311

2315 (S.D. W.Va.) (W) (8al violations) @22 o0\
YNV

Moore-Duncan v. Aldworth Co., Jd%\'ﬁfiﬁjgp.Zd 268

(D. NJ) (interim baggiq@gb‘?é@r runs against

joint emplo o

] M@ram

KV
Fv5"‘ﬁ\arp v. Ashland Construction Co., 169 LRRM 3075
(W.D. Wis. 2002) (W)

3. Subcontracting or Other Change to Avoid Bargaining
Obligation

Levine v. C & W Mining Co., 610 F.2d 432 (6th
Cir.) (L) (lost on prohibition against sale of trucks [*]

Maram v. Universidad Interamericana, etc.,
722 F.2d 953 (1st Cir.) (W) (8(a)(3)
subcontracting of janitorial department; rights
of discriminatees superior to replacements)

Calatrello v. Automatic Sprinkler Corp. of
America, 55 F.3d 208 (6th Cir.) (L) (8(a)(3)
subcontracting; won reasonable cause, lost on j & p)

Hirsch v. Dorsey Trailers, 147 F.3d 243 (3d Cir.)
(W) (granted "mothball™ order; good language on delay)




-4 -

Zipp v. Bohn Heat Transfer, 110 LRRM 3013
(C.D. 1II.) (W) (work relocation; with
8(a)(5) information)

Kobell v. Thorsen Tool Co., 112 LRRM
2397 (M.D. Pa.) (W) (work relocation)

Eisenberg v. Suburban Transit, 112 LRRM
2708 (D. N.J.) (affd. C.A. 3) (W) ("single
employer,” work relocation)

Silverman v. Imperia Foods, 646 F.Supp. 393
(S.D.N.Y.) (W) (8(a)(3) accelerated plant
relocation and mass discharge)

D'Amico v. A.G. Boone, 647 F.Supp. 1546
(W.D. Va.) (L), supplemented in 660 F.Supp.
534 (W.D. Va.) (W) (8(a)(3) work relocation;
lost first on interim restoration, but then won
Rule 60(b)(6) motion for "mothball™ order)

20\

91
Kobell v. J.D. Hinkle & Sons, 131 LRRM 2@&1)9“5‘2
(N.D. W. Va)) (L) (restoratiog gixag(WBE}r%ensome)
109
Frye v. Semigo.le)lr}‘t\e‘?modal Transport, Inc.
14{&\LMRRW2265 (S.D. Ohio) (W) (work relocation;
Fgood language on destruction of unit)

Miller v. LCF, Inc. (aka Sprint), 147 LRRM
2911 (N.D. Ca.) (L)

Frye v. Kentucky May Coal, 148 LRRM 2945
(E.D. Ky.) (L) (unit employees working for
subcontractor at original location)

Bernstein v. Carter & Sons Freightways, Inc.,
983 F.Supp. 994 (D. Kan.) (W) (discriminatory
subcontracting; also grants Gissel remedy)

Aguayo v. Quadrtech Corporation, 129 F.Supp.2d
1273 (C.D. Ca.) (W) (discriminatory work relocation; also obtained TRO)

Dunbar v. Carrier Corp., 66 F.Supp.2d 346
(N.D.N.Y.) (W) (unilateral work relocation)[*]




- 5 -
4. Withdrawal of Recognition from Incumbent

Brown v. Pacific Telephone, 218 F.2d 542
(9th Cir.) (W) (8(a)(5) and 8(a)(2); Pope's
concurring opinion)[*]

Sachs v. Davis & Hemphill, 71 LRRM 2126
(4th Cir.) (W) (classic "good-faith doubt"
case; also read the district court opinion)

Pye v. Sullivan Brothers Printers, Inc.,
38 F.3d 58 (1st Cir.) (L) (novel union merger)

DeProspero v. House of the Good Samaritan,
474 F.Supp. 552 (N.D.N.Y.) (W) (affiliation of union)

Balicer v. Helrose Bindery, 82 LRRM 2891
(D. N.J) (W) (alter ego)

Pascarell v. Gitano Group, 730 F.Supp. 616
(D. N.J. 1990) (W) (relocated part of operation)

Ledford v. Mining Specialists, Inc., 865 on pugy
F.Supp. 314 (S.D. W. Va.) (|_) (Eg%\ag@?
0,
Hoffman v. Ha{ﬁfﬁorh\?%ospltal 149 LRRM
22@@\(0’\@3nn ) (W) (hospital merger)
IR (an
Hirsch v. Konig, 149 LRRM 3070 (E.D. Pa.)
(W) (good language on delay after ALJ hrg.)

Ahearn v. House of Good Samaritan,
884 F.Supp. 654 (N.D.N.Y.) (W)

D'Amico v. Townsend Culinary, Inc., 22 F.Supp.2d
480 (D. Md.) (W) (bad faith bargaining tainted
later showing of employee disaffection from union)[*]

Dunbar v. Park Associates, Inc., 23 F.Supp.2d
212 (N.D.N.Y.) (affd. C.A.2) (W) (tainted good faith doubt)

McDermott v. Scott, 162 LRRM 2224 (C.D. Ca.) (W)

Overstreet v. Tucson Ready Mix, Inc., 11 F.Supp.2d
1139 (D. Ariz.) (W) (tainted good faith doubt)

Moore-Duncan v. Horizon House Developmental
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Services, 155 F.Supp.2d 390 (E.D. Pa. 2001) (W)

5. Undermining of Bargaining Representative

Morio v. Soccer League, 632 F.2d 217
(2d Cir.) (W) (individual employment
contracts; also read district court opinion)

Eisenberg v. Wellington Hall Nursing Home,
651 F.2d 902 (3d Cir.) (W) (discharge employees
on union bargaining committee)

Squillacote v. Advertisers Mfg., 677 F.2d
544 (7th Cir.) (W) (¢ & d order against
unilateral changes during test 8(a)(5))

Sheeran v. American Commercial Lines, 683
F.2d 970 (6th Cir.) (W) (unilateral rescission
of union hiring hall and union access to vessels;

reject Collyer-Dubo defense)

20\

9,
Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485 (6th Cir,), August Rz
(W) (harass key union officials; U and
complaint not necei\s\ary\@ot petltlon)

Szabo v U'S Marine, 819 F.2d 714 (7th Cir.)
W(’WY (civil contempt; direct dealing; general
bargaining order covers all 8a5 conduct)

Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, 859 F.2d
26 (6th Cir.) (W) (imminency of ALJ hearing)

Pascarell v. Vibra Screw, 904 F.2d 874 (3d
Cir.) (W) (discharge of employees on bargaining
committee; good language on "chill" and delay)[*]

Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg, 952 F.2d 367 (11th

Cir. 1992) (W) (harass union stewards and probationary
employees; unilateral changes; newly certified union

is vulnerable; good language on passage of time)




Schaub v. Detroit Newspaper Agency, 154 F.3d 276
(6th Cir.) (L) (insufficent adverse impact on
union's employee support and parties' negotiations)

Overstreet v. Thomas Davis Medical Centers,
9 F.Supp.2d 1162 (D. Ariz.) (W) (post-election
unilateral changes)

Silverman v. Major League Baseball Player
Relations Committee, Inc., 880 F.Supp. 246
(S.D.N.Y.) (affd. CA2) (W) (unilateral changes
in sport's free agency)

LeBus v. Manning, Maxwell & Moore, 218
F.Supp. 702 (W.D. La.) (W) (test of
certification; stresses industrial unrest)

Kinney v. Chicago Tribune, 132 LRRM 2795
(N.D. 1) (L) (pay unnecessary wages)

Ahearn v. Dunkirk Ice Cream, 133 LRRM 2088 g,20M
(W.D.N.Y.) (W) (abrogate grlevance/arbltrQ.(usmg‘y:3

provisions) Y(;V\Ne
gA @
40157

Revnolds Vv, C;Hﬂjav\ﬁf?lntmq 247 F.Supp.
311\(M¥B) \‘renn ) (W) (post-certification 8(a)(3)
¥ &ibcontracting and surface bargaining)

Pascarell v. Orit Corp., 705 F.Supp. 200
(D. N.J.) (affd. C.A.3) (W) (refusal to
properly recall ULP strikers)

Bordone v. Talsol Corp., 799 F.Supp. 796
(S.D. Ohio) (W) (discriminatory changes int & c)

Kobell v. Beverly Health & Rehabilitation
Services, 154 LRRM 2947 (W.D. Pa.) (affd. C.A.3)
(W) (interim reinstatement of ULP strikers
granted)

Dunbar v. Colony Liguor Distributors, 158 LRRM 3124 (N.D.N.Y.) (W)
(lawful plant relocation, but unlawful "effects” bargaining)




Aguayo v. South Coast Refuse Corp., 161 LRRM 2867 (C.D. Ca.) (W)
(refusal to recall ULP strikers and

to comply with terms of agreed-upon labor

agreement)

Lineback v. Printpack, Inc., 979 F.Supp. 831
(S.D. Ind.) (W) (interim reinstatement of union
president during contract negotiations)

Calatrello v. NSA, a Division of Southwire Co.,
164 LRRM 2500 (W.D. Ky.) (W) (bad faith
bargaining and refusal to recall ULP strikers;
good language for need to protect newly certified
union)

6. Minority Union Recognition

Eisenberg v. Hartz Mountain, 519 F.2d 138
(3d Cir.) (L) (seemingly fair contract; time
limits on 10(j) decrees)[*] 429 o0\

0
Kaynard v. Mego, 633 F.2d 1036 (2a€if)”

(W) (accretion; a tu&\solg@;mﬁ%gﬁm parties)
) 'Co(p.s
Hirsch. v\ I?im Lean Meat, 479 F.Supp.

F4351 (D. Del.) (W) (includes Gissel)

Fuchs v. Jet Spray, 560 F.Supp. 1147
(D. Mass.) (affd. C.A.1) (W) (good
entrenching analysis)

Zipp v. Dubugue Packing, 112 LRRM 3139
(N.D. L) (W) (premature recognition)

Green v. Senco, 282 F.Supp. 690 (D.
Mass.) (W) (Regional Director does not have
to litigate entire ULP complaint)

7. Successor Refusal to Recognize and Bargain

Solien v. Merchants Home Delivery,
557 F.2d 622 (8th Cir.) (L) (good
language on delay)
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Kobell v. Suburban Lines, 731 F.2d

1076 (3d Cir.) (L) (Kallman; small and
intimate unit exception; rejects

Crain and Mack defense re replacements)[*]

Scott v. El Farra Enterprises, 863 F.2d
670 (9th Cir.) (W) (Kallman; court must defer
to Board's choice of remedy)

Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, 900 F.2d 445
(1% Cir.) (W) (failure to hire union steward)[*]

Frye v. Specialty Envelope, Inc., 10 F.3d
1221 (6th Cir.) (W)

Hoffman v. Inn Credible Caterers, Ltd.,
247 F.3d 360 (2d Cir. 2001), (W)[*]

Bloedorn v. Francisco Foods, Inc. d/b/a
Piggly Wiggly, 276 F.3d 270 (7th Cir. 2001)
(W) (Kallman successor) [*]

Squillacote v. U.S. Marine, 116 LRRM
2663 (E.D. Wis.) (W) '

A0S
Mack v. Air Express 471 F.Supp. 1119
((al\(l\\[\)uGa\T)\?Ej (rights of replacements)

F

Asseo v. El Mundo Corp., 706 F.Supp. 116
(D. P.R.) (W) (Kallman)

Watson v. Moeller Rubber Products,
792 F.Supp. 1459 (N.D. Miss.) (W)

Asseo v. Bultman Enterprises, Inc., 913 F.Supp.
89 (D. P.R.) (W) (Kallman)

Donner v. NRNH, 163 LRRM 2033 (W.D.N.Y. 1999) (W)
(Kallman)

Wells v. Brown & Root, Inc., 65 F.Supp.2d 1264
(L) (Kallman)

Dunbar v. Onyx Precision Services, 129 F.Supp.2d
230 (W.D.N.Y.) (W) (8a2 union involved)

8. Conduct During Bargaining Negotiations
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Douds v. ILA, 241 F.2d 278 (2d Cir.) (W)
(union insisted upon change in historic unit)

McLeod v. General Electric, 366 F.2d 847 (2d Cir.)
(L) (employer refusal to meet with union's
bargaining committee)

MMM v. Meter, 385 F.2d 265 (8th Cir.) (L)
(union bargaining committee; 10(j) order changed
status quo)[*]

Rivera-Vega v. ConAgra, Inc., 70 F.3d 153 (1
Cir.), affg. 876 F.Supp. 1350 (D. P.R.), stay
denied 879 F.Supp. 165 (W) (denial of financial
information; bad faith bargaining; unilateral
changes; employer lockout)[*]

Kobell v. United Paperworker Int'l Union,
AFI-CI0, 965 F.2d 140l (6th Cir.) (W)
(8(b)(3) pooling of contract ratification votes)

Boire v. SAS Ambulance, 108 LRRM 2388“(IM)B”SVEIa)

(affd. C.A.5) (W) (refusal to bargg{aw
8(a)(3)s on union comm@e@

GorP-
thtJ\ew\’ﬁé?taqe Realty, 73 LRRM 2971 (N.D. Ind.)
F{W) (bad faith bargaining)

Johansen v. Operating Engineers, 99 LRRM 2852
(C.D. Cal.) (W) (permissive bargaining subject)

Squillacote v. Generac, 304 F.Supp. 435 (E.D.
Wis.) (W) (denial of relevant information)

Penello v. U.M.W., 88 F.Supp. 935 (D. D.C.) (W)
(remove union's permissive stumbling block)

Hirsch v. Tube Methods, 125 LRRM 2198 (E.D. Pa.)
(W) (classic bad faith bargaining)

Silverman v. Reinauer Transportation Cos.,
130 LRRM 2505 (S.D.N.Y.) (affd. C.A.2) (W)
(employer insisted upon change in historic unit
and order required recall of ULP strikers)

Frye v. Pony Express Courier, 148 LRRM 2042

g, 20"
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(S.D. Ohio) (L) (refusal to meet at reasonable times)

Kobell v. United Refining Co., 159 LRRM 2762
(W.D. Pa.) (W) (unilateral changes after union's
certification, with animus motive)

Fleischut v. Burrows Paper Corp., 162 LRRM 2719
(S.D. Miss.) (W) (bad faith bargaining)

Friend v. District Council of Painters No. 8,
157 LRRM 2753 (N.D. Ca.) (W) (multi-employer unit)

9. Mass Picketing and Violence

Squillacote v. Food Workers, 534 F.2d 735 (7th
Cir.) (W) (agency; TRO; civil contempt)[*]

Frye v. District 1199, 996 F.2d 141 (6th
Cir.) (W) (good language on irreparable harm;
scope of just and proper relief)

Grupp v. Steelworkers, 532 F.Supp. 102 (W.D. Pa)

(W) (joint venture) on p\\)g‘)
arcnNe

Compton v. Puerto Ricq (Ne@%%aper Guild,

343 F. s&pe\ 884(D P.R.) (W)

FvS'aqunlacote v. Auto Workers, 384 F.Supp. 1171
(E.D. Wis.) (L) (unremedied 8a5 complaint)

Squillacote v. Food Workers, 390 F.Supp. 1180
(E.D. Wis.) (W) (state suit not bar)

Vincent v. UE, 73 LRRM 2139 (S.D.N.Y.)
(W) (blocking ingress)

Clark v. UMWA, 722 F.Supp. 250 (W.D. Va.)
(L) (state court decree was effective)

Clark v. UMWA, 714 F.Supp. 791 (W.D. Va.)
(W) (state court decree was not effective)

Bloedorn v. Teamsters Local 695, 132 LRRM 3102
(W.D. Wis.) (W) (affidavit of compliance)

10. Notice Requirements for Strike or Picketing
(8(d) & 8(9))

g, 20"
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McLeod v. Sewer Workers, 292 F.2d 338
(2d Cir.) (W)

McLeod v. CWA, 79 LRRM 2532 (S.D.N.Y.) (W)

Cury v. Trabajadores, 86 F.Supp. 707 (D. P.R.) (W)

Schneid v. UMW, 40 LRRM 2529 (N.D. 111.) (W)

Blyer v. Local 1814, ILA , 724 F.Supp. 1092
(S.D.N.Y. 1989) (L) ("technical” violation)

11. Refusal to Permit Protected Activity on Property

Eisenberg v. Holland Rantos, 583 F.2d 100 (3d
Cir.) (W) (industrial park)

Silverman v. 40-41 Realty Associates,
668 F.2d 678 (2d Cir.) (L) (office building)

12. Union Coercion to Achieve UnlawguIA‘O()I@gLeeted or
7595

Boire V. |BT%4;9 Ry 7 778 (5th Cir.) (W)
(emams\b unit)[*]

D'Amico v. Shipbuilding Workers, 116 LRRM 2508
(D. Md.) (W) (internal union discipline)

Compton v. Carpenters, 220 F.Supp. 280
(D.P.R.) (W)

Evansv. I.T.U., 76 F.Supp. 881 (S.D.Ind.) (W)

Brown v. NMU, 104 F.Supp. 685 (N.D. Cal.)
(W) (hiring hall)

Madden v. UMW, 79 F.Supp. 616 (D. D.C.) (W)

Elliott v. Sheet Metal Workers, 42 LRRM
2100 (D. N.M.) (W) (multiemployer bargaining)

Jaffee v. Newspaper and Mail Deliverers,
97 F.Supp. 443 (S.D.N.Y.) (W)
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13. Interference with Access to Board Processes

Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 265 F.3d 1085
(10th Cir. 2001) (W) (lawsuit)

Humphrey v. United Credit Bureau, 99 LRRM 3459
(D. Md.) (W) (lawsuit)

Wilson v. Whitehall Packing, 108 LRRM 2165
(W.D. Wis.) (W) (lawsuit)

Hirsch v. Pilgrim Life Insurance Co., 112 LRRM
3147 (E.D. Pa.) (W) (lawsuit)

Szabo v. P*I*E Nationwide, 878 F.2d 207
(7th Cir.) (L) (no chilD)[*]

Zipp v. Caterpillar, Inc., 858 F.Supp. 794
(C.D. L) (L)

14. Segregating Assets pugy
c;‘(\\\led or
NLRB v. Burnette Castmqu@E’ﬁf_RRM 2354
(6th Cir.) @/&&s@cﬁ% 10(e); bond alternative)

FYQIIRB v. Interstate Equipment, 74 LRRM 2003
(7th Cir.) (W) (Section 10(e))

NLRB v. A.N. Electric Corp., 140 LRRM 2860
(2d Cir.) (W) (Section 10(e))

NLRB v. Horizon Hotel Corp., 159 LRRM 2449 (1*
Cir.) (W) (Section 10(e))

Jensen v. Chamtech Service Center, 155 LRRM 2058
(C.D. Ca.) (W) (10j petition based upon backpay
specification)[*]
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Aguayo v. Chamtech Service Center, 157 LRRM 2299
(C.D. Ca.) (W) (ex parte TRO protective order
granted under 10j and All Writs Act)

Maram v. Alle Arecibo, 110 LRRM 2494 (D. P.R.) (W)

Norton v. New Hope Industries, 119 LRRM 3086 (M.D.
La.) (W) (individual's personal assets; duty to provide information)

Kobell v. Menard Fiberglass, 678 F.Supp. 1155
(W.D. Pa.) (W) (includes reinstatement and
preferential hiring list)

Schaub v. Brewery Products, 715 F.Supp. 829
(E.D. Mich.)(W) (need only estimate amount
of backpay)

Fuchs v. Workroom For Designers, 116 LRRM
2324 (D. Mass.) (W) (appointment of special
master with receivership powers)

Model Argument for “Protective Order" or pugy
Sequestration of Assets Injunct'gg%dﬂ&&
Section 10(j) [*] o 10-5%°

e GO

KV
15. Miscefldheous

Eisenberg v. Lenape Products, 781 F.2d 999

(3d Cir.) (L) (Washington Aluminum discharges)
(read Becker's dissent); see also discussion in
Vibra Screw, 904 F.2d 874 (3d Cir.)

Luster Coate Metallizing, Inc., Case
3-CA-19735, G.C. 10(j) Memorandum dated
March 22, 1996 (Washington Aluminum
discharges)
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Lineback v. Printpack, Inc., 979 F. Supp. 831

(S.D. Ind.)(enjoin prosecution of alleged baseless
and retaliatory Section 303 LMRA suit)[*]

Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 265 F.3d 1085

(10th Cir. 2001) (W) (enjoin prosecution of
preempted lawsuit)

Hirsch v. Corban Corp., 155 LRRM 2589 (E.D.Pa.)

(W) (EAJA)

Kinney v. Federal Security Inc., 272 F.3d 924
(7th Cir. 2001) (Board's resolution of unfair labor practice
case moots a 10(j) appeal)

Law Review Articles

1. Paul Weiler, "Promises to Keep: Securing Workers' Rights
to Self-Organization Under the NLRA," 96 Harv. L. Rev.
1769, 1787-1803 (1983) 429 20\

n
2. Paul Weiler, "Striking a New Balance: Freeg%%\ﬁﬁed ©

Contract and the Prospects for UniO(@Réﬁfésentation,"
98 Harv. L. Rev. 351@\56@5@.@%4)
\,\

. o V- - .
3. Catherine H6dgman Helm, "The Practicality of Increasing
the Use of NLRA Section 10(j) Injunctions,” 7 Ind. Rel.
L. J. 599, 603-607 (1985)

4. Randal L. Gainer, "The Case For Quick Relief: Use of
Section 10(j) of the Labor Management Relations Act in
Discriminatory Discharge Cases,” 56 Ind. L. J. 515, 517
n. 13 (1981)

5. Warren H. Chaney, "The Reinstatement Remedy Revisited,

32 Lab. L. J. 357, 363 (1981)

6. Note, "The Propriety of Section 10(j) Bargaining Orders
in Gissel Situations,” 82 Mich. L. Rev. 112 (1983)
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APPENDIX F

DISTRICT COURT MEMORANDA OF POINTS & AUTHORITIES
AND APPELLATE COURT BRIEFS
BY SECTION 10(j) CATEGORY"

[Copies of 10(j) district court memoranda of points and
authorities and appellate court briefs may be obtained by
contacting the Injunction Litigation Branch. Most of the
appellate court briefs are also available in electronic form from
the ILB database on the NLRB Intranet.]

[Parentheticals following cases cites exempt from disclosure under Exemption 5, but
disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel]

1. Interference with Organizational Campaign
(no majority)

Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing, 99-2369 (6th) (isolation and discharge of
Union supporter very early in organizing campaign) .29, 2O\

p\ugus
Silverman v. JRL Food, 99-6189 (2d) (dlsgm@&l“umon supporter; deference to
ALJD) o A0 45984

Pye v. Excel Cas‘é\‘Rg’adv, 00 1632 (1st) (discharge of union supporters)

Frant
Sharp v. Webco Industries, 99-5111 (10th) (pretextual layoff of majority of Union
organizing committee; defense of two-part standard)

Scott v. PHC-Elko, 99-16755 (9th) (8(a)(3) and (1) discharge)

McDermott v. St. Vincent Medical Center, 00-56572 (9th) (subcontract
bargaining unit in response to Union campaign)

Sharp v. Parents In Community Action, 98-1285 (8th) (8(a)(3) discharge of
prominent Union organizer, 8(a)(1) campaign; defense of two-part standard)

2. Interference with Organizational Campaign (majority)

Yerger Trucking, Inc., 4-CA-19810 (3d)(alter
Ego, Gissel bargaining order)

! Cases referred to by Board charge number refer to district court memoranda of points
and authorities; cases referred to by appellate court docket number refer to appellate
briefs.



Dauman Recycling, Inc., 22-CA-18105 (3d)

Moore-Duncan v. Traction Wholesale, 98-1111 (3d) (8(a)(1) and (3) Gissel
bargaining order sought after election loss; discharge of leading Union organizer)

Scott v. Stephen Dunn & Associates, 00-15416 (9th) (Gissel; improved wages and
working conditions, unit packing)

Bordone v. Electro-Voice, 95-2611 (7th)

Gottfried v. Special Waste Systems, 91-1147 (6th)

Garner v. Macclenny Products, 94-3185 (11th)

3. Subcontracting or Other Change to Avoid
Bargaining obligation

Santana Express, Inc., 25-CA-21776 (7th)
(8(a)(3) subcontracting and Gissel bargaining order)

o\
LCF, Inc., d/b/a Sprint Corp., 20-CA-26203 (9th Cir.wgus‘ 29, ’
1994)(8(a)(3) work relocation and single e@m@@e?f\

‘,\598A al
Hartford Division, Emlgart‘@@as\so, 34-CA-6704 (2d Cir.
1994)(8(a)\£§)J saﬁ&bht?a&ting; no union waiver; request
for TR®)"

Aguayo v. Quadrtech Corp., 21-CA-34084 (9th Cir. 2000)
(8(a)(3) & (5) relocation)

Hirsch v. Dorsey Trailers, 97-7542 (3d) (8(a)(5) work relocation and plant
closure; "mothball" order sought)

Sharp v. Oklahoma Fixtures, 92-5244 (10th) (8(a)(3) subcontracting)

Calatrello v. Automatic Sprinkler, 94-4213 (6th) (8(a)(3) subcontracting)

4. Withdrawal of Recognition from Incumbent

Kuhnle Brothers, Inc., 3-CA-19625 (2d Cir. 1996)(bad
faith bargaining, reassignment of unit work to outside
of unit, withdrawal of recognition)

Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc., 32-CA-16135 (9th Cir.
1998)(tainted withdrawal of recognition)




Research Management Corp., 4-CA-18559 (3d Cir. 1990)
(Snow and Sons refusal to be bound by card check; need
for interim bargaining order to negotiate over effects

of closing of facility)

Bloedorn v. Wire Products, 95-3656 (7th) (assisted decertification campaign,
discrimination, withdrawal of recognition based upon tainted, minority petition)

Tremain v. Beverly Farm Foundation, 96-33531 (7th) (withdrawal of recognition
after end of certification year)

Hoffman v. Hartford Hospital, 95-6065 (2d) (merger of hospitals)

Malone v. Beaird Industries, 92-4538 (5th) (tainted good faith doubt)

5. Undermining of Bargaining Representative

S. Lichtenberg & Co., 10-CA-24782 (11th Cir. 1990)
(8(a)(3) and (5) violations to undermine newly
certified union)

AU
Ahearn v. PCI, 00-5059 (6th) (failure to bg&g@iaﬁﬁ’%ood faith and unilateral
changes during Union's certific%ig&%%r

0.

“ .
Schaub v. De}_rgﬁN&ﬁsBaper Agency, 97-1920 (6th) (refusal to recall unfair labor
practi%%‘f\*?kers during contract negotiations)

Fleischut v. Burrows Paper, 99-60745 (5th) (bad faith bargaining and unitlateral
changes during initial contract negotations; defense of two-part 10(j) standard)

Pascarell v. Consec Security, 97-5275 (3d) (wage restoration necessary for
effective contract negotiations; defense of two-part 10(j) standard)

Kobell v. Beverly Health and Rehabilitation Services, 97-3200 & 97-3357 (3d)
(coordinated 8(a)(1) campaign; defense of two-part standard; broad, multi-facility
cease and desist order sought)

Pascarell v. Vibra Screw, 89-5973 (3d) (discharge of members of union
negotiating committee)

Arlook v. Lichtenberg & Co., 91-8162 (11th) (refusal to meet and bargain,
unilateral changes and 8(a)(3) conduct directed at union stewards and
probationary employees)




6. Minority Union Recognition
(none available at time of printing; call Injunction
litigation Branch for subsequent filings)

7. Successor Refusal to Recognize and Bargain
BTNH, Inc., 3-CA-19793 (2d Cir. 1996)(Burns; unit

and 2(11) issues; unilateral changes; petition and
memo of points)

Hoffman v. Inn Credible Caterers, 00-6235 (2d) (Burns successor; harm to public
interest)

Cohen v. Samuel Bent, 00-2411 (1st) (Burns successor, St. Elizabeth theory;
rejecting Allentown Mack defense)

Scott v. Catholic Healthcare West South Bay, 00-16338 (9th) (Burns successor;
non-conforming health care unit)
Bloedorn v. Francisco Foods d/b/a Piggly Wiggly, 00-1860 (7th) (Kallman/Love's
BBQ refusal to hire predecesor employees; interim rescission&fmhteral
changes) ygust &

on N
cnive

Frye v. Specialty Envelope, 93-\%3399(%%3(
0.

8. Conduct durir\gjaafgh%ol‘r?g Negotiations
grant
ConAgra, Inc., 24-CA-6856 (1st Cir. 1994)(refusal to
bargain in good faith, with employer lockout of unit;
petition, memo of points, Board opposition to employer
motion for stay, in district court and circuit court)

Pascarell v. Control Services, 90-5451 (3d) (refusal to meet at reasonable times)

Rivera-Vega v. ConAgra, 95-1266 (1st) (lockout in support of bad faith
bargaining)

Silverman v. Reinauer Transportation, 89-6010 (2d) (insistence upon permissive
change in scope of unit)

Kobell v. United Paperworkers, 91-6141 (6th) (8(b)(3) "pooled” contract
ratification vote)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Mass Picketing and Violence

Frye v. District 1199, 92-6102 (6th) (scope of court's power to grant j&p relief)

Clark v. United Mine Workers, 90-2068, 91-2016 (4th) (union agency; civil
contempt)

Notice Requirements for Strikes or Picketing
Section 8(d) and 8(g)
(none available at time of printing; call Injunction
litigation Branch for subsequent filings)

Refusal to Permit Protected Activity on Property

Hirsch v. The Electrology Co., 89-1537 (3d) (organizing union's access to private
property factory driveway)

Union Coercion to Achieve Unlawful Object

Sheet Metal Workers' Local Union No. 22, 9
Case 22-CB-5953 (3d Cir. 1989)(unlawful union fine&ugu‘r‘:‘2 ‘
(petition, memoranda of points and diStACg(%\W)OO
4590
Interference with Acc%ss‘g)ﬁB@apg Processes
wr ©°

20\

\.
Sharp\v.aﬂ\ft\ebco Industries, 00-5005 (10th Cir. 2000) (preempted state suit against
employee charge filing activity)

Segregating Assets

Opposition to Motion for Stay of Protective Order Pending Appeal, Fleischut v.
Memphis Dinettes, 87-5408 (6th)

Miscellaneous

Soctt v. PHC-ELKO, 99-16755 (9th Cir. 2000)
(reinstatement of employee engaged in 8(a)(1)
protected concerted activity)

Dauman Recycling, Inc., 22-CA-18105 (3d Cir. 1992)
(opposition to employer stay motion against Gissel
bargaining order)

Tennessee Electric Company, 10-CA-24854 (6th Cir. 1991) (memo of points and
draft petition dealing with 8(a)(1) lawsuit)




Kingsbury Mini Motors of America, Inc., 3-CA-15824 (2d
Cir. 1992)(8(a)(1) denial of access to property which leads to employee's
criminal prosecution for trespass; TRO requested)

16. Contempt

Pascarell v. Consec Security, 98-5013 (3d Cir. 1998) (failure to restore court-
ordered wage rate)

Clark v. United Mine Workers, 90-2068, 91-2016 (4th) (union agency; civil
contempt)

17. Special Motions Pending Appeal or to Amend Judgment

Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 00-1632 (1st Cir.)
(opposition to motion for stay; nip-in-the-bud,
8a3 discharges)

Dunbar v. Landis Plastics, 98-6042 (2d Cir.)?

(oppstay; nip-in-the-bud, 8a3 discharges) (29 o0\
AUGYS
Lightner v. Dauman Pallet, 9205529 (32 ggmeép%?ay; Gissel)

40AS%
D'Amico v. TownsenqJ ‘Cgulh&farv, 98-2523 (4th Cir.)
(oppstay; v%i@_d&é\)ﬁa(l’of recognition, unilateral changes)
pra®
Bloedorn v. Wire Products, 95-3656 (7th Cir.)
(oppstay; withdrawal of recognition, tainted petition)

Scott v. California Cedar, 00-15095 (9th Cir.)
(oppstay; undermining representative, wage restoration)

Bernstein v. Carter & Sons Freightways,
97-3324 (10th Cir.) (oppstay; Gissel, restoration order)

Arlook v. Lockheed Georgia Employees' Federal Credit Union, 96-8016 (11th
Cir.)(oppstay; Burns successor)

juinjlit\10jmanual\AppendF.doc
June 2001

2 The Second Circuit limits briefs in support of or opposition to motions to no more than
10 pages.



APPENDIX G
MODEL "JUST AND PROPER"™ ARGUMENTS
1. Non-Gissel Interim Bargaining Orders Against Employers
Under Section 10(j) of the Act
2. Gissel Bargaining Orders Against Employers
Instructions for Briefing Gissel 10(j) Cases
Sample Gissel Argument

Memorandum GC 99-8, Guideline Memorandum
Concerning Gissel

3. Model Arguments in Support of Interim Reinstatement
4. Model Responses to Claim of Board Delay in
Seeking 10(j) Relief 9
ug‘)s"z 1
o N

5. Argument to Support Use of Hearsay Ewd@g@&tho
Section 10(j) Proceedings O \59

e GO

gran¥ Y-
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APPENDIX G-1

NON-GISSEL INTERIM BARGAINING ORDERS AGAINST EMPLOYERS
UNDER SECTION 10(j) OF THE ACT

[The following argument should be included in the *"just and proper* section
of the memorandum of points and authorities submitted to the district court to
support a request for an interim bargaining order against an employer in non-
Gissel cases. Regional offices should select only the arguments that are relevant to
the facts in their 10(j) case. Where lengthy string-cites appear, choose the precedent
which will be persuasive in the jurisdiction in which the case will be heard. Sections
enclosed in brackets "'[]'* should be included where appropriate. ]

[12 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]



APPENDIX G-2

Gissel Bargaining Orders Against Employers
Instructions for Briefing Gissel 10(j) Cases
Sample Gissel Argument

Memorandum GC 99-8, Guideline Memorandum
Concerning Gissel

0"().1
‘F(an\«\ \J.\’\TH ©
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Instructions for Briefing Gissel 10(j) Cases
and Sample Argument

[14 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]



OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
MEMORANDUM GC 99-8 November 10, 1999

TO: All Regional Directors, Officers-in-Charge,
and Resident Officers

FROM: Fred Feinstein, General Counsel
SUBJECT: Guideline Memorandum Concerning Gissel

I. Introduction

In NLRB v. Gissel Packing Co.,' the Supreme Court
upheld the Board's authority to issue a remedial
bargaining order based on union authorization cards
from a majority of employees rather than an election.
Such relief is appropriate when the employer commits
unfair labor practices so serious that it is all but
impossible to hold a fair election even with
traditional Board remedies. Over the years, some of the
circuit courts of appeal considering whether to enforce
Board Gissel orders have differed with th gﬁgﬁéd's
approach. In several recent decision@wqﬁﬁe Board has
explicated its views regardlng gh&dfactors, including
those factors emphasized b&g&he circuit courts,
relevant to determlglﬁg‘%%ether a Gissel bargaining
order 1is warra@ﬁé In Part IT below, we identify and
discuss th@ée factors, which the Regions should rely on
in determining whether to issue Gissel complaints. In
Part III, we discuss recent problems with enforcement
of Section 8(a) (1) Gissel cases. In order to develop a
response on these issues, Regions are directed to
submit to Advice all cases in which they wish to issue
complaint seeking a Gissel order based solely on
8(a) (1) violations.

The courts have generally also accepted the
propriety of interim Gissel bargaining orders under
Section 10(j) of the Act. Where an employer's
violations have precluded employees' choice regarding
representation through the election process, use of
Section 10(j) 1is particularly appropriate to preserve
the effectiveness of the Board's final remedy.
Accordingly, I have determined that Regions should
consider 10(j) relief in all Gissel complaint cases and
should submit each case to the Injunction Litigation

1

395 U.S. 575 (1969).



Branch with a recommendation as to whether interim
relief should be sought. In Part IV below, we discuss
issues, particular to certain circuit courts, which the
Regions should take into account in investigating and
evaluating the propriety of interim Gissel relief.

IT. The Factors Relevant to Gissel

A. The Gissel decision

In Gissel, the Supreme Court considered whether
the Board had the authority to order an employer to
bargain with a non-incumbent union on the basis of a
union card majority. The Court recognized that, in
some cases, "an employer has committed independent
unfair labor practices which have made the holding of a
fair election unlikely or which have in fact undermined
a union's majority and caused an election to be set
aside."’ Declaring that "a bargaining order is
de31gned as much to remedy past election dama as it
is to deter future misconduct,"’ the Cour zgé—ected
employer arguments that such a bar %@ﬁ&ﬁg order would
prejudice employees' Section 7yd& The Court
reasoned that "[alny efﬁ@@@’%lll be mlnlmal . . . for
there 'is every N°for the union to negotiate a
contract th . %@% satlsfy the majorlty, for the union
will sur&l® realize that it must win the support of the
employees, in the face of a hostile employer, in order
to survive the threat of a decertification election
after a year has passed.'"’

The Court identified two situations (now known as
category I and category II Gissel cases’) in which
employer misconduct may warrant the imposition of a
card-based bargaining order remedy. Category I cases
are those "exceptional" cases involving "outrageous and
pervasive unfair labor practices" where the unfair
labor practices are of "such a nature that their

395 U.S. at 610.

Id. at 612 (footnote omitted).
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Id. at 612, n. 33 (citation omitted).
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See M.J. Metals Products, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 170, slip op.
at 1 (August 10, 1999).




coercive effects cannot be eliminated by the
application of traditional remedies, with the result
that a fair and reliable election cannot be had."’
Category II cases are "less extraordinary cases marked
by less pervasive practices which nonetheless still
have the tendency to undermine majority strength and
impede the election processes." In the latter cases,
the Court held, the Board

can properly take into consideration the
extensiveness of an employer's unfair [labor]
practices in terms of their past effect on
election conditions and the likelihood of their
recurrence in the future. If the Board finds that
the possibility of erasing the effects of past
practices and of ensuring a fair election (or a
fair rerun) by the use of traditional remedies,
though present, is slight and that employee
sentiment once expressed through cards would, on
balance, be better protected by a bargaining
order, then such an order should issue. . ."°

B. The Board's Application of Gissel

1. Category I Cases e Onpugu
o

The category I Gissgiﬂé@%g is rare. As stated
above, it is conf'a@dNEO cases where an employer's
unfair labongﬁ§é ices are "outrageous" and "pervasive"
and haveFﬁ&ée the holding of a fair election impossible
even with traditional Board remedies. The Board has
found Category I misconduct where an employer, in
response to a union request for recognition, discharged
all, or a substantial portion, of the entire bargaining
unit and made it clear to employees that the reason for
the discharges was the employees' support for the
union;’ or where the employer shut down the unit and

® Gissel, 395 U.S. at 613-614.
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Id. at 614.

8

Id. at 614-615.

° Cassis Management Corp., 323 NLRB 456, 459 (1997),
supplemented by 324 NLRB 324 (1997), enfd. mem. 152 F.3d 917
(2d Cir. 1998), cert. denied 160 LRRM 2192 (1998) (discharge
of entire unit); U.S.A. Polymer Corp., 328 NLRB No. 177
(August 24, 1999) numerous independent violations of Section
8(a) (1), unlawful layoff of 45% of the unit employees,
including 9 of the 10 members of the employees' organizing
committee and retaliatory conduct against employees who




discharged the employees in retaliation for their union
activities.”

Although the practical impact of a designation as
Category I or II may seem minimal,” there may be some
benefit to litigating a Gissel case as a category I
case when the level of employer misconduct appears to
be extraordinarily egregious. In this regard, the D.C.
Circuit has held that the Board's decision to issue a
Gissel bargaining order in Category I cases is entitled
to greater deference.”

2. Category II cases

In Category II cases, which comprise the vast
majority of Gissel cases, the Board determines that the
employer misconduct, though not as extraordinary or
pervasive as in a Category I case, is sufficiently
serious that it will have a tendency to undermine the
union's majority strength and make a fair election
unlikely. As the Supreme Court instructed, the Board
may "take into consideration the exten31venes wof an
employer's unfair [labor] practices in t @ms f their
past effect on election condltlons¢@néu\he likelihood
of their recurrence in the fg@g@@J A review of
recent Board Gissel c eﬁy@%monstrates that the Board
examines a numbe grlterla relevant to these issues
in determln%ngﬁ hether to impose a Gissel bargaining
order rem&dy:

e the presence of "hallmark" violations

testified on behalf of the General Counsel at the unfair
labor practice hearing).

“ Allied General Services, 329 NLRB No. 58 (September 30,
1999).

" At one time the Board interpreted the Gissel decision as

authorizing the Board to issue bargaining orders in response
to category I level violations even in the absence of a

prior union card majority. See United Dairy Farmers
Cooperative Assn, 257 NLRB 772 (1981) and Conair Corp., 261
NLRB 1189 (1982). The Board, however, abandoned this

approach in Gourmet Foods, 270 NLRB 578 (1984).
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See Power, Inc. v. NLRB, 40 F.3d 409, 422 (D.C. Cir.
1994) .

’ Gissel, 395 U.S. at 614.



e the number of employees affected by the violation --
either directly or by dissemination of knowledge of
their occurrence among the workforce

e the size of the bargaining unit

e the identity of the perpetrator of the unfair labor
practice

e the timing of the unfair labor practices

e direct evidence of impact of the violations on the
union's majority

¢ the likelihood the violations will recur

e the change in circumstances after the violations

These factors are discussed in more detail below.
When investigating a charge containing a potential
Gissel allegation, the Regions should adduce @Mldence
concerning, and evaluate the warrant fogﬁgéﬁgel in
light of, these factors.™ leew1s%omﬁ“%ny litigation
of a Gissel case, the recorgﬁgbdﬂ d include evidence
and argument demonstrg M@@ at a Gissel remedy is
appropriate und C@ﬁe e factors.”

aF@kesence of "hallmark" violations

Certain employer violations are consistently
regarded by the Board and the courts as highly coercive
of employee Section 7 rights. These violations,
sometimes referred to as "hallmark" violations, will
support the issuance of a Gissel bargaining order
unless some significant mitigating circumstance
exists.” Hallmark violations include plant closure’’

“ Of course, the Region must also determine whether the

union obtained a valid card majority.

> Summary judgment motions containing a Gissel allegation
should conform to the requirements set forth in Allied
General Services, 329 NLRB No. 58, slip op. at 3 (September
30, 1999).

16

See, e.g., NLRB v. Jamaica Towing, Inc., 632 F.2d 208,
212-13 (2d Cir. 1980); Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No.
147, slip op. at 4 (July 27, 1999).




and threats thereof," unlawful discharge of union
adherents,” threats of job loss” or the granting of
significant benefits to employees.” The gravity of
these types of violations makes them likely to have "a
lasting inhibitive effect on a substantial percentage

17

NLRB v. Jamaica Towing, 632 F.2d at 212, citing, inter
alia, Frito-Lay, Inc., 232 NLRB 753, 755 (1977), enf'd as
modified, 585 F.2d 62 (3d Cir. 1978).

" A threat of plant closure "is the one serious threat of

economic disadvantage which is wholly beyond the influence
of the union or the control of the employees." NLRB v.
Jamaica Towing, 632 F.2d at 213. Accord: Indiana Cal-Pro,
Inc. v. NLRB, 863 F.2d 1292, 1301-1302 (6th Cir. 1988) and
the cases cited therein. Indeed, in Gissel, the Supreme
Court noted that threats of plant closure are demonstrably
"more effective to destroy election conditions for a longer
period of time than others." 395 U.S. at 611, n. 31. Thus,
repeated plant closure threats--alone--were held to warrant
a remedial bargaining order in one of the cases comprising
the Gissel decision. See NLRB v. The Sinclai5§Gkaés Co.,
397 F.2d 157 (1°° Cir. 1968), affd. in Gi%s%,gg’& 95 U.S. at
on

615. dﬁﬁd

The discharge of unlog aﬁkﬁ%&sts is conduct which "'goes
to the very heart (wh Act' and is not likely to be
forgotten. §UCh action can only serve to reinforce
employees?ﬁf%ar that they will lose employment if they
persist in union activity.'" M.J. Metal Products, Inc., 328
NLRB No. 170, slip op. at 2, citing NLRB v. Entwistle Mfqg.
Co., 120 F.2d 532, 536 (4th Cir. 1941). See also NLRB v.
Davis, 642 F.2d 350, 354 (9th Cir. 1981) (employees are
unlikely "to miss the point that backpay and offers of
reinstatement made some 9 to 11 months after the discharge
does not necessarily compensate for the financial hardship
and emotional and mental anguish apt to be experienced
during an interim period of unemployment.").

19

° Garney Morris, Inc., 313 NLRB 101, 103 (1993), enf'd mem.
47 F.3d 1161 (3d Cir. 1995).

21

The Board has noted that unlawfully granted benefits "are
particularly lasting in their effect on employees and
difficult to remedy by traditional means . . . not only
because of their significance to the employees, but also
because the Board's traditional remedies do not require the
Respondent to withdraw the benefits from the employees."
America's Best Quality Coatings Corp., 313 NLRB 470, 472
(1993), enfd. 44 F.3d 516 (7th Cir.), cert. denied 515 U.S.
1158 (1995).
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of the work force, thus precluding a fair election
even with traditional Board remedies. However, as
further discussed in Part III, below, at least two
circuit courts have questioned the issuance of Gissel
bargaining orders based solely on the granting of
benefits.

As detailed below, however, even when "hallmark"
violations occur, other factors, such as the proportion
of the unit directly affected or informed about the
violation, or the size of the unit must also be
considered. Moreover, steps that ameliorate the impact
of the violations may diminish the need for Gissel
relief.”

b. The number of employees affected by the violations
-- either directly or by dissemination of
knowledge of their occurrence among the workforce

Central to determining whether violations warrant
Gissel relief are the number of employees directly
affected by the violations. . . .[and] the extent of
dissemination among employees."* Where axgyﬁgkantial
percentage of employees in the bar% @y unit is
directly affected by an employexm\\&“serious unfair labor
practices, the p0531b11 %%ﬁoldlng a fair election
decreases.” Thus ;§@r1m1natory mass layoffs or
dischargesﬂq@ mﬁé% if not all, employees in a unit are

Fra

22

NLRB v. Jamaica Towing, Inc., 632 F.2d at 213.

23

Masterform Tool Co., Cylinder Components, Inc., 327 NLRB
No. 185, slip op. at 3 (March 30, 1999) (Gissel remedy denied
where certain 8(a) (1) violations were dismissed and employer
recalled 6 of 7 unlawfully laid off employees after three
months) .

' Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op. at 3.

25

See, e.g., M.J. Metal Products, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 170,
slip op. at 1 (noting that 8(a) (3) discharges constituted
more than 25% of the unit); Bonham Heating & Air
Conditioning, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 61, slip op. at 2 (May 19,
1999) (noting that 4 of 7 unit employees, or 40%, were
unlawfully laid off); General Fabrications Corp., 328 NLRB
No. 166, slip op. at 2 (August 11, 1999) (noting that 7 of 31
unit employees suffered unlawful discrimination).




inherently pervasive.” So too are unlawful across-the-
board wage increases or other grants of benefits and
unlawful threats or promises of benefits made at
captive audience meetings.” Where only a small portion
of a unit is affected, however, even hallmark
discharges may be insufficient to warrant Gissel
relief.”

Another way of examining pervasiveness is to
consider how widely disseminated is knowledge of the
violations among the work force.” Even discrimination
directed toward one employee, if widely disseminated,
may support the need for a Gissel bargaining order.”
The manner of carrying out unlawful discrimination may
also indicate a greater likelihood that the violation
will have an inhibitory effect on other unit employees.
Thus, where an employer overtly demonstrates its
retaliatory motive for unlawful discrimination, the
Board can conclude that the inhibitory impact of such
violations is accentuated.’” Similarly, where an

* See, e.g., Allied General Services, Inc. RB No. 58,

slip op. at 3; U.S.A. Polymer Corp., 328ﬁ§§&3 177, slip
op. at 1; Cassis Management Corp.,h%%QON at 459 (1997) .
C

. ok A
See, e.g., Skvline Dls:nﬁb@cors, 319 NLRB 270, 278-279
(1995), enf. denlﬁ Yel. part 99 F.3d 403, 410-412 (D.C.

Cir. 1996) R@ﬁﬁ of beneflt)- Complete Carrier Services,
Inc., 325FNE No. 96, ALJD slip op. at 3 and 5

(1998) (promise and grant of benefit, threat of plant
closure); Gerig's Dump Trucking, Inc., 320 NLRB 1017 (1996),
enfd. 137 F.3d 936 (7th Cir. 1998) (grant of benefits). But
as to the propriety of relying solely on Section 8(a) (1)
violations for Gissel relief, see discussion Part 0, infra.

28

Philips Industries, Inc., 295 NLRB 717, 718-719

(1989) (large size of unit diluted impact of unlawful
discharges); Pyramid Management Group, Inc., 318 NLRB 607,
609 (1995) (discrimination affected only small portion of
unit) .

29

See Holly Farms Corp., 311 NLRB 273, 282 (1993), enfd. 48
F.3d 1360 (4th Cir. 1995), affd. on other grounds 517 U.S.
392 (1996).

30

See, e.g., Traction Wholesale Center Co., 328 NLRB
No. 148, slip op. at 21 (July 28, 1999); Coil-ACC, Inc., 262
NLRB 76, 83 (1982), enfd. 712 F.2d 1074 (6th Cir. 1983).

31

See, e.g., U.S.A. Polymer Corp., 328 NLRB No. 177, slip
op. at 2.




employer carries out discrimination in a public manner,
i.e., where it clearly appears that the discrimination
is intended to "send a message" to other employees, the
Board may conclude that the violation was widely
disseminated to other employees.”

In contrast, the Board will not issue a Gissel
bargaining order if the evidence shows that a
substantial portion of the bargaining unit was unaware
of the employer's unfair labor practices. This
situation may arise in the case of threats of discharge
or plant closure directed to just a small number of
employees,” or where the employees were not aware that
the discriminatee was a leading union activist.™

c. Size of the bargaining unit

The Board will also consider the size of the unit
to determine whether an employer's serious misconduct
had a pervasive effect on the workforce which precludes
the effective use of traditional remedies. The Board
assumes that employer unfair labor practices will have
a more coercive effect on a smaller unit Qﬁb ﬁ%loyees
widespread knowledge of the violati] @nP&@)more likely
and only a few employees cam%ygﬁﬁJthe dlfference
between a union's majorhm% 5dnd minority support.” In

\JO(Q
See GarveymMaﬁlne, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op. at 2
and 5 ("public and dramatlc discharge" of discriminatee);
J.L.M. Tnc. d/b/a Sheraton Hotel Waterbury, 312 NLRB 304,
305 (1993), enf. as mod. 31 F.3d 79 (2d Cir. 1994) (employer
posts notice at facility that discriminatee would never work
for the employer again).

32

33

See Blue Grass Industries, 287 NLRB 274, 276 (1987)
(bargaining order denied where no evidence that threats of
plant closure were widely disseminated among employees in
the unit).

34

See Munro Enterprises, Inc., 210 NLRB 403 (1974).

35

See Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op. at 5
(gravity of impact of violations heightened in relatively
small unit of 25 employees); Traction Wholesale 328 NLRB No.
148, slip op. at 21 (same, 20 person unit); NLRB v. Berger
Transfer & Storage Co., 678 F.2d 679, 694 (7th Cir.

1982) (impact of unfair labor practices increased in "small
unit" of 42 employees); NLRB v. Bighorn Beverage, 614 F.2d
1238, 1243 (9th Cir. 1980) ("probable impact of unfair labor
practices is increased when a small bargaining unit . . is
involved and increases the need for a bargaining order").
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contrast, the Board may deny a Gissel in a large unit,
even in the face of "hallmark" unfair labor practices.’

6

d. Identity of the perpetrator of the unfair
labor practice

The Board will also consider the management level
of the perpetrators of the unfair labor practices in
evaluating the need for a Gissel bargaining order. The
Board has stated that "[t]he severity of the misconduct
is compounded by the involvement of high-ranking
officials."” The Board has observed that "[w]hen the
antiunion message is so clearly communicated by the
words and deeds of the highest levels of management, it
is highly coercive and unlikely to be forgotten."™

This is not to say that the Board will deny a
Gissel bargaining order when the unfair labor practices
are committed only by first-line supervisors. In this
regard, the Board has noted that "the words and actions
of immediate supervisors may in some circumstances
leave the strongest impression."”

36

See Philips Industries, 295 k%ﬂmwf%, 718-719 (1989) ("the
effect of violations is moqpﬁghluted and more easily
dissipated in a la Uit of 90 employees); Beverly
California chpaﬁﬁg%%gNLRB No. 30, slip op. at 4 (1998)
(Gissel npt™Warranted where unit was "sizeable" (92-103
employees) and violations generally did not affect a
significant number of employees).

37

M.J. Metal Products, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 170, slip op. at
2, citing Consec Security, 325 NLRB No. 71, slip op. at 2

(1998). Accord: NLRB v. QO-1 Motor Express, Inc., 25 F.3d

473, 481 (7th Cir. 1994).

38

M.J. Metal Products, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 170, slip op. at

2. See also id. at n. 9 and cases cited therein; Bakers of
Paris, 288 NLRB 991, 992 (1988), enfd. 929 F.2d 1427 (9th
Cir. 1991) ("The effect of unfair labor practices is

increased when the unlawful conduct is committed by top
management officials, who are readily perceived as
representing company policy and in positions to carry out
their threats . . . .").

’ Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op. at 4. See

also C & T Manufacturing Co., 233 NLRB 1430 (1977) ("Threats
from a so-called first-line supervisor, accompanied by use
of the names of company officials . . . are as coercive upon

the employees as if made by the company officials themselves
.u).
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e. The timing of the unfair labor practices

The Board often highlights the timing of the
unfair labor practices to justify the imposition of a
Gissel bargaining order. An employer's swift reaction
to union activity is an indication of the coercive
effect of unlawful conduct and the effect of unfair
labor practices is increased when the unlawful conduct
begins "on the Employer's acquiring knowledge of the
advent of the Union. " gimilarly, an employer's
continued misconduct after the holding of a
representation election will further diminish the
effectiveness of traditional remedies.®

f.Direct evidence of impact of the violations on
the union's majority

A Gissel remedy may also be supported if the
record reveals actual damage to the union's card
majority such as a discrepancy between the number of
card signers and the number of votes cast for the union
in an election.” Other evidence of actual 1lo
includes employee revocation of union cagﬁﬁ%% a marked
fall-off of employee participationdgnﬁﬁﬁlon activities
such as attendance at union agd@ﬁ@s, distribution of
literature, wearing u %o@fﬁ’raphernalia.

Ci'?"pn
On the Qpﬁg? and, the Board has also held that
traditiom&l remedies may be insufficient to correct an

40

Bakers of Paris, 288 NLRB at 992. See also M.J. Metal
Products, 328 NLRB No. 170, slip op. at 2; State Materials,
Inc., 328 NLRB No. 184, slip op. at 1 (August 31,

1999) (unfair labor practices began immediately after union
organizing campaign commenced); Joy Recovery Technology
Corp., 320 NLRB 356, 368 (1995), enfd. 134 F.3d 1307 (7th
Cir. 1998) (employer's "prompt" response); America's Best
Quality Coatings Corp., 313 NLRB 470, 472 (1993), enf'd. 44
F.3d 516 (7th Cir.), cert. denied 515 U.S. 1158 (1995)
(impact magnified by the fact that it occurred on the day
after the union demanded recognition).

41

General Fabrications Corp., 328 NLRB No. 166, slip op. at
2, citing Garney Morris, Inc., 313 NLRB 101, 103 (1993),
enfd. mem. 47 F.3d 1161 (3d Cir. 1995).

42

See J.L.M., Inc., 312 NLRB 304, 305 (1993), enf. denied on
other grounds, 31 F.3d 79 (2d Cir. 1994) ("clear dissipation
of union support" revealed by the stark drop from card
majority of 128 to only 62 votes in election).
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employer's violations even where a union subsequently
obtains a card majority” or even where the union might
ultimately be certified in an unresolved Board
election.” Regions should be aware, however, that this
view is not universally accepted by the courts of
appeals (see discussion at 0 below).

g. The likelihood the violations will recur

The Gissel determination turns not only on the
extensiveness of the past violations but also the
likelihood of their recurrence in the future.®” The
Board has held that post-election violations evidence a
strong likelihood that unlawful conduct will recur in
the event another organizing effort occurs in
connection with a Board-ordered re-run election.®
Moreover, the violations may themselves demonstrate the
tenacity of an employer's commitment to thwart the
union and permit the inference that violations are
likely to recur.”

h. Change in circumstances after the V%R%atlons

Gissel respondents typlcally qyﬁ*@ﬁe Board to
consider evidence of a chan dﬂﬁﬁrcumstances since
the administrative hearw@ﬁ%ﬁ%ch they argue, would
support the den\Q bargalnlng order. The change
in circumstances whlch they believe should obviate the
need forFéngssel bargaining order includes the passage
of time since the violations occurred and the turnover

43 . . . ' .
See discussion and cases cited in Weldun International,

321 NLRB 733, 735-736 (1996), enf. denied in rel. part 165
F.3d 28, 1998 WL 681252 (6th Cir. 1998) (unpublished
decision).

44

See, General Fabrications Corp., 328 NLRB No. 166, slip
op. at 3, n. 17 (and cases cited therein).

45

Id., slip op. at 1.

46

Id., slip op. at 2; Bonham Heating & Air Conditioning,
Inc., 328 NLRB No. 61, slip op. at 3.

" Bonham Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc., id., slip op. at

3 ("the depth of the Respondent's disregard for employee
rights is evidenced by the extreme measures it took to
defeat the employees' organizational efforts").
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of employees or management.” The Board generally
denies respondents' motions to reopen the record to
consider such evidence.” However, while denying the
motion, the Board generally discusses the evidence as
proffered and provides a full discussion as to whether
such changes would mitigate the need for a Gissel
bargaining order.”

Resort to 10(j) proceedings in Gissel cases, as
discussed in Part 0 below, may minimize the delay that
permits changed circumstances to become an issue in
Gissel cases. However, in those cases where the issue
is raised, the Regions must be prepared to argue, in
rejecting a respondent's offer of proof, why the
evidence offered would not mitigate the need for a
Gissel bargaining order.

ITIT. Gissel and Section 8(a) (1) wviolations

Gissel cases that involve only allegations of

Section 8(a) (1) present a unique problem and should,
henceforth, be submitted to Advice on whether \&O issue
a Gissel complaint. These cases general%yﬁﬂ% olve

either threats of plant closure, o Opf@%lses or grants
of benefits, or a comblnatlo gﬁwboth Historically,
the Board, with court apnr , has considered these
violations of t@§ fmark" variety which, even in the
absence of @acﬁ on 8 ) (3) misconduct, may be
sufficiefit’ to warrant the need for a Gissel bargaining
order.” However, the viability of these 8(a) (1)

* The courts are almost unanimous in requiring that the

Board consider the relevance of changed circumstances. See
Flamingo Hilton-Laughlin v. NLRB, 148 F.3d 1166, 1170-1172
and cases cited at n. 4 (D.C. Cir. 1998). The Ninth Circuit
is the only circuit which does not require the Board to
consider post-hearing changed circumstances. See NLRB v.
Bakers of Paris, 929 F.2d 1427, 1448 (9th Cir. 1991).

49

See Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op. at 5
and 7) (employee turnover and passage of time, citing
Salvation Army Residence, 293 NLRB 944, 945 (1989), enfd.
mem. 923 F.2d 846 (2d Cir. 1990)).

50

See, e.g., Garvey Marine, Inc., 328 NLRB No. 147, slip op.
at 5-7 and fn. 14; State Materials, 328 NLRB No. 184, slip
op. at 1-2.

51

See NLRB v. So-Lo Foods, Inc., 985 F.2d 123, 125-126 (4th
Cir. 1992) (Gissel bargaining order appropriate where
employer accompanied grant of benefits with, inter alia,
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Gissels has become less certain in recent years, as
several of the courts of appeals have not accepted the
Board's view of these violations as "hallmark" and
declined to enforce the Board's decisions.

For instance, the Sixth and D.C. Circuits have
questioned the notion that an unlawful grant of
benefits is a "hallmark" violation which may justify
the imposition of a Gissel bargaining order. In DTR
Industries, Inc.,” the Sixth Circuit indicated that it
does not consider an unlawful wage increase to be a
hallmark violation. And, in Skyline Distributors, the
D.C. Circuit stated that there was "almost no judicial
authority supporting a Gissel bargaining order based
solely on the grant of economic benefits."”

In addition, in several cases in which the Board
relied on unlawful threats of plant closure to support
a Gissel order, the Board failed to obtain enforcement
of the Gissel order because the courts disagreed that
the employers' statements were unlawful threats,
finding them instead to be protected speech q?@er
Section 8(c) of the Act.™ 1 29:%

o A
oA

\VU
threats of plant kgﬁuré?} Indiana Cal-Pro, Inc. v. NLRB,
863 F.2d 129 Gﬁg Cir. 1988) (threats of plant closure with
minor 8 (a¥@l)'s); NLRB v. Ely's Foods, 656 F.2d 290 (8th
Cir. 1981) (threats of closure and promise of wage increase);
and NLRB v. Dadco Fashions, 632 F.2d 493 (5th Cir. 1980)
(threats of plant closure and other 8(a) (1) 's). See also
Tower Records, 182 NLRB 382, 387 (1970), enfd. mem. 79 LRRM
2736 (9th Cir. 1972) (Gissel order based on wage increase:
"Tt is difficult to conceive of conduct more likely to
convince employees that with an important part of what they
were seeking in hand union representation might no longer be
needed.") .

52

39 F.3d 106, 115 (6th Cir. 1994).
7 Skyline Distributors v. NLRB, 99 F.3d 403, 410 (D.C. Cir.
1996). Apart from the court's refusal to uphold the Gissel
bargaining order, Judge Edwards, writing for the majority,
expressed profound disagreement with the Supreme Court's
determination that the grant of a wage increase may
constitute an unfair labor practice. See, id. at 408-409,
discussing NLRB v. Exchange Parts, Co., 375 U.S. 405 (1964).

54

See Be-Lo Stores v. NLRB, 126 F.3d 268, 285-286 (4th Cir.
1997); Kinney Drugs, Inc., 74 F.3d 1419, 1427-1428 and 1429
(2d Cir. 1996); DTR Industries, Inc. v. NLRB, 39 F.3d at
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In at least one recent case, the Board issued a
Gissel bargaining order based only on Section 8(a) (1)
threats of plant closure and unlawful grants of
benefits.” The Board has yet to fully address the
implications of these decisions, however. In order to
develop a coordinated response to the positions taken
by the courts, these cases should be submitted for
advice on the merits of whether to issue a Gissel
complaint.

IV. Interim Gissel Orders under Section 10(5)

A. The Effectiveness of Gissel 10(j)s

From FY 1990 through FY 1998, the Board issued
decisions in 119 ULP cases involving a request for a Gissel
bargaining order. In a comparable nine year period,
however, the Board sought a Section 10(j) interim Gisgsel
bargaining order in only 68 cases. Thus, Regions have
issued and litigated dozens of Gissel unfair labor practice
complaints without the benefit of parallel 10(3j)
proceedings.

AA

Those benefits can be substantial. u§ﬂ9é@% of the
68 10(j) cases (47 out of 68 case apﬂgﬁ injunction
case was resolved favorabl gﬁd@ﬁer through settlement
(28 cases) or a favorabl® decision by a district court
(19 cases).” Furxrth®r, in only two of the favorably
resolved %Qﬁj)ﬁcases did the underlying ULP case go
before a‘'circuit court for Section 10(e)-10(f)
enforcement of the Board's order.” Thus, in many cases,

114; and Crown Cork & Seal Co. v. NLRB, 36 F.3d 1130, 1133-
1136 (D.C. Cir. 1994).

55

See Complete Carrier Services, Inc., 325 NLRB No. 96
(1998) (Gissel bargaining order based on promise and grant of
wage increase and threats of plant closure; no 8(a) (3)
discharges or layoffs). See, also Wallace Int'l, 328 NLRB
No. 3 (April 12, 1999) (threats of plant closure and promises
of wage increases are "likely to have a pervasive and
lasting deleterious effect on the employees' exercise of
their Section 7 rights," and Board would "normally consider
issuing a Gissel bargaining order in these circumstances,"
but denies Gissel based on "unjustified delay" in deciding
the case.

* The 19 wins were 48% of the Gissel 10(j) cases

litigated to a court decision in this period.

*’ The Board was successful before the courts in both those

cases.
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with 10(j) relief, the entire underlying labor dispute
can be resolved short of the full litigation through
circuit court enforcement of a final Board order.

In contrast, absent 10(j) relief, enforcement of a
Gissel bargaining obligation is often delayed for
several years as the case is litigated before the Board
and circuit courts. During that time, "the union's
position in the plant may have already deteriorated to
such a degree that effective representation is no
longer possible."” Legal commentators have noted that
an ultimate Gissel bargaining order issued by the Board
often does not produce a viable and enduring bargaining
relationship.” Lengthy enforcement litigation also
leaves the Board's Gissel order vulnerable to an
employer's passage of time and changed circumstances
defenses.” Thus, it appears that the most effective
and successful vehicle for gaining Gissel relief
includes petitioning a district court for an interim
bargaining order under Section 10(j) soon after an
administrative complaint issues.®
20\

nNﬂNgzg
(0)

cnve
_ gah o .
Seeler v. Trading Por&o«ﬂhﬁi, 517 F.2d 33, 37-38 (2d Cir.
1975) . . ’
\\ A cor
* See Wei&@¥¥ Promises to Keep: Securing Workers' Rights to
Self-Organization Under the NLRA, 96 Harv. L. Rev. 1769,
1795 (1993); see also Bethel, The Failure of Gissel
Bargaining Orders, 14 Hofstra Lab. L.J. 423 (1997).

58

® Under the Board's Rules and Regulations, Section

102.94 (a), whenever a district court grants an injunction
under Section 10(j), the Board obligates itself to expedite
the underlying unfair labor practice proceeding. Such
expedition may further limit the development of changed
circumstances in the administrative case.

® Such relief preserves the Board's ability to effectively
remedy the violations either in the form of a remedial
bargaining order or an election. See Seeler v. Trading
Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at 38. 1In one instance involving a
decertification petition rather than an initial
representation petition, the Board's final order was a re-
run election rather than a Gissel-type bargaining order
where the status quo had previously been restored through
the grant of an interim bargaining order under Section
10(j). See Eby-Brown Co. L.P., 328 NLRB No. 75, slip op. at
3-4 (May 26, 1999).
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Accordingly, whenever a Region is investigating
the propriety of issuing a Gissel complaint, it should
also investigate and consider the propriety of seeking
a 10(j) Gissel order. Any case in which a Region
issues a Gissel complaint should be submitted to the
Injunction Litigation Branch, Division of Advice, with
a recommendation regarding Section 10(j) Gissel
relief.”

In evaluating the propriety of 10(j) Gissel
relief, the Regions should consider not only the
criteria discussed above relevant to the issuance of a
Gissel complaint but should also be mindful of the
treatment accorded Gissel bargaining order remedies by
the circuit court in which the 10(j) case would be
litigated. Issues specific to the circuit courts are
discussed below.

B. Circuit Court Considerations

1.Criticism of the Board's failure to articulate
the need for a Gissel bargaining orde%ﬂ\
9,

The Second, Fourth, Sixth and \@gﬁgcuits have
expressed dissatisfaction wi%@wdﬂ@ level of the Board's
discussion and analysiSq@ﬂ5% e need for a Gissel order
in lieu of trad%gég@a@ohon—bargaining order remedies.”
Thus, in ev LuéElng and litigating a Gissel 10(j) case,
the Regi&ffs should consider the evidence relevant to
the Gissel factors discussed in Part II, above, and
explain how the evidence supports the need for a Gissel
bargaining order.

In particular, these courts criticize the Board
for failing to consider or explicate why traditional
remedies would not suffice to ensure a fair election.®

® The Region's submission may recommend against 10(7)

proceedings. Of course, if a case poses a close issue on
the merits of the Gissel bargaining order remedy, the Region
may also submit the case to the Division of Advice on the
merit issue.

* See, e.g., Harpercollins San Francisco v. NLRB, 79 F.3d
1324, 1333 (2d Cir. 1996); Be-Lo Stores v. NLRB, 126 F.3d
268, 282 (4th Cir. 1997); NLRB v. Taylor Machine Products,
Inc., 136 F.3d 507, 520 (6th Cir. 1998); Flamingo Hilton-
Laughlin v. NLRB, 148 F.3d 1166, 1173 (D.C. Cir. 1998).

* See cases cited in preceding footnote.
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The Regions should therefore specifically explain why
traditional Board remedies will not suffice to remedy
an employer's serious and pervasive unfair labor
practices. In this regard, the Regions may focus on
the particular nature of the violations, or the
circumstances in which they were committed, to
demonstrate why traditional remedies will not suffice
to allow the Board to conduct a free and fair election
untainted by the effects of the employer's unfair labor
practices.

2. Requiring proof of a "causal connection"

The Sixth and Fourth Circuits have suggested the
necessity in Gissel cases for proof of a "causal
connection" between the unfair labor practices and the
inability to hold a fair election.” Thus, in M.P.C.
Plating, Inc. v. NLRB, the Sixth Circuit held that, to
justify a Gissel bargaining order, the Board "must make
factual findings and must support its conclusion that
there is a causal connection between the unfair labor
practices and the probability that no fair eg?gtion
could be held."* @297

Although this requiremeggadﬁN%rguably inconsistent
with the test as enunciaté®’in Gissel, which spoke of
violations that_ !'have Ehe tendency to undermine
majority st@aﬁd&h and impede the election processes,
it is ne¥&theless binding on district courts which sit

n 67

in these circuits. In our view, the type of evidence
required to meet this standard is akin to "impact"
evidence adduced in typical 10(j) proceedings. Thus,

in order to demonstrate that an interim Gissel
bargaining order under Section 10(j) is "just and
proper" and necessary to prevent "irreparable harm, "
Regions can adduce evidence to prove the adverse
effects of the unfair labor practices on employee

65

See M.P.C. Plating, Inc. v. NLRB, 912 F.2d 883, 888 (6th
Cir. 1990); NLRB v. Tavlor Machine Products, Inc., 136 F.3d
at 519; and Be-Lo Stores v. NLRB, 126 F.3d at 282. But, in
the Fourth Circuit compare NLRB v. CWI of Maryland, Inc.,
127 F.3d 319, 334 (4th Cir. 1997), where the court upheld
the bargaining order and made no reference to the
requirement of a causal connection.

66

912 F.2d at 888.

67

395 U.S. at 614 (emphasis added).
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support for the union, including, where available, the
actual loss of majority support.®” Therefore, where
such evidence is available, the Regions should continue
to demonstrate the actual adverse impact of the
violations upon the union's majority support in both
the ULP proceeding and the 10(j) litigation.

3.Whether a union's success in obtaining or
holding employee support after an employer's
unfair labor practices negates the need for a
Gissel bargaining order

Some courts have upheld the Board's view that
traditional remedies may be insufficient to correct an
employer's violations even where a union subsequently
obtains a card majority” or even wins a representation
election.” These courts have relied upon the
egregiousness of the unfair labor practices, the
employer's continued misconduct, the effect of
cumulative misconduct and the avoidance of further
delay from ordering a rerun election instead of an
immediate bargaining order.’”” In contrast, \Fourth,
Sixth and Eighth circuits have held thag)aﬁhﬁlon S

continued success was proof that a fat¥?election could

be held.” The Regions shou%gﬁgdﬁ£1nue to adhere to the
\W
* See, Sed iér V The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d at

37-38. Sé@mélso Part 0, supra.
® See Davis Supermarkets, Inc. v. NLRB, 2 F.3d 1162, 1175
(D.C. Cir. 1993), discussing United 0il Mfg. Co., Inc. v.
NLRB, 672 F.2d at 1212 and NLRB v. Permanent Label Corp.,
657 F.2d 512, 519 (3d Cir. 1981) (en banc), cert. denied 455
U.S. 940 (1982).

70

See Power, Inc. v. NLRB, 40 F.3d 409, 423 (D.C. Cir.
1994) .

71

See, e.g., Power, Inc. v. NLRB, id.

72

See NLRB v. Weldun Int'l, Inc., 165 F.3d 28, 1998 WL
681252 (6th Cir. 1998) (unpublished order) (denying
enforcement of Gissel bargaining order based, in part, on
union's obtaining additional signed authorization cards
after an unlawful layoff); NLRB v. Appletree Chevrolet,
Inc., 608 F.2d 988, 1000-1001 (4th Cir. 1979) (where union
received "substantial majority" of unchallenged votes cast
in election, no reasonable basis for finding that employer's
misconduct made a fair election unlikely); and Arbie
Minerals Feed Co. v. NLRB, 438 F.2d 940, 945 (8th Cir.
1971) (declining to enforce Gissel bargaining order where
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Board's view when issuing Gissel complaints which may
ultimately be litigated in these courts.” However,
when evaluating their Gissel cases for the propriety of
seeking 10(j) relief in any district court which sits
in the Fourth, Sixth or Eighth circuit, the Regions
should consider this issue and address it in their
10(j) memorandum.

IV. Conclusion

Any questions regarding the implementation of this
memorandum should be directed to the Division of
Advice; questions regarding issuance of a complaint
should be addressed to the Regional Advice Branch;
questions regarding Section 10(j) Gissels should be
addressed to the Injunction Litigation Branch.

cc: NLRBU 0-A%°
Release to the P &'CNO\
u
THE(@

gran¥ Y-
MEMORANDUM GC 99-8

j:injlit\GisselGuide.doc
June 2001

union obtained 11 of its 14 authorization cards after most
of the employer's unfair labor practices).

” gee discussion, infra., at Part II.B.2.f.



APPENDIX G-3

Model Arguments in Support
of Interim Reinstatement

[The following arguments can be made in 10(j) cases where the Region is seeking
interim reinstatement of alleged discriminatees. The Regions should use arguments
made to the Board and any others that are appropriate, [2 lines redacted, exem. 5,
attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]. Where string cites appear, Regions should
choose only those that will be persuasive in their jurisdictions. Passages in bold type
within brackets [ _] are either internal operating instructions or inserts to be used if
applicable to a particular case.]

[19 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2 and 7(E)]

Juinlit\10jmanual\reinstatement.doc
September 2002



APPENDIX G-4

Model Responses to Claim of Board Delay
in Seeking 10(j) Relief

[2 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

0"().1
‘Fraﬂ\«\ \. \’\TH ©

j\injlit\10jManual\delay.doc
June 2001



APPENDIX G-5

Argument to Support Use of Hearsay Evidence
in Section 10(j) Proceedings

[3 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

O(O.ﬂ
‘F(an\«\ \J.\’\TH ©

j:injlit\10jmanual\hearsay.doc
June 2001



10.

APPENDIX H
SAMPLE 10(j) PLEADINGS
Order to Show Cause (temporary injunction only; when it is clear that the case will be

heard on the affidavits)
Miller v. Recycling Industries

Order to Show Cause (temporary injunction only; without scheduling of affidavits)
Blyer v. P&W Electric, Inc.

Order to Show Cause (TRO and temporary injunction)
DePalma v. Steelworkers, Local 15320

Petition for Injunction for all circuits except 1st, 7th, 8th, & 9th
Dunbar v. MSK Corp.

Petition for Injunction for 1st, 7th, 8th & 9th circuits
Chavarry v. Great Lakes Distributing & Storage

e
Petition for Injunction for all circ\l&m@ﬁ 1st, 7th, 8th, & 9th (with Gissel remedy)
Moore-Duncan v. Aldworth S8.

Co'y
.. \.\J-\’\T.\’\ L . .
PetltlonMJunctlon for 1st, 7th, 8th, & 9th circuits (with Gissel remedy)
Miller v. Recycling Industries

Motion for Temporary Restraining Order (Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(b)), union picketline
misconduct (separate)
Frye v. District 1199

Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, for all circuits except 1st, 7th, 8th,
& 9th
Moore-Duncan v. Horizon House

Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for 1st, 7th, 8th, & 9th circuits
Chavarry v. Great Lakes Distributing & Storage




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

j:10jmanuaI\Appendﬁ.doc

Proposed Order Granting Temporary Injunction, for all circuits except 1st, 7th,
8th, & 9th, union violence
Kollar v. Steelworkers, Local 2155

Proposed Order Granting Temporary Injunction for 1st, 7th, 8th & 9th circuits
Chavarry v. Great Lakes Distributing & Storage

Proposed Order Granting Temporary Injunction for all circuits except 1st, 7th, 8th,
& 9th (with Gissel remedy)
Bernstein v. Carter & Sons Freightways, Inc.

Proposed Temporary Injunction Order for 1st, 7th, 8th, & 9th circuits (with Gissel
remedy)
Miller v. Recycling Industries

Model Proposed Temporary Restraining Order for all circuits, union violence
Kollar v. Steelworkers, Local 2155

can V-

November 2001
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

ROBERT H. MILLER, Regional Director of Civil No.
Region 20 of the National Labor Relations
Board, for and on behalf of the NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
Petitioner,
VS.

RECYCLING INDUSTRIES, INC.

Respondent.

g on P\ug‘is" »

The Petition and Admirjisgg%tg‘vgcd@?ﬁﬁwplaint of Robert H. Miller, Regional

Director of Region 20 on \’{QgONﬁtl‘éﬁal\?_abor Relations Board, herein called the Board, having

been filed invthi's“\dburt pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as

amended [29 U.S.C. § 160(j)], herein called the Act, praying for an order directing Recycling

Industries, Inc., herein called Respondent, to show cause why a temporary injunction should not

be granted as prayed for in said petition pending the final disposition of the administrative

matters involved pending before said Board in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1 and, good cause
appearing therefore,

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent appear before this Court at the United States

Court house in Sacramento, California, on the day of :

, at .m., or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, and then and there

show cause, if any there be, why, pending the final disposition of the administrative proceedings
now pending before the Board in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1, Respondent, its officers,
representatives, supervisors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons acting on its

Order to Show Cause
Page 1
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20

21

22
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26
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28

behalf or in participation with it, should not be temporarily enjoined and restrained under
Section 10(j) of the Act, as prayed in said Petition; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent file an Answer to the allegations
of said Petition, together with any affidavits, declarations, and exhibits in support of said
Answer that are limited to the issue of the equitable necessity of injunctive relief, with the Clerk

of this Court, and serve copies thereof upon Petitioner at his office located at 901 Market Street,

Suite 400, San Francisco, California, to be received on or before p.m., the day
of , , and that Petitioner may file and serve rebuttal affidavits,
declarations, and exhibits at least day(s) before the hearing. Pursuant to Rule 220-7

of the Local Rules of this Court and pursuant to the Order of this Court, all evidence shall be
presented by the transcript and exhibits in the proceeding before the administrative law judge of
the Board in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1, and in affidavits, declaratign,zoqnd exhibits limited to
the issue of the equitable necessity of injunctive &glé%fo‘arm«\%go%af testimony will be heard
unless otherwise ordered by the Cc\)\l\JOrF;\Qp@g)ggA arC

ITn\I(\S\JFuR’Fﬁ%‘gbRDERED that service of copies of this Order, together with
copies of thevlg?atition, be made forthwith upon Respondent or upon its counsel of record in
Board Case 20-CA-29897-1, in any manner provided in the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
for the United States District Courts, by electronic facsimile transmission or by certified mail,
and that proof of such service be filed with the Court.

ORDERED this day of , 2001, at Sacramento,

California.

United States District Judge

j:10jManual\AppendH1.doc
November 2001

Order to Show Cause
Page 2




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R AR R AR R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

ALVIN BLYER, Regional Director of Region 29

of the National Labor Relations Board, for and

on behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS

BOARD
Petitioner

_-CV-___

P&W ELECTRIC, INC., d/b/a POLLARI ELECTRIC

Respondent

<
X % o o ok ok 3k 3k % X X ¥

*hhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkkhhkkhkhhkhkhhkhkihhkhkkihhkhkkhkhkhkkirhkhkkihhkkhihkkiihkiikik

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 50,20
p\ug‘)
The petition of Alvin Blyer, Reglonal %Lr%etm\\‘%? Region 29 of the National Labor
7012
Relations Board, having beer\jl@ﬁ@uﬁuam to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act,

as amended, pra%fmg \for an order directing Respondent to show cause why a temporary
injunction should not issue enjoining and restraining Respondent from engaging in certain acts
and conduct in violation of the Act, as prayed for in said petition, the petition being verified, and
to be supported by testimony and evidence, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent appear before this Court at the United States
Courthouse, Court Room No. _ , 225 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York, on the
____dayof January, 2001, at _, or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, and then
and there show cause, if any there be, why, pending the final disposition of the matters involved
pending before the National Labor Relations Board, in consolidated Case Nos. 29-CA-23527,

29-CA-23529 and 29-CA-23712, Respondent, its officers, representatives, agents, servants,



employees, attorneys, and all members and persons acting in concert or participation with it,
should not be enjoined and restrained as prayed in said petition; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that should Respondent file an answer to the allegations of
said petition, said answer shall be filed with the Clerk of this Court, and Respondent shall serve a
copy thereof upon Petitioner at his office located at One MetroTech Center North, Tenth Floor,
Brooklyn, New York 11201, on or before the _ day of January, 2001, by, and deliver
courtesy papers to chambers. Should Petitioner file a reply, such reply shall be served and filed

by the day of , 2001, by , and deliver courtesy papers to

chambers; and
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service of a copy of this Order to Show Cause

together with a copy of the petition, transcript and exhibits upon wthhlg l&%sued be forthwith
on P09°
made by a United States Marshal or an agent oféQ%BmaYa 21 years or older, upon Respondent,
7012
and upon Local 25, Internati w@&mtﬁerhood of Electrical Workers, a Charging Party before the

an V-
Board, in any manner provided in the Rules of Civil Procedure for the United States District

Court, by electronic facsimile transmission or by certified mail on or before the day of

, 2001, by , and that proof of such service be filed with the Court.

ORDERED this day of January, 2001, at Brooklyn, New York.

BY THE COURT,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

j:10jmanual\AppendH2.doc
November 2001



T. Michael Patton, Supervisory Attorney
A. E. Ruibal, Attorney

Michael W. Josserand, Attorney
Counsel for the NLRB

300 South, 600 - 17th St.

Denver, CO 80202

(303) 844-3551

Lee Pico

Assistant U. S. Attorney, District of Wyoming
Box 668

Cheyenne, WY 82003

(307) 772-2124

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF WYOMING ‘29120“
AUGYS

ARTHUR R. DEPALMA, REGIONAL amh‘\\le o
DIRECTOR, OF REGION 27 OF THE\Q,\593
NATIONAL LABOR RELAgd@N§%OARD,
FOR AND ON BE@AI&F‘@F THE NATIONAL
LABOR REL/E\‘IGI?)NS BOARD,

Petitioner,

V. Civil No.

UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA,
LOCAL NO. 15320 and UNITED STEELWORKERS
OF AMERICA, AFL-CIO-CLC

Respondents

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

The Petition and Administrative Complaint of Arthur R. DePalma, Regional
Director for Region 27 of the National Labor Relations Board (herein NLRB or Board),

having been filed in this Court pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations



Act, as amended, 61 Stat. 149, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j) (herein the Act), praying for a
Temporary Restraining Order pursuant to Rule 65(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure (Fed. R. Civ. P.) against Respondents United Steelworkers of America, Local
No. 15320, (hereinafter Respondent Local), United Steelworkers of America, AFL-CIO-
CLC, (hereinafter Respondent International) hereinafter collectively called Respondents,
and for an order directing said Respondents to show cause why a temporary restraining
order and a temporary injunction should not be granted as prayed for in said Petition
pending the final disposition of the administrative matters involved pending before said
Board in NLRB Cases 27-CB-3271 and 27-CB-3272 and, good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS ORDERED that Respondents shall appear before thj}ssgggcﬂ&c\t}]e United
States Courthouse in Cheyenne, Wyoming, on the glﬂl\‘ed o %\33 of , 199 3, at

.M., or as soon as thereaftemou“r?sel (?an be heard, and then and there show cause,

if any there be yglay\ pe\ﬁ\élng disposition by the Court of the merits of the instant Petition
for a temporary injunction Respondents, their officers, agents, servants, employees,
attorneys, and all persons acting in concert or participation with them, should not be
temporarily restrained pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act and Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b) as
prayed for in said Petition; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondents, shall file an Answer to the
allegations of said Petition with the Clerk of this Court, and serve a copy thereof upon
Petitioner at his office located at 300 South Tower, 600 17th Street, Denver, Colorado
80202, onor before _ day of , 1993; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondents, shall appear before this Court at
the United States Courthouse in Cheyenne, Wyoming, onthe  day of

, 1993, at .m. or as soon as thereafter counsel can be heard, and




then and there show cause, if any there be, why, pending the final disposition of the
administrative proceedings now pending before the Board in NLRB Cases 26-CB-3271
and 27-CB-3272, Respondents, their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorney, and all
persons acting in concert or participation with them, should not be temporarily enjoined
and under Section 10(j) of the Act as prayed for in said Petition; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service of a copy of this Order, together with a
copy of the Petition and Administrative Complaint, attached affidavits and exhibits and
supporting legal memoranda, be forthwith made by a United States Marshal or an agent of
the Board, 21 years of age or older, upon Respondents, United Steelworkers of America,
Local No. 15320, and United Steelworkers of America AFL- CIOUC,\L@ BRu Bon their
counsel of record in NLRB Cases 27-CB-3271 anq(gqvecBogﬂ%gm any manner provided
in the Federal Rules of Civil Pro&edwe“l%r th%?)Umted States District Courts, by electronic
facsimile tranwsmﬁ 5\ Tby certified mail, and that proof of such service be filed with the
Court.

ORDERED this day of November, 1993, at Cheyenne, Wyoming.

BY THE COURT:

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

j:10jManual\AppendH3.doc
November 2001



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SANDRA DUNBAR, Regional Director of
the Third Region of the National Labor
Relations Board, for and on behalf of the
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
VS. CIVIL NO. 00-

MSK CORP.-MAIN EVENT FOOD SERVICE

Respondent

20\

$29:
PETITION FOR INJUNCTION UND F&SE\@P?ON 10(j)

OF THE NATIONAL LABOR gggﬁ,@w@ﬁ ACT, AS AMENDED
10-\
0.

To the Han(oar@hIe,- ‘fﬁe\’j&og‘gsdof the United States District Court for the Western District
of New York:

Comes now Sandra Dunbar, Regional Director of the Third Region of the National Labor
Relations Board, herein called the Board, and petitions this Court, for and on behalf of the
Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended [61 Stat. 149;
73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)], herein called the Act, for appropriate injunctive relief
pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board, based
upon the Complaint and Notice of Hearing of the Office of the General Counsel of the Board,
alleging that MSK Corp.-Main Event Food Service, herein called Respondent, has engaged in,

and is engaging in, acts and conduct in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act. In support

thereof, Petitioner respectfully shows as follows:



1. Petitioner is the Regional Director of the Third Region of the Board, an agency of
the United States, and files this petition for and on behalf of the Board.

2. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act.

3. On February 7, 2001, Local 4, Hotel Employees and Restaurant Employees
Union, herein called the Union, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, filed with the Board an
unfair labor practice charge in Case 3-CA-22915, alleging that Respondent has engaged in, and
IS engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.
(A copy of the charge in Case 3-CA-22915 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.)

4, The aforesaid charge was referred to the Petitioner as Regional Director of the
Third Region of the Board.

5. On April 9, 2001, based upon the charge filed in thegc\:)as‘ez@eéaé}“bed above in
paragraph 3, the Acting General Counsel of the B%agdgbveif‘}e Rezj\:onal Director of the Third
Region of the Board, on beh%( ebthe anr\d0 ’pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, issued a
Complaint and Ngflce z)f Hearing against Respondent. (A copy of the Complaint is attached
hereto as Exhibit B.)

6. There is reasonable cause to believe that the allegations set forth in the Complaint
are true and that Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the
meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of Section
2(6) and (7) of the Act. More particularly, there is reasonable cause to believe that Respondent
is failing and refusing to bargain collectively and in good faith with the Union as the exclusive
collective-bargaining representative of an appropriate unit of Respondent’s employees, described

below in paragraph 6(m), and herein called the Unit, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the

Act, by refusing to recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining



representative of the Unit. There is reasonable cause to believe that Respondent has been
interfering with, restraining, and coercing employees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed in
Section 7 of the Act, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) of the Act, by interrogating its employees
about their Union activities and sympathies. In support thereof, the Petitioner, upon information
and belief, shows as follows:

€)) At all material times, Respondent, a corporation, with its principal office and
place of business at the New York State Fairgrounds in Solvay, New York, and a branch office
located at the Buffalo Raceway in Hamburg, New York, herein called Respondent’s Hamburg
facility, has been engaged in the operation of a restaurant and food service operation.

(b) Annually, Respondent, in conducting its business operations described above in

paragraph I1(a), derives gross revenues in excess of $500,000. «29. 20\
pugy
on
(©) Annually, Respondent, in conducépg\(d\s\‘tﬁ%mess operations described above in
40-A%°

paragraph 11(a), purchases a[;gd@@r\)és at its Hamburg facility products, goods and materials
valued in excess 81%5 OOO from points directly outside of the State of New York.

(d) At all material times, Respondent has been engaged in commerce within the
meaning of Section 2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act.

(e) At all material times, the Union has been a labor organization within the meaning
of Section 2(5) of the Act.

()] At all material times, the following individuals held the positions set forth
opposite their respective names and have been supervisors of Respondent, within the meaning of
Section 2(11) of the Act, and agents of Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the
Act:

Steven Jankiewicz = -- Vice-president



Michael Chemotti -- Secretary-treasurer

(9) On or about February 2 and 3, 2001, Respondent, by Michael Chemotti, herein
called Chemotti, at Respondent’s Hamburg facility, interrogated employees about their Union
activities and sympathies.

(h) At all material times prior to on or about January 1, 2001, the following
employees of New York Sportservice, Inc., herein called the Sportservice Unit, constituted a unit
appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section 9(b) of the
Act:

[A]ll persons employed in the categories or classifications set forth in the Wage

Schedule attached ... [to the January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2000

collective-bargaining agreement between the Union and New York Sportservice,

Inc.] at Hamburg Raceway regularly working forty (40) hours {)/an@ﬂe aer month;

excluding office and clerical employees, guards, pr fggsim%lsemployees, trainees

for management or supervisory positio E,a‘iﬁdﬁﬁéerial employees, purchasing

agents, managers, assistant r&ana\gﬁﬁsf?g nd all supervisors as defined in the

National Labor Rel%@@@v&et, (1'947, as amended, and all other employees not

spemﬁcalle/( é@@ludé’él as employees.

Q) At all material times prior to on or about January 1, 2001, the Union was the
designated exclusive collective-bargaining representative for the Sportservice Unit for the
purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours of employment and other terms
and conditions of employment, and the Union was recognized as the representative by New York
Sportservice, Inc.  This recognition was embodied in successive collective-bargaining
agreements, the most recent of which was effective from January 1, 1998 through December 31,
2000.

() At all material times prior to on or about January 1, 2001, based on Section 9(a)

of the Act, the Union was the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Sportservice

Unit.



(k) On or about January 26, 2001, Respondent commenced to provide the restaurant
and food services that were formerly provided by New York Sportservice, Inc. at the Buffalo
Raceway in Hamburg, New York, and since January 26, 2001, has continued to operate such
business in basically unchanged form, and has employed as a majority of its employees,
individuals who were previously employed by New York Sportservice, Inc.

() Based on the operations described above in paragraph 6(k), Respondent has
continued the employing entity and is a successor to New York Sportservice, Inc.

(m)  The following employees employed by Respondent, herein called the Unit,
constitute a unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of
Section 9(b) of the Act:

[A]ll persons employed in the categories or classifications se qut‘ﬂ% the Wage

Schedule attached ... [to the January 1, 199 h gugb@‘lﬁecember 31, 2000

collective-bargaining agreement between and New York Sportservice,

Inc.] at Hamburg Raceway regﬁllarlwm%ng forty (40) hours or more per month;

excluding office and e@g@al ployees guards, professional employees, trainees

for mana ernant: superwsory positions, managerial employees, purchasing

agents, anagers assistant managers, and all supervisors as defined in the

National Labor Relations Act, 1947, as amended, and all other employees not

specifically included as employees.

(n) At all times since on or about January 26, 2001, based on Section 9(a) of the Act,
the Union has been the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of Respondent's employees
in the Unit.

(0) On or about January 26, 2001, the Union requested that Respondent recognize

it as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit and bargain collectively with

the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.



(p) Since on or about January 26, 2001, Respondent has failed and refused to
recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the
Unit at Respondent’s Hamburg facility.

(a) By the conduct described above in paragraph 6(g), Respondent has been
interfering with, restraining, and coercing employees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed in
Section 7 of the Act, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) of the Act.

(n By the conduct described above in paragraph 6(p), Respondent has been failing
and refusing to bargain collectively and in good faith with the exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of its employees, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(s) The unfair labor practices of Respondent described above affect commerce within
the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act. 29 2

p\ug“s

7. Upon information and belief, it m%\ﬁtggdh\rfﬁ?antlmpated that, unless enjoined,
10157

Respondent will continue to @gp@@m\\}ﬁe said acts and conduct, or similar or related acts and
conduct, and willd ontl\n\lJJe to fail and refuse to bargain collectively and in good faith with the
Union, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

8. Upon information and belief, unless the continuation of the aforementioned unfair
labor practices is immediately restrained, a serious flouting of the Act and of public policies
involved in the Act will continue, with the result that enforcement of important provisions of the
Act and of the public policy will be impaired before Respondent can be placed under legal
restraint through the regular procedures of a Board order and enforcement decree. Unless
injunctive relief is immediately obtained, it may fairly be anticipated that Respondent will

continue its unlawful conduct during the proceedings before the Board and during subsequent

proceedings before a Court of Appeals for an enforcement decree, with the result that employees



will continue to be deprived of their fundamental right to be represented for purposes of
collective bargaining as provided for in the Act.

9. Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious consequences set forth above, it
is essential, appropriate and just and proper, for the purposes of effectuating the policies of the
Act and avoiding substantial, irreparable, and immediate injury to such policies, to the public
interest, and to employees of Respondent, and in accordance with the purposes of Section 10(j)
of the Act, that, pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the
Board, Respondent be enjoined and restrained from the commission of the acts and conduct
alleged above, similar acts and conduct or repetition thereof.

10. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays:

yed O

1. That the Court issue an ordir0 g\i@gmgfﬁ\e\épondent promptly to file an answer to
the allegations of thi?\ \Re\}iwﬁ&‘t%éppéar before this Court, at a time and place fixed by the
Court, and show ggﬁse, if any there be, why an injunction should not issue enjoining and
restraining Respondent, its officers, agents, representatives, servants, employees, attorneys, and
all persons acting in concert or participation with them, pending the final disposition of the
matters involved herein, pending before the Board, from:

@ interrogating its employees concerning their Union activities and
sympathies;
(b) refusing to recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive

collective-bargaining representative of the employees in the following described collective

bargaining unit, herein called the Unit:



[A]ll persons employed in the categories or classifications set forth in the Wage
Schedule attached ... [to the January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2000
collective bargaining agreement between the Union and New York Sportservice,
Inc.] at Hamburg Raceway regularly working forty (40) hours or more per month;
excluding office and clerical employees, guards, professional employees, trainees
for management or supervisory positions, managerial employees, purchasing
agents, managers, assistant managers, and all supervisors as defined in the
National Labor Relations Act, 1947, as amended, and all other employees not
specifically included as employees.

(©) in any like or related manner failing and refusing to bargain collectively
and in good faith with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaini\@ Q@qfé@éﬁtative of its
employees in the Unit. or e

10-\

(d) in ac\)é\,ki@m-srﬁl%ted manner interfering with, restraining or coercing its

employees in the%&ae(P\éi:é of the rights guaranteed them under Section 7 of the Act.
2. That the Court issue an affirmative order directing Respondent to:

@ recognize and, upon request, bargain in good faith with the Union as the
exclusive collective bargaining representative of the employees employed in the Unit at the
Buffalo Raceway facility;

(b) post copies of the District Court’s opinion and order at Buffalo Raceway
facility, where Respondent’s notices to employees are customarily posted; said posting shall be
maintained during the Board’s administrative proceedings, free from all obstructions and

defacements; and agents of the Board shall be granted reasonable access to the Buffalo Raceway

facility to monitor compliance with the posting requirement;



(©)

within 20 days of the issuance of the Order, file with the District Court, with a

copy submitted to the Regional Director of the Board for Region Three, a sworn affidavit from a

responsible official of the Respondent, setting forth with specificity the manner in which the

Respondent has complied with the terms of the decree, including how the documents have been

posted as required by the order.
3.

proper.

That the Court grant such further and other relief as may be deemed just and

Dated at Buffalo, New York this 10" day of May 2001.

. No- 10!
Office of the General Counsgl, o0
Barry Kearney, Assogiate General Counsel
Ellen A. Farrell, Députy General Counsel
Rhonda P. Aliouat, Regional Attorney

Beth Mattimore, Counsel for Petitioner
National Labor Relations Board - Region Three
Thaddeus J. Dulski Federal Building

111 West Huron Street - Room 901

Buffalo, NY 14202-2387

Telephone: 716/551-4943
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SANDRA DUNBAR, Regional Director
National Labor Relations Board - Region Three
Thaddeus J. Dulski Federa? 8lilding

111 West HuromStet - Room 901
14202-2387



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
HAMMOND DIVISION

Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional Director

of the Twenty-fifth Region of the

National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
V. CIVIL NO.

GREAT LAKES DISTRIBUTING & STORAGE, INC. and
GREAT LAKES PACKAGING, INC.

Respondent, cd ©
o8k rohe
409

PETITION EQB.N&’UNCHON UNDER SECTION 10(j)
OFFTg\LE\NﬁIBNAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED
(v

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States District Court for the Northern District

of Indiana:

Comes now Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional Director of the Twenty-fifth Region of the
National Labor Relations Board (herein called the Board), and petitions this Court for and on
behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended
(61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j); herein called the Act), for appropriate
injunctive relief pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the
Board on a complaint of the Acting General Counsel of the Board, charging that Great Lakes

Distributing & Storage, Inc., herein called GLDS, and Great Lakes Packaging, Inc., herein called



GLP and herein jointly called respondent, has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts and conduct in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 158(a)(1) and (5). In support

thereof, petitioner respectfully shows as follows:

1. Petitioner is Regional Director of the Twenty-fifth Region of the Board, an
agency of the United States, and files this petition for and on behalf of the Board.

2. Jurisdiction of this proceeding is conferred upon this Court by Section 10(j) of the
Act.

3. At all times material herein, respondent has maintained an office and place of
business in Valparaiso, Indiana, where it is now and has at all times material herein been
engaged in this judicial district in co-packaging, distribution and storage of food products.

4. On November 27, 2000, District No. 90, Internatlo\r;al ésg@c?&mn of Machinists
and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO, a/w InterQagggadngmat?o‘: of Machinists and Aerospace
Workers, AFL-CIO(herein ca,{e{;bm?e L‘j\nlo\no) pursuant to the provisions of the Act, filed a charge
with the Board a&alns\s\great Lakes Distributing & Storage, Inc. (herein called GLDS) in Case
25-CA-27340-1, and on January 18, 2001 filed an amended charge in Case 25-CA-27340-1
Amended against GLDS and Great Lakes Packaging, Inc. (herein called GLP and together with
GLDS herein called respondent), alleging that respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in,
unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the
original charge is attached hereto as Exhibit A and a copy of the amended charge is attached
hereto as Exhibit B.

5. On February 27, 2001, following a field investigation during which all parties had

an opportunity to submit evidence upon the said charge as amended in Case 25-CA-27340-1

Amended, the Acting General Counsel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, by the petitioner



herein, issued a complaint, pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(b)], alleging
that respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act. A copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

6. (@) At all material times GLDS and GLP have been affiliated business
enterprises with common officers, ownership, directors, management, and supervision; have
formulated and administered a common labor policy; have shared common premises and
facilities; have provided services for and made sales to each other; have interchanged personnel
with each other; and have held themselves out to the public as single-integrated business
enterprises.

(b) Based on its operations described above in paragraph 6(a), GLDS and
GLP constitute a single-integrated business enterprise and a single emplogegw'thm the meaning

p\ugus

of the Act. c‘ﬂNed on

(c) About&ove(@bmoll 02000 respondent purchased the microwave popcorn
packaging portlomﬂ“%ﬁe Vglparalso Indiana facility of the Orville Redenbacher Popcorn
Division of ConAgra Grocery Products Company, herein called Orville Redenbacher, and since
then has continued to operate the microwave popcorn packaging portion of the business of the
Valparaiso, Indiana facility of Orville Redenbacher in basically unchanged form, and has
employed as a majority of its employees individuals who were previously employees of Orville
Redenbacher.

(d) Based upon the operations described above in paragraph 6(c), respondent

has continued the employing entity of and is a successor to Orville Redenbacher.



(e) The following employees of respondent, herein called the Unit, constitute
a unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section 9(b) of
the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec.159(b)]:

All production and maintenance employees, including all shipping

and receiving employees of the Employer at its Valparaiso, Indiana

facility, but excluding all office clerical employees, all professional

employees, all guards, and all supervisors as defined in the Act.

()] On April 7, 1978, the Union was certified as the exclusive collective-
bargaining representative of the Unit employed by Orville Redenbacher.

(9) Since about November 11, 2000, based on the facts described above in
paragraphs 6(c) and 6(d), the Union has been the designated exclus;\\gixcgélggﬁvb-bargaining
on AV

. . ol
representative of the Unit. coBh arch\\le
A

(h) From a\?\%%\,epnﬂw ,\%78, to about June 1, 2000, based on Section 9(a) of
the Act, the Unioﬁrﬁ&\ﬂ‘\gée\/\nxthe exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit
employed by Orville Redenbacher.

Q) At all times since about November 11, 2000, based on Section 9(a) of the
Act, the Union has been the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of respondent’s
employees in the Unit.

7. Petitioner asserts that there is a likelihood that the Regional Director will, in the
underlying administrative proceeding in Case 25-CA-27340-1 Amended, establish that:

@) At all material times GLDS, a corporation, with an office and place of

business in Valparaiso, Indiana, herein called respondent’s facility, has been engaged in the

distribution and storage of food and other products.



(b) At all material times GLP, a corporation, with an office and place of
business in Valparaiso, Indiana, the respondent’s facility, has been engaged in the co-packaging
of food products.

(©) During the past 12 months respondent, in conducting its business
operations described above in paragraphs 7(a) and 7(b), sold and shipped from its Valparaiso,
Indiana facility goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly to points outside the State of Indiana.

(d) During the past 12 months respondent, in conducting its business
operations described above in paragraphs 7(a) and 7(b), purchased and received at its Valparaiso,
Indiana facility goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly from points outside the State of
Indiana.

(e) At all material times respondent has been an empl%yqoaﬁgaged in

AUQUS
commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6) an(é\‘(xjﬁéﬁ“e Act [29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(2), (6)

0B
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(f)wa‘\\%t all material times the Union has been a labor organization within the

and (7)].

meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(5)].

(9) At all material times the following individuals held the positions set forth
opposite their respective names and have been supervisors of respondent within the meaning of
Section 2(11) of the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(11)]and agents of respondent within the meaning of

Section 2(13) of the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(13)]:

Joe Glusak - Owner and President
Bradly Hendrickson Owner
David Jancosek Owner
William English Owner



Thomas Adams Owner

Kim Defries - Line Supervisor

John Schlink - Maintenance Manager

(h) By letters dated November 20, 2000 and January 19, 2001, the Union
requested that respondent recognize it as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the
Unit and bargain collectively with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of the Unit.

Q) Since about November 20, 2000, respondent has failed and refused to
recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the
Unit.

() By the conduct described above in paragraph Yg) ,Z(Sgszmﬁ‘dent has been
failing and refusing to bargain collectively and igg%og&kfaielﬁh?/"i\tﬁ\t)h(\: exclusive collective-
bargaining representative of i\tj Srg%lpy@sxl%’c?olation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(k):(a‘\\ﬁ'\ﬁé\/l\;fair labor practices of respondent described above affect commerce
within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

() The unfair labor practices of respondent described above in paragraphs
7(i) and 7(j) have taken place within this judicial district.

8. Respondent’s unfair labor practices, as described above in paragraph 7, have and
are continuing to irreparably harm employees of the respondent in the exercise of the rights

guaranteed them by Section 7 of the Act. More particularly, respondent’s unfair labor practices

have caused and will continue to cause the following harm:



@) As a result of respondent’s failure and refusal to bargain with the Union,
the Union’s employee support will be irreparably undermined over time as conditions change in
the facility without any Union input.

(b) As a result of respondent’s failure and refusal to bargain with the Union,
the employees will be deprived of the benefits of collective bargaining.

0. An order requiring interim bargaining is necessary to prevent the irreparable
erosion of the Union’s majority support while the Union is unable to represent employees and
affect their working conditions. Additionally, such an order is necessary to prevent irreparable
harm to the employees through their loss of the benefits of collective bargaining during Board
litigation.

10. Unless injunctive relief is immediately obtained, it can falglyzbehntlmpated that

g\)
employees will permanently and irreversibly lose the lgneéﬁsogf the Board’s processes and the
5904 2
exercise of statutory rights for the @@tlr@pérolod required for Board adjudication, a harm which

Wi O
cannot be remedlét\j@l‘h\‘due course by the Board.

11.  There is no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable harm being caused by
respondent’s unfair labor practices, as described above in paragraphs 8 and 9.

12.  Granting the temporary injunctive relief requested by Petitioner will cause no
undue hardship to respondent.

13. In balancing the equities in this matter, the harm to the employees involved
herein, to the public interest, and to the purposes and policies of the Act if injunctive relief, as
requested, is not granted, outweighs any harm that the grant of such injunctive relief will work

on respondent.



14, Upon information and belief, it may be fairly anticipated that unless respondent’s
conduct of the unfair labor practices described in paragraphs 7(i) and 7(j) above is immediately
enjoined and restrained, respondent will continue to engage in those acts and conduct, or similar
acts and conduct constituting unfair labor practices.

15. Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious consequences set forth above, it
is essential, just, proper, and appropriate for the purposes of effectuating the policies of the Act
and avoiding substantial, irreparable and immediate injury to such policies, to the public interest,
and the employees involved herein, and in accordance with the purposes of Section 10(j) of the
Act, that, pending final disposition of the matters presently pending before the Board, respondent
be enjoined and restrained as herein prayed.

WHEREFORE, PETITIONER PRAYS:

rch'\\‘ed ©

1. That the Court issue an &r'd\qg,'cﬁ?&f‘ti%g respondent to appear before this Court, at
a time and place Ei‘ﬁ&(’y-wé&ﬁ?énd show cause, if any there be, why, pending final
adjudication by the Board of the matters pending before it in National Labor Relations Board
Case 25-CA-27340-1 Amended, a temporary injunction should not issue:

@) directing and ordering respondent to cease and desist from: (1) failing and
refusing to recognize and to bargain collectively in good faith with the Union as the exclusive
collective-bargaining representative of its employees in the appropriate collective bargaining
unit; and (2) in any like or related manner interfering with, restraining, or coercing its employees
in the exercise of their rights guaranteed them by Section 7 of the Act;

(b) directing and ordering respondent, pending final Board adjudication, to:

(1) recognize and on request bargain in good faith with the Union as the exclusive collective-

bargaining representative of its employees in the appropriate collective bargaining unit



respecting rates of pay, hours of work, or other terms and conditions of employment; (2) post
copies of the district court’s opinion and order at its Valparaiso, Indiana facility at all locations
where notices to employees customarily are posted, maintain said postings during the pendency
of the Board’s administrative proceedings free from all obstructions and defacements, and grant
agents of the Board reasonable access to respondent’s Valparaiso, Indiana facility to monitor
compliance with the posting requirement; and (3) within twenty (20) days of the issuance of the
district court’s order, file with the court, with a copy submitted to the Regional Director of the
Board for Region 25, a sworn affidavit from a responsible official of respondent setting forth

with specificity the manner in which respondent is complying with the terms of the decree.

2. That upon return of said Order to Show Cause, the Court issue an Order enjoining
and restraining respondent in the manner set forth above. «22 2O\

3. That the Court grant such furtherga;)r}\dac%ggweél?& %:?:ay be just and appropriate.

4, That the Court ggg&ex\i@di}g&\?onsideration to this petition, consistent with 28

e
U.S.C. Sec. 1657?&?§ﬁ\dvthe remedial purposes of Section 10(j) of the Act.

DATED at Indianapolis, Indiana, this 23" day of April, 2001.

Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional Director
National Labor Relations Board

Region Twenty-five

Room 238, Minton-Capehart Building
575 North Pennsylvania Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-1577



Barry J. Kearney
Associate General Counsel

Rik Lineback
Regional Attorney

Joanne C. Mages
Attorney
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Lea F. Alvo-Sadiky

Margarita Navarro Rivera

Deena E. Kobell, Attorneys

National Labor Relations Board

615 Chestnut Street, 7th Floor

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106

(215) 597-9619; (215) 597-7647; (215) 597-7650
LFA-S/1866

MNR/0674

DEK/6336

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

R I I I

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNCAN, Regional Director *

of the Fourth Region of the NATIONAL *
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, for and on *
behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, *
*
Petitioner, *
* 9 20'\’\
V. | cio“ RiviFNo.
o A
ALDWORTH COMPANY, INC. and ,\QA59 *
DUNKIN’ DONUTS MID- A IeQ,NTR\,O *
DISTRIBUTION CI%MKER\ NC., *
JOINT EMPLOYERS *
*
Respondents. *

R I I I R i I

PETITION FOR INJUNCTION UNDER SECTION 10(j)
OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey:
Comes now, Dorothy L. Moore-Duncan, Regional Director of the Fourth Region of the
National Labor Relations Board (herein called the Board), and petitions this Court for and on
behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended
(61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j), (herein called the Act), for appropriate

injunctive relief pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the



Board on charges alleging that Aldworth Company, Inc. and Dunkin’ Donuts Mid-Atlantic
Distribution Center, Inc. (herein called Aldworth and Dunkin, respectively, and herein also
collectively called Respondents), have engaged in, and are engaging in, acts and conduct in
violation of Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. In support thereof, the Petitioner respectfully
shows as follows:

1. The Petitioner is the Regional Director of the Fourth Region of the Board, an
agency of the United States, and files this Petition for and on behalf of the Board.

2. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act.

3. @) On July 7, 1998, United Food and Commercial Workers Union Local
1360 a/w United Food And Commercial Workers International Union, AFL-CIO, herein called
the Union), pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed a charge with thg l%g@rdl@ﬂtase 4-CA-27274
alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin, employers %/Atgqﬂﬂtﬁ% mea‘:}r?g of Section 2(2) of the Act,
have engaged in, and are ng@ngg \\h argn;alr labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(1) and (3) (Yf(%"le Act A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-27274 is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1 and made a part hereof.

(b) On October 22, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed
the first amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27274, alleging that Aldworth and
Dunkin have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27274
is attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and made a part hereof.

(c) On November 24, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed

the second amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27274, alleging that Aldworth and

Dunkin have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of



Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the second amended charge in Case 4-CA-
27274 is attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and made a part hereof.

(d) On April 15, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed the
third amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27274, alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the third amended charge in Case 4-CA-27274 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and made a part hereof.

(e) On July 10, 1998, William A. McCorry, an individual, pursuant to
provisions of the Act, filed a charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27289 alleging that Aldworth
has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1)
and (3) of the Act. A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-27289 is att%chefb Hfeto as Exhibit 5 and
made a part hereof. or e

Q) On D€ ember ﬁ; 1998 William A. McCorry, pursuant to provisions of
the Act, filed tr@qprst amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27289 alleging that
Aldworth has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27289 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 6 and made a part hereof.

(9) On October 27, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed
the charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27603 alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin have engaged
in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of
the Act. A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-27603 is attached hereto as Exhibit 7 and made a

part hereof.



(h) On November 24, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed
the first amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27603 alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27603 is attached
hereto as Exhibit 8 and made a part hereof.

Q) On November 5, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed
a charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27629 alleging that Aldworth, an employer within the
meaning of Section 2(2) of the Act, has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices
within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-
27629 is attached hereto as Exhibit 9 and made a part hereof.

() On November 24, 1998, the Union, pursuant Eg){),ggvis%ns of the Act, filed
the first amended charge with the Board I\n5 %{as%fé(-@% 276‘;\3g alleging that Aldworth and
Dunkin have engaged in, ar\LQ@@eoeﬁ\@ag\lr?g in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) aﬁ&a (3) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27629 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 10 and made a part hereof.

(K) On April 14, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed the
second amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27629, alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(2), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the second amended charge in Case 4-CA-27629 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 11 and made a part hereof.

() On December 2, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed a

charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27707 alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin have engaged in,

and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the



Act. A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-27707 is attached hereto as Exhibit 12 and made a part
hereof.

(m)  On April 15, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed the
first amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27707, alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27707 is attached
hereto as Exhibit 13 and made a part hereof.

(n) On December 9, 1998, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed a
charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27725 alleging, inter alia, that Aldworth and Dunkin,
employers within the meaning of Section 2(2) of the Act, have engaged in, and are engaging in,
unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) oﬁgh@@&ét. A copy of the
charge in Case 4-CA-27725 is attached heretci gs &xgm\ffandﬁgde a part hereof.

(0) On A_E)r Iddkol@é% \tge Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed the
first amended chglxge \)V\Ijth the Board in Case 4-CA-27725, alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27725 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 15 and made a part hereof.

(p) On February 8, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed a
charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27866 alleging, inter alia, that Aldworth has engaged in,
and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the

Act. A copy of the charge in Case 4-CA-27866 is attached hereto as Exhibit 16 and made a part

hereof.



(o) On February 12, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed
the first amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27866, alleging that Aldworth and
Dunkin have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. A copy of the first amended charge in Case 4-CA-27866 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 17 and made a part hereof.

(n On April 14, 1999, the Union, pursuant to provisions of the Act, filed the
second amended charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-27866, alleging that Aldworth and Dunkin
have engaged in, and are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section
8(a)(2), (3) and (5) of the Act. A copy of the second amended charge in Case 4-CA-27866 is
attached hereto as Exhibit 18 and made a part hereof.

4. On April 15, 1999, and April 22 1999, based u\?g\glsxtlggﬁ’ﬂ%es and amended
charges in Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289\,5§1§)§%¢2€7€8§,02-2A-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA-
27725 and 4-CA-27866, \t/\hxe\,\@mral\\&o\ugr;sel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, by the
Petitioner, issuedFa(r?%\)(\rc\jJér Consolidating Cases, Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing,
and Amendment to Consolidated Complaint, respectively, in Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289,
4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA-27725 and 4-CA-27866, pursuant to Section
10(b) of the Act, alleging that Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor
practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act. Copies of the Order
Consolidating Cases, Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing, and Amendment to
Consolidated Complaint in Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289, 4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-
27707, 4-CA-27725 and 4-CA-27866 are attached hereto as Exhibits 19 and 20, respectively and

made a part hereof.



5. @) On or about August 11, 1998, the Union filed a representation petition
with the Board in Case 4-RC-19492, and an election was conducted on September 19, 1998. A
copy of the representation petition in Case 4-RC-19492 is attached hereto as Exhibit 21 and
made a part hereof.

(b) On May 7, 1999, the Petitioner issued a Notice of Hearing on Objections
to Election in Case 4-RC-19492, concluding that the Union’s Objections to the representation
election and other unalleged conduct raised issues in common with the unfair labor practices in
Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289, 4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA-27725 and 4-
CA-27866, and that, in due course, the Objections would be consolidated for hearing with the
unfair labor practie charges. On May 18, 1999, the Petitioner issued issued an Order
Consolidating Cases and Scheduling Consolidated Hearing in Caseg 475‘3.6&97374 4-CA-27289,
4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA- ZgY%&m\’@% 272\23% and 4-RC-19492. Copies of
the Notice of Hearing on Ql@@mo% t(\JO’EIectlon in Case 4-RC-19492, and of the Order
Consolidating Casts a>1d Scheduling Consolidated Hearing in Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289,
4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA-27725, 4-CA-27866 and 4-RC-19492 are
attached hereto as Exhibits 22 and 23 and made a part hereof.

6. There is reasonable cause to believe that the allegations set forth in the
Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing and in the Amendment to Consolidated
Complaint in Cases 4-CA-27274, 4-CA-27289, 4-CA-27603, 4-CA-27629, 4-CA-27707, 4-CA-
27725 and 4-CA-27866 are true, and that Respondents have engaged in, and are engaging in,

unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act, affecting

commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act. More particularly, in support



thereof, and of the request for injunctive relief herein, the Petitioner, upon information and
belief, shows as follows:

@) At all material times, Aldworth, a Massachusetts corporation with a
principal place of business in Lynnfield, Massachusetts, has been engaged in the business of
leasing personnel to enterprises in the transportation industry.

(b) During the past year, Aldworth, in conducting its business operations
described above in subparagraph (a), purchased and received goods valued in excess of $50,000
directly from points outside the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

(©) At all material times, Aldworth has been an employer engaged in
commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act.

(d) At all material times, Dunkin Donuts’ has bee‘nz@ Délaware corporation

AUQUS
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with a facility at 501 Arlington Boulevard, SV\{aechL@%boN){eﬁew Jersey, herein called the Center,
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where it has been engaged\j\Q @@&@tri\\)\ation of products to donut shops.
o Y-
(ef(a During the past year, Dunkin’ Donuts, in conducting its business

operations described above in subparagraph (d), sold and shipped products valued in excess of
$50,000 directly to points outside the States of New Jersey and Delaware.

() At all material times, Dunkin’ Donuts has been an employer engaged in
commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act.

(9) At all material times, Aldworth and Dunkin’ Donuts have been parties to
an agreement pursuant to which Aldworth has provided employees to work at, and to deliver
products stored within, the Center; Dunkin’ Donuts has exercised control over Aldworth’s labor

relations policy with respect to the employees who were hired and are paid by Aldworth; and



Aldworth and Dunkin’ Donuts have codetermined the terms and conditions of employment of
those employees.

(h) At all material times, based on their operations at the Center described
above in subparagraph (g), Aldworth and Dunkin’ Donuts have been joint employers of the
employees referred to above in subparagraph (g).

Q) At all material times, the Union has been a labor organization within the
meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act.

() At all material times, the following individuals held the positions set forth
opposite their respective names and have been supervisors of Respondents within the meaning of

Section 2(11) of the Act and agents of Respondents within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the

Act: wg\i‘f" 29, 20\
Ernest Dunn - A%gg{mﬁ?&?d%%t
Kevin Roy "o, 10ARdworth Executive Vice President
Wayne Kundr@{ CorP-- Aldworth Assistant to Executive Vice President
Tim Kenne - Aldworth Regional Operations Manager
Frank Fisher - Aldworth Operations Manager
Steve Wade - Aldworth Dispatcher/Warehouse Supervisor
Mark Kearney - Aldworth Warehouse Supervisor
Dave Mann - Aldworth Warehouse Supervisor

Keith Cybulski Aldworth Warehouse Supervisor
Scott Henderschott Aldworth Warehouse Supervisor
Juan Rivera - Aldworth Floor Supervisor
Kevin Donohue Aldworth Floor Supervisor
Mike Houston Aldworth Driver Supervisor

Craig Setter - Dunkin’ Donuts President
Mike Shive - Dunkin’ Donuts Distribution Center Manager
Tom Knoble - Dunkin’ Donuts Transportation Supervisor

Warren Engard Dunkin’ Donuts Warehouse Supervisor
(k) Respondents, by Kevin Roy, engaged in the following conduct:
1) In early April 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown

to the Petitioner, in a meeting with its warehouse employees at the Center: (i) threatened



employees with job loss if they sought union representation; and (ii) solicited employees’
complaints and grievances thereby promising them improved terms and conditions of
employment in order to discourage them from seeking union representation.

2 On or about April 11, 1998, in a meeting with employees at the
Center: (i) solicited employees’ complaints and grievances thereby promising them improved
terms and conditions of employment in order to discourage them from seeking union
representation; (ii) promised employees he would hire a new Regional Operations Manager in
order to discourage them from seeking union representation; and (iii) threatened employees with
a loss of benefits by telling them that they would “start out with nothing” if they selected a union
to bargain for them.

3 On or about May 8, 1998, by Iette(g tcz\fg@a%«y}ees (i) solicited
employees’ complaints and grievances thereby %@mmh'&?he?np\:}mproved terms and conditions
of employment in order toaﬁ@ymgg\?hgr?{ from seeking union representation; (ii) announced
the creation of arfx‘?ssa; Report Form” to solicit employees’ complaints and grievances in order
to discourage them from seeking union representation; and (iii) announced that certain of the
grievances raised at the meeting referred to above in subparagraph (b), were being “adjusted” or
“corrected” in order to discourage them from seeking union representation.

4) On or about June 16, 1998, by letter to employees: (i) created the
impression among its employees that their Union activities were under surveillance by telling
them that he knew that Union representatives were visiting employees at their homes; (ii)

solicited employees to report such “harassment” to him in order to discourage them from seeking

Union representation; and (iii) solicited employees’ complaints and grievances thereby

10



promising them improved terms and conditions of employment in order to discourage them from
seeking Union representation.

5) On or about June 27, 1998, at a meeting with employees at the
Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey: (i) threatened employees with loss of their existing
benefits by telling them that they would start with a blank piece of paper if they selected the
Union as their collective bargaining representative; (ii) created the impression among its
employees that their Union activities were under surveillance by telling them he knew that
“Union people” were visiting employees at their homes; (iii) interrogated employees concerning
their Union activities; (iv) threatened employees that another employee who supported the Union
would be discharged, and disparaged the employee; (v) threatened employees with job loss if
they selected the Union as their collective bargaining reprizeunst‘a%ygw%d (vi) promised
employees wage increases, new work attirsB%%g mhiﬁgrg\(/\e‘:j\ benefits package in order to
discourage them from seelg&g%léjajmw‘é\&e\s%’ntation.

F(an\%g)‘ On or about June 29, 1998, by telephone: (i) told an employee that
another employee’s termination resulted from that employee’s Union activities; (ii) threatened
the employee with discharge because the employee supported the Union; and (iii) solicited the
employee to campaign against the Union and to tell other employees that the employee’s
suspension was unrelated to the employee’s Union activities.

@) In August 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown to
the Petitioner, in his office at the Center, interrogated an employee concerning the employee’s
Union activities and the Union activities of other employees.

(8) On or about August 29, 1998, September 1, 1998, September 2,

1998, September 3, 1998, September 8, 1998, September 9, 1998, September 10, 1998,

11



September 15, 1998, and September 17, 1998, in meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in
Bridgeport, New Jersey, solicited employees’ complaints and grievances thereby promising them
improved terms and conditions of employment in order to discourage them from selecting the
Union as their collective bargaining representative.

9 On or about September 1, 1998, September 3, 1998, and
September 10, 1998, in meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey,
announced that Aldworth had responded favorably to complaints and grievances that employees
had voiced earlier in order to discourage employees from selecting the Union as their collective
bargaining representative.

(10) In certain of the meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in
Bridgeport, New Jersey, indicated to employees that it would b%\}‘thlig 5 'them to select the
Union as their collective bargaining represerltat%/g gwté’m%g tri:n (i) on or about August 29,
1998, “Nobody from outsu{g\ @usprd%m \cOa;n force that change upon me without me saying
s0....Nobody has the fo\;ce here” and that “...somebody else that doesn’t belong in this room”
can’t do “a god damn thing unless | say so”; (ii) on or about September 1, 1998, that “There isn’t
one person outside this door, outside of our organization that is going to help me make it better”;
and (iii) at one of the meetings, the specific date of which is presently unknown to the Petitioner,
by telling employees that he “would not deal with the Union” and that he would “show up at
negotiations but did not have to agree to anything.”

(11) In certain of the meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in

Bridgeport, New Jersey, on or about August 29, 1998, September 8, 1998, September 15, 1998

and September 16, 1998, threatened employees with a loss of benefits by telling them, that they
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would start with a blank piece of paper if they selected the Union as their collective bargaining
representative.

(I2)  In certain of the meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in
Bridgeport, New Jersey, on or about August 29, 1998, September 2, 1998, September 3, 1998,
September 8, 1998, September 9, 1998, September 10, 1998, September 15, 1998, September 16,
1998 and September 17, 1998, threatened employees with loss of their jobs if they selected the
Union as their collective bargaining representative.

(13) On or about August 29, 1998, after a meeting with employees at
the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey, threatened an employee with discharge because the
employee engaged in Union activity.

(14)  On or about August 29, 1998, at aurggg(iggw\ﬁﬁ)twemployees at the
Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey: (i) inf%%rggdamﬁﬂﬁ)@ggsi\hat Respondents had suspended

20-\
an employee because the g\ry\g@@as&?{e in favor of the Union and concertedly complained to

Respondent rega%?r?;\t\}h‘eir wages, hours and conditions of employment at a meeting at the
Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey held in June 1998; and (ii) informed employees that
Respondents had discharged an employee because the employee spoke in favor of the Union at
the earlier meeting at the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey.

(15) On or about September 10, 1998, at a meeting with employees at
the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey: (i) threatened to discharge employees because the
employees spoke in favor of the Union at the meeting; (ii) disparaged an employee because the

employee supported the Union; and (iii) ejected an employee from the meeting because the

employee supported the Union.
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(16) In certain of the meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in
Bridgeport, New Jersey, on or about August 29, 1998, September 10, 1998 and September 17,
1998: (i) promised to create new supervisory positions and promotion opportunities for the
employees in order to discourage them from selecting the Union as their collective bargaining
representative; and (ii) promised to remove an unpopular supervisor in order to discourage
employees from selecting the Union as their collective bargaining representative.

(17)  On or about September 1, 1998, in a meeting with employees at
the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey, created the impression among its employees that
their Union activities were under surveillance by informing employees that he knew the identity
of an employee who signed a Union authorization card and he knew the reason for the
employee’s decision to sign the authorization card. 29 20\

AUQUS

. on
(18)  On or about Sept%@gf)%ﬁcm\,‘e.&%, September 15, 1998, September
1019

16, 1998 and September 1\?\1(\1:9@8;;% ﬁ\%étings with employees at the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport,
New Jersey, prorﬁfsaé\c\j{\t\é‘ improve employees medical insurance benefits in order to discourage
them from selecting the Union as their collective bargaining representative.

(19) In certain of the meetings with employees at the Holiday Inn in
Bridgeport, New Jersey, on or about September 15, 1998, September 16, 1998 and September
17, 1998, threatened employees with loss of their 401K plan if they selected the Union as their
collective bargaining representative.

(20)  On or about September 15, 1998, in a meeting with employees at
the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey, informed employees that he had ejected an employee

from an earlier meeting at the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey because the employee

voiced support for the Union.
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(21)  On or about September 16, 1998, at a meeting with employees at
the Holiday Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey, threatened employees with discipline and other
unspecified reprisals in order to discourage them from selecting the Union as their collective
bargaining representative.

() Respondents, by Frank Fisher, engaged in the following conduct at the
Center:

Q) In June 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown to the
Petitioner, solicited an employee’s complaints and grievances, thereby promising the employee
improved terms and conditions of employment in order to discourage the employee from seeking
union representation.

(2 In late August or early September 1998,‘algn@i®2)remse date being

p\ug
presently unknown to the Petitioner, with Dave Magm,htﬂ)‘?a\ an employee to take off a Union T-

59
shirt, and directed the emplowg@mﬂum th\eOT\ shirt inside out, while permitting other employees
to wear T-shirts v\;/xt% other logos and messages without interference.

3 In or about early September 1998, a more precise date being
presently unknown to the Petitioner, accused its employees of disloyalty by telling an employee
that he wanted to thank employees for making his life a “living hell” by seeking Union
representation.

4 On or about September 17, 1998, threatened employees with less

favorable consideration of requests for time off if they selected the Union as their collective

bargaining representative.
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5) In October 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown to
the Petitioner, threatened to withhold work boot allowance money from an employee because the
employee supported the Union.

(6) On or about October 15, 1998, told an employee that the
employee’s suspension was related to the employee’s Union sympathies and activities.

@) In or about the end of April or early May 1999, a more precise date
being presently unknown to the Petitioner, interrogated an employee concerning the unfair labor
practice proceedings pending before the Board.

(m)  Respondents, by Keith Cybulski, engaged in the following conduct at the

Center:
(1) With Kevin Donohue, in late July or easly Algust 1998, a more
puoy
on
precise date being presently unknown to the Peggggechm?grrogated an employee concerning the
1019
No-

employee’s Union sympat\rl\i%s:\ Corp-
F(a(\\‘%z\})‘ With Scott Henderschott, during the period between September 1,
1998 and September 17, 1998, threatened employees with job loss if they selected the Union as
their collective bargaining representative.
(n) Respondents, by Dave Mann, engaged in the following conduct at the
Center:
Q) In mid-August 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown
to the Petitioner, threatened employees with job loss if they selected the Union as their collective

bargaining representative.
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(2 On or about September 17, 1998, threatened employees with more
onerous working conditions if they selected the Union as their collective bargaining
representative.

(o) In or about the end of October or early November 1998, a more precise
date being presently unknown to the Petitioner, Respondents, by Scott Henderschott, at the
Center, told an employee to take off a Union T-shirt, while permitting other employees to wear
T-shirts with other logos and messages without interference.

(p) During the week beginning September 13, 1998, Respondents, by Kevin
Donohue, at the Center, threatened employees with unspecified reprisals if they selected the
Union as their collective bargaining representative.

(o) During the week beginning September 6, 19%829%68ndents by Mike

p\ug
Shive and Wayne Kundrat, at the Center, en%qgfg(m\‘éﬁ?velllance of employees engaging in

5
Union activities at the entraneg@tm;he\\k?er}t%r\s property.

(r)ﬂ On or about September 10, 1998, Respondents, by Warren Engard, at the
Center, threatened an employee with closure of the Center if the employees selected the Union as
their collective bargaining representative.

(s) In the first part of September 1998, a more precise date being presently
unknown to the Petitioner, Respondents, by Mike Shive, at the Center, told an employee to
remove a Union pin from the employee’s uniform.

® In or about mid-June 1999, a more precise date being presently unknown

to the Petitioner, Respondents, by Mike Houston, at the Center, interrogated an employee

concerning the employee’s involvement in unfair labor practice proceedings before the Board.
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(w On or about June 27, 1998, in a meeting with employees at the Holiday
Inn in Bridgeport, New Jersey, Respondents’ employee William A. McCorry, in order to induce
group action, concertedly complained to Respondents regarding the wages, hours and working
conditions of Respondents’ employees by complaining about the safety and cleanliness of the
stores at which Respondents’ employees made deliveries.

(V) On or about July 18, 1998, Respondents issued a handbook to employees
announcing, inter alia, stricter and more onerous policies concerning tardiness, absenteeism and
log falsifications.

(w)  Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph (u):
(i) because its employees were seeking Union representation; and (ii) because its employees
engaged in the concerted activities described above in subparagri%k\l) &Jigaﬂ@“ta discourage them
from engaging in these activities. on P

x) On \(2\rT gp@ﬂmuﬁéoz'& 1998, Respondents conducted a Route Survey on the
route assigned to0its gﬁ;lioyee William A. McCorry.

(y) On or about June 29, 1998, Respondents suspended employee William A.
McCorry for five (5) days.

(2) Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraphs (x)
and (y), because: (i) William A. McCorry engaged in the conduct described above in
subparagraph (u); and (ii) because William A. McCorry supported and assisted the Union and in
order to discourage employees from engaging in these or other concerted activities.

(@aa)  On or about June 29, 1998, Respondents discharged employee Leo Leo.

(bb)  Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph

(aa), because Leo Leo supported and assisted the Union.
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(cc) On or about October 14, 1998, Respondents issued five (5) day
suspensions to its employees Doug King, Rob Moss, Dave Shipman and Jesse Sellers.

(dd) Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph
(cc), because Doug King, Rob Moss, Dave Shipman and Jesse Sellers supported and assisted the
Union.

(ee)  On or about October 21, 1998, Respondents changed the work shifts and
job assignments of its employees Doug King, Ken Mitchell, Rob Moss, Dave Shipman and Jesse
Sellers.

(ff)  Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph
(ee), because Doug King, Ken Mitchell, Rob Moss, Dave Shipman, and Jesse Sellers supported
and assisted the Union, «22 20\

(gg) Inearly November 1998, %m}iﬁ%%i?sg date being presently unknown to

70197
the Petitioner, Respondent\g\%g\sm@eﬁ% employee Jesse Sellers for one day.

(hﬁ)‘aﬂ\(;{\é‘spondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph
(99), because its employee Jesse Sellers supported and assisted the Union.

(i)~ On or about November 19, 1998, Respondents discharged its employee
Rob Moss.

an Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph (ii),
because its employee Rob Moss supported and assisted the Union.

(kk)  Inearly October 1998, a more precise date being presently unknown to the
Petitioner, Respondents implemented, and began enforcing, a new “Selection Accuracy Policy.”

(I Since in or about early October 1998, Respondents, pursuant to the

Selection Accuracy Policy referred to above in subparagraph (kk), have discharged its
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employees Carl Nelson, Ken Mitchell, Jesse Sellers and Doug King and other similarly situated
employees whose names are presently unknown to the Petitioner.

(mm) Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraphs
(kk) and (1) above because its employees supported and assisted the Union.

(nn)  The following employees of Respondents, herein called the Unit,
constitute a unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of
Section 9(b) of the Act:

All full-time and regular part-time drivers, warehouse employees,

yard jockeys, maintenance employees and warehouse trainees

employed by Respondents at the Center, excluding all other

employees, guards and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(00)  On or about July 27, 1998, a majority of the Unit desqnated and selected
the Union as their representative for the purposes of coIIectwg@a:@‘?ﬁmg with Respondents.

(pp) Atall times sm\g\e omek%%out f]ch;\y 27, 1998, based on Section 9(a) of the
Act, the Union haés(gg@mth\é\@xccl;l?sfi‘\)/e collective bargaining representative of the Unit.

(qq) By the conduct described above in subparagraphs (k) through (t) and (v)
through (z), Respondents have been interfering with, restraining and coercing employees in the
exercise of the rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act in violation of Section 8(a)(1) of the
Act.

(rr) By the conduct described above in subparagraphs (v) through (mm),
Respondents have been discriminating in regard to the hire or tenure or terms or conditions of
employment of its employees, thereby discouraging membership in a labor organization in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.

(ss)  The conduct described above in subparagraphs (k) through (t), (v) through

(mm), (qg) and (rr), is so serious and substantial in character that the possibility of erasing the
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effects of these unfair labor practices and of conducting a fair rerun election by the use of
traditional remedies is slight, and the employees' sentiments regarding representation, having
been expressed through authorization cards, would, on balance, be protected better by issuance
of a bargaining order than by traditional remedies alone.

(tt)  On or about July 28, 1998, the Union, by letter, requested Respondents to
recognize it as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the Unit and bargain
collectively with it as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the Unit..

(uu)  Since on or about July 28, 1998, Respondents have failed and refused to

recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the

Unit.
(vw) The subjects described above in subparagraghga (12:% and (Il) concern
on pugy
wages, hours and other terms and conditions ogAegftpMﬁ%ent of the Unit and are mandatory

40\
subjects for the purposes of cgl @@twe%argammg

(V\XN? Respondents engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraphs
(kk) and (Il), without prior notice to the Union and without having afforded the Union an
opportunity to bargain with Respondents concerning this conduct.

(xx) By the conduct described above in subparagraphs (kk), (1), (uu) and (ww),
Respondents have been failing and refusing to bargain collectively with the exclusive collective
bargaining representative of its employees in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(yy) The unfair labor practices of Respondents described above affect

commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.
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7. Upon information and belief, it may be fairly anticipated that, unless restrained,
Respondents will continue their aforesaid unlawful acts and conduct in violation of Section
8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act.

8. Upon information and belief, unless the continuation or repetition of the above
described unfair labor practices is restrained, a serious failure of enforcement of important
provisions of the Act, and of the public policy embodied in the Act, will result before an ultimate
order of the Board can issue.

9. Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious consequences set forth above, it
is essential, appropriate, just and proper, for the purposes of effectuating the policies of the Act
and of avoiding substantial, irreparable and immediate injury to such policies, to employees, and
to the public interest, and in accordance with Section 10(j) of the AGZg tﬁ@MJendlng the final
disposition of the matters involved herein pir%d%pabe‘f@f%dthe g\(ﬁ\rd Respondents be enjoined
and restrained from the comrg{sgtmo?\t%e\gcts and conduct alleged above, similar or related acts
or conduct or repgﬁ%on: thereof.

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner prays:

1. That the Court enter an order directing Respondents, Aldworth Company , Inc
and Dunkin’ Donuts Mid-Atlantic Distribution Center, Inc., to appear before this Court, at a time
and place fixed by the Court, and show cause, if any there be, why an injunction should not issue
enjoining and restraining Respondents, their officers, representatives, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys, successors and assigns, and all persons acting in concert or participation
with them, pending final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board,

from:

€)] threatening employees with job loss if they seek Union representation;
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(b) soliciting employee complaints and grievances and promising to improve
terms and conditions of employment in order to discourage employees from seeking Union
representation;

(©) threatening employees with loss of benefits if they support the Union;

(d) announcing the creation of benefits in order to discourage employees from
seeking Union representation;

(e) creating the impression among its employees that their Union activities are
under surveillance;

()] soliciting employees to report on the Union activities of others in order to
discourage Union activity;

(9) interrogating employees about their Union g(\:)ting@ggqhé Union activities
of other employees, or the employees’ mvolven%)%fng(mwﬁ%lrnlg\t;}or practice proceedings before
the National Labor Relatlonsg@fw wo- o

(hf‘ threatenmg to discharge, suspend or otherwise discipline employees
because they support the Union;

Q) promising employees wage increases, new work attire and improved
benefits packages in order to discourage them from seeking Union representation;

() telling employees that other employees’ discharges and suspensions
resulted from the employees’ Union and other protected activities;

(K) soliciting employees to campaign against the Union and to falsely tell
other employees that discipline they have received was unrelated to Union activity;

() announcing that employees’ complaints have been responded to favorably

in order to discourage employees from seeking Union representation;
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(m) telling employees that selecting the Union as their bargaining
representative will be futile;

(n) disparaging employees because they support and assist the Union and
engage in other protected activities;

(0) ejecting employees from employer-held meetings with employees because
the employees support the Union;

(p) promising to create new supervisory positions and promotional
opportunities for employees in order to discourage them from selecting the Union as their
bargaining representative;

(a) promising to remove unpopular supervisors in order to discourage
employees from selecting the Union as their collective bargaining rgeprerzqwtzﬁ\/%

(n promising to improve \em%ggeesNﬁ?edIC;umsurance benefits in order to
discourage them from seekln%@@m P\\pre\soe’ntatlon'

(s)ﬂ threatenlng employees with loss of their 401K benefits if they select the
Union as their collective bargaining representative;

) threatening employees with discipline and other unspecified reprisals in
order to discourage them from selecting the Union as their collective bargaining representative;

(v) directing employees to remove Union T-shirts, buttons or other items with
the Union logo while permitting other employees to wear T-shirts, buttons, or other items with
other logos without interference;

(V) accusing employees of disloyalty because they seek Union representation;

(w)  threatening employees with less favorable consideration of requests for

time off if they select the Union as their collective bargaining representative;
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(x) threatening to withhold boot allowance money from employees because
they support the Union;

(y) threatening employees with more onerous working conditions if they
select the Union as their collective bargaining representative;

(2) engaging in the surveillance of Union activities;

(aa) threatening employees with closure of the Distribution Center if they
select the Union as their collective bargaining representative;

(bb) instituting new policies that establish more onerous conditions of
employment because employees seek Union representation;

(cc) discharging, suspending or otherwise disciplining employees because they

support the Union or engage in other protected activities; gus\ 29, 2O\
AU
. on
(dd)  failing or refusing to recogni eoah’(f?%pon request bargain with the Union
ogh 8
1019

as the exclusive collective ggrgﬁimné\\(r)épresentative of employees in the following bargaining
Lo F(a\’\\‘w'\/\
unit (Unit):
All full-time and regular part-time drivers, warehouse employees,
yard jockeys, maintenance employees and warehouse trainees

employed by Respondents at the Center, excluding all other
employees, guards and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(ee) unilaterally instituting new terms and condition of employment including the
new Selection Accuracy Policy
(f)  in any other manner interfering with, restraining or coercing its employees
in the exercise of their Section 7 rights.
2. That the Court enter an Order directing Respondents, their officers,

representatives, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, successors and assigns, and all persons
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acting in concert or participation with them, pending final disposition of the matters involved
herein pending before the Board, to:

@) on an interim basis, offer Leo Leo, Carl Nelson, Robert Moss, Kenneth
Mitchell, Jesse Sellers, Douglas King, and all other employees who were discharged pursuant to
the new Selection Accuracy Policy reinstatement to their former positions, or, if those positions
no longer exist, to substantially equivalent positions without prejudice to their seniority or any
other rights and privileges previously enjoyed, and displacing, if necessary, any employee who
has been hired or reassigned to replace them;

(b) on an interim basis, offer employees Robert Moss, Kenneth Mitchell,

Jesse Sellers and Douglas King reinstatement to the positions and shifts they held prior to

October 13, 1998; . 99,20""
on AUQUS
() on an interim basis, reco%gfléedaﬁﬁ upon request, bargain in good faith
40A%°

with the Union as the excl\g\sxlve@@fgalﬁmg representative of the Unit;

(df‘ on an interim basis, rescind and cease giving effect to the “new Selection
Accuracy Policy,” first implemented in early October 1998;

(e) on an interim basis, restore the terms and conditions of employment as
they existed for Unit employees on July 27, 1998;

()] post copies of the District Court's Opinion and Order in Respondents’
Swedesboro, New Jersey facility, in all locations where other notices to employees are
customarily posted; maintain these postings during the Board's administrative process free from
all obstructions and defacements; and grant to agents of the Board reasonable access to these

facilities in order to monitor compliance with the posting requirement; and
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(9) within twenty (20) days of the issuance of the District Court's Order, file
with the District Court, and serve a copy to Petitioner, a sworn affidavit from a responsible
official of Respondents, setting forth with specificity the manner in which Respondents have
complied with the Court’s Order including where exactly Respondents have posted the
documents required by the Order.

3. That upon return of the order to show cause, the Court issue an order enjoining
and restraining Respondent in the manner set forth above.
4. That the Court grant such further and other relief as may be just and proper.

Signed at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania this 28th day of July, 1999.

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNC(AQ@_L{LOM
Regional Director, Regéo&Fm@“s
National Labor Relations Board

10157
FREDERICK L. FEINSTEII\{,\ COYQ"\\\O'
Wi
General Counseh -
Fra

BARRY J. KEARNEY
Associate General Counsel

DANIEL E. HALEVY,
Regional Attorney, Region Four

SCOTT C. THOMPSON,
Deputy Regional Attorney, Region Four

LEA F. ALVO-SADIKY,

MARGARITA NAVARRO-RIVERA,

DEENA E. KOBELL

Attorneys for Petitioner

National Labor Relations Board,
Region Four

One Independence Mall, 7th Floor
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615 Chestnut Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106

Telephone: (215) 597-9619
(215) 597-7647
(215) 597-7650
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA )

COUNTY OF PHILADELPHIA

N N

I, DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNCAN, being first duly sworn, depose and say that | am
Regional Director of the Fourth Region of the National Labor Relations Board, that | have read
the foregoing Petition and Exhibits and know the contents thereof, that the statements therein
made as upon personal knowledge are true and those made as upon information and belief, |

believe to be true.

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DIJNCAN
AUGYS
on
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 28th day of July, 1999 o A0V

orp
F(an\«\v.\’m’\ ©

NOTARY PUBLIC

j:10jManual\AppendH6.doc
November 2001
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JOSEPH P. NORELLI

WILLIAM A. BAUDLER

KATHLEEN C. SCHNEIDER

National Labor Relations Board, Region 20

901 Market Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, California 94103-1735
Telephone Numbers: (415) 356-5154/356-5194

Attorneys for Petitioner

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

ROBERT H. MILLER, Regional Director of Civil No.
Region 20 of the National Labor Relations
Board, for and on behalf of the NATIONAL

LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
PETITION FQB’ANJ@NCTION UNDER

Petitioner, SEggmlﬁ*‘i%(J) OF THE NATIONAL
\500k 2T ABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED
vs. No. 10" [29 U.S.C. SECTION 160(j)]

Qom'
RECYCLIN% WUS\TXE{IES INC.,

Respondent.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States District Court,
Eastern District of California

Comes now Robert H. Miller, Regional Director of Region 20 of the National
Labor Relations Board, herein called the Board, and petitions this Court, for and on behalf of
the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended [61 Stat.
149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. § 160 (j)], herein called the Act, for appropriate injunctive relief
pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board on a
Complaint of the Acting General Counsel of the Board charging that Recycling Industries, Inc.,

herein called Respondent, is engaging in unfair labor practices in violation of Sections 8(a)(1)

Petition
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and (3) of the Act [29 U.S.C. § 158(1) and (3)]. In support thereof, Petitioner respectfully
shows as follows:

1. Petitioner is the Regional Director of Region 20 of the Board, an agency
of the United States Government, and files this petition for and on behalf of the Board, which
has authorized the filing of this petition.

2. Jurisdiction of the Court is invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act,
which provides, inter alia, that the Board shall have power, upon issuance of a complaint
charging that any person has engaged in unfair labor practices, to petition any United States
district court within any district wherein the unfair labor practices in question are alleged to
have occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate temporary
injunctive relief or restraining order pending final disposition of the matter by the Board.

3. On November 15, 2000, the International Lo%s\hore and Warehouse
Union, Local 17, herein called the Union, filed with th%%aaw%n orlglnal charge in Board Case
20-CA-29897-1 alleging that Res‘E\oanmﬁ%?’engvaG;\ed in unfair labor practices in violation of
Section 8(1), (3) (\Q @W@) ? the Act. On December 14, 2000, a first-amended charge was
filed by the Unlon in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1 alleging that Respondent engaged in unfair
labor practices in violation of Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (4) of the Act. On January 11, 2001, a
second-amended charge was filed by the Union in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1 alleging that
Respondent engaged in unfair labor practices in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3). On
January 31, 2001, a third-amended charge was filed by the Union in Board Case 20-CA-29897-
1 alleging that Respondent engaged in unfair labor practices in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and
(3).

4, The aforesaid charges were referred to Petitioner as Regional Director of
Region 20 of the Board.

5. Upon investigation, Petitioner determined that there is reasonable cause
to believe, as alleged in the aforesaid charges, that Respondent is engaging in unfair labor

practices in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.
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6. On February 28, 2001, the Regional Director of Region 20 of the Board,
upon such charges and pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act [29 U.S.C. § 160(b)], issued a
Complaint against Respondent alleging that Respondent is engaging in unfair labor practices in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.

7. Pursuant to Rule 10(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, true
copies of the aforesaid Complaint and charges in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1 are attached
hereto and marked as Exhibits 1-5, respectively, and are incorporated herein as though fully set
forth.

8. There is a likelihood that the allegations set forth in the Complaint are
true and that Respondent engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices in violation of
Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act. More specifically, and as more particularly described in the
Complaint attached hereto as Exhibit 1, Petitioner alleges that éh%@\ajs a likelihood that
Petitioner will establish the following: ‘(\'\\Jed on p\ug\ﬁ\z ’

1) @ Noé\bmb%étg;%l times, Respondent, a corporation with an
office and place“oqc \pmr\égolxr? 'Sacramento, California, has been engaged in the business of
processing reg;/glable materials.

(b) During the twelve-month period ending May 31, 2000,
Respondent, in conducting its business operations described above in 1(a), sold and shipped
goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly to customers located outside the State of California.

(2 At all material times, Respondent has been an employer engaged
in commerce within the meaning of Sections 2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act [29 U.S.C. 8§ 152(2),
(6), and (7)].

3 At all material times, the Union has been a labor organization
within the meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act [29 U.S.C. § 152(5)].

4 @) At all material times, the following individuals have held

the positions set forth opposite their respective names and have been supervisors of Respondent
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within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act and agents of Respondent within the meaning of

Section 2(13) of the Act:

Scott Kuhnen - General Manager
David Kuhnen - Treasurer
Jose Sanchez - Labor Consultant

(b) At all material times, prior to an unknown date in October
2000, Antonio Cortes occupied the position of leadman for Respondent and was an agent of
Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the Act.

(c) At all material times, after an unknown date in October
2000, Antonio Cortes has occupied the position of Supervisor for Respondent and has been a
supervisor of Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act and an agent of
Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the Act. oA

2
\'291
5) @) The following emglgyé@é%\)tsRespondent, herein called the

e
. . . . arch . I .
Unit, constitute a unit appropriate fgr {he«p@{?bﬁ\'oses of collective bargaining within the meaning

of Section 9(a) of \t{(l\ej Aty CorP-

F(,Baj\l full-time and regular part-time machine operators,
forklift operators, baler operators, buyers, clerical/cashier-
weigh masters, drivers, welders, mechanics, and
sorter/laborers employed by the Employer at its 3300
Power Inn Road, Sacramento, California location;
excluding all other employees, guards and supervisors as
defined in the Act.

(b) During the period from about May 17 to June 3, 2000, a
majority of the Unit designated and selected the Union as their representative for the purposes
of collective bargaining with Respondent.

(c) At all times since June 3, 2000, based on Section 9(a) of

the Act, the Union has been the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.
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(6) Respondent, by Jose Sanchez, at Respondent’s facility:

@) On various unknown dates in about June 2000, told
employees that Respondent would never accept the Union as their collective-bargaining
representative thereby informing employees it would be futile for them to select the Union as
their representative.

(b) On an unknown date in about June 2000, threatened
employees that Respondent would go bankrupt and lay off all its employees if they selected the
Union as their collective-bargaining representative.

@) @) On an unknown date in about June 2000, Respondent, by
Antonio Cortes, at Respondent’s facility, announced that effective July 2000, employees would
receive a wage increase as an inducement for them to abandon their support for the Union.

(b) On unknown dates in July ZOOQZORespondent granted a

vz
wage increase to its Unit employees in order to mduc& 5he‘h‘1‘% abandon their support for the

Union. o A0 @%A afch\
Fran\«\\,,\’“\’\ C’O(‘Cp)q On an unknown date in November or December 2000,
Respondent, by Antonio Cortes, at Respondent’s facility, solicited employees to sign a petition
stating that they no longer want the Union as their collective-bargaining representative.
(8) @) About July 4 and 5, 2000, Respondent held a raffle with
substantial cash prizes for its Unit employees.

(b) As a condition of participating in the raffle described
above in subparagraph 8(a), Respondent required its employees to complete and give to
Respondent for review, a questionnaire containing questions calculated to determine their union
sympathies. 9 @) About May 31, 2000, Respondent suspended its
employee Jorge Ontiveros for one day without pay.

(b) About October 12, 2000, Respondent suspended its

employee Jose Hernandez for two days without pay.
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(c) About October 27, 2000, Respondent suspended its
employee Juan Orozco for one day without pay.

(d) About October 27, 2000, Respondent discharged its
employee Jorge Ontiveros.

(e) About January 19, 2001, Respondent suspended its
employee Juan Orozco for five days without pay.

()] Respondent engaged in the conduct described
above in subparagraph 9(a) through (e) because the employees named therein joined and/or
assisted the Union and engaged in union and/or concerted activities and to discourage
employees from engaging in these activities.

(10)  The conduct described above in paragraphs 6 through 9 is
so serious and substantial in character that the possibility of erasinggt%effects of these unfair
labor practices and of conducting a fair election byh_t\gg&ge\ M\éaxiﬁoﬁal remedies is slight, and
the employees’ sentiments re%\a(g(ji\rqg\%ﬁ\?eas(gntation, having been expressed through
authorization ‘iirfé\ \WQ\NU\, Co%mbélance, be protected better by issuance of a bargaining order
than by traditional remedies alone.

(11) By the conduct described above in paragraphs 6 through 8,
Respondent has been interfering with, restraining, and coercing employees in the exercise of the
rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act in violation of Section 8(a)(1) of the Act.

(12) By the conduct described above in paragraph 9,
Respondent has been discriminating in regard to the hire or tenure or terms or conditions of
employment of its employees, thereby discouraging membership in a labor organization, in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.

(13) The unfair labor practices of Respondent described above

affect commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and 2(7) of the Act.
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9. It may fairly be anticipated that, unless enjoined, Respondent will
continue to repeat the acts and conduct set forth in paragraph 8 or similar or like acts in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.

10. It is likely that substantial and irreparable harm will result to
Respondent’s employees and their statutorily protected right to organize unless the aforesaid
unfair labor practices are immediately enjoined and appropriate relief granted. By its unlawful
conduct, including its termination of union adherent Jorge Ontiveros, its threats not to accept the
Union as the collective-bargaining representative of its employees, its threat to go bankrupt and
lay off all its employees, and granting a unit-wide wage increase, Respondent has, for now,
succeeded in nipping that campaign “in the bud.” That blow to the organizing campaign is not
likely to be remedied through the regular administrative procedures of a Board Order and an
Enforcement Decree of the Court of Appeals, which could take years ta&pnclude By then, the
momentum of the organizing campaign likely W|Ildt@vé“8|35|§ated with the result that
Respondent will have achieved its ul\t@:r@‘égobj:gt\lve of thwarting the organizing campaign,
with little I|kellhg\<2\d ot\ﬂﬁtcd%mage being undone by remedies imposed at the conclusion of the
admlnlstratlveF @nd appellate process. Moreover, studies show that, as time goes by, the
probability increases that employees who have been discharged will obtain work elsewhere and
will be more reluctant to return to work for the employer that unlawfully terminated them,
thereby further dissipating an organizing union’s base of support and correspondingly further
enabling an employer, such as Respondent, to reap irreversible benefits from its unlawful
conduct, all in disregard of the policies of the Act and the public interest.

11. Upon information and belief, it is submitted that, in balancing the equities
in this matter, the harm that will be suffered by the Union, the employees, and the public
interest, and the purposes and policies of the Act if injunctive relief is not granted greatly
outweighs any harm that Respondent may suffer if such injunctive relief is granted.

12. Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious consequences referred

to above, it is essential, just and proper, and appropriate for the purposes of effectuating the
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remedial purposes of the Act and avoiding substantial and irreparable injury to such policies, the
public interest, the employees, and the Union, and in accordance with the purposes of Section
10(j) of the Act that, pending final disposition by the Board, Respondent be enjoined and
restrained as herein prayed.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the following:

Q) That the Court issue an order directing Respondent to file an answer to
each of the allegations set forth and referenced in the said Petition and to appear before the
Court, at a time and place fixed by the Court, and show cause, if any there be, why, pending
final disposition of the matters herein involved now pending before the Board, Respondent, its
officers, representatives, supervisors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons
acting on its behalf or in participation with it, should not be enjoined and restrained from the
acts and conduct described above, similar or like acts, or other conducztgv(‘r\wolatlon of Section
8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act, or repetitions thereof, and tlaa(t)rtHé\%‘ﬁstar%[ Petition be disposed of on
the basis of affidavit and documentary\gvi&@ﬁ’ce Y\/?/Yl\t\hout oral testimony, absent further order of
the Court. win Core

@ V-

(2 That the Court issue an order directing Respondent, its officers,
representatives, supervisors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons acting on its
behalf or in participation with it, to cease and desist from the following acts and conduct,
pending the final disposition of the matters involved now pending before the National Labor
Relations Board:

€)] telling employees that it would be futile for them to select the
Union as their representative;

(b) threatening to file bankruptcy and lay off its employees if they
select the Union as their collective-bargaining representative;

(c) announcing and subsequently granting wage increases to

employees as an inducement for them to abandon their support for the Union;
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(d) soliciting employees to sign a petition stating that they no longer
want the Union as their collective-bargaining representative;

(e) requiring employees to complete a questionnaire containing
questions calculated to determine their union sympathies as a condition of participating in a
raffle with substantial cash prizes;

()] disciplining, suspending or discharging employees because of
their Union and/or other protected concerted activity.

(h) in any other manner interfering with, restraining or coercing its
employees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed them by Section 7 of the Act;

(€)) That the Court further order Respondent, its officers, representatives,
supervisors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons acting on its behalf or in
participation with it, to take the following steps pending the finalgdiigpsition of the matters
herein involved now pending before the National L%R‘(%rd&gim%s‘s%a}d:

€)] offerN E)nt@@h’rb‘éﬁ%‘p%;ment to Jorge Ontiveros to his former job
position and wor(li\igg _qqmti‘iﬁt?rgg,dor if that position no longer exists, to a substantially equivalent
position Withglﬁ prejudice to his seniority or rights and privileges, displacing, if necessary, any
newly hired or reassigned worker;

(b) recognize and bargain with International Longshore and
Warehouse Union, Local 17, AFL-CIO, as the collective-bargaining representative of its

employees in the following unit:

All full-time and regular part-time machine operators,
forklift operators, baler operators, buyers, clerical/cashier-
weigh masters, drivers, welders, mechanics, and
sorter/laborers employed by Respondent at its 3300 Power
Inn Road, Sacramento, California location; excluding all
other employees, guards and supervisors as defined in the
Act.

Petition
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(c) rescind and remove from employees’ personnel files any reference
to unlawful disciplinary actions/warnings and refrain from relying upon such discipline in the
future;

(d) post copies of the District Court’s Temporary Injunction and
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, in English and Spanish, at Respondent’s 3300 Power
Inn Road, Sacramento, California facility, in all locations where notices to its employees are
normally posted; maintain these postings during the Board’s administrative proceeding free
from all obstructions and defacement; grant all employees free and unrestricted access to said
postings; and grant to agents of the Board reasonable access to its Sacramento, California
facility to monitor compliance with the posting requirement; and

(e) within twenty (20) days of the issuance of the Court’s order, file
with the Court, with a copy submitted to the Regional Director of tghezgpard for Region 20, a
sworn affidavit from a responsible official of Respgg@mﬁ\\’s‘%\fﬁ‘nré ;‘orth with specificity the

R . . aren o .
manner in which Respondent is corgp%n@%’iﬁ the terms of the decree, including the locations

of the posted docurp\e}nm\’\ Core

((?1()\K That upon return of said Order to Show Cause, the Court issue an order
enjoining and restraining Respondent as prayed and in the manner set forth in Petitioner’s
proposed temporary injunction lodged herewith.

(5) That the Court grant such other and further temporary relief that may be
deemed just and proper.

DATED AT San Francisco, California, this 14th day of May, 2001.

Robert H. Miller, Regional Director
National Labor Relations Board
Region 20

901 Market Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, California 94103-1735

JOSEPH P. NORELLI
Regional Attorney, Region 20
WILLIAM A. BAUDLER
Petition
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Supervisory Attorney, Region 20
KAHTLEEN C. SCHNEIDER
Attorney, Region 20

KATHLEEN C. SCHNEIDER
Attorney for Petitioner
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO )

Robert H. Miller, being duly sworn, disposes and says that he is the Regional
Director of Region 20 of the National Labor Relations Board, that he has read the foregoing
petition, and the attached affidavits and exhibits in Board Case 20-CA-29897-1 and filed
herewith, and knows the contents thereof; that the statements therein made as upon personal

knowledge are true and that those made on information and belief he believes to be true.

Robert H. Miller

Subscribed and sworn to before me,
a Notary Public in and for the
County within the State aforesaid, coBh arcnNe
this 14th day of May, 2001.
ok
prant V-

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY
AT ASHLAND

D. RANDALL FRYE, Regional Director of
the Ninth Region of the National Labor
Relations Board, for and on behalf of the
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
V. Civil No.

DISTRICT 1199, THE HEALTH CARE AND SOCIAL
SERVICE UNION, SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL
UNION, AFL-CIO-CLC

Respondent

MOTION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER UNDER SECTION 10(j)
OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED

\' AR
on AUQUS

To the Honorable Judges o:\ ghe\gﬂige@%ﬁft%g\vsistrict Court for the Eastern

District of Kentuc\l{ﬂy \Jamshﬁﬁ‘cﬁ”
pra®

The petition of D. Randall Frye, Regional Director of the Ninth Region of the
National Labor Relations Board, herein called the Board, having been filed pursuant to
Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, praying for appropriate
injunctive relief against District 1199, The Health Care and Social Service Union, Service
Employees International Union, AFL-CIO-CLC, herein called respondent, pending final
disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board, now comes
petitioner and respectfully avers as follows:

Upon information and belief as more fully appears from the affidavits attached
hereto, and made a part hereof, substantial and irreparable injury will unavoidably result

to the policies of the Act and to M.E.B. Incorporated d/b/a J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center,

herein called J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center, the charging party before the Board, its



employees, and the patients for whom it provides care, from a continuation of
respondent’s unlawful conduct.

WHEREFORE, petitioner moves;

1. That the Court issue a temporary restraining order forthwith enjoining and
restraining respondent, its officers, agent’s, representatives, servants, employees,
attorneys, and all members and persons acting in concert or participation with them, for a
period of ten (10) days duration as provided for in Rule 65(b) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, from: restraining or coercing the employees of J.J. Jordan Geriatric
Center, or of any other person doing business with J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center, by:

@) Engaging in mass picketing thereby blocking ingress to and egress
from, or in any other manner, preventing, attempting to prevent or hindering
employees, customers, suppliers or other persong gg@\@mﬁ?g‘ %??eaving the
Louisa, Kentucky facility of g.J\.C}g@m&A(?éﬁxz\a\:riec Center.

(g()\\(\ .. \Lnﬂi‘c?iﬁ‘g‘,)'ér attempting to inflict injury or damage to the persons
or pro;:erty, including motor vehicles, of any employees or any persons doing
business with J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center.

(© Threatening nonstriking employees or others with injury to their
person, their families, or damage to property.

(d) Possessing weapons on the picket line or taking pictures of
nonstriking employees or other persons crossing its picket line.

(e) In any other manner, or by any other means. restraining or
coercing the employees of J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center or of any person doing

business with J.J. Jordan Geriatric Center, in the exercise of their rights

guaranteed under Section 7 of the Act.



2. That the Court issue an order directing respondent to appear before this
Court, at a time and place to be fixed by the Court, and show cause, if any there be, why
an injunction should not issue enjoining and restraining respondent, its officers, agents,
representatives, servants, employees, attorneys, and all members and persons acting in
concert or participation with them, pending the final disposition of the matters involved,
pending before the Board, in the manner set forth above and in the petition.

3. That upon the return of the order to show cause, this Court issue an order
enjoining and restraining respondent in the manner set forth above and in the petition.

4, That this Court grant such other and further relief as may be deemed just
and proper.

Dated at Cincinnati, Ohio this 15th day of July 1992.

o 201
D. Randall Frye;Rédiohal Director
Reqi ,Wational Labor Relations Board

598%’@ 3 John Weld Peck Federal Building
550 Main Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202-3271

no- A%
prv GO
gran V-

JERRY M. HUNTER

General Counsel
ROBERT E. ALLEN

Associate General Counsel
EARL L. LEDFORD

Acting Regional Attorney

Carol. L. Shore, Trial Attorney

Region 9, National Labor Relations Board
3003 John Weld Peck Federal Building
550 Plain Street

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202-3271

Telephone:  (513) 684-3686

Attachments
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

EE I I I I S

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNCAN,

Regional Director of the Fourth Region of the
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,
V. Civil No.

HORIZON HOUSE DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES, INCORPORATED

Respondent.

EClE S I S i S i i e S e S I e S e S e S i e S e

o % % % % % % % % % % F * %

n P\ug‘)""‘zg“
. [0)
FINDINGS OF FACTS AN%BDQQN@'?63|ONS OF LAW
10-\
0.

This cause caa}\r\r&e\,tmﬁé*\r%g‘rg'hpon the verified petition and amended petition of Dorothy
L. Moore-DuncaEf Regional Director of the Fourth Region of the National Labor Relations
Board (herein called the Board), for a temporary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) of the
National Labor Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160 (j);
(herein called the Act), pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending
before the Board, and upon the issuance of an order to show cause why injunctive relief should
not be granted as prayed for in said petition and amended petition. The Court has fully

considered the petition, evidence and arguments of counsel and upon the entire record, the Court

makes the following:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Petitioner is Regional Director for the Fourth Region of the Board, an agency of

the United States, and files this Petition for and on behalf of the Board.



2. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act.

3. On October 2, 2000, District 1199C, National Union of Hospital and Health Care
Employees, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, (herein called the Union), pursuant to provisions of the Act,
filed a charge with the Board in Case 4-CA-29830 alleging that Respondent, an employer within
the meaning of Section 2(2) of the Act, has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

4. On February 23, 2001, based upon the charge in Cases 4-CA-29830, the Acting
General Counsel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, by the Petitioner, issued a Complaint and
Notice of Hearing in Case 4-CA-29830, pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, alleging that
Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

o A

9
5. There is, and Petiti%n%@asgfégsonable cause to believe, that the allegations set
CO“ .
forth in the Comg%l(aaigp\mg\tice of Hearing in Case 4-CA-29830 are true, and that Respondent

has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1)
and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

More particularly:

€)) At all material times, Respondent, a Pennsylvania corporation with an
office at 120 South 30" Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, has been engaged in providing health

care and related services to the mentally disabled.

(b) During the past year, Respondent, in conducting its business operations

described above in subparagraph (a), received gross revenues in excess of $250,000 and



purchased and received at its Philadelphia, Pennsylvania office goods valued in excess of $5,000

directly from points outside the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

(©) At all material times, Respondent has been an employer engaged in
commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act, and has been a health care

institution within the meaning of Section 2(14) of the Act.

(d) At all material times, the Union has been a labor organization within the
meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act.

e At all material times, Robert Lindsey and Rita&gg@&w\}]eld the positions

AUQUS

. on

of Respondent’s Human Resources Manager %r%qf Q(tl:\abt%? of Human Resources, respectively,
1019

and have been supervisor\s/\ %t\@@poﬁ?ﬁght within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act and

oK\ Y
agents of Responﬁé%t within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the Act.

() At all material times, since at least July 27, 2000, Respondent has
designated its attorney Guy Vilim as its negotiator for bargaining with the Union and, in that

capacity, he has been an agent of Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(13) of the Act.

(0) The following employees of Respondent constitute a unit, herein called
the Unit, appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section

9(b) of the Act:



All full-time, regular part-time and substitute Resident Advisors Il and IlI
employed in the Bucks County, Pennsylvania Division of Respondent, excluding
all other employees, including home coordinators, team coordinators, program
specialists guards and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(h) On July 3, 1997, the Union was certified as the exclusive collective

bargaining representative of the Unit.

0] At all material times, since July 3, 1997, based on Section 9(a) of the Act,

the Union has been the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the Unit.

() In July 1999, a more precise date being presently unknown to the General

Counsel, date being presently unknown to the Petitioner, Respon%%nztaaﬁﬂ%e Union entered

‘ o AuoY
into their first collective bargaining agreeme%t%ﬁgfem\l%gll%d the Agreement, effective by its
1019
terms from December Zlﬁag%}’m@uﬁ\? September 30, 2000.

gran¥ Y-

(k) On or about July 1, 2000, the Union, by letter, requested Respondent to

begin negotiations for a new collective bargaining agreement.

() From on or about August 14, 2000 until on or about September 30, 2000,
the Union, by several telephone calls from its negotiator Vivian Gioia to Guy Vilim, attempted

to schedule negotiations for a new collective bargaining agreement.

(m)  Since, on or about July 1, 2000, Respondent has failed and refused to

bargain with the Union for a new collective bargaining agreement.



(n) Respondent did not respond to the telephone calls described above in

subparagraph (b).

(0) On or about August 14, 2000, the Union, by letter to Rita Kucsan
requested the following information: (1) recent payroll run; (2) medical benefit information that
included the amount paid by the employees, the amount paid by the employer, and the actual
premium cost; and (3) the number of regular and overtime hours worked by each employee

during the past 12 months per pay period.

(p) On or about August 30, 2000, the Union, b 5@52@% transmission to
p\ug‘)
Robert Lindsey, requested the “Leave/Bank” polch/ 5@550?1*88 to in Article 19 of the Agreement.
40A%°
GorP- No-
Mk

(qf‘ The information described above in subparagraphs (o) and (p),
necessary for, and relevant to, the Union’s performance of its duties as the exclusive collective-

bargaining representative of the Unit.

N Since, on or about August 14, 2000, Respondent has failed and refused to

furnish to the Union the information described above in subparagraph (o).

(s) Since, on or about August 30, 2000, Respondent has failed and refused to

furnish to the Union the information described above in subparagraph (p).



(® On or about August 30, 2000, the Union filed grievances protesting the
following terms and conditions of employment of the Unit: (1) supervisors performing
bargaining unit work; (2) employees not being paid overtime; and (3) failure to post work

schedules.

(v) The subjects set forth above in subparagraph (a), relate to wages, hours
and other terms and conditions of employment of the Unit and are mandatory subjects for the

purposes of collective bargaining.

(V) Since, on or about August 30, 2000, Respondent has failed and refused to

process the grievances described above in subparagraph (t). «29. 20\
pugy
on

(w) Peti\Ei\%Q{e@has-er\é)s'onable cause to believe that, by the conduct described

WV
above in subpara@‘r%%hs (m), (n), (r), (s) and (v), Respondent has been failing and refusing to
bargain with the exclusive collective bargaining representative of its employees in violation of
Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act and that the unfair labor practices of Respondent described

above affect commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

6. It may be fairly anticipated that, unless enjoined and restrained, Respondent will
continue its aforesaid unlawful acts and conduct in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the

Act.

7. Unless the continuation or repetition of the above described unfair labor practices



is restrained, a serious failure of enforcement of important provisions of the Act, and of the

public policy embodied in the Act, will result before an ultimate order of the Board can issue.

8. To avoid the serious consequences set forth above, it is essential, appropriate, just
and proper, for the purposes of effectuating the policies of the Act and of avoiding substantial,
irreparable and immediate injury to such policies, to employees, and to the public interest, and in
accordance with Section 10(j) of the Act, that, pending the final disposition of the matters
involved herein pending before the Board, Respondent be enjoined and restrained from the

commission of the acts and conduct described, similar or related acts or conduct or repetitions

thereof.
0,20\
CONCLUSIONS OF LAWust 27
e ON T
. e e e . a\’C‘(\N.e .
1. This Court has Jurlsdlctl%,%gﬂﬁ‘e parties and of the subject matter of the
, No-
proceeding, and unde((\S\?p&'f@h\fO?ﬁof the Act, is empowered to grant injunctive relief.
pra®
2. There is, and Petitioner has reasonable cause to believe that:

@ Respondent is, and has been at all times material herein, an
employer engaged in commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act.

(b) The Union is, and has been at all times material herein, a labor
organization within the meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act.

(© Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor
practices within the meaning of Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within
the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act, and a continuation of these unfair labor practices

will impair the policies of the Act as set forth in Section 1(b) thereof.



3. To preserve the issues for the orderly determination as provided in the Act, it is
appropriate, just, and proper that, pending the final disposition of the matters herein involved
pending before the Board, Respondent, its officers, representatives, agents, servants, employees,
attorneys, and all members and persons acting in concert or participation with them, be enjoined
and restrained from the commission, continuation, or repetition, of the acts and conduct set forth
in Finding of Facts paragraph 5, subparagraphs (m), (n), (r), (s), (v) and (w) above, acts or
conduct in furtherance or support thereof, or like or related acts or conduct, the commission of
which in the future is likely or may fairly be anticipated from Respondent’s acts and conduct in

the past.

Done at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania this day of 42, o0\ , 2001.

Harvey Bartle, 111,
U.S. District Court Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
HAMMOND DIVISION

Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional Director

of the Twenty-fifth Region of the

National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
V. CIVIL NO.

GREAT LAKES DISTRIBUTING & STORAGE, INC. and
GREAT LAKES PACKAGING, INC.

A
Respondent «22 207
on pugy
5, ArCWE
FINDINGS OF FACTAND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
prn Co®”

This case%&%\\é oﬁ to be heard upon the verified petition of Roberto G. Chavarry,
Regional Director of the Twenty-fifth Region of the National Labor Relations Board, herein
called the Board, for preliminary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor
Relations Act, as amended [61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)], herein called the
Act, pending the final disposition of the matters involved pending before the Board, and upon
the issuance of an order to show cause why injunctive relief should not be granted as prayed for
in said petition. The Court has fully considered the petition, evidence and arguments of counsel

and upon the entire record, the Court makes the following:



l. FINDINGS OF FACT:

1. Petitioner is the Regional Director of the Twenty-fifth Region of the Board, an
agency of the United States, and filed this petition for and on behalf of the Board.

2. On or about November 27, 2000, District No. 90, International Association of
Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO, a/w International Association of Machinists and
Aerospace Workers, AFL-CI0O, herein called the Union, filed a charge with the Board, and on
January 18, 2001 filed an amended charge with the Board alleging, inter alia, that Great Lakes
Distributing & Storage, Inc., herein called GLDS, and Great Lakes Packaging, Inc., herein called
GLP and herein jointly called respondent, has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor
practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

3. The aforesaid charges were referred the Regional Dwectggqﬂﬂw\e Twenty-fifth

on AUQUS
Region of the Board.

4, On February 2\]\ 2001, h\pon the charges filed against respondent by the Union,
the Acting Genergf%:ou;sel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, by the Regional Director,
pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, issued a complaint and notice of hearing against respondent
alleging that respondent engaged in violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

5. There is a substantial likelihood that the Petitioner will, in the underlying
administrative proceeding in Case 25-CA-27340-1 Amended, establish that:

@) At all material times GLDS and GLP have been affiliated business
enterprises with common officers, ownership, directors, management, and supervision; have
formulated and administered a common labor policy; have shared common premises and

facilities; have provided services for and made sales to each other; have interchanged personnel



with each other; and have held themselves out to the public as single-integrated business
enterprises.

(b) Based on its operations described above in Findings of Fact 5(a), GLDS
and GLP constitute a single-integrated business enterprise and a single employer within the
meaning of the Act.

(©) About November 11, 2000, respondent purchased the microwave popcorn
packaging portion of the Valparaiso, Indiana facility of the Orville Redenbacher Popcorn
Division of ConAgra Grocery Products Company, herein called Orville Redenbacher, and since
then has continued to operate the microwave popcorn packaging portion of the business of the
Valparaiso, Indiana facility of Orville Redenbacher in basically unchanged form, and has
employed as a majority of its employees individuals who were pre\go%sgg éh%l?)yees of Orville
Redenbacher. on P2

(d) Based gp@erme operatlons described above in Findings of Fact 5(c),
respondent has cgﬁtanu\ed the employing entity of and is a successor to Orville Redenbacher.

(e) At all material times respondent, with an office and place of business in
Valparaiso, Indiana, herein called respondent's facility, has been engaged within this judicial
district in the co-packaging, distribution and storage of food products. During the past twelve
months, respondent, in conducting its business operations described above, purchased and
received at its Valparaiso, Indiana facility goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly from points
outside the State of Indiana. During the past twelve months, respondent, in conducting its
business operations described above, sold and shipped from its Valparaiso, Indiana, facility

goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly to points outside the State of Indiana. At all material



times respondent has been an employer engaged in commerce within the meaning of Section
2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act.

()] The Union, an unincorporated association, is an organization in which
employees participate and which exists for the purpose, in whole or in part, of dealing with
employers concerning grievances, labor disputes, wages, rates of pay, hours of employment, and
conditions of employment, and is a labor organization within the meaning of Section 2(5) of the
Act.

(9) The following employees of respondent, herein called the Unit,
constitute a unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning
of Section 9(b) of the Act [29 U.S.C. Sec.159(b)]:

All production and maintenance employees, inclus\i)g%(glllghﬂﬂﬁﬁg

I\

and receiving employees of the Egrgglgwf\\hefc}tg Valparaiso, Indiana
409

facility, but\/(\e%\g\lggmgwé\ff)éffice clerical employees, all

prgfgé}s\?\o\:@ employees, all guards, and all supervisors as defined

in the Act.

(h) On April 7, 1978, the Union was certified as the exclusive collective-
bargaining representative of the unit described above in Findings of Fact 5(g), herein also called
the Unit.

Q) At all times since November 11, 2000, and continuing to date, based on
the Findings of Fact 5(c) and 5(d), the Union has been the designated exclusive collective-
bargaining representative for the purpose of collective bargaining of the employees in the Unit.

{)) From about April 7, 1978 to about June 1, 2000 the Union had been the

representative for the purpose of collective bargaining of the employees in the Unit described
4



above in Findings of Fact 5(g) and, by virtue of Section 9(a) of the Act, has been and is now, the
exclusive representative of all the employees in said Unit for the purpose of collective bargaining
with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other terms and conditions of
employment.

(k) At all times since November 11, 2000, and continuing to date, the Union
has been the representative for the purpose of collective bargaining of the employees in the Unit
described above in Findings of Fact 5(g), and, by virtue of Section 9(a) of the Act, has been and
is now, the exclusive representative of all the employees in said Unit for the purpose of
collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other terms
and conditions of employment.

Q) At all material times the following |nd|V|dua(I3%rke§d)tﬁ@b65|tlons set forth
opposite their respective names and have beoeq guggrmﬂsegf respp;\(;ndent within the meaning of

A

Section 2(11) of the Act [29 L\g\%@rpséé 152(11)] and agents of respondent within the meaning

of Section 2(13) Sf?he Act[29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(13)]:

Joe Glusak - Owner and President
Bradly Hendrickson Owner

David Jancosek Owner

William English Owner

Thomas Adams Owner

Kim Defries - Line Supervisor

John Schlink - Maintenance Manager



(m) By letters dated November 20, 2000 and January 19, 2001, the Union
requested that respondent recognize it as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the
Unit and bargain collectively with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of the Unit.

(n) Since about November 20, 2000, respondent has failed and refused to
recognize and bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the
Unit.

6. By the acts and conduct set forth above there is a substantial likelihood that the
Regional Director will establish in the underlying administrative proceeding before the Board
that respondent has interfered with, restrained and coerced its employees, and is interfering with,
restraining and coercing its employees, in the exercise of their rigggs\g@@rﬁ@éa to them by
Section 7 of the Act; that respondent has falleSBa%qf refirsed, andi\ontlnues to fail and refuse to
bargain collectively with the \g@@mas\\%he }:?Jllectlve bargaining representative of its employees;
and that by all of%éld c}(;nduct respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor
practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act and affecting commerce within
the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

7. Unless the interim relief requested is granted and respondent is enjoined and
restrained from engaging in the unfair labor practices referred to above, a serious flouting of the
Act will continue with the result that enforcement of important provisions of the Act and of
public policy will be thwarted because of the reduction of the possibility of fully restoring the
status quo ante is provided. It may be fairly anticipated that, unless enjoined, respondent will

continue to repeat the acts and conduct described above in Findings of Fact 5(n), or similar or

like acts and conduct, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, with the result that
6



employees will be deprived of the rights guaranteed to them by the Act because of the
improbability of being able to restore them to the status quo ante. Such harm clearly outweighs
any harm respondent will suffer if the requested injunctive relief is granted.

It is, therefore, essential, appropriate, just and proper, for the purposes of effectuating the
policies of the Act, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 10(j) thereof, that pending
final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board, respondent be enjoined
and restrained from the commission of the acts and conduct set forth in the order granting
preliminary injunction in this case.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the parties and of the subject matter of this
proceeding and, under Section 10(j) of the Act, is empowered to grant nigjrﬁﬁ‘\/\a relief.

p\ug
2. There is a substantial likelihood tt%a& geim‘i‘iﬁ‘\er WI|| in the underlying

59

administrative proceedlng in g@g%ﬁx \207??40 1 Amended establish that:

(af( The Union is a labor organization within the meaning of Sections 2(5),
8(b) and 10(j) of the Act.

(b) Respondent is an employer engaged in commerce within the meaning of
Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

(©) Respondent has engaged in unfair labor practices within the meaning of
Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and
(7) of the Act, and a continuation of these practices will impair the policies of the Act, as set
forth in Section 1(b) thereof.

3. To preserve the issues for the orderly determination as provided in the Act, it is

appropriate, just and proper, that pending the final disposition of the matters herein involved
7



pending before the Board, respondent, its officers, representatives, agents, servants, employees,
and all members and persons acting in concert or participation with them, be enjoined as set
forth hereinafter in the order granting preliminary injunction in this case.

Entered: , 2001

U. S. District Court Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
EASTERN DIVISION

JOHN KOLLAR, ACTING REGIONAL
DIRECTOR FOR. REGION 8 OF THE
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS
BOARD, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
CIVIL NO. 4:99 CV 0392
V. JUDGE PETER C. ECONOMUS

UNITED STEELWORKERS OF
AMERICA, LOCAL No.2155

and
20!
UNITED STEELWORKERS OF P\ug\)‘r‘f‘ 29,
AMERICA, LOCAL No. 2155-7 N afG‘V‘Ned on
o}
Q!\59
" Colggs,péﬁd%nts
¢.
Fran®

ORDER GRANTING PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

This cause came to be heard upon the verified petition of John Kollar, Acting
Regional Director of the Eighth Region of the National Labor Relations Board, herein
called the Board, for a preliminary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National
Labor Relations Act, as amended, [61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)],
herein called the Act, pending the final disposition of the matters involved pending before
the Board, and upon issuance of an order to show cause why injunctive relief should not
be granted as prayed for in said petition. The Court, upon consideration of the pleadings,

evidence, briefs, arguments of counsel, and the entire record in the case, has made and



filed its findings of fact and conclusions of law finding and concluding that there is
reasonable cause to believe that Respondents have engaged in, and are engaging in, acts
and conduct in violation of Section 8(b)(1)(A) of the Act, affecting commerce within the
meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act, and that such acts and conduct will likely be
repeated or continued unless enjoined.

Now, therefore, upon the entire record, it is,

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, pending the final disposition of the

matters involved pending before the Board:

1. That Respondents, United Steelworkers of America Locals No. 2155 and
2155-7, their officers, agents, representatives, servants, employees, and all members and

persons acting in concert or participation with them be, and they herfg&y@’e,\ enjoined and

p\ug‘)s‘

restrained from restraining and coercing the gg{pég@gqeszdo?%upervisors, or management
personnel in the presence\’\oféaor(kp,lﬁoy@eé%’f\lng Titanium Company, herein called RMI,
or any other p’e@ﬁ\ﬁ\dbmfg business with RMI, by:

(a) Engaging in mass picketing thereby blocking ingress to and egress
from, or in any other manner preventing, attempting to prevent or hindering employees,
customers, or suppliers from entering or leaving the RMI Titanium facility located in
Niles, Ohio.

(b) Inflicting or attempting to inflict injury or damage to the person or
property, including motor vehicles, of any employees or any persons doing business with
RMI Titanium.

(c) Threatening non-striking employees or others with injury to their

person, their families or damage to their property.



(d) Possessing any rocks, bricks projectiles, sticks, clubs, jack-rocks,
nails, explosive devices or any other dangerous weapons at the Respondents’ picket lines
maintained at RMI's Niles, Ohio facility, or within one mile of such facility.

(e) Surveilling employees and/or persons doing business with RMI at
RMI's Niles, Ohio facility by the use of video cameras, film or digital cameras and/or the
written recording of automobile license plate numbers.

(F) Engaging in any mass picketing, blocking of ingress and egress into or
out of RMI's Niles, Ohio facility and/or by engaging in oral threats and/or physical
assaults against property or persons along Warren Avenue for a distance of one mile in
both directions from RMI's Niles, Ohio facility, which creates a "gauntlet” to persons
either entering or leaving the Niles facility - 29,

(g) Inany other manner, or bgginglr (g{hmdrﬁé\aﬁégrestraining or coercing
the employees or supervis\’\oré &bmw%g\erﬁ\e?lt personnel in the presence of employees of
RMI Titaniurﬁ*@r‘%\’l\;'c\;[\;er person doing business with RMI Titanium, in the exercise of
their rights guaranteed under Section 7 of the Act.

2. (a) That Respondents provide each of their officers, representatives,
agents, members and picketers with a copy of this Order and a clear written directive to
refrain from engaging in any picket line misconduct enjoined by this Court, or any other
similar conduct.

(b) That Respondents post in their business offices and local meeting halls
the Court’s Opinion and Order In this case.

(c) That Respondents provide to this Court, with copies submitted to the

Regional Director of the Eighth Region of the Board within ten (10) days of the issuance



of this Order, sworn affidavits describing with specificity what steps they have taken to
comply with the terms of this injunction, including proof of service of the above
document.

(d) That Respondents designate a picket line captain at all times they
maintain a picket line at RMI’s Niles, Ohio facility, who will be present at the picket line
and who will control the conduct of all pickets, and the schedule of identified picket
captains shall at all times be given beforehand to the National Labor Relations Board

(e) That Respondents shall, before each employee shift change at RMI’s
Niles, Ohio facility, police and remove any and all debris in the entranceways and
roadways at the entrances to Gates 1 and 3 at the Niles facility.

3. That the United States Marshals take all actions deemed&rlzqfeg@aﬂ/ to enforce
AUQUS
the provisions and prohibitions set forth in thisAOarYQ@\med on
[6!
. 0199 . .
4. That this case shall (@,m&ﬁﬁ-én the docket of this Court and on compliance by
T &0

Repondents V\ﬁtﬁ“t\ﬁ\e\{r' obligations undertaken hereto, and upon disposition of the matters
pending before the Board, the Petitioner shall cause this proceeding to be dismissed.

Dated at Youngstown, Ohio this 10th day of March 1999.

Peter C. Economus
United States District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
HAMMOND DIVISION

Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional Director

of the Twenty-fifth Region of the

National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

Petitioner
V. CIVIL NO.

GREAT LAKES DISTRIBUTING & STORAGE, INC. and
GREAT LAKES PACKAGING, INC.

Respondent

(cnNe
ORDER GRANTING\PR@@MNARY INJUNCTION
No-
“ .
This cause carQ\e\}prb%\’hgaoré) upon the verified petition of Roberto G. Chavarry, Regional
pra®

Director of the Twenty-fifth Region of the National Labor Relations Board, herein called the

Board, for preliminary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act,
as amended [61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)], herein called the Act, pending the
final disposition of the matters involved pending before the Board, and upon the issuance of an
order to show cause why injunctive relief should not be granted as prayed for in said petition.
The Court, upon consideration of the pleadings, evidence, briefs, arguments of counsel, and the
entire record in this case, has made and filed its findings of fact and conclusions of law finding
and concluding that there is a likelihood that the Regional Director will, in the underlying Board
proceeding, establish that respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts and conduct in

violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of



Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act, and that such acts and conduct will likely be repeated or
continued unless enjoined.

Now, therefore, upon the entire record, it is

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pending final disposition of the matters
involved pending before the National Labor Relations Board, herein called the Board, an
injunction issue enjoining and restraining and ordering and directing respondent Great Lakes
Distributing & Storage, Inc, and Great Lakes Packaging, Inc., its officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys, and all persons acting in concert or participation with it or them, as
follows:

A Enjoining and restraining respondent Great Lakes Distributing & Storage, Inc,
and Great Lakes Packaging, Inc., from: x29120\\

us

u
Q) failing and refusing to recogAtliazY%\Q\ndQ&Bargain collectively in good faith
16
098

with the Union as the exclusi\\i\e égg{ggti\@e-})argaining representative of its employees in the
appropriate colle@tivﬁ\%;r'g\;\?ning unit;

(i) in any like or related manner interfering with, restraining, or coercing its
employees in the exercise of their rights guaranteed them by Section 7 of the Act;

B. Ordering and directing respondent Great Lakes Distributing & Storage, Inc, and

Great Lakes Packaging, Inc., pending final Board adjudication, to:

Q) recognize and on request bargain in good faith with the Union as the
exclusive collective-bargaining representative of its employees in the appropriate collective
bargaining unit respecting rates of pay, hours of work, or other terms and conditions of

employment; (ii) post copies of the district court’s opinion and order at its Valparaiso, Indiana

facility at all locations where notices to employees customarily are posted, maintain said postings



during the pendency of the Board’s administrative proceedings free from all obstructions and
defacements, and grant agents of the Board reasonable access to respondent’s Valparaiso,
Indiana facility to monitor compliance with the posting requirement; and (iii) within twenty (20)
days of the issuance of the district court’s order, file with the court, with a copy submitted to the
Regional Director of the Board for Region 25, a sworn affidavit from a responsible official of
respondent setting forth with specificity the manner in which respondent is complying with the
terms of the decree.

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that this case shall remain on the docket of this Court and
on compliance by respondent with its obligations undertaken hereto, and upon disposition of the
matters pending before the Board, the petitioner shall cause this proceeding to be dismissed.

Dated at Hammond, Indiana, this day of . 2001,

United States District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

*hhkkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkikhkhkkikhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkhihkiihkiik

LEONARD P. BERNSTEIN, Acting Regional
Director for Region Seventeen of the

National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
V. Civil No.
CARTER & SONS FREIGHTWAYS, INC.

*
*
*
*
*
*
Petitioner *
*
*
*
*
*
*

Respondent

*hhkkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkikhkhkkhhhkkhhkhkkhkhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhihkhiikiik

ORDER GRANTING TEMPORARY INJUNCTIONY

crived ©

This cause came on to be heard lép%}{@%‘rﬁ“‘led petition of Leonard P. Bernstein, Acting

Regional Director of (;[\Re\JSe\féf\t%ngHRegion of the National Labor Relations Board, for and on
a

behalf of said Bogr(d, for a temporary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor
Relations Act, as amended, pending the final disposition of the matters involved pending before
said Board, and upon the issuance of an order to show cause why injunctive relief should not be
granted as prayed in said petition. The Court, upon consideration of the pleadings, evidence,
memoranda, argument of counsel, and the entire record in the case, has made and filed its
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, finding and concluding that there is reasonable cause
to believe that Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts and conduct in violation of
Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of said Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and

(7) of said Act, and that such acts and conduct will likely be repeated or continued unless

enjoined.



Now, therefore, upon the entire record, it is

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pending the final disposition of the
matters involved pending before the National Labor Relations Board, Respondent Carter & Sons
Freightways, Inc., its officers, representatives, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, successors
and assigns, and all persons acting in concert or participation with it or with them, be and they
hereby are enjoined and restrained from:

(a) Terminating its employees because of their support for and activities on behalf of the
International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local Union No. 795, AFL-CIO (the Union);

(b) Subcontracting its work to other companies in order to avoid unionization or
bargaining with the Union;

(c) Threatening to close its facility and to discharge employee;ifz gf@mwees continue to
support the union, or its employees select the Ugi?c))gl gv%\th\eéﬁc‘b(ilgc\:)ti\\/)e-bargaining representative;

(d) Ordering employe\ti\s é% \r\g,t,ri‘éve\l?ﬁi\c?n authorization cards they have signed on behalf
of the Union; pracd Y’

(e) Threatening employees with unspecified reprisals because employees continued their
support for and activities on behalf of the Union;

(F) Interrogating employees about their union activities and support and the union
activities and support of other employees;

(9) In any other manner interfering with, restraining or coercing employees in the
exercise of the rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pending the final

disposition of the matters pending before the National Labor Relations Board, Respondent Carter

& Sons Freightways, Inc. its officers, representatives, agents, servants, employees, attorneys,



successors and assigns, and all persons acting in concert or participation with it or them, shall
take the following affirmative action:

(a) Restore and reinstitute the operations at the Wichita, Kansas facility to their status as
of June 19, 1997,

(b) Offer interim reinstatement at the Wichita, Kansas facility, to employees Bill
Casselman, Steve Hoelscher, Ed Newman, and Glen Tucker at their previous wage rates and
working conditions;

(c) Recognize and, upon request, bargain in good faith with the International Brotherhood
of Teamsters, Local Union No. 795, AFL-CIO, as the exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of the Unit described below at Respondent's Wichita, Kansas facility, concerning
their wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. Tgns gadzg)ammg obligation is
effective retroactive to June 19, 1997. The unit IS{:,:A ammed on AUy

All full-time and regulagg -th&ﬁe %lt??)?ckup and delivery drivers and road

drivers emplo ondent at its facility located in Wichita, Kansas, but

excludingroffi e clerlcal employees, dispatchers, professional employees, guards,
and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(d) Post copies of the District Court's Opinion and Order, at Respondent's Wichita,
Kansas facility where notices to employees are customarily posted, said postings to be
maintained during the pendency of the Board's administrative proceedings free from all
obstructions and defacements; and grant to agents of the National Labor Relations Board
reasonable access to Respondent's Wichita, Kansas facility to monitor compliance with this
posting requirement;

(e) File within twenty days of the issuance of the District Court's Opinion and Order, with

a copy submitted to the Regional Director of Region 17 of the National Labor Relations Board, a



sworn affidavit from a responsible official of Carter & Sons Freightways, Inc., setting forth with

specificity the manner in which Respondent has complied with the terms of this Order.

Done at Wichita, Kansas this day of , 1997.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

ROBERT H. MILLER, Regional Director of Civil No.
Region 20 of the National Labor Relations
Board, for and on behalf of the NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

TEMPORARY INJUNCTION
Petitioner,
VS.
RECYCLING INDUSTRIES, INC.

Respondent.

This case c\:’?leg‘gg,b‘é%égrd upon the verified Petition of Robert H.
Miller, Regioq:redﬂ@i\rjé(\:?gr of Region 20 of the National Labor Relations Board,
herein called the Board, for and on behalf of the Board, for a temporary injunction
pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended [29
U.S.C. § 160(j)], herein called the Act, pending the final disposition of the matters
herein involved now pending before said Board, and upon the issuance of an
Order to Show Cause why injunctive relief should not be granted as prayed in
said Petition. All parties were afforded full opportunity to be heard, and the
Court, upon consideration of the pleadings, the affidavits, declarations, and
exhibits, the briefs and arguments of counsel, and the entire record in the case,
has made its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, finding and concluding

that, in the underlying administrative proceeding in Board Case 20-ca-29897-1,

there is a likelihood that Petitioner will establish that Recycling Industries, Inc.,

Temporary Injunction
Page 1
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herein called Respondent, has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts and conduct in
violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act [29 U.S.C. § 158(a)(1) and (3)]
affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 2, subsections (6) and (7) of
the Act [29 U.S.C. § 152(6) and (7)], and that in balancing the equities in this
matter, the said violations of the Act will likely be repeated or continued and will
irreparably harm the employees and the Union and the public interest, and will
thwart the purposes and policies of the Act, unless enjoined.

Now, therefore, upon the entire record, it is hereby

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pending the final
disposition of the matters now pending before the National Labor Relations
Board, Respondent, its officers, representatives, supervisors, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and all persons acting on its behalf or in partigipﬁi\(m with
it, be, and they hereby are, enjoined and restrained frorTh on AugY pet 2

@) telllr\lg emplé%’es :Ehcvould be futile for them to

select International Iqopgkh&e and Warehouse Union, Local 17, AFL-CIO, herein

gran®
referred to as the Union, as their representative;

(b) threatening to file bankruptcy and lay off its
employees if they select the Union as their collective bargaining

representative;

(©) announcing and subsequently granting wage
increases to employees as an inducement for them to abandon their support for the
Union;

(d) soliciting employees to sign a petition stating that

they no longer want the Union as their collective-bargaining representative;

Temporary Injunction
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(e) requiring employees to complete a questionnaire
containing questions calculated to determine their union sympathies as a
condition of participating in a raffle with substantial cash prizes;

() disciplining, suspending or discharging employees
because of their Union and/or protected concerted activity.

(0) in any other manner interfering with, restraining or
coercing its employees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed them by Section 7
of the Act.

It is further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pending the final
disposition of the matters herein now pending before the National Labor
Relations Board, Respondent, its officers, representatives, superwso&%\agents
servants, employees, attorneys and all persons ac%rtg\ [ |th behalf or in
participation with it, shall within f{l\/e (@dé@?’ﬁerﬁ? take the following steps:

n\(\\}_(a}\’\ C o?fer interim employment to Jorge Ontiveros to his

former job pg;iation and working conditions, or if that job position no longer
exists, to a substantially equivalent position without prejudice to his seniority or
rights and privileges, displacing, if necessary, any newly-hired or reassigned
worker;

(b) recognize and bargain with the Union as the
collective bargaining representative of its employees in the bargaining unit
concerning their wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment,
including providing the Union with advance notice and an opportunity to bargain
over any intended changes to their wages, hours and other terms and conditions of
employment;

The appropriate bargaining unit is:

Temporary Injunction
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All full-time and regular part-time machine operators, forklift
operators, baler operators, buyers, clerical/cashier-weigh masters,
drivers, welders, mechanics, and sorter/laborers employed by
Respondent at its 3300 Power Inn road, Sacramento, California
location; excluding all other employees, guards and supervisors as
defined in the Act.

(c) rescind and remove from employees’ personnel files
any reference to unlawful disciplinary actions/warnings and refrain from relying
upon such discipline in the future;

(d) post copies of the Court’s Temporary Injunction
and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, in both Spanish and English, at
Respondent’s 3300 Power Inn Road, Sacramento, California facﬂ%«‘un all
locations where notices to its employees are normal&yo(pﬁét%\ malntam these
postings during the Board’s admlnlstr@@mé%‘ofocgggmg free from all obstructions
and defacement; (g‘ant\aﬂ‘rérﬂpfoyees free and unrestricted access to said postings;
and grant toFa(gaents of the Board reasonable access to the facility to monitor
compliance with the posting requirement; and

(e) within twenty (20) days of the issuance of the
Court’s order, file with the Court, with a copy submitted to the Regional Director
of the Board for Region 20, a sworn affidavit from a responsible official of
Respondent, setting forth with specificity the manner in which Respondent is
complying with the terms of the decree.

DATED AT San Francisco, California, this day of
, 2001.

United States District Judge
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
EASTERN DIVISION

JOHN KOLLAR, Acting Regional CASE NO. 4:99 CV 0392
Director for Region 8 of the
National Labor Relations Board, for
and on Behalf of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Petitioner JUDGE PETER C. ECONOMUS

VS.

UNITED STEEL WORKERS OF
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 2155

and UNITED STEELWORKERS OF
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 2155-7,

Respondents

onive
TEMPORARY\RE@f’ﬁRINING ORDER
No-
“ .9
The petitio\p\ gf\éﬁhh%oﬁar, Acting Regional Director for Region 8 of the
pra®
National Labor Relations Board, herein the Board, for and on behalf of the Board, having

been filed and properly served on United Steelworkers of America Local No. 2155 and
Local No. 2155-7, herein jointly referred to as the Respondents, pursuant to Section 10(j)
of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j), herein the
Act, following the issuance of the unfair labor practice complaint in Case 8-CA-__
praying for a temporary injunction order against the Respondents, pending final
disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board, and Petitioner
having filed a motion for a temporary restraining order, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b),

the petition and motion being verified and supported by affidavits and exhibits; and



IT APPEARING to the Court from the verified petition, motion, other pleadings,
affidavits, exhibits, argument of counsel, the hearing held before the Courton
and the entire record in this matter, that:

1. There is reasonable cause to believe [in traditional equity circuits, use the
"likelihood of success on the merits" standard] that Respondents are statutory labor
organizations within the meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act;

2. There is reasonable cause to believe that the Respondents through their
agents have engaged, inter alia, in picket line violence, threats and property damage,
mass picketing and blocking of ingress and egress at the facility of RMI Titanium located
in Niles, Ohio;

3. There is reasonable cause to believe that the above;g%%grfglmed conduct of
the Respondents violates Section 8(b)(1)(A)9<§Atggﬁeeé)n%“tﬁ\§tgsuaid unfair labor practices
affect commerce or an in%%@@f@&iﬁg’éc?mmerce within the meaning of Section 2(6)
and (7) of thewaet" o

4, There is substantial evidence that local police authorities and state courts
are unable to control and abate the misconduct of the Respondents;

5. There is imminent danger that, absent immediate injunctive relief,
substantial and irreparable injury to the statutory rights of employees under the Act will
be inflicted by the Respondents and that the final administrative order of the Board will
be frustrated or nullified if interim relief is not granted; and

6. It is appropriate and just and proper, within the meaning of Section 10(j)

and Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b) that, pending completion of the hearing before the Court on the

merits of the petition, and for a period of ten (10) days from the entry of this Order, that



the Respondents be temporarily enjoined and restrained from the commission of further
acts and misconduct in violation of the Act as described in the petition.

WHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that United Steelworkers of
America Local No. 2155 and Local No. 2155-7, herein jointly referred to as the
Respondents, their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all members and
persons acting in concert or participation with them, for a period of ten (10) days'
duration from the date of this Order, as provided for in Rule 65(b) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure and pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act, are ENJOINED AND

RESTRAINED from:

1. Engaging in any mass picketing or blocking ingress to or egress from the
RMI Titanium facility located in Niles, Ohio; 5&29120\\

2. Inflicting or attempting to inf(lai?():gf ig‘jéweﬁ Bgnﬁ\;&\: to persons or property,
including motor vehicles,\gfcao%,emﬁlé)%;? of RMI Titanium or of any persons doing
business Withﬂ?M\f\'l\Ji't\z;\nTium;

3. Threatening non-striking employees or other individuals with injury to
their person or their families, or with damage to their property;

4, Possessing any rocks, bricks, projectiles, sticks, clubs, jackrocks, nails,

explosive devices or any other dangerous weapons at the Respondents' picket lines
maintained at the Niles, Ohio facility of RMI Titanium, or within one mile of such
facility;

5. Surveilling employees and/or persons doing business with RMI Titanium
at its Niles, Ohio facility by the use of video cameras, film, or digital cameras and/or the

written recording of automobile/truck license plate numbers;



6. Engaging in any mass picketing, blocking of ingress or egress into or out
of the Niles, Ohio facility of RMI Titanium by engaging in any oral threats and/or
physical assaults against property or persons along Warren Avenue for a distance of one
mile in both directions from the Niles, Ohio facility, which creates a "gauntlet” to persons
either entering or leaving the Niles facility;

7. In any other manner, or by any other means, restraining or coercing the
employees of RMI Titanium or any other person doing business with RMI Titanium in
the exercise of their rights guaranteed under Section 7 of the Act.

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, to assure compliance with the Court's
temporary restraining order and because of the local authorities' inability to deal with the
situation, the United States Marshals Service IS DIRECTED to takeéhg@e&ctions

12
» o ROV
deemed necessary to enforce the provisions and g{rg@@ﬁlé’ﬁ‘s set forth in this Order. A

A
copy of this Order shall b\(i\ sggygq u\;ﬁ?or} ?ﬁ?ﬁ?\ited States Marshal for the Northern
District of Ohige™" o
IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that service of a copy of this Order be made
forthwith by a United States Marshal upon the Respondents, United Steelworkers of
America Local No. 2155 and Local No. 2155-7, in any manner provided in the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure for the United States District Courts and that proof of such

service be filed with the Court.

SO ORDERED this ___ day of , at am/pm at Cleveland, Ohio.

PETER C. ECONOMUS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

j:10jManual\AppendH15.doc



APPENDIX |
SAMPLE PLEADINGS AND ARGUMENTS FOR
10(j) PROTECTIVE ORDER OR
SEQUESTRATION OF ASSETS

Sample Order to Show Cause in Blyer v. Unitron Color Graphics

Sample Affidavit of Regional Director for Order to Show Cause in
Blyer v. Unitron Color Graphics

Sample 10(j) Petition in Cohen v. Estoril Cleaning Co.

Sample Motion for TRO in Cohen v. Estoril Cleaning Co.

Model Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
in Pascarell v. Alpine Fashions, Inc.

Sample Proposed 10(j) Order and TRO in
Blyer v. Unitron Color Graphics

20\
Outline of short memo of points to support TRO reg%@gus‘ 29
o

el
cnive
Model Argument for Protective\gr\dﬁ%%equestration of Assets
0.

“ .
Sample Mempl\aﬁlﬁh%oo‘f) Points and Authorities in
in ColveRY' Estoril Cleaning Co.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e e

ALVIN BLYER, Regional Director
of Region 29 of the National Labor
Relations Board, for and on behalf of
the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
Petitioner
V. Civil No.

UNITRON COLOR GRAPHICS OF
NEW YORK, INCORPORATED

Respondent

*hhkkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkikhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkhhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhkhhkkhhhkkhkihkhihkikiikiik 20'\ ’\

ORDER TO SHOW, CA4ISE
045984
S

The Motion for Tereg&gar\y\@% training Order and the Petition of Alvin Blyer,

Regional Dir@t@&F\%Jdr\TF{:}gion Twenty-Nine of the National Labor Relations Board
(herein called the NLRB or Board), having been filed in this Court pursuant to Section
10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, 61 Stat. 149, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160
(1) (herein called the Act), praying for a Temporary Restraining Order pursuant to Rule
65(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (Fed. R. Civ. P) against Respondent
Unitron Color Graphics of New York, Incorporated also known as LIC Group, Inc.
(hereinafter Respondent) and praying for issuance of an order directing said Respondent

to show cause why a temporary injunction should not be granted as prayed for in said

Petition for Temporary Injunction pending the final disposition of the administrative



matters involved pending before said Board in NLRB Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-
18381, 29-CA-18421 and 29-CA-20680 and, good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent shall appear before this Court at the United
States Courthouse, Court Room , 225 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York, on the

10th__ day of March 1998, at 2:00 p.m., or as soon as thereafter counsel

can be heard, and then and there show cause, if any there be, why, pending disposition by
the Court of the merits of the instant Petition for a temporary injunction, a temporary
restraining order should not issue, enjoining and restraining Respondent, its
representatives, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons acting in concert
or participation with it, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act and Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b) as
prayed for in the aforesaid Petition; and

i)
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Izeas&ga@hf)“sﬁall file an Answer to the
0
. R 019"
allegations of said Petition wqg Ih@élerk of this Court, and serve a copy thereof upon

Cco
T
\.
Petitioner at iﬁsaﬁ‘ﬁice located at National Labor Relations Board, Twenty-Ninth Region,
One MetroTech Center North, 10" Floor, Brooklyn, New York 11201, on or before the

day of 1998, at ; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that upon issuance of any temporary restraining
order in this matter, Respondent shall appear before this Court at the United States
Courthouse in Brooklyn, New York, onthe _ day of 1998,at  .m., or
as soon as thereafter counsel can be heard, and then and there show cause, if any there be,
why, pending the final disposition of the administrative proceedings now pending before
the Board in NLRB Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-18381, 29-CA-18421 and 29-CA-

20680, a temporary injunction should not issue enjoining and restraining Respondent, its



representatives, officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons acting in
concert or participation with it, under Section 10(j) of the Act as prayed for in said
Petition; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service of a copy of this Order, together with a
copy of the Petition and Administrative Complaint, attached affidavits and exhibits and
supporting legal memoranda, be forthwith made by an United States Marshal or an agent
of the Board, 21 years age or older, upon Respondent, and Applied Graphics
Technologies, L.P. or its counsel, Marc Kramer, Esq., in any manner provided in the
Federal Rules and of Civil Procedure for the United States District Courts, by electronic
facsimile transmission or by certified mail, and that proof of such service be filed with
the Court. o\

| find that based on the affidavit of sg&vi&wﬁ@o‘b‘érﬁ\%aliff, that effective notice
of this matter has been pr\E)\vCi}%QQ,w\Re%%b\r?(;aent and that the Court has jurisdiction herein
under 10(j) oﬁmﬁé‘\ﬁgﬁm

ORDERED this day of , 1998, at Brooklyn, New York.

BY THE COURT,;

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

juinjlit\10jManual\UnitronShowCause.doc
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e e

ALVIN BLYER, Regional Director

of the Twenty-Ninth Region

of the National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner
V. Civil No.

UNITRON COLOR GRAPHICS OF
NEW YORK INCORPORATED

Respondent

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e e

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 9 2O\
) S.8.: Mgu‘:‘:‘z ‘
COUNTY OF KINGS ) ) _ccrived on
[6!
Ho. 10

—(\/\ CO"Q.s
I, AIv'mBWeY; E\eing duly sworn, depose and say:

1. I am the Regional Director for Region 29 of the National Labor Relations
Board. I have read the foregoing Motion for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition
for Temporary Injunction and know the contents thereof and the statements therein made
as upon personal knowledge are true and those made as upon information and belief |
believe to be true.

2. Pursuant to Rule 3(c)(4) of the General Rules of the United States District
Court For the Eastern District of New York and 28 U.S.C., Sec. 1657, this proceeding
was brought on by application for Order to Show Cause, rather than by Notice of Motion,
for the following reasons:

(@) 1 have reasonable cause to believe that the activities of Respondent,

Unitron Color Graphics of New York, Incorporated, described in the Petition and



exhibits, occurring in connection with the business operations of other employers
engaged in commerce or in industries affecting commerce, have a close, intimate and
substantial relation to trade, traffic and commerce among the several states and tend to
and do lead to labor disputes burdening and obstructing commerce and the free flow of
commerce, and it may fairly be anticipated that, unless appropriate injunctive relief,
including a temporary restraining order is immediately obtained, that Respondent will
dissipate or disperse its present income and assets, as well as the assets and income it will
derive in the future, with the result that the affected employees will be denied their
statutory rights to the detriment of the policies of the Act, the public interest, the interest
of the individuals, and the interests of the parties involved.

(b) Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act reflects the
Congressional determination that because of the sometimes necessari 9y @@atracted and
time-consuming legal procedures, Congress gave the %@a@d M%er in the public interest
to seek injunctive relief to prevent\gerscméfﬁiqo are V|0Iat|ng the Act from accomplishing
their unlawful pgr‘%%e\ﬂﬁ\&ctlon 10(j), therefore, Congress gave the Board power to
petition any DFI(StI‘ICt Court of the United States for appropriate temporary relief. The
legislative history of the Act shows that Congress intended such power to be exercised by
the Court. S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess. 8, 27 (1947).

3. Accordingly, I respectfully submit that the Congressional mandate referred to
above indicates that the most expeditious procedures available should be utilized in
proceedings of this nature, and that, therefore, good and sufficient reason exists within
the meaning of General Rule 3(c)(4) to bring this matter on by Order to Show Cause,
rather than by Notice of Motion. This action for Injunction Under Section 10(j) of the
Act, seeks to restrain conduct which is currently obstructing or leading to the obstruction
of interstate commerce. Therefore, good cause exists within the meaning of 28 U.S.C.
Sec. 1657 to expedite consideration of this case by allowing it to be heard upon an Order

to Show Cause rather than upon a Notice of Motion.



(c) No previous application has been made for the order or relief sought
herein.
4. On March 9, 1998, Respondent was notified that the Board would be making
application for a temporary injunction order on this date. No attorney has appeared in

this matter for Respondent.

Alvin Blyer

Regional Director, Region 29

National Labor Relations Board

One MetroTech Center North, 10th Floor
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Subscribed and sworn to before me this
th day of March, 1998

Anthony A. Ambrosio

Notary Public, State of New York

No. 30-5066035

Qualified in Nassau County
Commission Expires on , 19
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e

RONALD S. COHEN, Acting Regional Director
of the First Region

of the National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner
V. Civil No.

ESTORIL CLEANING CO., INC,,
Respondent
and
POLAROID CORPORATION,

Party-in-Interest

FTEIAEAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAXd ik
on pugy
PETITION FOR TEMPORARY |NJUNCT|QMPA&W§8ANT TO SECTION 10(J) OF THE

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS AGT.AS AMENDED [29 U.S.C. SECTION 160 (J)]
[AND THEA{_(LdWRﬁ'S ACT [28 U.S.C. SECTION 1651(A)]]*

To the Honorable, Yt%e Judges of the United States District Court, District of Massachusetts:
Comes now Ronald S. Cohen, Acting Regional Director of the First Region of the
National Labor Relations Board (herein called the Board), and petitions this Court for and on
behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended
(61 Stat. 149; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160 (j); herein called the Act), for appropriate injunctive relief,
pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board on an
administrative consolidated complaint of the General Counsel of the Board charging that Estoril

Cleaning Co., Inc. (herein called Respondent or Estoril) has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts

! [The All Writs Act applies only when the Region is authorized to enjoin a third party that
IS not a party to the underlying unfair labor practice case.]



and conduct in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act (29 U.S.C. Sec. 158 (a)(1) and (5).
In support thereof, Petitioner respectfully shows as follows:
1.

Petitioner is the Acting Regional Director of the First Region of the Board, an agency of
the United States Government, and files this petition for and on behalf of the Board, which has
authorized the filing of this petition.

2.

Statutory jurisdiction by this Court over this cause of action and over the Respondent is
invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act.

3.

(A) On or about the dates set forth below in subparagraphs (1)-(4), Service Employees
International Union, Local 254, AFL-CIO, CLC (herein called trfug\?gpgmﬂ@%rging Party),
pursuant to the provisions of the Act, filed vglgr%(g%gf Boﬁ?ﬁ%%gr%es and amended charges, as
follows: e Corp- No-

(1Y(%ﬁ\;\;ﬁarge in Case 1-CA-37811 was filed by the Union on January 6, 2000,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(2) A charge and a first amended charge in Case 1-CA-37828 were filed by the
Union on January 14, 2000 and February 17, 2000, respectively, alleging that Respondent had
engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(3) The charge in Case 1-CA-37875 was filed by the Union on February 8, 2000,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(4) The charge in Case 1-CA-37931 was filed by the Union on February 24,

2000, alleging that Respondent had engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5).



(B)  Based upon the charges filed in Cases 1-CA-37811, 1-CA-37828 and 1-CA-
37875, and after investigation of the aforesaid charges in which Respondent was given the
opportunity to present evidence and legal argument, the General Counsel of the Board, on behalf
of the Board, pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 153(d), by the Regional
Director for the Board’s First Region, pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec.
160(b), issued an Order Consolidating Cases, Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing
(herein called the Consolidated Complaint) against Estoril on February 28, 2000. The
Consolidated Complaint alleges that Respondent violated Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act by
engaging in certain conduct including, inter alia, refusing to execute an agreed upon collective-
bargaining agreement; failing and refusing to provide relevant information which was requested
by the Union; and failing and refusing to bargain over the effects on unit employees of
Respondent's decision to close its operations. (Copies of the foregoir&g;vxeﬁar@@s\ gmd the

. . . jed O0 -
Consolidated Complaint are attached hereto angg%rg ma‘ﬂ‘é’% part hereof as Exhibits Nos. (1) (a)-

. wo. 107

(d) and (2), respectively.) e Core-

© Based (uar()\(\){;\f[ﬁe charge filed in Case 1-CA-37931, and after investigation of aforesaid
charge in which Respondent was given the opportunity to present evidence and legal argument,
the General Counsel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Act, 29
U.S.C. Sec. 153(d), by the Regional Director for the Board’s First Region, pursuant to Section
10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(b), issued a Complaint and Notice of Hearing (herein called
the Complaint) and a Second Order Consolidating Cases against Estoril on March 7, 2000. The
Complaint alleges that Respondent violated Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act by failing to pay
employees for hours worked in January 2000. (Copies of the foregoing Charge, the Complaint

and the Second Order Consolidating Cases are attached hereto and are made a part hereof as

Exhibits Nos. (3), (4), and (5) respectively.)



4,

(A) A hearing on the allegations in the Consolidated Complaint and the Complaint
described in paragraphs 3(B) and 3(C) above is scheduled to be held before an Administrative
Law Judge of the Board on April 3, 2000.

(B)  Counsel for the General Counsel seeks in this pending administrative proceeding
an order against the Respondent from the Board, pursuant to Section 10(c) of the Act, 29 U.S.C.

Sec. 160(c), which will include a monetary remedy of backpay as set forth in Transmarine

Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968), as well as wages due for work performed by the

bargaining unit employees described in paragraph 5(F) below in January 2000.

S. < 29

Upon the basis of the following, Petétjsgggpa&d@é‘segngble cause to believe that the
allegations of the aforesai({/\ggn@@ki@at‘g\g'(;omplaint and Complaint, and more specifically, those
allegations upon &,‘}%‘S\E\ :He monetary remedy may be based, are true and that Respondent has
engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and
(5) of the Act for which a monetary remedy will be ordered by the Board, but that the Board’s
order for such remedy will be frustrated without the temporary injunctive relief sought herein. In
support thereof, and of the request for a temporary injunctive relief, Petitioner, upon information
and belief, shows as follows:

(A) During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent, a corporation
with an office and place of business in Waltham, Massachusetts, herein called Respondent's

Waltham facility, was engaged in the business of providing cleaning services for Party-in-

Interest Polaroid Corporation (herein called Polaroid) in Waltham, Massachusetts.



(B)  During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent, in conducting
its business operations described above in paragraph A, performed services valued in excess of
$50,000 for Polaroid, an enterprise directly engaged in interstate commerce.

(C)  During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent was an
employer engaged in commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act.

(D)  Atall material times, the Union has been a labor organization within the meaning
of Section 2(5) of the Act.

(E) During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, the following individuals
held the positions set forth opposite their respective names and were supervisors of Respondent
within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act and agents of Respondent within the meaning of

Section 2(13) of the Act:

A
N US\. 291 20'\
Emilia Delgado owner , oo PY9
Marco A. Delgado o1 SeROF Vice President
Mayra Martinez NO- 20-19 Personnel Manager
CO"Q.s

i
ik V-
(F) The ?ollowing employees of Respondent, herein called the Unit, constitute a unit

appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section 9(b) of the
Act:

All full-time and regular part-time cleaning employees,
maintenance employees, utility employees and foremen employed
by Respondent at its 1277 Main Street, Waltham, Massachusetts
facility, but excluding office clerical employees, managerial
employees, casual employees, confidential employees, guards,
and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(G)(1) On November 24, 1998, the Union was certified as the exclusive collective-

bargaining representative of the Unit.



(2) At all times since November 24, 1998, based on Section 9(a) of the Act, the Union
has been the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.

(H)(1) About September 29, 1999, the Union and Respondent reached complete
agreement on terms and conditions of employment of the Unit to be incorporated in a collective-
bargaining agreement.

(2) Since about November 15, 1999, the Union has requested that the Respondent
execute a written contract containing the agreement described above in subparagraph H(1).

(3) Since about November 15, 1999, Respondent, by Emilia Delgado and Marco
Delgado, has failed and refused to execute the agreement described above in subparagraph H(1).

(D(2) Since about January 7, 2000, the Union, by letter, has requested that Respondent

furnish the Union with the following information about Unit employees:
(@) names; £ 29
(b) dates of hire; 0,\5%A‘ amh'\\le
©) g\c{\go@lwo?“v%?k; and
F(aﬁ\%dv)‘ addresses.
(2) The information requested by the Union, as described above in
subparagraph 1(1) is necessary for, and relevant to, the Union’s performance of its duties as the
exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.
(3) Since about January 7, 2000, Respondent, by Marco Delgado, has failed and
refused to furnish the Union with the information requested by it as described above in
subparagraph 1(1).

(J)(1) On about January 31, 2000, Respondent ceased operations.



(2) The subject set forth in subparagraph J(1) relates to wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment of the Unit, and the effects of that conduct are mandatory subjects
for the purposes of collective bargaining.

(3) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph J(1), without
prior notice to the Union and without affording the Union an opportunity to bargain with
Respondent with respect to the effects of this conduct.

(K)(1) Since about mid-January, 2000, Respondent has failed to pay employees their
wages.

(2) The subject set forth in subparagraph K(1) relates to wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment of the Unit, and the effects of that conduct are mandatory subjects
for the purposes of collective bargaining.

(3) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in Wa?&graph K(1), without

AUO

oY\

prior notice to the Union and without affordlnqsg@flémbh‘%n opportunity to bargain with
70~

Respondent with respect to Iag efcﬁé@ts\\(\)f this conduct.

Ak V-
(L) By |tsFoveraII conduct, including the conduct described above in paragraphs H, I, J

and K, Respondent has failed and refused to bargain collectively with the exclusive collective-
bargaining representative of its employees in violation of Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act.
(M) The unfair labor practices of Respondent described above affect commerce within

the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

6.
As part of the remedy for the unfair labor practices described above, pursuant to the
Board's decision in Transmarine Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968), at a minimum, the

bargaining unit employees will be entitled to two weeks of backpay, or approximately $15,700.



Additionally, the bargaining unit employees will be entitled to wages earned in January 2000, or
approximately $10,300. The verified affidavit of Compliance Officer Elizabeth Gemperline,

explaining said calculation, is attached hereto as Exhibit 6.

1.

(A) [if applicable: Polaroid Corporation, (herein called Polaroid) was the Respondent’s
sole customer. Polaroid currently owes Respondent $54,331.52 for services rendered. Polaroid
is scheduled to pay this money to Respondent on March 10, 2000.]

(B) On about January 31, 2000, Respondent closed its operations.

(C) The remaining assets of Respondent are uncertain. The Respondent owns no real
property, has closed its only office, and has no other customers.

(D) The Respondent recently has: moved its office without irejfé:{rminbgt}'n\e Union;

on AUO

disconnected its business telephone without pr%gg;ﬂragdﬁ\é’??nion with a new telephone number;
10-\

failed to return numerous t\g\]ﬁgr@u@ca\ﬁ(s}both from the Union and from the Region; refused to
accept certified Ieﬁfear%\ﬁl\‘rvoim the Region; issued checks to employees that have bounced; allegedly
failed to pay employees for their last eleven working days, and paid the Respondent’s
indebtedness for an earlier unfair labor practice charge from a different corporation’s bank
account.

(E) Since the hearing before an administrative law judge is not scheduled to begin until
April 3, 2000, it is highly likely that Respondent will have disbursed of or dissipated all assets
before a Board decision and order could be enforced by an appropriate circuit court of appeals.

8.

(A) Based on the circumstances described above in paragraph 7, there is imminent danger

that substantial and irreparable injury will result to the Unit employees and to the Board’s



administrative proceedings if Respondent disperses or dissipates its income in an attempt to
avoid its backpay liability under the Act.

(B) Since Respondent has ceased operations, if it disperses the money that it receives
from Polaroid, it appears that the Board will have no adequate remedy at law to enforce its
remedial order once it becomes final and the amounts of backpay to employees, as specified
above, become due and owing. Such actions by Respondent, which may fairly be anticipated,
would act to irreparably harm the employee beneficiaries of the prospective Board order, and
would thereby nullify or frustrate the remedial order of the Board. A final and binding Board
and/or Court order rendered months or years from now will be ineffective to remedy
Respondent’s unfair labor practices, particularly since Respondent has ceased operations and its
only known asset is that money owed to it by Polaroid.

’ o POgUSt 20,20V

(A) Section 10(j) of the Act, which %ukh%%gfegm’ﬁ\é\‘ﬁoard to file petitions for temporary
injunctive relief, also authorﬁgﬁdm@ é?\)urt\ to grant such temporary relief, upon the Board’s
application, as the &?o\cﬁrt\J deems just and proper. It appears clear from the circumstances set forth
above that unless Respondent and its agents are restrained from dissipating or dispersing its
present assets, and any income or assets it may receive in the future, unless and until they
discharge any backpay liability caused by their unfair labor practices, pending the Court’s
disposition of the merits of the Petition, any prospective Board order and court judgment thereon
may well be frustrated and rendered impossible of compliance.

(B) Upon information and belief it may be fairly anticipated that unless enjoined and

restrained in the manner requested herein, Respondent will dissipate any assets which it presently

has and will receive in the future, and, thereby, deprive the individual employees, as



beneficiaries of the Board's ultimate remedial order, of the money to which they will be entitled
and which constitutes backpay.

(C) Upon information and belief, unless Respondent and its agents [and Polaroid] are
immediately enjoined as requested herein, a serious flouting of the Act will continue with the
result that enforcement of important provisions of the Act and of public policy embodied therein
will be thwarted before Respondent can be placed under legal restraint through regular
administrative procedures leading to a Board Order and a Decree of a Court of Appeals pursuant
to Section 10(e) or (f) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(e) or (f). Unless injunctive relief is
immediately obtained, it may be fairly anticipated that Respondent will dissipate or disperse its
present income and assets as well as any future income and assets it receives, with the result that
the affected employees will be denied their statutory rights to the detriment of the policies of the
Act, the public interest, the interest of the individuals, and the ingg&t&qﬁaﬂ?@%arties involved.

(D) Respondent [and Party-in-lntereg:[\%%@gcg@\'ﬁ?%?ﬁformed by Petitioner at 2:00 p.m.
and 1:45 p.m., respectivel;\c\ﬂq W@h‘%?éz)oo, that this Petition for Temporary Injunction and
the Motion For Tgfr?[()\\g\r;r‘y Restraining Order in this matter would be filed on March 8, 2000,
and that Petitioner was seeking the Court to order Respondent to deposit $32,202.80, an amount
sufficient to cover the minimum backpay liability, plus estimated interest, into the registry of the
Court pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein before the Board. As of the
filing of the Petition herein, Respondent has not contacted Petitioner.

(E) Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious results referred to in paragraphs 8
and 9 (A) through (C), it is essential, just and proper, and appropriate for the purposes of
effectuating the remedial purposes of the Act and avoiding substantial and irreparable injury to

such policies, and in accordance with the purposes of Section 10(j) of the Act, that pending final

disposition of the administrative matters involved pending before the Board, Respondent be

10



enjoined and restrained from the dissipation or dispersal of assets, as described above, and that
the Court grant such other and further injunctive relief as it may deem appropriate.
10.

The relief prayed for herein has not been previously requested.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the following:

(1) That the Court issue an order directing Respondent to promptly file an answer to the
allegations of this Petition and to appear before this Court, at a time and place designated by this
Court, and show cause, if any there be, why a temporary injunction should not issue, enjoining
and restraining Respondent, its agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons acting in
concert or participation with Respondent, pending final disposition of the administrative matters
before the Board and any judicial review thereof from:

. e . A .
(a) in any manner or by any means distributing, trana&esgrm %9})therW|se
A
on

. . . el :
disposing of assets or funds of Respondent mc%dgggaaﬁy\‘ﬁcome or assets which may be
70
0.
received in the future, excge{\g]@joﬂe“s&)ndent may sell or transfer said assets for full, fair,

o eanY . . .
present con3|dera%|(on, provided that the receipts from any such sale or transfer shall, immediately

upon receipt, be deposited in the registry of the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts until the total amount deposited in that Court's registry in connection with this
case shall equal $32,202.80, to protect the backpay claims created by the unfair labor practices
which may be found by the Board and the Court of Appeals;

(b) unless and until the sum of $32,202.80 is set aside and retained, in any manner
or by any means entering into any arrangement or agreement providing for, or which would
result in, a lien on any of Respondent's current assets or income, or pledging as security or

encumbering any of its current assets or income;

11



(c) unless and until the sum of $32,202.80 is set aside and retained, distributing
any of the Respondent's assets, or income, or divestment thereof, to shareholders, officers or
directors of Respondent, or to any other person, enterprise or entity controlled by, or related to or
affiliated with Respondent without further order of this Court;

(d) concealing, altering or destroying any of Respondent's financial documents.

(2) That the Court further order Respondent and any person, natural or corporate, having
notice of this order and holding funds or proceeds for Respondent’s credit, [including Polaroid,]
to deposit said funds in the registry of the United States District Court, until the total amount
deposited in the registry of the Court in connection with this case shall equal $32,202.80,
pending the Court's ruling on the merits of Petitioner's request for an injunction and further
directs that they stop payment on any checks issued to Respondent as of February 15, 2000.

(3) That the Court further order Respondent, its agents, S(;\rvan&gem?a‘?oyees attorneys,
and all persons acting in concert or part|C|pzétlorb\é@ftarﬁ@é‘ﬁon%%nt pending final disposition of
the administrative matters b%(gr@dmé é\(\)ar?j and any judicial review thereof, to:

(a)‘clmn\?\e\élately based on the income and assets it presently has and from any
income and assets it receives in the future, deposit in the registry of the Court, the total amount
of $32,202.80, or whatever amount less than that it presently has or receives in the future,
pending final disposition of the administrative matters before the Board and any judicial review
thereof;

(b) serve a copy of the temporary injunction upon any person, natural or
corporate, to whom Respondent proposes to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise disperse any of its

assets, and upon any person, natural or corporate, holding for Respondent's credit, funds, income

or proceeds of any sale of Respondent's assets;
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(c) keep, and make available to Petitioner, upon request, for inspection and
copying, written records of each and every transaction involving receipts or expenditures in
excess of $250.00 by Respondent;

(d) keep and make available to the Petitioner, upon request, for inspection and
copying, all financial records and all records kept in the normal course of business by any
corporation or entity under Respondent's control;

(e) within 21 days of the issuance of a temporary injunction, file with the Court a
sworn and notarized affidavit setting forth the actions Respondent has taken to comply with the
Court's Order, and serve a copy of said affidavit upon the Petitioner.

(4) That upon return of said order to show cause, the Court issue an order temporarily
enjoining and restraining Respondent in the manner set forth above pending final disposition of
the administrative proceedings now pending before the Board ingg\ﬁ%&@a@%—CA-SBﬂ, 1-
CA-37828, 1-CA-37875 and 1-CA-37931. £BA arcnve on

A0
(5) That the Court \g\[é\qt@umo%oer and further temporary relief that may be deemed just

oY
and proper. Fre
(6) That the Court grant expedited consideration to this Petition, in accordance with 28

U.S.C. 1657(a) and the remedial purposes of Section 10(j) of the Act.
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Dated this 8" day of March, 2000 at Boston, Massachusetts.

Acting Regional Director, Region 1
National Labor Relations Board
10 Causeway Street, 6th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02222
LEONARD PAGE, General Counsel
BARRY J. KEARNEY, Associate General Counsel
ELLEN A. FARRELL, Assistant General Counsel
ROSEMARY PYE, Regional Director
PAUL J. RICKARD, Assistant to the Regional Director

SARA R. LEWENBERG, Counsel for Petitioner

CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the above document was served upon Respondent Estoril
Cleaning Co., Inc. and Party-in-Interest Polaroid Corporation and the attorney of record for
Polaroid Corporation, by hand, on March 8, 2000.

Sara R. Lewenberg, BBO #634257

juinjlit\10jmanual\Estoril10jPet.doc
June 2001
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e

RONALD S. COHEN, Acting Regional Director
of the First Region

of the National Labor Relations Board,

for and on behalf of the

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner
V. Civil No.

ESTORIL CLEANING CO., INC,,

Respondent
and

POLAROID CORPORATION,

Party-in-Interest

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e e

9,20\

MOTION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER PMRW%\NT TO SECTION 10(J) OF
THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, ASAMENDED [29 U.S.C. SECTION 160 (J)]
[LAND THE ALL WRLIS«AG?\TQS U.S.C. SECTION 1651(A)]]*

QofO
To the Honorable tg\g\duldé’és of the United States District Court, District of Massachusetts:

Comes now Ronald S. Cohen, Acting Regional Director of the First Region of the
National Labor Relations Board (herein called the Board), and petitions this Court for and on
behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended
(61 Stat. 149; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160 (j); herein called the Act) [, and the All Writs Act, 28 U.S.C.
Section 1651(a),] for a temporary restraining order, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b) pending the
final disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board on an administrative
consolidated complaint of the General Counsel of the Board charging that Estoril Cleaning Co.,

Inc., (herein called Respondent or Estoril) has engaged in, and is engaging in, acts and conduct in

! [The All Writs Act applies only when the Region is authorized to enjoin a third party that
IS not a party to the underlying unfair labor practice case.]



violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act (29 U.S.C. Sec. 158 (a)(1) and (5). In support
thereof, Petitioner respectfully shows as follows:
1.

Petitioner is the Acting Regional Director of the First Region of the Board, an agency of
the United States Government, and files this petition for and on behalf of the Board, which has
authorized the filing of this petition.

2.

Statutory jurisdiction by this Court over this cause of action and over the Respondent is
invoked pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act.

3.

(A) On or about the dates set forth below in subparagraphs (1)-(4), Service Employees
International Union, Local 254, AFL-CIO, CLC (herein called trfug\?gpgmﬂ@%rging Party),
pursuant to the provisions of the Act, filed with é%gf Boﬁ?ﬁ%%gr%es and amended charges, as

AD
no. 1
follows: | CorP-

(1Y(%ﬁ\;\;ﬁarge in Case 1-CA-37811 was filed by the Union on January 6, 2000,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(2) A charge and a first amended charge in Case 1-CA-37828 were filed by the
Union on January 14, 2000 and February 17, 2000, respectively, alleging that Respondent had
engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(3) The charge in Case 1-CA-37875 was filed by the Union on February 8, 2000,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(4) The charge in Case 1-CA-37931 was filed by the Union on February 24,

2000, alleging that Respondent had engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5).



(B)  Based upon the charges filed in Cases 1-CA-37811, 1-CA-37828 and 1-CA-
37875, and after investigation of the aforesaid charges in which Respondent was given the
opportunity to present evidence and legal argument, the General Counsel of the Board, on behalf
of the Board, pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 153(d), by the Regional
Director for the Board’s First Region, pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec.
160(b), issued an Order Consolidating Cases, Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing
(herein called the Consolidated Complaint) against Estoril on February 28, 2000. The
Consolidated Complaint alleges that Respondent violated Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act by
engaging in certain conduct including, inter alia, refusing to execute an agreed upon collective-
bargaining agreement; failing and refusing to provide relevant information which was requested
by the Union; and failing and refusing to bargain over the effects on unit employees of
Respondent's decision to close its operations. (Copies of the foregoir&g;vxeﬁar@@s\ gmd the

. . . jed O0 -
Consolidated Complaint are attached hereto angg%rg ma‘ﬂ‘é’% part hereof as Exhibits Nos. (1) (a)-

. wo. 107

(d) and (2), respectively.) e Core-

© Based (uar()\(\){;\f[ﬁe charge filed in Case 1-CA-37931, and after investigation of aforesaid
charge in which Respondent was given the opportunity to present evidence and legal argument,
the General Counsel of the Board, on behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Act, 29
U.S.C. Sec. 153(d), by the Regional Director for the Board’s First Region, pursuant to Section
10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(b), issued a Complaint and Notice of Hearing (herein called
the Complaint) and a Second Order Consolidating Cases against Estoril on March 7, 2000. The
Complaint alleges that Respondent violated Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act by failing to pay
employees for hours worked in January 2000. (Copies of the foregoing Charge, the Complaint,

and the Second Order Consolidating Cases are attached hereto and are made a part hereof as

Exhibits Nos. (3), (4), and (5) respectively.)



4,

(A) A hearing on the allegations in the Consolidated Complaint and the Complaint
described in paragraphs 3(B) and 3(C) above is scheduled to be held before an administrative
law judge of the Board on April 3, 2000.

(B)  Counsel for the General Counsel seeks in this pending administrative proceeding
an order against the Respondent from the Board, pursuant to Section 10(c) of the Act, 29 U.S.C.

Sec. 160(c), which will include a monetary remedy of backpay as set forth in Transmarine

Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968), as well as wages due for work performed by the
bargaining unit employees described in paragraph 5(F) below in January 2000.
o.

Upon the basis of the following, Petitioner has reasonablg\ Sggg@f;e ﬂé?i\e\ve that the
allegations of the aforesaid Consolidated C%ﬂ%@ut@a@‘&%dmopﬁaint, and more specifically, those
allegations upon which the\’\ q\gr@ta@/*r\é\r%e\dy may be based, are true and that Respondent has
engaged in, and igé%%\ggihg in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) and
(5) of the Act for which a monetary remedy will be ordered by the Board, but that the Board’s
order for such remedy will be frustrated without the temporary restraining order sought herein.
In support thereof, and of the request for a temporary restraining order, Petitioner, upon
information and belief, shows as follows:

(A) During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent, a corporation
with an office and place of business in Waltham, Massachusetts, herein called Respondent's

Waltham facility, was engaged in the business of providing cleaning services [for Party-in-

Interest Polaroid Corporation (herein called Polaroid)] in Waltham, Massachusetts.



(B)  During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent, in conducting
its business operations described above in paragraph A, performed services valued in excess of
$50,000 for Polaroid, an enterprise directly engaged in interstate commerce.

(C)  During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, Respondent was an
employer engaged in commerce within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act.

(D)  Atall material times, the Union has been a labor organization within the meaning
of Section 2(5) of the Act.

(E) During the 12-month period ending January 31, 2000, the following individuals
held the positions set forth opposite their respective names and were supervisors of Respondent
within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act and agents of Respondent within the meaning of

Section 2(13) of the Act:

A
N US\. 291 20'\
Emilia Delgado owner , oo PY9
Marco A. Delgado o1 SeROF Vice President
Mayra Martinez NO- 20-19 Personnel Manager
CO"Q.s

i
ik V-
(F) The ?ollowing employees of Respondent, herein called the Unit, constitute a unit

appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section 9(b) of the
Act:

All full-time and regular part-time cleaning employees,
maintenance employees, utility employees and foremen employed
by Respondent at its 1277 Main Street, Waltham, Massachusetts
facility, but excluding office clerical employees, managerial
employees, casual employees, confidential employees, guards,
and supervisors as defined in the Act.

(G)(1) On November 24, 1998, the Union was certified as the exclusive collective-

bargaining representative of the Unit.



(2) At all times since November 24, 1998, based on Section 9(a) of the Act, the Union
has been the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.

(H)(1) About September 29, 1999, the Union and Respondent reached complete
agreement on terms and conditions of employment of the Unit to be incorporated in a collective-
bargaining agreement.

(2) Since about November 15, 1999, the Union has requested that the Respondent
execute a written contract containing the agreement described above in subparagraph H(1).

(3) Since about November 15, 1999, Respondent, by Emilia Delgado and Marco
Delgado, has failed and refused to execute the agreement described above in subparagraph H(1).

(D(2) Since about January 7, 2000, the Union, by letter, has requested that Respondent

furnish the Union with the following information about Unit employees:
(@) names; £ 29
(b) dates of hire; 0,\5%A‘ amh'\\le
©) g\c{\go@lwo?“v%?k; and
F(aﬁ\%dv)‘ addresses.
(2) The information requested by the Union, as described above in
subparagraph 1(1) is necessary for, and relevant to, the Union’s performance of its duties as the
exclusive collective-bargaining representative of the Unit.
(3) Since about January 7, 2000, Respondent, by Marco Delgado, has failed and
refused to furnish the Union with the information requested by it as described above in
subparagraph 1(1).

(J)(1) On about January 31, 2000, Respondent ceased operations.



(2) The subject set forth in subparagraph J(1) relates to wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment of the Unit, and the effects of that conduct are mandatory subjects
for the purposes of collective bargaining.

(3) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in subparagraph J(1), without
prior notice to the Union and without affording the Union an opportunity to bargain with
Respondent with respect to the effects of this conduct.

(K)(1) Since about mid-January, 2000, Respondent has failed to pay employees their
wages.

(2) The subject set forth in subparagraph K(1) relates to wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment of the Unit, and the effects of that conduct are mandatory subjects
for the purposes of collective bargaining.

(3) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in Wa?&graph K(1), without

AUO

oY\

prior notice to the Union and without affordlnqsg@flémbh‘%n opportunity to bargain with
70~

Respondent with respect to Iag efcﬁé@ts\\(\)f this conduct.

Ak V-
(L) By |tsFoveraII conduct, including the conduct described above in paragraphs H, I, J

and K, Respondent has failed and refused to bargain collectively with the exclusive collective-
bargaining representative of its employees in violation of Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act.
(M) The unfair labor practices of Respondent described above affect commerce within

the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

6.
As part of the remedy for the unfair labor practices described above, pursuant to the
Board's decision in Transmarine Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968), at a minimum, the

bargaining unit employees will be entitled to two weeks of backpay, or approximately $15,700.



Additionally, the bargaining unit employees will be entitled to wages earned in January 2000, or
approximately $10,300. The verified affidavit of Compliance Officer Elizabeth Gemperline,
explaining said calculation, is attached hereto as Exhibit 6.

1.

(A) [if applicable: Party-in-Interest Polaroid Corporation, (herein called Polaroid) was
the Respondent’s sole customer. Polaroid currently owes Respondent $54,331.52 for services
rendered. Polaroid is scheduled to pay this money to Respondent on March 10, 2000.]

(B) On about January 31, 2000, Respondent closed its operations.

(C) The remaining assets of Respondent are uncertain. The Respondent owns no real
property, has closed its only office, and has no other customers.

(D) The Respondent recently has: moved its office without informing the Union;
disconnected its business telephone without providing the Unionp\v\\)/(iat\psgf;@v@?él}ephone number;
failed to return numerous telephone calls bogtﬁ\lgrgqgﬁ tiweﬂ‘)hel%r? gnd from the Region; refused to
accept certified letters fror&{@g@e@o?ﬁés\ued checks to employees that have bounced; allegedly
failed to pay emp%?e\\e(\s\%r their last eleven working days, and paid the Respondent’s
indebtedness for an earlier unfair labor practice charge from a different corporation’s bank
account.

(E) Since the hearing before an administrative law judge is not scheduled to begin until
April 3, 2000, it is highly likely that Respondent will have disbursed of or dissipated all assets
before a Board decision and order could be enforced by an appropriate circuit court of appeals.

8.

(A) Based on the circumstances described above in paragraph 7, there is imminent danger

that substantial and irreparable injury will result to the unit employees and to the Board’s



administrative proceedings if Respondent disperses or dissipates its income in an attempt to
avoid its backpay liability under the Act.

(B) Since Respondent has ceased operations, if it disperses the money that it receives
[from Polaroid], it appears that the Board will have no adequate remedy at law to enforce its
remedial order once it becomes final and the amounts of backpay to employees, as specified
above, become due and owing. Such actions by Respondent, which may fairly be anticipated,
would act to irreparably harm the employee beneficiaries of the prospective Board order, and
would thereby nullify or frustrate the remedial order of the Board. A final and binding Board
and/or Court order rendered months or years from now will be ineffective to remedy
Respondent’s unfair labor practices, particularly since Respondent has ceased operations and its
only assets being [that money owed to it by Polaroid.]

’ o POgUSt 20,20V

(A) Section 10(j) of the Act, which %ukh%%gfegm’ﬁ\é\‘ﬁoard to file petitions for temporary
injunctive relief, also authorﬁgﬁdm@ é?\)urt\ to grant such temporary relief, upon the Board’s
application, as the &?o\cﬁrt\J deems just and proper. It appears clear from the circumstances set forth
above that unless Respondent and its agents are restrained from dissipating or dispersing its
present assets, and any income or assets it may receive in the future, unless and until they
discharge any backpay liability caused by their unfair labor practices, pending the Court’s
disposition of the merits of the Petition, any prospective Board order and court judgment thereon
may well be frustrated and rendered impossible of compliance.

(B) Upon information and belief it may be fairly anticipated that unless enjoined and

restrained in the manner requested herein, Respondent will dissipate any assets which it presently

has and will receive in the future and thereby deprive the individual employees, as beneficiaries



of the Board's ultimate remedial order, of the money to which they will be entitled and which
constitutes backpay.

(C) Upon information and belief, unless Respondent and its agents [and Polaroid] are
immediately enjoined as requested herein, a serious flouting of the Act will continue, with the
result that enforcement of important provisions of the Act and of public policy embodied therein
will be thwarted before Respondent can be placed under legal restraint through regular
administrative procedures leading to a Board Order and a Decree of a Court of Appeals pursuant
to Section 10(e) or (f) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(e) or (f). Unless injunctive relief is
immediately obtained, it may be fairly anticipated that Respondent will dissipate or disperse its
present income and assets as well as any future income and assets it receives, with the result that
the affected employees will be denied their statutory rights, to the detriment of the policies of the
Act, the public interest, the interest of the individuals, and the ingg&t&qﬁaﬂ?@%arties involved.

(D) Respondent [and Polaroid] was g\x%r(g;)jfrﬁm’%‘b%jbc;nPetitioner at 2:00 p.m. and 1:45
p.m., respectively, on Mar\c’\bﬂz\, 2000, i?%t ?his Motion For Temporary Restraining Order and the
Petition for Temr%r%?\;\ I\Jr{junction in this matter would be filed on March 8, 2000, and that
Petitioner was seeking the Court to order Respondent to deposit $32,202.80, an amount sufficient
to cover the minimum backpay liability, plus estimated interest, into the registry of the Court
pending the final disposition of the matters involved herein before the Board. As of the filing of
the Motion herein, Respondent has not contacted Petitioner. [Polaroid has been notified that
Petitioner is seeking a Temporary Restraining Order requiring Polaroid to hold all monies due
and owing to Respondent pending this Court’s hearing on the merits of Petitioner’s request for a
temporary injunction.]

(E) Upon information and belief, to avoid the serious results referred to in paragraphs 8

and 9 (A) through (C), it is essential, just and proper, and appropriate for the purposes of

10



effectuating the remedial purposes of the Act and avoiding substantial and irreparable injury to
such policies, and in accordance with the purposes of Section 10(j) of the Act, that pending final
disposition of the administrative matters involved pending before the Board, Respondent be
enjoined and restrained from the dissipation or dispersal of assets, as described above, and that
the Court grant such other and further injunctive relief as it may deem appropriate.

10.

The relief prayed for herein has not been previously requested.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the following:

(1) That the Court immediately execute Petitioner's proposed Order to Show Cause and
thereby cause notice of this Petition to be served upon Respondent [and Polaroid] consistent with
the provisions of Section 10(j);

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMEPI\\\I)gUs,‘ 29, ’20\’\

(2) That the Court hold a hearing onOPségwgr@?ﬂaagt\for a temporary restraining order

on March 8, 2000, or as so\g\fe\g"@ts@f'te\?\%s\counsel may be heard, and thereupon, pending its
ank Y-

consideration of the merits of this Petition, issue a temporary restraining order forthwith
enjoining and restraining Respondent, its officers, agents, representatives, servants, employees,
attorneys, and all members and persons acting in concert or participation with them, for a period
of ten (10) days duration as provided for in Rule 65(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
from:

(A) in any manner or by any means, selling, transferring, dissipating, distributing,
dispersing or otherwise disposing of any of Respondent’s assets or funds, in the disposition of its
business, including, but not limited to, equipment used to carry out Respondent’s business,

finished products, accounts receivable, and monies deposited in Respondent’s bank accounts,

any income or assets which may be received in the future, or incurring any liens on its assets,

11



except as they may be required to do so pursuant to any lien of record recorded prior to the filing
of the charges herein, and further provided that Respondent may sell or transfer assets for a full,
fair, and present consideration actually paid Respondent, provided that the proceeds for any such
sale or transfer shall immediately upon receipt be deposited intact and not disbursed except to the
extent that it is necessary to do so to pay bona fide current business expenses such as rent,
utilities, maintenance, insurance, legal fees and expenses, or to satisfy bona fide liens of records
and judgments of record which were recorded prior to the filing of the charges herein, in the
registry of the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts until the total
amount deposited in the Court's registry in connection with this case shall equal $32,202.80;
provided further that Respondent shall keep, and make available to the Board upon request for
inspection and copying, written records of each and every transaction involving expenditures or
receipts by Respondent in excess of $250. P\ug\ﬁ" 29, 2O\

(B) distributing its assets or tohi g(gggegdﬁ\ﬂgm t(r\le sale or divestment thereof, to
officers, principals, shareho]ﬂgrgomzhp\e\cto\rs of Respondent, or to any other person, entity or
enterprise controﬁed t;;\/\:)r related to or affiliated with, Respondent or its shareholders, officers or
directors, including the repayment of loans to Respondent, or for the payment of unreasonable
salaries to Respondent's officers, shareholders, or directors or their relatives, without further
order of the Court.

(C) concealing, altering or destroying any of its financial documents.

(3) That the Court further order Respondent to deposit said funds in the registry of the
United States District Court, until the total amount deposited in the registry of the Court in

connection with this case shall equal $32,202.80, pending the Court's ruling on the merits of

Petitioner's request for an injunction.

12



(4) That the Court further order Respondent, its agents, servants, employees, attorneys,
and all persons acting in concert or participation with Respondent, pending final disposition of
the administrative matters before the Board and any judicial review thereof, to:

(A) Immediately, based on the income and assets it presently has and from any
income and assets it receives in the future, deposit in the registry of the Court, the amount of
$32,202.80, or whatever amount less than that it presently has or receives in the future, pending
final disposition of the administrative matters before the Board and any judicial review thereof.

(B) Serve a copy of the temporary injunction upon any person, natural or
corporate, to whom Respondent proposes to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise disperse any of its
assets, and upon any person, natural or corporate, holding for Respondent's credit, funds, income
or proceeds of any sale of Respondent's assets.

(5) [if applicable: That the Court enjoin Polaroid from disbu\gg{r@aﬂ%ﬁms or money

on AUO

.0 .
owed Respondent, and further that the Court (irg)%egAP@da\?\ﬁ‘i% to stop payment on any unpaid
AO-

checks issued to Responde\p\%grwﬁfté\koliebruary 15, 2000, pending the Court’s ruling on the

Y-
2 A
s request for a temporary injunction.]

merits of Petitionet
(6) That the Court issue an order directing Respondent to promptly file an answer to the
allegations of the Petition for Temporary Injunction and to appear before this Court, at a time
and place designated by this Court, and show cause, if any there be, why a temporary injunction
should not issue, extending and incorporating the terms of the temporary restraining order and
further enjoining and restraining Respondent, its agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all
persons acting in concert or participation with Respondent, pending final disposition of the

administrative matters before the Board and any judicial review thereof as prayed for in said

Petition.
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(7) That upon return of said order to show cause, the Court issue an order temporarily
enjoining and restraining Respondent in the manner set forth above and in the Petition for
Temporary Injunction pending final disposition of the administrative proceedings now pending
before the Board in NLRB Cases 1-CA-37811, 1-CA-37828, 1-CA-37875 and 1-CA-37931.

(8) That the Court grant such other and further temporary relief that may be deemed just
and proper.

(9) That the Court grant expedited consideration to this Petition, in accordance with 28

U.S.C. 1657(a) and the remedial purposes of Section 10(j) of the Act.

Dated this 8" day of March, 2000 at Boston, Massachusetts.

o \0Agting Regional Director, Region One
Core- National Labor Relations Board
10 Causeway Street, 6th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02222

\,\
gran¥ Y- W

LEONARD PAGE, General Counsel

BARRY J. KEARNEY, Associate General Counsel
ELLEN A. FARRELL, Assistant General Counsel
ROSEMARY PYE, Regional Director

PAUL J. RICKARD, Assistant to the Regional Director
SARA R. LEWENBERG, Counsel for Petitioner

CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the above document was served upon Respondent Estoril
Cleaning Co., Inc, [and Party-in-Interest Polaroid Corporation and the attorney of record for
Polaroid Corporation,] by hand, on March 8, 2000.

Sara R. Lewenberg, BBO #634257

juinjlit\10jmanual\EstorilMtnTRO.doc
June 2001
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
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WILLIAM A. PASCARELL, Regional Director
of Region 22 of the National Labor

Relations Board, for and on behalf of

the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,

V. Civil No.

ALPINE FASHIONS, INC,,

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Respondents.

*hhkkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkikhkhkkhkhkhkkhhhkkhkhhkkhkhhkkhhhkkhhhkkhkhhkhihkhiikiik

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
FOR ISSUANCE OF TEMPORARY INJUNCTION
PURSUANT TO 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j) 20\

ugust
This case was heard upon the verified petEi&Qhaw&ﬁ@nded, of William A. Pascarell,
4590
Regional Director of Region 2(2}0q{),tmq\-|§t0|onal Labor Relations Board (*“the Board”), for a

e
temporary [restmiﬁﬁévorder and] injunction against Alpine Fashions, Inc. (“the Respondent”)

pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act as amended (“the Act”), 61 Stat.
149, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j), pending the final disposition of the matters which are now
before the Board in NLRB Case 22-CA-14948, and upon the issuance of an order to show
cause why injunctive relief should not be granted as prayed for in the petition. [No answer
was filed by the Respondent.] In a hearing on the issues raised by the petition, the Court has
received and fully considered the testimony of witnesses and evidence presented by the
parties. Based upon the petition, testimony of witnesses, exhibits of the parties, the briefs and

argument of counsel and the entire record, the Court makes the following:
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1.

Petitioner is the Regional Director for Region 22 of the Board, an agency of the

United States, and properly filed the petition for and on behalf of the Board.
2.

On or about March 26, 1987 Local 162, International Ladies Garment Workers Union,
AFL-CIO, (“the Union”), pursuant to the provisions of the Act, filed with the Board a charge
in Case 22-CA-14948 alleging that Respondent had engaged in violations of Section 8(a) (1)
and (5) of the Act.

3.

4. cnw ed O°

9o &

Q-

Based upon the charg\ec%pg, after };m impartial investigation, the General Counsel of the
wi

Board, on behal‘f@iﬁl“ﬁ%éJ Board, by the Regional Director for the Board’s Region 22, pursuant
to Section 10(b) of the Act, on or about May 22 and May 28, 1987 issued a complaint and
amended complaint as described below, alleging that Respondent had engaged in, and is
engaging in, unfair labor practices in violation of Section 8(a) (1) and (5) of the Act by failing
to transmit to the Union dues withheld from the wages of its employees, failing to make
pension and welfare contributions required by its collective-bargaining agreement with the
Union, failing to furnish the Union with information about its imminent cessation of
operations, and failing and refusing to bargain with the Union with respect to the effect upon

its employees of its cessation of its operations.



-3-

o.

On June 4, 1987, after securing authorization from the Board, Petitioner filed a
petition with this Court pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j), seeking
a temporary restraining order and injunction against Respondent. The Court caused the
petition, its attachments and exhibits to be duly served on the Respondent.

6.

There is, and Petitioner has, reasonable cause to believe that:

(A) At all material times Respondent is, and has been, a corporation with a facility
located in North Bergen, New Jersey (“the facility”), where it is engaged in the manufacture
of clothing.

(B) During the past 12 months, which period is representatlvs ogali(m&terlal times,
Respondent, in the course and conduct of its buzl nes%\gpeﬁhﬂgnpéugsudescnbed in Findings of
Fact, paragraph 9(A) above p%rc\J@seUJaﬁg r\e?:elved goods and materials valued in excess of
$50,000 which W@@\‘shlpped to Respondent’s facility directly from points outside the State of
New Jersey,

(C) Respondent is, and has been at all material times, an employer within the meaning
of Section 2(2) of the Act, engaged in commerce or an industry affecting commerce within
the meaning of Section 2(2) and (7) of the Act.

(D) At all material times, John Pandolfi has been and is a supervisor of Respondent
within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Act, and/or an agent of Respondent within the
meaning of Section 2(13) of the Act.

(E) 1) The Union is a labor organization within the meaning of Section 2(5) of the

Act.
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2) About October, 1986, a majority of Respondent’s production and maintenance
employees designated and selected the Union as their exclusive representative for the
purposes of collective bargaining.

(F) Since on or about October 20, 1986, and at all material times, the Union, by virtue
of Section 9(a) of the Act, has been the designated exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of Respondent’s production and maintenance employees and, since that date,
the Union has been recognized as such representative by Respondent.

(G) Since October 20, 1986, Respondent has been an employer-member of the
Association of Rain Apparel Contractors, Inc. (“the Association”), and has authorized the
Association to bargain collectively on its behalf with the Union and enter into a collective-
bargaining agreement concerning wages, hours, and other terms and c%(ji;mﬁ\s of
on pugist

: o3
employment of its employees. coph a(chwe
A

(H) On or about NO\ﬁrgg%,lﬂQLé&, the Association and the Union entered into a
coIIective-barg&imhﬁb‘\ﬁjgr\;\gment covering Respondent’s production and maintenance
employees for the period October 20, 1986 to June 30, 1990.

(1) Since on or about January 1, 1987, and continuously thereafter, Respondent has
failed and refused to abide by the terms of its collective-bargaining agreement with the Union
by failing and refusing to remit to the Union union dues deducted from its employees’ wages.

(J) Since on or about February 1, 1987, and continuously thereafter, Respondent has
failed and refused to abide by the terms of its collective-bargaining agreement with the Union

by failing and refusing to make scheduled pension and welfare contributions on behalf of its

employees.
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(K) Since on or about March 2, 1987, and continuously thereafter, Respondent has
failed and refused to furnish the Union with information concerning its imminent cessation of
operations information which is necessary for, and relevant to, the Union’s performance of its
function as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of Respondent’s employees.

(L) Since on or about March 2, 1987, and continuously thereafter, Respondent has
refused to bargain with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of its
employees with respect to the effects on its employees of Respondent’s cessation of its
operations.

(M) By each of the acts and conduct described in the Finding of Fact, paragraphs 6(1),
(J), (K) and (L) above, Respondent has engaged in, and is engaging in, unfair labor practices
affecting commerce as set forth and defined in Section 8(a) (1) and (?)2%qq®%ttion 2(6) and

AUQUS
(7) of the Act. anived ©°

(N) The acts and cor\lgi%%‘gf,m&)gnaer?t set forth in the Findings of Fact, paragraphs
6(1), (3), (K) and:(@)\%k\)]dv;, have a close, intimate, and substantial relation to trade, traffic,
and commerce among the several states and tend to lead to labor disputes, burdening and
obstructing interstate commerce and the free flow of commerce.

(0) The acts and conduct of Respondent described in the Findings of Fact, paragraphs
6(1), (J), (K) and (L), give rise to potential financial liability under the Act and make
Respondent potentially liable for backpay to its employees referred to in the Findings of Fact,

paragraphs 6(E)(2) and (F), and for dues, pension, and welfare fund payments to the Union,

referred to in the Findings of Fact, paragraph 6(E), (F), (G) and (H).



-6-

7.

On May 4, 12 and 20, 1987, Respondent, through its agent, John Pandolfi, advised
Board Agent Donna Tribel that the facility would be closing on or about March 22, 1987, and
that an auction would be held shortly thereafter to liquidate any assets. When Tribel asked if
Respondent would be willing to set aside an amount of money to cover the monetary liability
described in the Findings of Fact, paragraph 6(0) above, Pandolfi agreed to appear in the
Board’s offices with a certified check on March 22, 1987. However, he failed to keep the
appointment. Tribel called Pandolfi on May 26, 1987, at which time Pandolfi told her that the
facility had closed on May 22, 1987 and that he had paid the employees any money due them.
He refused to answer any further questions. On June 2, 1987, Tribel visited the shop and
observed that the operation was continuing. Supervisor Hilda Torr\f;i%gqned Tribel that
Respondent was finishing what work it had ang gzagtgt\wbéli&g\a) %he shop would be closing
by the end of the week.. OnHo& %p@,ul\\ﬁm\egé\,?gS?, by order of the New Jersey Superior
Court, possessim@f\‘t\hve' EZility was returned to the lessor who then bolted the premises.

8.

It may fairly be anticipated, based upon the circumstances and conduct of Respondent
described in paragraph 7 of the Findings of Fact, that Respondent will in fact dissipate or
disperse its assets without adequately providing for its potential monetary liability as
described in paragraph 6(0) of the Findings of Fact, and thus unjustifiably deny its employees

and the Union any opportunity for backpay, back dues and fund contributions to which they

are entitled under the Act.
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9.

Unless a temporary sequestration of assets injunction is issued by this Court as
requested by Petitioner, Respondent’s unfair labor practices will go unremedied, and thus any
final order of the Board will be rendered void or meaningless, frustrating the policies and the
remedial purposes of the Act.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the parties and of the subject matter of this
proceeding, and under Section 10(j) of the Act is empowered to grant temporary injunctive
relief.

2. There is, and Petitioner has, reasonable cause to believe that:

(a) Respondent is, and has been at all material times, an emplo&%r engaged in

AUQUS
commerce or an industry affecting commerce W|th|n éhemﬁ)e‘aﬂmg of Section 2(2), 2(6) and (7)

5984
No. ¢

of the Act. Corp-

i

(b) Resp@vﬁi@h\fjhas engaged in and is engaging in unfair labor practices within the
meaning of Section 8(a) (1) and (5) of the Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of
Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act, and a continuation of these practices will impair the
fundamental policies of the Act, as set forth in Section 1(b) thereof.

(c) The unfair labor practices give rise to and make Respondent liable for backpay to
its employees and back dues and pension and welfare fund payments to the Union.

3. Based upon Respondent’s conduct described in paragraph 7 of the Findings of
Fact, and the circumstances described in paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Findings of Fact, it is

appropriate, just and proper within the meaning of Section 10(j) of the Act that, pending the

final disposition of the matters now pending before the Board, Respondent, its officers,
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agents, servants, employees and attorneys and all persons acting in concert or participation
with it or them are hereby enjoined and restrained from dissipating, transferring or dispersing
any assets or funds Respondent may have, as set forth in the Order Granting Temporary
Injunction, unless and until Respondent discharges any backpay liability caused by its unfair
labor practices or, in the alternative, Respondent furnishes security in the amountof$ by
depositing the sumof $ in the registry of the United States District Court for the District
of New Jersey as described in the Order Granting Temporary Injunction, and is further
enjoined and restrained from concealing or destroying Respondent’s financial or other
business records.

4, In order to ensure compliance with the Court’s temporary injunction Order,
Respondent is further directed: (a) to provide reasonable access to 2gergSrg§“Pet|t|oner upon
request, for inspection and copying, all its flnanC|aI gcgi(ms‘é&g\ ﬁ(?t\a) books, records, federal,

0459842
state and local tax returns, bank beﬁékepage house statements, and other business documents

WG
set forth in the témﬁ%rar;\ixnjunction Order; (b) to grant reasonable access to agents of
Petitioner to Respondent’s North Bergen, New Jersey facility; and (c) within ten (10) days of
the issuance of the Court’s temporary injunction Order, to file an affidavit with the Court,
serving a copy on the Petitioner, (i) listing and describing all present business assets valued in
excess of $250, including their descriptions, locations, estimated fair market value, and the
identities and addresses of all secured creditors having an interest in any such assets, and (i)
stating with specificity what steps Respondent has taken to comply with the terms of the
Court’s temporary injunction Order.

BY THE COURT:

DATE:

j\injlit\10jmanual\AppendI5.doc



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR AR R R R R R R R R R R R e e e

ALVIN BLYER, Regional Director
of the Twenty-Ninth Region
of the National Labor Relations Board,
for and on behalf of the NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
Petitioner
V. Civil No.

UNITRON COLOR GRAPHICS OF
NEW YORK, INCORPORATED
Respondent

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR R R R R R AR R R R R R R R R R R R R e e

ORDER GRANTING TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER PURSUANT TO 10(j)
OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED
[29 U.S.C. SECTION 160(j)] AND FED.R.CIV.P. 65(b)

The Petition of Alvin Blyer, Regional Director of the Twenty-gizrgh@agion of the
National Labor Relations Board, having been fiIegApgvré‘g\aaﬁtB(Sg\gtign 10(j) of the National
Labor Relations Act, as amen\?\egbwgyiﬁg¥%}\: (taemporary restraining order against Unitron
Color Graphics of»NéW \\J(c\;ﬁ Incorporated, also known as LIC Group, Inc. (herein called
Respondent) and for an order directing said Respondent to show cause why a temporary
injunction should not be granted as prayed for in said petition; the petition being verified and
supported by an affidavit and exhibits; and after said Petition was duly served upon the
Respondent and Respondent having had an opportunity to be present at a hearing on Petitioner's

request for a temporary restraining order,

IT APPEARING to the Court from said verified Petition, affidavits, exhibits, and legal

memoranda as well as the evidence and argument presented by Respondent that:



1.
Petitioner is the Regional Director of the Twenty-Ninth Region of the Board, an agency of the
United States Government, and has filed this petition for and on behalf of the Board which has
authorized the filing of this petition.

2.
Statutory jurisdiction by this Court over this cause of action and over the parties has been
properly invoked by Petitioner pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act, and Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(b).

3.
(A) On or about the dates set forth below in subparagraphs (1)-(3), Technical, Office and
Professional Union, Local 2110, United Automobile Agricultural Implement and Aerospace
Workers, AFL-CIO, CLC (herein called the Union or Charging Party), pursuani to the provisions
201

of the Act, filed with the Board charges and amended charges, (gﬂ@xb@%?‘

rived

(1) A charge and a first amend\\e\gl c\l@vgaﬂf?f@é(s;e No. 29-CA-18119 were filed by the
Union on April 11, ;{?\34{] gm\mg)?‘féﬁ, 1954, respectively, alleging that Respondent had engaged
in violations of Sgétion 8(a)(1) and (3) of the Act.

(2) The charge in Case No. 29-CA-18381 was filed by the Union on July 6, 1994,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

(3) The charge in Case No. 29-CA-18421 was filed by the Union on July 18, 1994,
alleging that Respondent had engaged in further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

4.

The charges and amended charges were referred for investigation to the Regional Director of the

Twenty-Ninth Region of the Board.



o.
(A) After investigation by the Regional Office in which Respondent was afforded the
opportunity to present evidence and legal argument on the merits of the charges described above
in paragraphs 3 and 4, the Regional Director, for the Board’s Twenty-Ninth Region, pursuant to
Section 10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(b), issued an Order Consolidating Cases,
Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing (herein called the Consolidated Complaint)
against Unitron Color Graphics of New York Incorporated (herein called Respondent) on August
31, 1994 in Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-18381 and 29-CA-18421. The Consolidated
Complaint alleges that Respondent violated Sections 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act by engaging
in certain conduct including, inter alia, circulating among its employees a petition to decertify
the Union and urging said employees to sign the petition; promising employees\better benefits if

201

they signed the petition, abandoned their membership in the Unig\g@mﬁ ?(%‘rained from engaging

piwed or

in union activities; threatening employegs w,t@%édﬂvgtion in hours and layoffs and issuing
disciplinary Warningﬂl\?\t'ggrg\mf‘i&%‘%bonee/shop steward Adonica Hull because they engaged in
Union activities; ?a:iling and refusing to provide relevant information which was requested by the
Union and failing and refusing to bargain in good faith over the effects on unit employees of
Respondent's decision to close its facility.

(B) In disposition of Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-18381 and 29-CA-18421, Respondent and
the Union entered into an informal settlement agreement, which was approved by the Regional
Director for Region 29 on June 26, 1996. The settlement agreement provided that Respondent

would, inter alia, bargain over the effects upon its bargaining unit employees of its decision to

close its facility.



6.
(A) A charge and a first amended charge in Case No. 29-CA-20680 were filed by the Union on
January 31, 1997, and April 28, 1997, respectively, alleging that Respondent had engaged in
further violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.
(B)The charges and amended charges were referred for investigation to the Regional Director of
the Twenty-Ninth Region of the Board.
(C) After investigation by the Regional Office in which Respondent was afforded the
opportunity to present evidence and legal argument on the merits of the charges described above
in paragraphs 6(A) and (B), an Acting Regional Director, for the Board’s Twenty-Ninth Region,
pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(b), issued an Order Revoking Informal

20\
Settlement Agreement, Order Further Consolidating Cases, Amqgg@d‘%@%%éolidated Complaint
on

and Notice of Hearing (herein called theOA\ngngteﬂACaéﬁggl?gated Complaint) in Case Nos. 29-
CA-18119, 29-CA-;§\%8\}L_,¥29\;\:558‘1982121 and 29-CA-20680, alleging as violations of the Act, the
pre-settlement coflziuct set forth in the Consolidated Complaint, as described above in paragraph
5(A), and additionally alleging that Respondent failed and refused to furnish the Union with
certain requested information, and that Respondent bargained in bad faith by (1) expressing
strong disdain for the Union representative and the Union's effects bargaining proposals; (2)
evidencing a closed-mindedness to the Union's proposals; (3) failing or refusing to respond or
make any counterproposals to the Union's effects bargaining proposals; and (4) failing and
refusing to provide certain information, and that by such conduct it failed to comply with and
violated the terms of the settlement agreement described above in paragraph 5(B) above.

(D) The Regional Director seeks, in the administrative complaint proceeding described in

paragraph 6(C) above, as part of a final remedial order against the Respondent, that the Board



order, under Section 10(c) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(c), a make-whole remedy for the
affected employees who were the victims of Respondent's alleged violations, which order shall
require, as a minimum, two weeks of pay for all of Respondent's employees previously
represented by the Union.
7.

(A)  Atall material times, Respondent was a New York corporation, with its principal office
and place of business located at 47-10 32nd Place, Long Island City, New York, where it was
engaged in performing pre-press color graphics production services for magazines, and related
services.
(B)  During the past year, a period representative of all times material herein, Respondent, in
the course and conduct of its business operations described above in paragraph Z(A), performed
services valued in excess of $50,000 for various enterprisesc:%%a}}g\q@hﬁ%ﬁéas%gt; of New York,
each of which enterprises, in turn, is divr\gct\l&e\@@@ea‘%\ \i\lneterstate commerce and satisfies a
Board standard for tr:\e aésemﬁncbq;?d}isdiction, exclusive of indirect inflow or indirect outflow.
©) RespondeE;ais now, and has been at all times material herein, an employer engaged in
commerce within the meaning of Sections 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(2), (6)
and (7).
(D)  The Union, is now, and has been at all material times, a labor organization within the
meaning of Section 2(5) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 152(5).
(E)  There is and Petitioner has demonstrated reasonable cause to believe that:

(1) Since on or about April 13, 1994, May 16 and June 29, 1994 Respondent failed and

refused to bargain collectively in a timely manner with the Union regarding the effects upon unit

employees of Respondent's decision to sell its business.



(2) The subject set forth in paragraph (E)(1) relates to the wages, hours and other terms
and conditions of employment of the unit employees and is a mandatory subject for the purposes
of collective bargaining.

(3) Since on or about May 16, 1994 and May 31, 1994, Respondent failed and refused to
furnish, or delayed in furnishing, the Union with certain relevant information requested by the
Union.

(4) By the acts described above in paragraphs E(1)-(3), Respondent has failed and refused
to bargain collectively, and in good faith with the exclusive collective bargaining representative
of its employees, in violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act.

8.
There is and Petitioner has reasonable cause to believe that Respondent, in violation of the terms
of the settlement agreement described above in paragrap-h 5((3%)(\@@@3%‘9?1%&%221% the following
conduct: 45084 &

A0
N
(1) Respondent failed er)d W‘f\n‘s&?‘tg furnish the Union with certain relevant information

nK

requested by the Snaion in letters dated November 15, 1996, January 7, 1997, February 25, 1997
and April 22, 1997.
(2) Respondent negotiated in bad faith with the Union regarding the effects of its decision to
close its Long Island City, New York facility upon its bargaining unit employees by its overall
conduct including:

(a) on or about September 12, 1996, expressing strong disdain for the Union
representative and the Union's effects bargaining proposals, evidencing a closed-mindedness to
the Union's proposals;

(b) since on or about September 12, 1996, failing or refusing to respond or make any

counterproposals to the Union's effects bargaining proposals; and



(c) since on or about November 15, 1996, January 7, 1997, February 25, 1997 and April
22,1997, failing and refusing to provide and delaying in providing certain information described
above.

9.
There is and Petitioner has reasonable cause to believe that Respondent's asset purchaser,
Applied Graphics Technologies, L.P., herein called AGT, makes monthly commission payments
to Respondent pursuant to a May 10, 1994 Asset Purchase Agreement, but that these
commissions will end in May 1998.

10.
There is and Petitioner has reasonable cause to believe that since Respondent discontinued its
operations in May of 1994, was dissolved by proclamation on September 24, 1997, because of

non-payment of taxes and has not responded to the request ofJ{k\g&g@bﬁ%f %Oﬁzi\ce that it
voluntarily sequester an amount suffici&?t \tg,qg‘z&‘*tﬁécggcekpay remedy as set forth in
Transmarine Naviqgg\%nv,_c\am\, Q(%QN LRB 389 (1968), that Respondent will dissipate any
income earned frcfr(n AGT and any other sources pending final disposition of the matters involved

herein before the Board.

11.
(A) Unless immediate protection is granted to Petitioner pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(b) requiring
Respondent to set aside sufficient assets and income so as to prevent the imminent dissipation or
dispersal of Respondent's assets and income, a frustration to the ultimate administrative order of
the Board in NLRB Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-18381, 29-CA-18421 and 29-CA-20680
will result.
(B) There is imminent danger that substantial and irreparable injury will unavoidably result to

Petitioner's enforcement of the Act in NLRB Case Nos. 29-CA-18119, 29-CA-18381, 29-CA-



18421 and 29-CA-20680 and that the Board's administrative order will be frustrated if protection
is not granted with a temporary restraining order pending a final adjudication by the Court of the
merits of the Board's Petition for a temporary injunction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ABOVE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that
effectivethe _ day of March, 1998, at _ .m., Respondent, its principals, officers, agents,
attorneys, servants, employees, successors and assigns, and all persons natural or corporate
acting in concert or participation with Respondent be, and they hereby are,

(A) ENJOINED AND RESTRAINED until , 1998, at , and no
longer without further order of this Court from:

(2) In any manner selling, leasing, transferring, assigning, paying over, alienating,
dissipating or otherwise disposing of any and all of Respondent's assets, includi\ng but not limited
0A

2
to real property, buildings and fixtures, leasehold interests, equ(ip&ggnﬁb?%‘ehicles used to carry

nived ©

out Respondent's business, accounts recgi\/\a()lql\e@%érﬁgé on hand, monies that will be received in
the future, or monie;na(t§%ﬂv gé%géited in Respondent's bank or brokerage accounts, unless and
until Respondenthi(rst furnish security in the amount of $23,046.40 by depositing the sum of
$23,046.40 in the registry of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New
York to protect the claims created by their alleged unfair labor practices as set forth in the Acting

Regional Director's Amended Consolidated Complaint in NLRB Cases 29-CA-18119; 29-CA-

18381; 29-CA-18421; 29-CA-20680, PROVIDED HOWEVER, Respondent may sell, transfer or

lease assets in bona fide arms length transactions for a full, fair and present consideration or
rental value actually paid to Respondent, provided that the receipts from any such sale or
transfer, and the rents due pursuant to any such lease shall immediately upon receipt be deposited
in the registry of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York until the

total amount deposited in that Court's registry in connection with this case shall equal



$23,046.40; PROVIDED FURTHER, that Respondent shall keep, and make available to the

Board upon request, for inspection and copying, written records of each and every transaction
involving expenditures or receipts by Respondent in excess of $100.

(2) Unless and until the sum of $23,046.40 is set aside and retained in the manner
set forth above, in any manner or by any means entering into any arrangement or agreement
providing for or which would result in, a lien on any of Respondent's current assets or income or
pledging any of its current assets or income as security or encumbering any of its other current
assets without further order of this Court.

(3) Unless and until the sum of $23,046.40 is set aside and retained in the manner
set forth above, distributing any of Respondent’s income or assets, or the proceeds from the sale,
lease or divestment thereof, to the officers, principals, shareholders or directors of Respondent,

20\
or to any other person, enterprise or entity controlled by, or relatg\gcgo‘iirzagﬁiliated with,

_ _ _ (cniNe on
Respondent or its shareholders, offlcer:,\ gr\%l,r@gﬁ&%,ai ncluding the repayment of loans to
Respondent or for tgg \Rq]ymém S*Pb%‘feasonable salaries to Respondent's officers, shareholders or
directors or their :Iatives, without further order of this Court;

(4) In any manner of by any means concealing, misplacing, altering or destroying
any of Respondent's financial correspondence, books, records, federal, state and local tax returns,
bank or brokerage house statements, or other financial documents.

(B) Affirmatively Ordered and Directed to:

(1) immediately, based on the income and assets it presently has, and from any
income and assets it receives in the future, deposit in the registry of the Court, the total amount
of $23,046.40, or whatever amount less than that it presently has or receives in the future,

pending final disposition of the administrative matters before the Board and any judicial review

thereof.



(2) notwithstanding any other provision of this order, proceeds of the sale,
transfer, lease or other disposition of Respondent's assets for a full fair and present consideration
or rental value, may be applied to bona fide current expenses including federal, state, county and
local taxes, and the satisfaction of bona fide liens of record recorded prior to the entry of this
order, provided however, that in no event shall any payment be made to any officer, principal,
shareholder or director of Respondent, or to any other person, enterprise or entity controlled by,
or related to or affiliated with, Respondent or its shareholders, officers or directors, absent
further order of this Court.

(3) provide notice of this order, in writing, to any person natural or corporate to
whom Respondent proposes to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise disperse of any of its assets or to
any person, natural or corporate holding for Respondent's credit, funds, income or proceeds of

20\
any sale of Respondent's assets; copies of such notices shall benp‘g\ggtm‘i?%‘rovided to the Board.
(0)

cniNe . . .
1. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED thgt' gay\@@f?s‘br? natural or corporate, having notice of this
order and holding fg?\\%s\}‘qp\ﬂ’é&?‘o%hespondent, including Applied Graphics Technologies,
L.P., is directed tg(deposit said funds in the registry of the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of New York, until the total amount deposited in that Court's registry in
connection with this case shall equal $23,046.40; and it is further directed that they stop payment

on any checks issued to Respondent as of _March 6 _, 1998.

10



Il. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service of a copy of this order, when it is issued, be
made forthwith by the United States Marshal or an agent of the Board, 21 years of age or older,
in any manner provided in the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure for the United States District
Courts, or by registered mail, upon Respondent, Applied Graphics Technologies, L.P. and the
Charging Party before the Board, and that such proof of such service be filed with the Court.

ORDERED this day of , 1998, at Brooklyn, New York.

BY THE COURT:

United States District Judge

jinjlit\10jManual\UnitronProtOrder.doc
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Outline of Short Memo of Points in Support of
T.R.O. Request for Protective Order

[2 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]
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Model Argument for
“Protective Order” or Sequestration
of Assets Injunctions Under Section 10(j)
[29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)]
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

RONALD S. COHEN, Acting Regional Director
of the First Region of the

National Labor Relations Board, for

and on behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR
RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner
V. Civil No.
ESTORIL CLEANING CO., INC.

Respondent
and

POLAROID CORPORATION,

Party-in-Interest
20,20\
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES U\kSlHPEbRT OF PETITION FOR
TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER ANDAFEMPORARY INJUNCTION UNDER
SECTION 10(J) OF THE NATIONALADABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED, [29
U.S.C. SECTION 160(J)1LA<BHDPTI-TE ALL WRITS ACT [28 U.S.C. SECTION 1651(A)H1

Frant

I

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This proceeding is before the Court on a petition filed by the Acting Regional Director of
the First Region of the National Labor Relations Board (herein called the Board), pursuant to
Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended (29 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)) (herein
called the Act), for a temporary restraining order and a preliminary injunction pending the final
disposition of the matters involved herein pending before the Board on a Consolidated
Complaint and Notice of Hearing issued by Petitioner on February 28, 2000, in NLRB Cases 1-

CA-37811, 1-CA-37828, and 1-CA-37875, (herein called Consolidated Complaint), and a

! [The All Writs Act applies only when the Region is authorized to enjoin a third party tha
IS not a party to the underlying unfair labor practice case.]
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Complaint and Notice of Hearing issued by the Petitioner on March 7, 2000 in Case 1-CA-37931
(herein called Complaint), alleging that Estoril Cleaning Co., Inc., (herein called Respondent)
violated Sections 8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act, by inter alia, failing to bargain in good faith with
Service Employees International Union, Local 254, AFL-CIO, CLC, (herein called the Union)
over the effects on its bargaining unit employees of its decision to cease its operations, and by
failing to pay bargaining unit employees for work performed during the month of January 2000.
Petitioner seeks a temporary restraining order and other injunctive relief in order to guarantee
that, should the Board find Respondent has violated the Act, as alleged in the Consolidated
Complaint and the Complaint, there will be money to satisfy the Board’s remedial order.
Petitioner seeks a temporary restraining order and other injunctive relief in order to prevent the
Respondent from dispersing or dissipating assets, thereby frustrating any prospective remedial
order of the Board. son Ng\)s& 29
It is recognized that District Courts hak/gg%tgmcw?o grant temporary restraining orders

A0
under Section 10(j). Squil\[\a\ggt@wsﬂ;o\ée(ljl 248, Meat & Allied Food Workers, 534 F.2d 735, 742-

Y-
;aKobeII v. Menard Fiberglass Products, Inc., 678 F. Supp. 1155, 1157 (WD

743 (7th Cir. 1976)

PA 1988).

This Court has the authority to grant a temporary restraining order pursuant to Section
10(j) of the Act [and/or the All Writs Act], but may do so only after a respondent is given proper
“notice.” Adequate and appropriate notice pursuant to Section 10(j) of the Act is provided
where, as here, Respondent [and counsel for Polaroid Corporation, (herein called Polaroid)] were
notified at about 2:00_ p.m. and 1:45 p.m., respectively on March 7, 2000, that a petition for a
temporary restraining order would be filed on March 8, 2000, and that a March 8, 2000 hearing
would be requested. Moreover, Respondent [, Polaroid and Polaroid’s counsel] will be served

with copies of the pleadings herein on March 8, 2000. Squillacote v. Local 248, Meat & Allied

Food Workers, supra, at 743.



1
LEGAL STANDARDS FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Section 10(j) of the Act was enacted by Congress as a means of protecting the Board’s
Orders from remedial failure during the pendency of its administrative proceedings. Absent
interim relief under Section 10(j), those violating the Act (or seeking to evade their liability
thereunder), might be able to accomplish their unlawful objective before being placed under any

legal restraint. Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, 625 F.2d 1047, 1055 (2nd Cir. 1980) [citing S. Rep.

No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess. 27 (1947)].
This case meets the standards for obtaining a Section 10(j) injunction under such First

Circuit cases as Pye v. Sullivan Brothers Printers, 38 F.3d 58, 147 LRRM 2584 (1st Cir. 1994);

Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445, 454, 133\|).R§M92‘2@3 2729-2730 (1st
Cir. 1990); Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 88@!%2@“2? 250523 LRRM 2996, 3000 (1st Cir.
1986); Fuchs v. Jet Spray, 7@\!@8@6& 1\106 LRRM 2191 (1st Cir. 1983), aff'g. 560 F. Supp.
1147, 114 LRRI\/IF§49\§\ (D. Mass. 1983); and Maram v. Universidad Interamericana, 722 F.2d

953, 115 LRRM 2118 (1st Cir. 1983).
The First Circuit’s standards for a temporary restraining order appear to be similar to
those of a standard preliminary injunction, and the same factors are examined. Merril Lynch,

Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc., v. Bishop, 839 F.Supp. 68 (D.ME.1993)

Under the First Circuit's standards, the district court may grant a Section 10(j) petition
upon finding (1) that the Board has "reasonable cause" to believe the Act has been violated, and
(2) that injunctive relief would be "just and proper,” as expressly required by Section 10(j) itself.

Asseo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, Inc., supra at 454; Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., supra

at 25; Fuchs v. Hood Industries, 590 F.2d 395, 397, 100 LRRM 2547, 2549 (1st Cir. 1979). In

Pye v. Sullivan Brothers, the court indicated that if the reasonable cause test still survives, it is,




in any event, subservient to the question, posed under the just and proper standard, of whether
the Board has demonstrated a likelihood of success on the merits. 147 LRRM at 2588, n. 7. On
the basis of the above analysis of the charges, the Petitioner believes that it has satisfied the First
Circuit’s “reasonable cause” standard establishing that violations of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) of
the Act have occurred.

In determining whether injunctive relief is "just and proper," the First Circuit applies the
standards it normally applies for preliminary injunctive relief. Specifically, these standards are:
(1) that the plaintiff will suffer irrevocable injury if the injunction is not granted; (2) that such
injury outweighs any harm which an injunction would inflict on the defendant if granted; (3) that
the plaintiff has shown a likelihood of success on the merits; and (4) that the public interest will

not be adversely affected by granting the injunction. Maram v. Universidad Interamericana,

supra, 115 LRRM at 2121, citing Planned Parenthood League of Mass* VQ%?%ttl 641 F.2d

1006, 1009 (1st Cir. 1981).
In applying these {’\ué\,\a@d(pro\?)\er standards the First Circuit follows the “sliding scale”

approach used by tﬁwe Nlnth Circuit in Miller v. California Pacific Medical Center, 19 F.3d 449,

145 LRRM 2769 (9th Cir. 1994)(en banc). Under this balancing test, as the degree of irreparable
harm increases, the requirement for showing a probability of success on the merits decreases, and
vice versa. Id. at 459-460. If the Board demonstrates that it is likely to prevail on the merits,
irreparable harm may be presumed. If the charge is disputed, or if the Board has only a fair
chance of succeeding on the merits, the court will expressly consider the possibility of

irreparable harm. Miller v. California Pacific, 19 F.3d at 460. If the harm to the plaintiff

outweighs the harm to the defendant, then a Section 10(j) injunction is just and proper. This is

similar to the approach taken by the First Circuit in Pye v. Sullivan Brothers, a case dealing with

allegations of withdrawal of recognition, the repudiation of collective-bargaining agreements,

and a number of unilateral changes. In discussing its application of the just and proper test, the
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court stated: “When, as in this case, the interim relief sought by the Board ‘is essentially the final

relief sought, the likelihood of success should be strong.”” Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d at

29 (emphasis added), 147 LRRM at 2588.

As to the applicability of these standards in a motion for a temporary restraining order
(TRO), the purpose of a TRO is to preserve an existing situation in status quo until the court has
an opportunity to pass upon the merits of the demand for a preliminary injunction. CTC

Communication, Inc., v. Bell Atlantic Corp., 14 F.Supp. 2d 133 (D. ME 1998)

District Courts have recognized the need for injunctive relief under Section 10(j) of the
Act to prevent the dissipation of assets or other conduct by respondents that would render a

backpay order of the Board meaningless. Schaub v. Brewery Products, Inc., 715 F. Supp. 829

(ED MI 1989); Kobell v. Menard Fiberglass Products, Inc., 678 F. Supp. 1155 (WD PA 1988);

and Pascarell v. Alpine Fashion, Inc., 126 LRRM 2242 (D. N.J. g\gg@xzzg-l&%\,}’etitioner asks
the Court to enjoin Respondent under Sectign\%%g)‘ iﬂdt"&'eerdtc?%reserve the ability of the Board
to render a meaningful bac\’\kQ@y@mdér.No' '

The Petitigﬁ%ﬁ:;r‘ein asks that the Court issue a temporary restraining order enjoining
and restraining Respondent from distributing, transferring or disposing of its business assets or
funds, except as permitted by the Court and by the terms of the temporary restraining order, and
also enjoining and restraining Respondent from concealing, altering or destroying any of his
business or personal financial documents. Petitioner asks that the temporary restraining order
direct Respondent to deposit any income it presently has or should receive, immediately upon
receipt, until the amount of $32,202.80 is reached, in the registry of the Court, in an interest
bearing account, pending the Court’s ruling on the merits of the petition for a temporary

injunction. [Petitioner also asks that the temporary restraining order enjoin Respondent's former

customer, Polaroid, from disbursing monies due to Respondent, pending the Court’s ruling on



the merits of the petition for a temporary injunction.] Finally, Petitioner respectfully asks the
Court to direct Respondent to file an answer to the petition by 1:00 p.m. on March 14, 2000; to
hold a hearing on the merits of Petitioner’s request for a temporary restraining order on March 8,
2000, and to set a hearing on the merits of Petitioner’s request for a temporary injunction for
10:00 a.m. on March 16, 2000, or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.
1!
STATEMENT OF FACTS

Upon charges filed by the Union, in Cases 1-CA-37811, 1-CA-37828 and 1-CA-37875,
the Regional Director of Region One issued a Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing on
February 28, 2000, alleging that inter alia, by letter dated January 28, 2000, the Union requested
that Respondent bargain collectively with it regarding the effects upon bargaining unit
employees of Respondent’s decision to close its operations eﬁecﬁxgﬂ@m&%«l\, 2000, and that
Respondent failed and refused to bargain ox/otér\ %l%%gféegﬂ\'oer? Sr(l\it employees of its decision to
close its operations, Whichﬁl\gje;m%rg)gt'e\d to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of
employment and is %nr\r{:;n‘datory subject of bargaining.

Upon a charge filed by the Union, in Case 1-CA-37931, the Regional Director of Region
One issued a Complaint and Notice of Hearing on March 7, 2000, alleging that Respondent
failed to pay bargaining unit employees wages earned in January 2000, which subject relates to
wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment and is a mandatory subject of
bargaining.

Respondent was in the business of providing cleaning services, and maintained only one

cleaning contract, with Poloroid in Waltham, Massachusetts. Respondent employed

approximately 46 employees when it closed its operations on January 31, 2000. Approximately

2 A copy of the LRRM report in Pascarell v. Alpine Fashion, Inc. is attached as Appendix A.
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11 of these employees worked 40 hours per week on the day shift, and about 35 employees
worked approximately 20 hours per week during the evenings.

The Union began organizing the Respondent’s employees in about September 1998. An
election was held on November 12, 1998, and the Union won this election by a vote of 24 to 12.
The Region certified the Union as the representative of the Respondent’s employees who cleaned
at Polaroid on November 24, 1998.

Sometime in January 2000, the Respondent decided not to re-bid its cleaning contract
with Polaroid, which was set to expire on January 31, 2000. On January 24, 2000, another
cleaning contractor, who is a signatory to the Master Janitorial Agreement, told the Union’s
business agent, Donald Coleman, (herein Coleman) that it would be taking over the Polaroid
cleaning contract as of February 1, 2000 and hiring all of the unit employees. The Respondent
never told the Union that it was not re-bidding its cleaning contraci;[gv\yjat‘hggo'?é}%}d or that it was
ceasing operations. wed o "

No A0 N

On January 28, 20(3/(\)1\querﬁan sent a letter to Respondent’s Owner, Emilia Delgado,
(herein Emilia) aﬁéai(t\:\sve‘nior Vice-President of Operations, Marco Delgado, (herein Marco)
requesting to meet with them to bargain over the effects of the Respondent’s decision to cease its
operations. The Respondent did not respond to Coleman’s letter, and has since refused to meet
and bargain with the Union over the effects of terminating its cleaning contract with Polaroid.

Since closing its operations on January 31, 2000, Respondent has failed and refused to
pay its part-time employees for hours worked between January 17 and January 31, 2000.

Additionally, the Respondent has failed to make good on a bounced check that it issued to one of

its part-time employees for 40 hours worked during the first half of January 2000.°

¥ The Petitioner is seeking a protective order to sequester certain assets of the Respondent so
that, in the event that the Region prevails on its Complaints, there will be sufficient funds to
satisfy both a remedy pursuant to Transmarine Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968), which
provides for a minimum of two-weeks of backpay for all unit employees where an employer has
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Before the Respondent failed and refused to bargain with the Union over closing its
operations, Respondent violated the Act by refusing to sign an agreed upon collective-bargaining
agreement and failing to provide relevant information to the Union.

On September 29, 1999, the Respondent and the Union signed an agreement, effective
January 1, 2000, whereby the Respondent agreed to be bound by all terms and conditions of the
Master Janitorial Contract, which had been negotiated between the Union and the Maintenance
Contractors of New England, Inc. On November 14, 1999, the employees of the unit voted
unanimously to ratify this agreement. On November 14, 1999, after the contract ratification
vote, Coleman met with Marco and Emilia Delgado. At this time, Coleman notified the
Delgados of the results of the ratification vote and told them that the written collective-
bargaining agreement (“contract”) between the Union and the Respondent would take effect
January 1, 2000. Coleman told the Delgados that they had to executesmt?mact.“

son pugy

Beginning on November 15, 1999, Colggg,g @e@%ecalling Marco to set up a meeting
70

where he and the Delgadoi\ xel\glﬁjd)@(e\c\\l?té the contract. Coleman called Marco at least 20 times
and left messagesqu \IeI;}CO to call him back to set up a meeting. Marco, however, failed to take
or return any of Coleman’s calls.” By letter dated December 6, 1999, Coleman informed Marco
that he would be at the Respondent’s office at 5:30 p.m. on December 8, 1999 to execute the

contract. Coleman went to the Respondent’s office for the purpose of executing the contract on

failed and refused to bargain over the effects of its closing of operation, and to compensate
employees for the wages that the Employer failed to pay to them for work performed during
January 2000. The Petitioner is not otherwise seeking 10(j) injunctive relief. The portion of this
memorandum relating to the Respondent’s refusal to execute an agreed-upon collective-
bargaining agreement and refusal to furnish information are included for background purposes
and to demonstrate the Respondent’s total disregard for compliance with the Act, thereby
buttressing the need for a protective order.

* At some point, Coleman told the Delgados that the pay rates outlined in the contract need not
be implemented until February 1, 2000, as the Master Agreement provides for a 30-day grace
period.

> Marco operated his business primarily by way of a cell phone with a caller identification
feature.



December 7, 1999, December 8, 1999, and December 23, 1999. Marco was not at the office on
any of these occasions.

On January 6, 2000, Coleman filed the charge in Case 1-CA-37811, alleging that the
Employer had failed to execute the agreed-upon contract. Since that time, Marco has told
Coleman that he had sent the signed contract, via certified mail, on numerous occasions.

On January 7, 2000, Coleman sent a letter to the Employer requesting that the Employer
furnish the Union with the names, dates of hire, addresses, and work schedules of all Unit
employees.

On January 24, 2000, Coleman spoke with Marco. Again, Marco told Coleman that
Marco would send the signed contract to the Union that day.

On January 28, 2000, Coleman again spoke with Marco. Marco told Coleman that he
would not send the signed contract to the Union because the Respgndgmwé?sghls mother,
Emilia’s, business and Marco did not want tgo %&Q\mw&ﬂen tﬁehbusmess any longer. That same
day, Coleman sent a letter to({ﬁ(lam@cé\r\]?lr?mng this telephone conversation. After speaking with
Marco, Coleman %a?le\a\ Emilia Delgado. Emilia told Coleman that she would send the signed
contract and forward a current seniority list to the Union if Coleman sent her a letter stating that
this would resolve everything between the Employer and the Union. Coleman sent Emilia such a
letter, dated January 28, 2000. Also in this January 28" letter, Coleman again requested that the
Respondent provide the Union with the names, dates of hire, addresses, and work schedules of
all unit employees, as well as the Respondent’s complete payroll records for the preceding three
months and a list of employees owed wages. To this date, the Respondent has sent none of the
requested information to the Union.

Coleman spoke with Marco on numerous occasions when Marco has promised Coleman

that the executed contract was “in the mail.” Most recently, Coleman spoke to Marco on

February 10, 2000, at which time Marco again told Coleman that he was sending the signed
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contract to Coleman that day. To this date, the Union has not received the signed contract from
the Employer.®

The Respondent maintained an office at 1277 Main Street in Waltham until
approximately August 1999. At that time, the Respondent’s phone was disconnected and its
place of business moved to 1273 Main Street. The Respondent did not notify the Union of its
address change, nor did it provide the Union with a telephone number at which the Union could
reach the Respondent. Throughout the time period of August of 1999 through January 2000,
Marco claimed to have been overwhelmed by the vast disarray resulting from the Respondent’s
office move and has, therefore, been unable to locate certain documents, such as certified mail
receipts, requested by the Board agent. The Employer closed its Waltham office upon ceasing its
operations at Polaroid on January 31, 2000.

Additionally, as part of its settlement of earlier charges filed &@mtﬁéépondentf the

on [Uie)

Respondent was to pay $1035 to one discrimingé%% Jm%\‘s?ettlement agreement was approved on
10-\

October 8, 1999. On Octo\?\%(,\l@@ﬁd*é\g\g%in on November 12, 1999, the Region sent letters to the
Respondent requgsft?r?\g{\t;ét it comply with the terms of the settlement. The Region’s compliance
officer phoned and left messages for the Respondent, who failed to respond to the compliance
officer’s messages. Finally, on December 16, 1999, the Region received a check in the amount
of $1035 from Marco. While this check was signed by Marco, it was not drawn from a bank
account of the Respondent, but rather from a bank account of a different corporation: Delgado
Enterprises, Inc. Emilia is the principal officer of Delgado Enterprises, Inc.

The Respondent has submitted its final invoices to Polaroid, and Polaroid was processing

those invoices when contacted by the Petitioner on February 17, 2000. Since that time, Polaroid

® The Union still needs the signed contract so that the Unit employees do not have to repeat the
one-month grace period for contract benefits with their new employer.
" Cases 1-CA-36775 and 1-CA-37492.
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has agreed to temporarily hold off on paying the money that it owes to the Respondent, but is
awaiting a Protective Order that would secure this position.?
v
REASONABLE CAUSE
It is well settled that, in Section 10(j) proceedings, the District Court is not called upon to

decide the issues before the Board. Rivera-Vega v. Conagra, Inc., 70 F.3d 153 (1% Cir. 1995);

Pye v. Sullivan Brothers Printers, 38 F.3d 58, 147 LRRM 2584 (1st Cir. 1994); Asseo v. Centro

Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445, 454, 133 LRRM 2722, 2729-2730 (1st Cir. 1990); Asseo

v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23, 25, 123 LRRM 2996, 3000 (1st Cir. 1986)

Thus, the “reasonable cause” standard does not require the Board to adduce evidence to
the extent required in a full hearing on the merits, nor does it require the District Court to resolve

disputed issues of fact or credibility; rather, its role is limited to detergmm@%hether the

pugy
o . . yed o
NLRB’s position is “fairly supported by the exég%rlcgrt“ﬁ?vera-Veqa v. Conagra, Inc., 70 F.3d
R\
153 (1* Cir. 1995); Pye v. g;ﬂj\ivmﬂBrB\t%ers Printers, 38 F.3d 58, 147 LRRM 2584 (1st Cir.

o -
1994); quoting Agégo v. Centro Medico del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d 445, 454, 133 LRRM 2722,

2729-2730 (1st Cir. 1990).

The evidence which could be adduced in a hearing before this court shows that there is
reasonable cause to believe that Respondent violated Section 8(a)(5) of the Act by failing and
refusing to bargain over the effects of its closing of operations and by failing to pay employees
wages due for work performed in January 2000, which would be remedied by requiring

Respondent to, inter alia, compensate employees for the hours that they worked in January 2000,

® Polaroid currently owes the Respondent, and is temporarily holding, $54,331.52. Polaroid has
informed the Petitioner that the monies are due to be paid to the Respondent on March 10, 2000,
and it intends to tender the monies at that time unless enjoined from doing so. The Petitioner’s
initial calculations indicate that 2-weeks backpay for the unit would total approximately $15,700.
Additionally, the unpaid wages alleged to be owing to employees in the recently filed charge
would total approximately $10,300.
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and pay a backpay remedy of a minimum of 2 weeks backpay per unit employee. Transmarine

Navigation Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968); NLRB v. National Care Rental System, Inc., 672 F.2d

1182, 1191, 109 LRRM 2832 (3d Cir. 1982). In Transmarine Navigation Corp., an employer

unlawfully refused to bargain with a union about the effects on employees of the employer’s
closing of its operations. The Board held that the union was denied any opportunity to engage in
meaningful bargaining, at a meaningful time: before the shut down, when the employer still may
have needed the employees’ services. The Board ordered a limited backpay remedy, which at a
minimum would equal two weeks, in part to make the employees whole, but also to recreate in
some practicable manner a situation in which the parties’ bargaining position has economic
consequences for the employer. 1d. This backpay award is not offset by the fact that the unit

employees were hired by the new cleaning contractor and suffered no interruption in their work.

. . A
See, NLRB v. Dallas Times Herald, 315 NLRB 700 (1994) |Transmag@né4’ﬂ9e3y not offset by
. od OO A9
payments made pursuant to the Workers Adju\sé%gbad@\ﬁetraining Notification Act of 1988
A0-
NO-

(WARN)]. Corp-

A
cran v

A TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER
IS JUST AND PROPER
The Board’s remedies are restorative, rather than punitive. Backpay, specifically
provided for in Section 10(c) of the Act, is central to the Board’s remedial efforts to restore the

lawful status quo. Phelps Dodge Corp. v. NLRB, 313 U.S. 177, 197 (1941); NLRB v. J.H.

Rutter-Rex Mfg. Co., 396 U.S. 258, 265 (1969). It is, therefore, respectfully submitted that, in

order to protect the Board’s ability it issue a meaningful backpay Order, and indeed its ability to
remedy the unfair labor practices of Respondent, the Court should find that it is “just and proper”

that a temporary restraining order be granted.
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Federal Courts have granted extraordinary injunctions to preserve the assets of a
defendant or respondent, where those assets appeared to be in danger of dissipation during the

pendency of federal administrative proceedings, including those of the Board. NLRB v. Horizon

Hotel Corp., 159 LRRM 2449 (1% Cir. 1998)°%; Aldred Investment Trust v. SEC, 151 F.2d 254

(1% Cir. 1945), cert. Denied 326 U.S. 795 (1946); Kobell v. Menard Fiberglass Products, Inc.,

678 F. Supp. 1155 (WD PA 1988); Schaub v. Brewery Products, Inc., 715 F. Supp 829 (ED MI

1989). See generally: SEC v. American Board of Trade, Inc., 830 F.2d 431, 438-439 (2nd Cir.

1987); SEC v. Bartlett, 422 F.2d 475 (8th Cir. 1970); ETC v. Southwest Sunsites, Inc., 665 F.2d

711 (5th Cir. 1982), cert. denied 456 U.S. 973; ESLIC v. Sahni, 868 F.2d 1096 (9th Cir. 1989);

CETC v. Morgan, Harris and Scott, Ltd., 484 F. Supp. 669, 671 (SDNY 1979) [temporary

restraining order granted, prohibiting destruction of records.] Federal Courts have also found

that relief such as the protective order requiring Respondent to pay éngpnga agrlved from

AU
oY\
revenues into the registry of the District Courg g(g%xegrtm\‘ﬁere to be appropriate in other
A0-
administrative proceedings %\glmdmg tﬁose involving the Board. See e.g., U. S. v. Morgan, 307

A -
U.S. 183, 193- 94F(&939)(uphold|ng deposit in court of stockyard rate differences pending

determination of rates by Secretary of Agriculture); In re Villa Marina Yacht Harbor, Inc., 984

F.2d 546 (1st Cir. 1993), cert. denied 510 U.S. 818 (court has inherent power to order mortgagor
to make payments into court account; until judgment, neither party can use the money); NLRB v.

A.N. Electric, et al, 141 LRRM 2386 (2nd Cir. 1992)(circuit court granted Section

10(e)(29U.S.C. Section 160(e) injunction to sequester funds in escrow account or registry of the

court)'?; City of New York v. Citisource, Inc., 679 F. Supp. 393 (S.D.N.Y. 1988)(attachment of

bank accounts in RICO action because risk of concealment); SEC v. Netelkos, 638 F. Supp. 503

(S.D.N.Y. 1986)(court ordered assets of respondent liquidated and deposited into interest bearing

° A copy of the LRRM report in NLRB v. Horizon Hotel Corp. is attached hereto as Appendix B.
19 A copy of the LRRM report in NLRB v. A.N. Electric, et al is attached hereto as Appendix C.
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account under control of the clerk of the court); Bentz v. International Longshoremen's

Association, Local 1410, Civil Action 75-507-H (S.D. Ala. Southern Division March 11, 1996)

(unpublished)(in Section 10(l) proceeding, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(l), district court ordered
disputed funds paid into registry of court pending completion of Board's administrative
proceeding).

Here, Respondent discontinued its operations on January 31, 2000. The assets of
Respondent are uncertain as Respondent has failed to furnish the Union with requested
information[; however, according to Polaroid, Polaroid will pay monies due to Respondent in the
amount of $54,331.52 on March 10, 2000]."

The Respondent’s actions with regards to the investigation of the charges at hand as well
as prior charges indicates that there is a strong likelihood that Respondent will dissipate its assets
as quickly as possible if not precluded from doing so. In addltlon&o lei@lﬂa«the Act by
refusing to notify the Union of its decision to \(:I%%ebfmﬂﬁ‘ereaf(t\e‘:refusmg to bargain over the
effects of ceasing its operatlggsqgﬂsr@ Rg\spo\nodent has also unlawfully refused to execute an agreed
upon collective- b%rgaﬁﬁng agreement and refused to furnish information to the Union. The
Respondent’s conduct in these, as well as prior cases, demonstrates a total disregard for its
employees’ rights under the Act. Not only has the Respondent abruptly ceased its operations
without informing the Union, the Respondent recently has: moved its office without informing

the Union; disconnected its business telephone without providing the Union with a new

telephone number; failed to return numerous telephone calls both from the Union and from the

1 As noted above, there is reasonable cause to believe that Respondent engaged in statutory
violations which would be remedied by requiring Respondent to, inter alia, pay a backpay
remedy of a minimum of 2 weeks backpay per unit employee. See Transmarine Navigation
Corp., 170 NLRB 389 (1968); NLRB v. National Care Rental System, Inc., 672 F.2d 1182, 1191,
109 LRRM 2832 (3d Cir. 1982). As noted in the affidavit of Compliance Officer Elizabeth
Gemperline, the Petitioner estimates the minimum backpay liability, also including money due to
Unit employees for unpaid wages earned in January 2000 and estimated interest, to be
$32,202.80.
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Region; refused to accept certified letters from the Region; issued checks to employees that have
bounced; allegedly failed to pay employees for their last eleven working days, and paid the
Employer’s indebtedness for an earlier unfair labor practice charge from a different corporation’s
bank account. Finally, the Employer has totally ceased operations and the only assets known to
exist that may be available to satisfy a Board order are the monies currently being held by
Polaroid. Based upon the above, the Region believes that it may fairly be anticipated that
Respondent will in fact dissipate its remaining assets and thus unjustifiably deny employees any

opportunity to recover backpay and remedies pursuant to Transmarine Navigation Corp., 170

NLRB 389, as well as the unpaid wages Unit employees earned in January 2000. In these
circumstances, not protecting the Respondent’s assets would likely cause irreparable harm as it is
very likely that no assets of the Respondent will exist by the time that a decision is rendered in

this case. 129
In this case, it is “just and proper” to0 iegggg{a;ﬂf@%%th?e order to secure the Respondent’s

remaining assets. NLRB v\;\l%L\g‘rizm?H‘a\t%l \Corp., 159 LRRM 2449 (1* Cir. 1998); Aldred

Investment Trustvaé\\é\g,iSl F.2d 254 (1 Cir. 1945), cert. denied 326 U.S. 795 (1946); Jensen

v. Chamtech Services Center, 155 LRRM 2058, 2059-60 (C.D. CA 1997)(10(j) sequestration of

assets injunction granted; court balanced potential threat of dissipation of assets on respondent’s
inchoate NLRA backpay obligation against injunction’s restrictions on respondent’s use of its

own assets)*%; Kobell v. Menard Fiberglass Products, Inc., 678 F. Supp. 1155 (WD PA 1988);

Schaub v. Brewery Products, Inc., 715 F. Supp 829 (ED MI 1989); Pascarell v. Alpine Fashions,

Inc., 126 LRRM 2242 (D. N.J. 1987); Norton v. New Hope Industries, Inc., 119 LRRM 3086

(M.D. LA 1985)%.

12 A copy of the LRRM report in Jensen v. Chamtech Services Center is attached hereto as
Appendix D.
3 A copy of the LRRM report in Norton v. New Hope Industries, Inc. is attached hereto as
Appendix E.
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An order precluding Respondent from dissipating its assets would preserve the status quo
and prevent a frustration of a Board order in the Union’s favor. While the hearing before an
administrative law judge has been scheduled for April 3, 2000, an immediate final Board
decision cannot issue in time to preserve these assets. Finally, an order preserving the assets
would not interfere with any ongoing business operation, since the Respondent no longer
operates.

[In addition, Petitioner requests that this Court issue a Temporary Restraining Order
directed to Polaroid, enjoining Polaroid from disbursing monies due to Respondent, pending a
hearing on Petitioner’s request for a temporary injunction. It is appropriate to name Polaroid as a
party-in-interest in the 10(j) proceedings and there is ample law to assert jurisdiction over it in
this case. Under the All Writs Act,* the district court has authority to protect its jurisdiction for

the purpose of issuing an effective Section 10(j) injunction against é@gﬁgsp%%ent. See, e.0.,
AU

. on
Whitney Bank v. New Orleans Bank, 379 U.S\.B%%Jga é@E\\ﬁ% and n. 7 (1965)( lower court could
R\
properly issue All Writs A\g\t(q,@gee@ag\ﬁ\ﬁ]st non-defendant public official to preserve its own
o\ Y-
jurisdiction); FT¢ (va. Dean Foods Co., 384 U.S. 597, 603-608 (1966)(federal agencies may use

All Writs Act proceedings in order to ensure effective judicial review). Thus, the district court
has jurisdiction under the All Writs Act to enjoin Polaroid to make payment directly into the
court's registry for the purpose of safeguarding the efficacy of the 10(j) decree against the
Respondent. Such a course of action is not unprecedented for the Board. See Aguayo v.

Chamtech Service Center, 157 LRRM 2299, 2300 (C.D. Ca. 1997)(ex parte TRO protective

order under Section 10(j) and All Writs Act included parties not yet named in underlying Board

administrative proceeding).

1428 U.S.C. §1651(a) provides:

The Supreme Court and all courts established by Act of Congress may issue all
writs necessary or appropriate in aid of their respective jurisdictions and agreeable

16



VI
CONCLUSION
Based on the petition, the affidavits and exhibits attached thereto, and on the points and
authorities cited herein, Petitioner respectfully asks the Court to issue a temporary restraining
order as prayed for in the petition herein.
DATED: March 8, 2000
Boston, Massachusetts
Respectfully submitted,
LEONARD PAGE, General Counsel
BARRY J. KEARNEY, Associate General Counsel
ELLEN A. FARRELL, Assistant General Counsel

ROSEMARY PYE, Regional Director
RONALD S. COHEN, Acting Regional Attorney

Sara R. Lewenber ga@f‘#@4257
Counsel rmﬂﬁ’g%
ticha abor Relations Board
F(an\«\\"\’\ 10 Causeway Street, Sixth Floor
Boston, MA 02222

CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the above document was served upon Respondent Estoril
Cleaning Co., Inc., and Party-in-Interest Polaroid Corporation and the attorney of record for
Polaroid Corporation, by hand, on March 8, 2000.

Sara R. Lewenberg, BBO #634257

juinjlit\10jmanual\EstorilMemP&A.doc
June 2001

to the usages and principles of law.
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APPENDIX J

GUIDELINES FOR FILING MOTIONS FOR TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDERS UNDER SECTION 10(})

[3 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]
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APPENDIX K

SAMPLE MOTIONS & MEMORANDA TO
HEAR 10(j) CASE ON AFFIDAVITS OR ALJ TRANSCRIPT

Sample Motion for Hearing on Affidavits in
Cohen v. Estoril Cleaning Co., Inc.

Sample Motion to Try 10(j) Petition on the Basis of the
Record Developed before the ALJ in
Benson v. Maintenance Unlimited, Inc.

Sample Brief in Support of Motion Limiting Section 10(j) Hearing
on the Issue of "Reasonable Cause to Believe™ to the
Administrative Record and Supplementing the Record with
Evidence on Whether Injunctive Relief is "Just and Proper"” in
Benson v. Maintenance Unlimited, Inc.

Model Argument to Support Motion to District Court to
Try 10(j) or 10(1) Petition on Basis of Affidavits and/or
ALJ Hearing Transcript and Exhibits



In ruling on whether to grant the preliminary injunctive relief sought by the Board
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. at Section 160(j), the District Court's role is properly limited to
determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that a respondent has violated
the National Labor Relations Act, herein called the Act, and whether temporary

injunctive relief is just and proper. Pye v. Excel Case Ready, 238 F.3d 69, 72 (1st Cir.

2001). In addition, petitions under Section 10(j) or 10(l) of the Act receive statutory
priority in the United States district courts under 28 U.S.C. Section 1657(a).

In light of this statutory scheme, it is well settled that district courts in
proceedings under Section 10(j) or 10(1)! are not called upon to finally determine the
merits of the unfair labor practice charges, but should only evaluate the evidence to
determine whether the Regional Director has "reasonable cause” to believe that the

respondent has violated the Act.2 See, e.g., Maram v. Universidad Intemmerlcana de

L)

Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d 953, 958-59 (1st Cir. 1983%&&9@%&])) Kobell v. United

Paperworkers Int'l. Union, 965 F. 2& 14@&@%6 1407 (6th Cir. 1992) (Sec. 10(j)); Arlook

V. S. Llchtenberq & Coﬂ“’r\c 952 F.2d 367, 371-372 (11th Cir. 1992) (Sec. 10()));
Fratt
Gottfried v. Sheet Metal Workers, Local No. 80, 876 F.2d 1245, 1248 (6th Cir. 1989)

(Sec. 10(1)); Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d 744, 748 (9th Cir. 1988) (Sec.

10(j)); Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1032-33 (2d Cir. 1980) (Sec. 10(}));

Squillacote v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d 853, 858 (7th Cir. 1976) (Sec.

10(1)); Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, et al., 818 F.2d 485, 493 (6th Cir. 1987) (Sec. 10(j));

Lewis v. New Orleans Clerks & Checkers, I.L.A., Local No. 1497, 724 F.2d 1109, 1114-

1 Section 10(1), 29 U.S.C. Section 160(I), the companion provision to Section 10(j), mandates that the
NLRB seek a temporary injunction in district court after the preliminary investigation of a charge reveals
reasonable cause to believe that a charged party has violated certain specified unfair labor practice
provisions of the Act, e.g., union secondary boycotts. See, e.g., Hirsch v. Building and Construction
Trades Council, 530 F.2d 298, 302 (3d Cir. 1976).

2 The Petitioner's additional burden of showing that injunctive relief is "just and proper" includes a
showing of a likelihood of success on the merits. Maram v. Universidad Interamericana, 722 F.2d at 959;
Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d at 25. The First Circuit has held, however, that a showing of
reasonable cause satisfies the "likelihood of success on the merits" requirement. Asseo v. Centro Medico
del Turabo, Inc., 900 F.2d at 454-455. Thus, the Court's inquiry into the likelihood of success on the
merits does not require litigation of the underlying unfair labor practice.




15 (5th Cir. 1984) (Sec. 10(l)); Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d 1185, 1191

(5th Cir. 1975), cert. denied 426 U.S. 934 (1976) (Sec. 10(j)); Kobell v. Suburban Lines,

Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1083-84 (3d Cir. 1984) (Sec. 10(j)); San Francisco-Oakland

Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d 541, 544-45 and n. 3 (9th Cir. 1969) (Sec. 10(]));

Levine v. C & W Mining Co., Inc., 610 F.2d 432, 435 (6th Cir. 1979) (Sec. 10(j)).

Moreover, it is reversible error for a district court to go beyond this limited
inquiry and to make findings on the ultimate merits of the charge. See Maram v.

Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d at 958-959 (Sec. 10(j));

Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., 952 F.2d at 372-373; Scott v. El Farra Enterprises, Inc.,

d/b/a Bi-Fair Market, 863 F.2d 670, 676 (9th Cir. 1988) (Sec. 10(j)); Solien v. United

Steelworkers of America, 593 F.2d 82, 86-87 (8th Cir. 1979), cert. denied 444 U.S. 828

(Sec. 10(l)); Kaynard v. Independent Routemen's Assn., 479 F.2d 1070,2{97\2 (2d Cir.

uet 29
1973) (Sec. 10(1)). et oo RO
arC

The District Court is thus n\gt cqﬂe‘tﬁapon to resolve disputed issues of fact or the

credibility of Wltn\g§§esﬁ?ﬁscfunct|on is reserved exclusively for the Board in the
Fral
underlying administrative proceeding. See, Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de

Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d at 958-959 (Sec. 10(j)); NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d

1559, 1570, 1571 (6th Cir. 1996)(Sec. 10(j)); Kobell v. United Paperworkers Int'l. Union,

965 F.2d at 1407 (Sec. 10(j)); Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corporation, 560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-

51 at n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir. 1983) (Sec. 10(j));
Balicer v. I.L.A., 364 F. Supp. 205, 225-226 (D. N.J. 1973), affd. per curiam 491 F.2d

748 (3d Cir. 1973) (Sec. 10(l)); Dawidoff v. Minneapolis Building & Construction

Trades Council, 550 F.2d 407, 411 (8th Cir. 1977) (Sec. 10(1)); Local 450, International

Union of Operating Engineers, AFL-CIO v. Elliott, 256 F.2d 630, 638 (5th Cir. 1958)




(Sec. 10(I)); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546 (Sec.
10(1)).3

Indeed, it is settled that, in these preliminary proceedings, the courts should give
the Regional Director's version of the disputed facts the "benefit of the doubt"”, and
should accept the reasonable inferences he draws therefrom if they are "within the range

of rationality”. Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 36-37 (2d Cir. 1975) (Sec.

10(j)); Accord: Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d at

958-959 (Sec. 10(j)); Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., 952 F.2d at 371-372 (Sec. 10()));

Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d 1047, 1051 (2d Cir. 1980) (Sec. 10(j)); Kobell

v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 73l F.2d at 1084 (Sec. 10(j)); Squillacote v. Graphic Arts

International Union, 540 F.2d at 858-859 (Sec. 10(l)); Hendrix v. Operating Engineers,

Local 571, 592 F.2d 437, 442 (8th Cir. 1979) (Sec. 10(l)); Levine v C S W Mining Co.,

Inc., 610 F.2d at 435 (Sec. 10(j)); Humphrey v. Int%rna(tmﬂa’?‘\)_%nqshoremen s
C
Association, 548 F.2d 494, 498 (4th cm@% (Sec. 10(1)).

Accordingl |MT§\N of the Regional Director's "relatively insubstantial burden of

\C N
Fra
proof,"4 it is not necessary for a district court to hold a full, evidentiary hearing to enable

it to conclude whether "reasonable cause™ has been established. See, Gottfried v. Samuel

Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493 and 494 (Sec. 10(j)); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild

v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546 (Sec. 10(l)). See also, Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co.,

853 F.2d at 750-751.
In view of the foregoing, the weight of judicial authority holds that it is proper for
a district court to base its "reasonable cause" determinations in Section 10(j) and 10(l)

cases upon evidence presented in the form of affidavits or record testimony in a hearing

3 See also, Jaffee v. Henry Heide, Inc., 115 F. Supp. 52, 57 (S.D.N.Y. 1953); Fusco v. Richard W. Kaase
Baking Co., 205 F. Supp. 465, 476 (N.D. Ohio 1962); Taylor v. Circo Resorts, Inc., 458 F. Supp. 152, 154
(D. Nev. 1978); Hoffman v. Cross Sound Ferry Service, Inc., 109 LRRM 2884, 2887 (D. Conn. 1982) (all
Sec. 10(j) cases).

4 Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc. , 731 F.2d at 1084; Levine v. C & W Mining Co., 610 F.2d at 435;
Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor, Inc., 853 F.2d at 748.




before an administrative law judge. See, Sharp v. Webco Industries Inc., 225 F.3d 1130,

1134 (10th Cir. 2000)(affidavits); Silverman v. JRL Food Corp., 196 F.3d 334 (2d Cir.

1999)(ALJ transcript); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at

546 (affidavits); Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751 (same);

Squillacote v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 860; Kennedy v. Teamsters,

Local 542, 443 F.2d 627, 630 (9th Cir. 1971) (same); Squillacote v. Automobile,

Aerospace & Agricultural Implement Workers, 383 F. Supp. 491, 493 (E.D. Wis. 1974)

(same).
Finally, neither Rule 43(e) nor Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
requires oral testimony in this type of statutory, temporary injunction proceeding,

Kennedy v. Sheet Metal Workers, 289 F. Supp. 65, 87-91 (C.D. Cal. 1968),> and such

procedures do not deny a fair hearing or due process to the Respondrgntslosae Aguayo v.
Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751; Asseo v P(abmﬁ?r\grlcan Grain Co., 805 F.2d

at 25-26; Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel f&l{ﬁ@% at 493 Squillacote v. Graphic Arts

International Unlon @WF\% at 860 Kennedy v. Teamsters, Local 542, 443 F.2d at 630;
Frant®
San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546. Cf. Brock v.

Roadway Express, Inc., 481 U.S. 252, 263-64, 107 S.Ct. 1740 (1987) (Secretary of Labor

may order temporary reinstatement of unlawfully discharged employee pending full
administrative hearing; not a denial of due process to deny respondent full evidentiary
hearing at preliminary stage).

In sum, submission of this Section 10(j) matter on the affidavits submitted by the
Board will avoid the delay inherent in scheduling and conducting a full evidentiary
hearing, will avoid duplicative litigation, will facilitate a speedy decision, and will
conserve the time and resources of the court and the parties. Such procedure fully

comports with the statutory priority that should be given to this proceeding under 28

5 There is nothing in the texts of Section 10(j) and 10(l) that mandates oral testimony in these proceedings.
See San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546.




U.S.C. Section 1657(a) and the original intent of the 1947 Congress which enacted
Section 10(j). See Legislative History LMRA 1947, 414, 433 (Government Printing

Office 1985).

Dated at Boston, Massachusetts this 8" day of March, 2000.

Respectfully submitted,

Sara R. Lewenberg, BBO # 634257
Counsel for the Petitioner
National Labor Relations Board
First Region
Thomas P. O'Neill, Jr. Federal Building
10 Causeway Street, Sixth Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 022%@23172@\

on pugy

e GO

gran¥ Y-
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the above document was served upon Estoril
Cleaning Co, Inc. and Polaroid Corporation as well as the attorney of record for Polaroid
Corporation, by hand, on March 8, 2000.

Sara R. Lewenberg, Attorney
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT,COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

Civil Action No.

B. ALLAN BENSON, REGIONAL
DIRECTOR OF REGION 27 OF THE
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,
V.

MAINTENANCE UNLIMITED, INC,,

com
MQ@WO‘NTSF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
TO T&VCOMPLAlNT AND PETITION FOR TEMPORARY INJUNCTION
ON THE BASIS OF THE RECORD DEVELOPED BEFORE THE
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States District Court for the State of

Colorado:

The petitioner moves the court to try the issues in this matter on the basis of

Administrative Law Judge Transcript and Exhibits and exhibits submitted by the Board and the

Respondent rather than holding an evidentiary hearing. The Petitioner suggests that trying this

case on the basis of the Administrative Law Judge Hearing Transcript and Exhibits can both

expedite the proceeding and conserve the resources of the court and the parties.



Section 10(j) of the Act authorizes United States district courts to grant temporary
injunctions pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice proceedings. This provision
embodies Congress' recognition that because the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted, absent interim relief, a respondent in many instances could accomplish its unlawful
objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it could thereby render a final Board

order ineffectual. The legislative history is cited in cited in Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225

F.3d 1130, 1136 (10th Cir. 2000) and Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.2d 655, 659-660 (10th Cir. 1967).

Section 10(j) was intended to prevent the potential frustration or nullification of the Board's
remedial authority caused by the passage of time inherent in Board administrative litigation. Id.
at 659.

To resolve a Section 10(j) petition, a district court in the Tenth Circuit considers only two
issues: whether there is "reasonable cause to believe" that a respondent haécymlated the Act and

whether temporary injunctive relief is "just and proper dS@@@h%rp v. Webco Industries, 225

F.3d at 1133, 1137; Angle v. Sacks, 32\3\@ F\Zﬂ‘a’t%%S 660

In light of thg'%j@tmﬁﬁ’ scheme it is well settled that district courts in proceedings under
Section 10(j) or i(()(l) are not called upon to finally determine the merits of the unfair labor
practice charges, but should only evaluate the evidence to determine whether the Regional
Director has "reasonable cause"” to believe that the respondent has violated the Act. See, e.g.,

Kobell v. United Paperworkers Int'l. Union, 965 F.2d 1401, 1406-1407 (6th Cir. 1992) (Sec.

10(j)); Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., Inc., 952 F.2d 367, 371-372 (11th Cir. 1992) (Sec. 10(j));

Gottfried v. Sheet Metal Workers, Local No. 80, 876 F.2d 1245, 1248 (6th Cir. 1989) (Sec.

10(l)); Agquayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d 744, 748 (9th Cir. 1988) (Sec. 10(j));

Kaynard v. Mego Corp., 633 F.2d 1026, 1032-33 (2d Cir. 1980) (Sec. 10(j)); Squillacote v.

1. Section 10(l), 29 U.S.C. Section 160(l), the companion provision to Section 10(j), mandates that
the NLRB to seek a temporary injunction in district court after the preliminary investigation of a charge
reveals reasonable cause to believe that a charged party has violated certain specified unfair labor
practice provisions of the Act, e.g., union secondary boycotts. See, e.g., Hirsch v. Building and
Construction Trades Council, 530 F.2d 298, 302 (3d Cir. 1976).




Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d 853, 858 (7th Cir. 1976) (Sec. 10(1)); Gottfried v.

Samuel Frankel, et al., 818 F.2d 485, 493 (6th Cir. 1987) (Sec. 10(j)); Lewis v. New Orleans

Clerks & Checkers, I.L.A., Local No. 1497, 724 F.2d 1109, 1114-15 (5th Cir. 1984) (Sec. 10(D));

Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F. 2d 1185, 1191 (5th Cir. 1975), cert. denied 426 U.S.

934 (1976) (Sec. 10(j)); Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1083-84 (3d Cir. 1984)

(Sec. 10(j)); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d 541, 544-45 and n.

3 (9th Cir. 1969) (Sec. 10(1)); Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc., 722

F.2d 953, 958-959 (1st Cir. 1983) (Sec. 10(j)); Levine v. C & W Mining Co., Inc., 610 F.2d 432,

435 (6th Cir. 1979) (Sec. 10(j)).
Moreover, it is reversible error for a district court to go beyond this limited inquiry and to

make findings on the ultimate merits of the charge. See Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg & Co., 952

F.2d at 372-373; Scott v. El Farra Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Bi-Fair Market 86§0R’Qd 670, 676 (9th

Cir. 1988) (Sec. 10(j)); Solien v. United Steelworkers OY( Amemc’é‘“@% F.2d 82, 86-87 (8th Cir.
\'G

1979), cert. denied 444 U.S. 828 (Sec. \\}O(m ‘I@vnard v. Independent Routemen's Association,

479 F.2d 1070, 107§ (&QJ (}N“igm) (Sec. 10(l)); Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto
Rico, Inc., 722 FFZ(d at 958-959 (Sec. 10())).

The district court is thus not called upon to resolve disputed issues of fact or the
credibility of witnesses; this function is reserved exclusively for the Board in the underlying

administrative proceeding. See NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d 1559, 1570, 1571 (7th Cir.

1996)(Sec. 10(j)); Balicer v. I.L.A., 364 F. Supp. 205, 225-226 (D.N.J. 1973), affd. per cumiam

491 F.2d 748 (3d Cir. 1973) (Sec. 10(l)); Dawidoff v. Minneapolis Building & Construction

Trades Council, 550 F.2d 407, 411 (8th Cir. 1977) (Sec. 10(1)); Local 450, International Union

of Operationg Engineers, AFL-CIO v. Elliott, 256 F.2d 630, 638 (5th Cir. 1958) (Sec. 10(l)); San

Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546 (Sec. 10(l)); Maram v.

Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d at 958-959 (Sec. 10(j)); Kobell v.

United Paperworkers Int'l. Union, 965 F.2d at 1407 (Sec. 10(j));_Fuchs v. Jet Spray Corporation,




560 F. Supp. 1147, 1150-51 at n. 2 (D. Mass. 1983), affd. per curiam 725 F.2d 664 (1st Cir.
1983) (Sec. 10(j)).>

Indeed, it is settled that, in these preliminary proceedings, the courts should give the
Regional Director's version of the disputed facts the "benefit of the doubt™, and should accept the
reasonable inferences he draws therefrom if they are "within the range of rationality”. Seeler v.

The Trading Post, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 36-37 (2d Cir. 1975) (Sec. 10(j)); Sequillacote v. Graphic

Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 858-859 (Sec. 10(l)). Accord: Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg &

Co., 952 F.2d at 371-372 (Sec. 10(j)); Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d 1047, 1051 (2d

Cir. 1980) (Sec. 10(j)); Hendrix v. Operating Engineers, Local 571, 592 F.2d 437, 442 (8th Cir.

1979) (Sec. 10(l)); Levine v. C & W Mining Co., Inc., 610 F.2d at 435 (Sec. 10(j)); Maram v.

Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc., 722 F.2d at 958-959 (Sec. 10(j)); Kobell v.

Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1084 (Sec. 10(j)); Humphrey v. Internatlonaﬂ_onqshoremen s

L)

Association, 548 F.2d 494, 498 (4th Cir. 1977) (Sec. 10@)3@ on Augu®

-\
Accordingly, in view of the Re\glon‘w ﬁfi?’ectors ‘relatively insubstantial burden of

proof" 2 it is not neceﬁa\yy\ff&f\a dlstrlct court to hold a full, evidentiary hearing to enable it to
Fral

conclude whether "reasonable cause" has been established. See Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel,

818 F.2d at 493 and 494 (Sec. 10(j)); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412

F.2d at 546 (Sec. 10(l)). See also Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751.

In view of the foregoing, the weight of judicial authority holds that it is proper for a
district court to base its "reasonable cause" determinations in Section 10(j) and 10(I) cases upon

evidence presented in the form of affidavits. See Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d

1130, 1134 (10th Cir. 2000)(affidavits); Silverman v. JRL Food Corp., 196 F.3d 334 (2d Cir.

% See also, Jaffee v. Henry Heide, Inc., 115 F. Supp. 52, 57 (S.D.N.Y. 1953); Fusco v. Richard W. Kaase
Baking Co., 205 F. Supp. 465, 476 (N.D. Ohio 1962); Taylor v. Circo Resorts, Inc., 458 F. Supp. 152, 154
(D. Nev. 1978); Hoffman v. Cross Sound Ferry Service, Inc., 109 LRRM 2884, 2887 (D. Conn. 1982) (all
Sec. 10(j) cases).

® Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1084; Levine v. C & W Mining Co., 610 F.2d at 435;
Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor, Inc., 853 F.2d at 748.




1999)(ALJ transcript); Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751; Squillacote v.

Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 860. Accord: Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818

F.2d at 493 (combination of affidavits and ALJ transcript); San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper

Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546 (affidavits); Kennedy v. Teamsters, Local 542, 443 F.2d 627,

630 (9th Cir. 1971) (same); Squillacote v. Automobile, Aerospace & Agricultural Implement

Workers, 383 F. Supp. 491, 493 (E.D. Wis. 1974) (same).* A fortiorari, reasonable cause
determinations can also properly be based upon the transcript of sworn testimony given before
an NLRB administrative law judge, subject to cross examination, in the underlying

administrative proceeding. See Gottfired v. Samuel Frankel, 8181 F.2d at 493; Asseo v. Pan

American Grain Co., 805 F.2d at 493; Asseo v. Pan american Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23, 25-26 (1%

Cir. 1979) (the use of an ALJ transcript “could be of considerable assitance in expediting the

work of the [district] court.”); Eisenberg v. Honeycomb Plastics Corp., 1%5i@|'\>RM 3257, 3262

yst &=
(D. N.J. 1987).5 yed O AuS
aC

A
Finally, neither Rule 43(e) nor\\ﬁ%&l@(ﬁS%he Federal Rules of Civil Procedure requires

(p.s
oral testimony in thisn \t(yge\ﬁfﬂggﬁtory, temporary injunction proceeding, Kennedy v. Sheet
Fra
Metal Workers, 289 F. Supp. 65, 87-91 (C..D. Cal. 1968),° and such procedures do not deny a

fair hearing or due process to the Respondent. See Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d

at 750-751; Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d at 25-26; Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel,

818 F.2d at 493; Squillacote v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 860; Kennedy v.

Teamsters, Local 542, 443 F.2d at 630; San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy,

412 F.2d at 546. Cf. Brock v. Roadway Express, Inc. 481 U.S. 252, 263-64, 107 S.Ct. 1740

* See generally F.T.C. v. Rhodes Pharmacal Co., 191 F.2d 744 (7th Cir. 1951); U.S. v. Wilson Williams,
Inc., 277 F.2d 535 (2d Cir. 1960); Johnston v. J.P. Stevens & Company, Inc., 341 F.2d 891 (4th Cir.
1965).

® In Kaynard v. Palby Lingeir, Inc., 625 F.2d 1047, 1050-51 (2d Cir. 1980), the Second Circuit affirmed a
Section 10(j) injunction issued by a district court on the basis of the transcript and exhibits adduced
before the administrative law judge in the underlying administrative proceeding.

® There is nothing in the texts of Section 10(j) and 10(I) that mandates oral testimony in these
proceedings. See San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546.




(1987) (Secretary of Labor may order temporary reinstatement of unlawfully discharged
employee pending full administrative hearing; not a denial of due process to deny respondent full
evidentiary hearing at preliminary stage).

In sum, submission of this Section 10(j) matter on the affidavits and exhibits submitted
by the Board and the Respondent will avoid the delay inherent in scheduling and conducting a
full evidentiary hearing, will avoid duplicative litigation, will facilitate a speedy decision, and
will conserve the time and resources of the court and the parties. Such procedure fully comports
with the statutory priority that should be given to this proceeding under 28 U.S.C. Section 1657
and the original intent of the 1947 Congress which enacted Section 10(j). See | Legislative
History LMRA 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing Office 1985).

No- 10-Donald E. Chavez, Attorney Reg. No. 07429
G Ccore- T. Michael Patton, Attorney Reg. No. 6602
gran¥ Y- Daniel C. Ferguson, Attorney Reg. No. 024113

Counsel for Petitioner

South Tower, Dominion Plaza

600 Seventeenth Street

Denver, Colorado 80202-5433

Telephone: (303) 844-3551
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

Civil Action No. 98-B-1144

B. ALLAN BENSON,

REGIONAL DIRECTOR FOR REGION 27

OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,
V.
MAINTENANCE UNLIMITED, INC., oM
91
ust 2
Respondent. e on NUS)
A A(C
4598
\O \0
¥ty com

BRIEF OF S{&I\@NIAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD IN SUPPORT OF MOTION
LIMITING SECTION 10(J) HEARING ON THE ISSUE OF “REASONABLE CAUSE
TO BELIEVE” TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD AND SUPPLEMENTING THE
RECORD WITH EVIDENCE ON WHETHER INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IS “JUST AND
PROPER”

I. INTRODUCTION
Petitioner, National Labor Relations Board (herein Board), submits this brief to address
the issue of the scope of the hearing that should be held before this Court in the instant Section
10(j) injunctive proceeding, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j). On May 20, 1998, Petitioner filed a
Motion to Try Complaint and Petition for Temporary Injunction on the Basis of the Record

Developed Before the Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”). Respondent opposed said Motion,



arguing that though the Court may utilize the administrative record, Respondent should not be
limited to that record, and that the Court should set a hearing which permits the introduction of
additional evidence and argument in the form of affidavits, live testimony and argument of
counsel.

Petitioner believes that Respondent is not entitled to a hearing de novo before the Court
concerning whether the Regional Director has "reasonable cause to believe™ that the Respondent
has violated the National Labor Relations Act as alleged in the administrative complaint now
pending before the Board. Nor has Respondent requested such a hearing. It is Petitioner’s
position that only the administrative record which has now been created in the underlying unfair

AA
labor practice proceeding should be used by the Court to make agggtelimi%%tion of “reasonable

AU
yed of
cause,” as the subject matters of such an inq%lggmédfmly addressed therein and constitute the
A0-
NO-
best evidence which exists\jgp\tﬁ@mﬂited issues before the Court.

\N-
(a0
Petitioner does not argue that a “just and proper” determination, i.e., the propriety of

temporary injunctive relief, should be limited to the administrative record. The evidence
necessary to make this determination is not necessarily part of the administrative record, as such
inquiries in and of themselves were not germane to the underlying administrative proceeding.
Therefore, Petitioner submits that the administrative record by itself should be relied upon by the
Court to determine the issue of “reasonable cause,” and that supplemental evidence in the form
of testimony and/or affidavits be permitted on the “just and proper” issue. Such a bifurcated
approach would best respect the limited issues before the Court in a Section 10(j) proceeding and

expedite a decision in this matter.



Il. ARGUMENT

A. The Nature of a Section 10(j) Injunctive Proceeding

The nature of the instant cause of action before the Court is a statutorily limited
proceeding for temporary injunctive relief under section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations
Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j)(“The Act”).! Section 10(j) of the Act authorizes
United States district courts to grant temporary injunctions to remedy ongoing unfair labor
practices pending the Board's resolution of unfair labor practice proceedings. This provision
embodies Congress' recognition that because the Board's administrative proceedings often are
protracted, absent interim relief a respondent in many instances could accomplish its unlawful
objective before being placed under any legal restraint, and it (t\:%tjulgutg{él@bgr%gder a final Board
order ineffectual. Angle v. Sacks, 382 F.230§?§%§59>f6§8' %%O?h Cir. 1967).

In this proceeding,\&lﬁ,\m&'is & called upon, and in fact has no jurisdiction, to resolve

\-
(an¥
the merits of the underlying dispute — that is, whether Respondent has in fact committed the

alleged unfair labor practices. That function is reserved exclusively for the National Labor
Relations Board under Section 10(a) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(a), subject to limited
appellate review by the courts of appeals pursuant to Section 10(e) or (f) of the Act, 29 U.S.C.

Section 160(e) or (f). See, e.g., Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d 744, 748-49 and n.3

(9™ Cir. 1988); Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1083 (3d Cir. 1984); Boire V.

! Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act provides:

The Board shall have power, upon issuance of a Complaint as provided in subsection (b) [of this
section] charging that any person has engaged in unfair labor practice, to petition any United
States district court, within any district wherein the unfair labor practice in question is alleged to
have occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts business, for appropriate temporary
relief or restraining order. Upon the filing of any such petition the court shall cause notice thereof



International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 479 F.2d 778, 792 (5th Cir. 1973). Rather, since
Petitioner’s requested injunctive relief is ancillary in nature, and lasts only during the time the
administrative case is pending before the Board,? the Court’s inquiry is limited to a
determination whether the conflicting evidence, viewed in the light most favorable to Petitioner,

could ultimately be resolved by the Board in favor of Petitioner. See Arlook v. S. Lichtenberg &

Co., 952 F.2d 367, 371 (11" Cir. 1992); Gottfried v. Frankel, 818 F.2d 485, 493 (6" Cir. 1987).

Therefore, a Section 10(j) injunction hearing has a limited evidentiary scope and purpose.

It is not intended to determine which litigant should ultimately prevail on the merits of the
administrative case before the Board. Further, the requisite proof on the basic issues in the

administrative hearing is more exacting than in a Section 10(j) lnég)gcﬂ%?hearmg The district
ed on M
court’s findings in the Section 10(j) proceedmg(a@pe fﬁjﬁﬁ) effective to the extent that they support
No A0
the granting or denial of w@g&lp@@[‘é’ry relief. NLRB v. Acker Industries, Inc., 460 F.2d 649, 652
ank\ Y
(10th Cir. 1972)(Fresult in 10(j) litigation not binding upon Board in underlying administrative

proceeding). Once the record before the Administrative Law Judge has been closed, the Board
will not and cannot consider any other evidence in making a determination on the merits of the
unfair labor practice allegations, consistent with the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C.

Section 556(¢)(1998). See also NLRB v. Johnson, 310 F.2d 550, 552 (6™ Cir. 1962); Marathon

Qil Co. v. EPA, 564 F.2d 1253, 1264 (9" Cir. 1977); Marmon v. Califano, 459 F. Supp. 369, 371

(D. Mont. 1978).

to be served upon such person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to grant the Board such
temporary relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper.

% See Barbour v. Central Cartage, Inc., 583 F.2d 335 (7" Cir. 1978)(10(j) decree terminates by operation of law
upon issuance of Board's final administrative order).




B. The Standards for Granting a Section 10(j) Injunction

The only issues before a district court in the Tenth Circuit in this type of ancillary
injunction proceeding are whether there is “reasonable cause to believe” that Respondent has
violated the Act, and whether Petitioner’s requested temporary injunctive relief is “just and

proper” pending final Board adjudication of the administrative proceeding. See Sharp v. Webco

Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1137; Angle, 382 F.2d at 660; Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493.

1. “Reasonable Cause”

In determining whether there is reasonable cause to believe that the Act has been
violated, a United States District Court in the Tenth Circuit may not decide the ultimate merits of

AA
the case. Rather, the merits of the unfair labor practice allegat}g&g\)g{ez?o %Oe resolved solely by
on

the Board. Angle, 382 F.2d at 661. It is W{a%bge\méﬁ%%t district courts in proceedings under
AO-
NO-.
Section 10(j) are not call\g\q\rumﬁ"tb finally determine the merits of the unfair labor practice

\N-
(¥
charges, but should only evaluate the evidence to determine whether the Regional Director has

"reasonable cause™ to believe that the respondent has violated the Act. See, e.q., Kobell v.

United Paperworkers Int'l. Union, 965 F.2d 1401, 1406-1407 (6th Cir. 1992); Lichtenberg, 952

F.2d at 371-372; Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493. To sustain this burden, the Regional Director need
only advance legal theories that are substantial and not frivolous and introduce evidence
sufficient "to permit a rational fact finder, considering the evidence in the light most favorable to
the Board, to rule in favor of the Board." Lichtenberg, 952 F.2d at 371.

The burden of establishing reasonable cause consists of two prongs. First, the Regional
Director must put forth a substantial and non-frivolous legal theory, be it implicit or explicit; and

second, taking the facts favorably to the Board, there must be sufficient evidence to support that



theory. Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1084. The burden of the

Board in showing reasonable cause is “relatively insubstantial”

and the Regional Director is not
required to prove that an unfair labor practice occurred, but must only produce some evidence in
support of the petition. Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493. The district court is thus not called upon to
resolve disputed issues of fact or the credibility of witnesses; this function is reserved exclusively

for the Board in the underlying administrative proceeding. NLRB v. Electro-Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d

1559, 1570, 1571 (7th Cir. 1996). Furthermore, it is reversible error for a district court to go
beyond this limited inquiry and to make findings on the ultimate merits of the charge. See

Lichtenberg, 952 F.2d at 372-373; Maram v. Universidad Interamericana de Puerto Rico, Inc.,

AA
722 F.2d 953, 958-959 (1% Cir. 1983). The district court may no& gggid@v@t?ether or not to issue

A
yed of
relief based on its own belief as to wheth\egggm aiRTAIr labor practice has been committed.
A0-
WNO-
Suburban Lines, Inc., 731\512.\:!@@@083. It is well settled that, in these preliminary proceedings,

\-
(ant
the courts should give the Regional Director's version of the disputed facts the "benefit of the

doubt,” and should accept the reasonable inferences he draws therefrom if they are "within the

range of rationality.” Seeler v. Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 36-37 (2d Cir. 1975);

Lichtenberg, 952 F.2d at 371-372.

2. “Just and Proper”

For the Court to determine a Section 10(j) injunction is “just and proper,” the
circumstances of the case must demonstrate that there exists a probability that the purposes of the

Act will be frustrated unless temporary relief is granted. Angle, 382 F.2d at 660. Injunctive

% See Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1084; Levine v. C & W Mining Co., 610 F.2d 432, 435 (6th Cir. 1979);
Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 748.




relief is proper when the circumstances of a case create a reasonable apprehension that the
efficacy of the Board’s final order may be nullified or the administrative procedures will be
rendered meaningless in the absence of interim relief. 1d. The district court is afforded a certain
range of equitable discretion in making the “just and proper” determination. See Boire v. Pilot

Freight Carriers, Inc., 515 F.2d 1185, 1189 (5™ Cir. 1975), cert. denied 426 U.S. 934 (1976).

The burden is on Petitioner to show that there is a reasonable apprehension that the purposes of
the Act will be defeated absent interim relief. See Angle, 382 F.2d at 660. Finally, preservation
and restoration of the status quo are appropriate considerations in granting a Section 10(j)
injunction. 1d.

AA
The purpose of the underlying administrative proceeding\)ig&g@l%t@r?nine whether unfair

. . . yed ¢ .
labor practices have in fact occurred. Test{gggwaféﬁgrdmg the effects of those unfair labor
A0-
0.
practices is largely irrele\xqm @9 the administrative hearing and is therefore not necessarily

\N
(0¥
contained in the administrative record. In the instant case, Petitioner alleges that there has been a

“chilling" effect on employees that will render a regular Board remedy ineffective.® Additional
evidence is necessary for Petitioner to meet its burden in showing this. At least two circuits have
suggested that an evidentiary hearing may be necessary to determine the equitable necessity of

Section 10(j) injunctive relief. See Squillacote v. Food Workers, 534 F.2d 735, 749 (7" Cir.

1976); Eisenberg v. The Hartz Mountain Corp., 519 F.2d 138, 143 n.5 (3d Cir. 1975). Therefore,

both Petitioner and Respondent should be allowed to present evidence, either in the form of

affidavits or live testimony, on the "just and proper" issue to supplement the administrative

* See, e.q., Pascarell v. Vibra Screw Inc., 904 F.2d 874, 878-79 (3d Cir. 1990)("chilling" impact upon employees
justified grant of 10(j) injunction).




record, as such evidence will be necessary in order for the Court to make a determination on the
propriety of injunctive relief.

C. ltis Proper for the Court to Base its “Reasonable Cause” Determination on the
Administrative Record

In view of the Regional Director's "relatively insubstantial burden of proof," it is not
necessary for a district court to hold a full, evidentiary hearing to enable it to conclude whether
"reasonable cause" has been established. See Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493-494. Reasonable cause
determinations can thus properly be based upon the transcript of sworn testimony given before a
NLRB Administrative Law Judge, subject to cross examination, in the underlying administrative

proceeding. See Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493 (upheld grant of 10(j) injuncting\hased upon use of

9,
ust 2
partially completed ALJ hearing transcript, supplemgg@edﬂ Bx‘?gaffidavits); Fuchs v. Hood
C
oph 2
Industries, Inc., 590 F.2d 395, 398 @_@r??Q?Q)(the use of an ALJ transcript “could be of

\/\ CO"Q.s
considerable assig@gméﬂq\é\xpediting the work of the [district] court.”); Eisenberg v. Honeycomb

Plastics Corp., 125 LRRM 3257, 3262 (D.N.J. 1987)(district court utilized the administrative
record to determine reasonable cause and granted the parties leave to supplement the record with
evidence relevant to the issue of whether the injunctive relief sought was just and proper).”

As discussed supra, it is important to note that the Board, which will make ultimate
findings of fact in this labor dispute, as well as the reviewing appellate tribunals, are limited to
the testimony and other evidence adduced in the administrative record. Neither the Board nor

the reviewing courts can rely upon evidence outside of the official record. See 5 U.S.C. Section

® In Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d 1047, 1050-51 (2d Cir. 1980), the Second Circuit affirmed a Section
10(j) injunction issued by a district court on the basis of the transcript and exhibits adduced before the administrative
law judge in the underlying administrative proceeding. In Asseo v. Pan American Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23, 25-26 (1"
Cir. 1986), the First Circuit affirmed a Section 10(j) injunction based upon a partially completed ALJ hearing
transcript, supplemented by live testimony before the district court.




556(e). See also _Innovative Communications Corp., 333 NLRB No. 86, slip op. at 1, n. 2

(March 23, 2001)(Board refused to consider documents entered in related 10(j) proceeding but

not made part of administrative record); Johnson, 310 F.2d at 552; Marathon Oil Co., 564 F.2d at

1264; Marmon, 459 F. Supp. at 371. Therefore, any new testimony or other evidence on
“reasonable cause” created after the close of the administrative hearing is irrelevant to the merits
of the unfair labor practice allegations and cannot be considered by the Board in the ultimate
resolution of the underlying administrative case. Thus, the admission of additional "reasonable
cause" evidence by the Court in this Section 10(j) proceeding could not assist the Court in

determining whether the Board could reasonably sustain the allegations of the General Counsel's

unfair labor practice complaint. See Lichtenberg, 952 F.2d at 37\;;62‘3 %?n fact, this Court’s

qgon A9
reliance on “new” evidence could hinder its a%@y m%ake this determination, as such evidence
\0'
will never get before the Ié\ d:m“?he unfalr labor practice proceeding. In sum, there is simply

eV
no justification to permit a respondent to, in essence, re-litigate the unfair labor practice case

before the district court. The "reasonable cause" standard under Section 10(j) "bars the district
court from behaving as if it had general jurisdiction over the nation's labor laws." Suburban
Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d at 1083.

Finally, a district court’s failure to hold an evidentiary hearing does not deny a fair

hearing or due process to the Respondent. See Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Pan American Grain,

805 F.2d at 25-26; Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751; Squillacote v. Graphic Arts

International Union, 540 F.2d 853, 860 (7" Cir. 1976). Cf. Brock v. Roadway Express, Inc., 481

U.S. 252, 263-64, 107 S.Ct. 1740 (1987) (Secretary of Labor may order temporary reinstatement




of unlawfully discharged employee pending full administrative hearing; not a denial of due
process to deny respondent full evidentiary hearing at preliminary stage). Since the Court is not
permitted to resolve conflicts in the evidence, a “complete” story is not necessary to make a
reasonable cause determination. See Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493. Accordingly, district courts do
not abuse their discretion in denying a respondent’s request for a full evidentiary hearing. Id.
Furthermore, in the instant case the unfair labor practice "story" is now complete, as there
was a full evidentiary hearing before the Board's Administrative Law Judge at which Respondent
had every opportunity to present its case. Respondent had the opportunity to cross-examine all
of the Board's General Counsel witnesses and to present its own witnesses. In addition, pursuant
to Board Rule 102.118(b)(1), 29 C.F.R. Section 102. 118(b)(1)$99§;&ﬂme2%0ard s Jencks (353
U.S. 657 (1957)) rule,” Respondent had an O{J&gma\i to%xamme the pre-trial affidavits of all

: wo- !
General Counsel wﬂnewgﬂzfe‘l%re commencing its cross-examination.  Given these

\ V-

rank

circumstances, there is no denial of due process if Respondent is prohibited from introducing
new evidence as to “reasonable cause” issues before the district court.

Finally, it should be noted that neither Rule 43 nor Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure requires oral testimony in this statutory temporary injunction proceeding. See

® The relevant portion of the Rule reads as follows:

[Alfter a witness called by the General Counsel ... has testified ... the administrative law judge
shall, upon motion of the respondent, order the production of any statement of such witness in the
possession of the General Counsel which relates to the subject matter as to which the witness has
testified. If the entire contents of any such statement relate to the subject matter of the testimony
of the witness, the administrative law judge shall order it to be delivered directly to the respondent
for his examination and use for the purpose of cross-examination.

" See also Harvey Aluminum v. NLRB, 335 F.2d 749 (9" Cir. 1964); Inland Shoe, 211 NLRB 724, n. 3 (1974).

10



Kennedy v. Sheet Metal Workers, 289 F. Supp. 65, 87-91 (C.D. Cal. 1968).% Likewise, there is

nothing in the text of Section 10(j) which mandates oral testimony in this proceeding.
I1l. CONCLUSION

In sum, submission of this Section 10(j) matter regarding "reasonable cause™ issues on
the transcript of the testimony and exhibits adduced in the administrative proceeding will avoid
the delay inherent in scheduling and conducting a full evidentiary hearing, will avoid duplicative
litigation, will facilitate a speedy decision, will ensure that the Court bases its “reasonable cause”
determinations on the same record which the Board and reviewing courts will evaluate, and will
conserve the time and resources of the Court and the parties. Such procedure fully comports
with ample case authority as well as the statutory priority that srg\)u%l\qsb@%]igrgr\l }o this proceeding

. on
under 28 U.S.C. Section 1657(a)(1998)° anglg)g@ eﬂ%ﬁ\\\{gl intent of the 1947 Congress which
A0-

NO-
enacted Section 10(j). ggg(‘l_,\LCé@‘iglative History LMRA 1947 414, 433 (Government Printing
@ V-
Office 1985). Ithe Court agrees to utilize the record developed before the Administrative Law
Judge, Petitioner also requests that the Court grant leave to supplement such record with either

oral testimony or affidavit evidence limited to the issue of whether injunctive relief is "just and

& In its Objection and Response to Petitioner’s Motion to Try Complaint and Petition for Temporary Injunction on

the ALJ Record, Respondent points out that under Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(a)(2) the Court may order the trial on the merits
consolidated with hearing of the application for injunction and that Fed.R.Civ.P. 43(a) requires that in every trial
testimony of witnesses shall be taken in open court. However, in the instant case, the trial on the merits was already
held before the ALJ. No trial will be held in District Court on the merits. Rather, the Court is only called upon to
decide whether an injunction should issue. Consequently, Rule 43(a) simply does not apply in this case.

9

28 U.S.C. Section 1657(a) provides:
Section 1657. Priority of Civil Actions

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, each court of the United States shall determine
the order in which civil actions are heard and determined, except that the court shall expedite the
consideration of any action brought under chapter 153 or section 1826 of this title, any action for
temporary or preliminary injunctive relief ... (emphasis added)

11



proper" in this case, as that issue was not a question before the ALJ in the administrative

proceeding.

DATED AT Denver, Colorado, this day of August 1998.
Respectfully Submitted,

PETITIONER: B. ALLAN BENSON, REGIONAL
REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF THE NATIONAL LABOR
RELATIONS BOARD, REGION 27

By: et 29 o
__aon YT
ie. Ia!q-q\g'r?neyer, Attorney Reg. No. 1024146
NoO- \016ticia Pefia, Attorney Reg. No. 014789
T core- Daniel C. Ferguson, Attorney Reg. No. 024113
gran¥ Y- 700 North Tower, Dominion Plaza

600 Seventeenth Street

Denver, Colorado 80202-5433
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ARGUMENT TO SUPPORT MOTION TO DISTRICT COURT TO TRY 10(j) OR
10() PETITION ON BASIS OF AFFIDAVITS AND/OR ALJ HEARING

TRANSCRIPT AND EXHIBITS 1

[Bracketed material exempt from disclosure pursuant to exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

[[The Region should first discuss (or briefly review) the statutory scheme under the
Act for Section 10(j) or 10(l) (see Appendix D of this Manual for the Section 10(j)
standards by circuit), and the statutory priority of these petitions in the U.S. district
courts under 28 U.S.C. Section 1657(a). The Region should then argue that the court
can both expedite the proceeding and conserve the resources of the court and the
parties by hearing the case on affidavits and/or on the evidentiary record developed
in the administrative hearing before an ALJ. The following analysis will support
the contention that neither the Act nor the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure require
a full evidentiary hearing.]]

s’&2912m’\

[In light of this statutory scheme, it is well settlg&ictha‘f‘ﬁnr‘strlct courts in
proceedings under Section 10(j) or IO(I)\%aY@%ot ca(iled upon to finally determine the
merits of the unfa\(\ Lghaﬁb\rgctlce charges, but should only evaluate the evidence to
determine whgiﬁer the Regional Director has "reasonable cause” to believe [or, a
likelihood of success in proving] that the respondent has violated the Act.]

[Indeed, it is settled that, in these preliminary proceedings, the courts should give
the Regional Director's version of the disputed facts the "benefit of the doubt", and

should accept the reasonable inferences he draws therefrom if they are "within the range

1 [One paragraph redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

2 [Section 10(1), 29 U.S.C. Section 160(l), the companion provision to Section 10(j),
mandates that the NLRB to seek a temporary injunction in district court after the
preliminary investigation of a charge reveals reasonable cause to believe that a charged
party has violated certain specified unfair labor practice provisions of the Act, e.g., union
secondary boycotts. See, e.g., Hirsch v. Building and Construction Trades Council, 530
F.2d 298, 302 (3d Cir. 1976).]




of rationality". Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 36-37 (2d Cir. 1975) (Sec.

10(j)); Squillacote v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d 853, 858-859 (7th Cir.

1976)(Sec. 10(1)).]

[Accordingly, in view of the Regional Director's "relatively insubstantial burden
of proof",3 it is not necessary for a district court to hold a full, evidentiary hearing to
enable it to conclude whether “reasonable cause" [or, a likelihood of success on the

merits] has been established, (see Dunbar v. Landis Plastics, Inc., 977 F.Supp. 169, 177

(N.D.N.Y. 1997), reconsideration denied 996 F.Supp 174 (N.D.N.Y. 1998), remanded on
other grounds 152 F.3d 917 (2nd Cir. 1998); Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d 485,

493 and 494 (6th Cir. 1984) (Sec. 10(j)); Pye v. Teamsters Local Union No. 122, 875

F.Supp 921, 928 (D.Mass. 1995), aff'd 61 F.3d 1013 (1st Cir. 1995); San Francisco-
Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d 541, 546 (9th Cir. %96%@'(56% 10(1))# or

to resolve credibility conflicts in the evidence. NL|§\B,\\A E(be%ﬁ% Voice, Inc., 83 F.3d
\'G
504 @

1559, 1570, 1571 (7th Cir. 1996)L& A0-A
[In V|ewao(<tkye\f6|’é\gomg the weight of judicial authority holds that it is proper

for a district (:Fc;urt to base its "reasonable cause" [or, likelihood of

success]determinations in Section 10(j) and 10(l) cases upon evidence presented in the

form of affidavits. See Aquayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751;

Squillacote v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 860. Accord: Sharp v.

Webco Industries Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1134 (10th Cir. 2000) (affidavits); Gottfried v.

Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493 (combination of affidavits and ALJ transcript); San

3 [Kobell v. Suburban Lines, Inc. , 731 F.2d 1076, 1084 (3rd. Cir. 1984); Levinev. C & W
Mining Co., 610 F.2d 432, 435 (6th. Cir. 1979); Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d
485, 493 (6th. Cir. 1987); Aguayo v. Tomco Carburetor, Inc., 853 F.2d 744, 748 (9th Cir.
1988).]

4 [One paragraph redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]



Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546 (affidavits); Kennedy

v. Teamsters, Local 542, 443 F.2d 627, 630 (9th Cir. 1971) (same); Squillacote v.

Automobile, Aerospace & Agricultural Implement Workers, 383 F. Supp. 49l, 493 (E.D.

Wis. 1974) (same).9) A fortiorari, reasonable cause [or, likelihood of
success]determinations can also properly be based upon the transcript of sworn testimony
given before an NLRB administrative law judge, subject to cross examination, in the

underlying administrative proceeding. See Silverman v. JRL Food Corp., 196 F.3d 334

(2d Cir. 1999); Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Asseo v. Pan American

Grain Co., 805 F.2d 23, 25-26 (1st Cir. 1986) (combination of live testimony and ALJ
transcript); Fuchs v. Hood Industries, Inc., 590 F.2d 395, 398 (1st Cir. 1979) (the use of

an ALJ transcript "could be of considerable assistance in expediting the work of the

[district] court.”); Eisenberg v. Honeycomb Plastics Corp., 125 LRR’LM 3257, 3262 (D.
st
N.J. 1987).6 There is particularly no need for addltlor‘@é tssth’ﬁ%ny since the ALJ record

is the only evidence the Board Wll{\\hav\e)m@e%ermmmg the final outcome of the case.

See NLRB v. Johnson \fBVl@EZd 550, 552 (6th Cir. 1962); Marathon Oil Co. v. EPA, 564
Fratt
F.2d 1253, 1264 (9th Cir. 1977).]

[Finally, neither Rule 43(e) nor Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
requires oral testimony in this type of statutory, temporary injunction proceeding,

Silverman v. Red & Tan Charters, Inc., 1993 WL 498062 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 30, 1993)7

5 [See generally F.T.C. v. Rhodes Pharmacal Co., 191 F.2d 744 (7th Cir. 1951); U.S. v.
Wilson Williams, Inc., 277 F.2d 535 (2d Cir. 1960); Johnston v. J.P. Stevens & Company,
Inc., 341 F.2d 89l (4th Cir. 1965). [But see n. 1 supra.]]

6 [In Kaynard v. Palby Lingerie, Inc., 625 F.2d 1047, 1050-5I (2d Cir. 1980), the Second
Circuit affirmed a Section 10(j) injunction issued by a district court on the basis of the
transcript and exhibits adduced before the administrative law judge in the underlying
administrative proceeding.]

7 [The Region should refer to its Local Rules in citing to cases that are only cited in
Westlaw.]



(declining to find that Rule 65 requires the holding of an evidentiary hearing on a Section

10(j) petition); Kennedy v. Sheet Metal Workers, 289 F. Supp. 65, 87-91 (C.D. Cal.

1968),8 and such procedures do not deny a fair hearing or due process to the Respondent.

See Aquayo v. Tomco Carburetor Co., 853 F.2d at 750-751; Asseo v. Pan American

Grain Co., 805 F.2d at 25-26; Gottfried v. Samuel Frankel, 818 F.2d at 493; Squillacote

v. Graphic Arts International Union, 540 F.2d at 860; Kennedy v. Teamsters, Local 542,

443 F.2d at 630; San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d at 546.]

[In sum, submission of this Section [10(j) or 10(1)] matter [on the affidavits and
exhibits submitted by the Board and the Respondent and/or on the transcript of the
testimony and exhibits adduced in the administrative proceeding, supplemented by
"just and proper"* affidavits or testimony] will avoid the delay inherent in scheduling

and conducting a full evidentiary hearing, will avoid duplicative Iiti%%ti%,\wnl facilitate

yst
a speedy decision, and will conserve the time and r(%\s\glggoes 6the court and the parties.
aC

A
Such procedure fully comports Wit\b\ghecﬂhﬁg‘t%ry priority that should be given to this

"p.s
proceeding undeg\ K&Lkg.ﬁ.%%ction 1657(a) and the original intent of the 1947 Congress
Fra

which enacted Section [10(j) or 10(1)]. See I Leqgislative History LMRA 1947 414, 433

(Government Printing Office 1985). [Add if appropriate, and see notes 1 and 4, supra.:
If the Court grants this motion to utilize the record developed before the administrative
law judge, Petitioner also requests that the Court grant leave to supplement such record
with either oral testimony or affidavit evidence bearing on the issue of the equitable
necessity of injunctive relief in this case, as such evidence may not be germane in the

administrative proceeding.]

j:10jmanual\ALJTrans.doc
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8 [There is nothing in the texts of Section 10(j) and 10(l) that mandates oral testimony in
these proceedings. See San Francisco-Oakland Newspaper Guild v. Kennedy, 412 F.2d
at 546.]
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APPENDIX M

OPPOSITION TO INTERVENTION BY CHARGING PARTIES

e 1. Sample Argument to Support a Motion to Oppose Intervention

e 2. Memorandum GC 99-4, Participation by Charging Parties in Section 10(j)
Injunction and Section 10(j) Contempt Proceedings




Sample Argument to Support a Motion to Oppose Intervention

[ The substance of this section exempt from disclosure under Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel.]

Board's Exclusive Authority to Seek Section 10(j) and 10(1) Injunctions, Including the
Authority to Seek Contempt Under 10(j) and 10(]) Decrees

In seeking temporary injunctive relief under Section 10(j) and 10(l) of the Act, the
NLRB acts solely "in the public interest and not in vindication of purely private rights."
Senate Report No. 105 on S.1126, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., (April 17, 1947), reprinted in |

Legislative History LMRA 1947 414 (G.P.O. 1985). See, e.g., Seeler v. The Trading Port,

Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 39-40 (2d Cir. 1975)(Section 10(j)); Hendrix v. Operating Engineers

Local 571, 592 F.2d 437, 441-42 (8th Cir. 1979)(Section 10(1)). It is thus well established

that the right to seek a temporary injunction to enjoin unfair labor practlc%s\pursuant to
S\' 291
Section 10(j) or 10(1) of the Act is exclusively within, g&m%‘%ﬁy of the Board. See
cn
\500h &
Amalgamated Clothing Workersp ofNngAé?lca v. Richman Brothers Co., 348 U.S. 511, 516-
T GO

17 (1955).1 Imhﬁ‘}éjgard, a proposed amendment to Section 10(l) of the Act to allow

private parties to seek directly in the district courts injunctive relief for certain unfair labor
practices, was defeated by the 1947 Congress which enacted Section 10(I) and 10(j). See

Muniz v. Hoffman, 422 U.S. 454, 465-67 (1975)(discussion of legislative history).

It is also well established that a private party cannot intervene by right (see

Fed.R.Civ.P. 24(a)(2)) in such proceedings in the district court, Sears, Roebuck & Co. v.

1 Accord: Walsh v. I.L.A., 630 F.2d 864, 871-72 (1st Cir. 1980); California Assoc. of
Employers v. BCTC of Reno, Nevada, 178 F.2d 175 (9th Cir. 1949); Amalgamated Assoc.
of Street and Motor Coach Employees v. Dixie Motor Coach Corp., 170 F.2d 902 (8th Cir.
1948); Amazon Cotton Mill Company v. Textile Workers Union of America, 167 F.2d 183
(4th Cir. 1948); Brown & Sharpe Mfg. Co. v. District 64, IAM, 535 F.Supp. 167, 169 n. 2
(D. R.I. 1982).




Carpet, etc. Union, 410 F.2d 1148, 1150-51 (10th Cir. 1969), vacated on other grounds as

moot, 397 U.S. 655 (1970),2 for to do so would interfere with the exclusive jurisdiction
which has been vested in the NLRB by Congress and would give such party a right

independently to appeal or to seek a contempt citation. See Penello v. Burlington

Industries, Inc., 54 LRRM 2165 (W.D. Va. 1963). See also McLeod v. Business Machine

Conference Board, 300 F.2d 237, 242-43 (2d Cir. 1962)(charging party not permitted to

raise issues in 10(1) proceeding which are not raised by the Regional Director). In
addition, a private party cannot intervene in such proceedings at the appellate level. See

Hirsch v. Building and Construction Trades Council of Phila. & Vicinity, AFL-CIO, 530

F.2d 298, 307-08 (3d Cir. 1976).3

It is similarly well established that the right to seek contemp&tizjwazbéﬂrt decree
AUQUS
n
enforcing a NLRB order resides exclusively g&hg(m@éﬂnasmuch as the NLRB seeks
4019
judicial enforcement of i%s\g@gma?‘é)"public agent." See Amalgamated Utility Workers
\,\

gran¥ Y-

2 Accord: Squillacote v. Local 578, Auto Workers, 383 F.Supp. 491, 492 (E.D. Wisc.
1974); Wilson v. Liberty Homes, Inc., 500 F.Supp. 1120, 1123 (W.D. Wisc. 1980), affd. as
mod. 108 LRRM 2699 (7th Cir. 1981), vacated as moot 109 LRRM 2492, 673 F.2d 1333
(7th Cir. 1982); Reynolds v. Marlene Industries Corp., 250 F.Supp. 722, 723-24 (S.D. N.Y.
1966); Philips v. Mine Workers, District 19, 218 F.Supp. 103, 105-06 (E.D. Tenn. 1963);
Boire v. Pilot Freight Carriers, Inc., 86 LRRM 2976, 2978 (M.D. Fla. 1974), aff'd. 515
F.2d 1185 (5th Cir. 1975), reh. denied, 521 F.2d 795, cert. denied, 426 U.S. 934 (1976).

3 Accord: Solien v. Miscellaneous Drivers etc., 440 F.2d 124, 129-32 (8th Cir. 1971),
cert. denied 403 U.S. 905; Henderson v. Operating Engineers, Local 701, 420 F.2d 802,
806 fn. 2 (9th Cir. 1969); Compton v. N.M.U., 533 F.2d 1270, 1276 fn. 4 (1st Cir. 1976).




v. Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc., 309 U.S. 261, 269 (1940); May

Department Stores Co. v. NLRB, 326 U.S. 376, 388 (1945).4

Since the NLRB similarly acts to vindicate solely the public interest under Section

10(j) and 10(1) of the Act, see Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc., 859 F.2d 26, 30 (6th

Cir. 1988) and cases cited therein, the right to seek a contempt adjudication of an order

granting a temporary injunction pursuant to Section 10(j) or 10(l) of the Act similarly

resides exclusively in the NLRB. See Shore v. Building and Construction Trades Council,
50 LRRM 2139 (W.D. Pa. 1962)(motion by nonparty employer in 10(l) proceeding to
adjudicate respondent union in contempt, denied on basis that only NLRB can bring
contempt action; Fed.R.Civ.P. 71 held not applicable).2 Thus, while the courts have the
inherent power to enforce compliance with their lawful orders through civil contempt, e.g.,

Shillitani v. U.S., 384 U.S. 365, 370 (1966), charging parties may no&@ez@e‘r?nﬂted to

9
pursue independently contempt petitions in 10(I) anq\gd@@oé‘ases which would intrude upon

the Board's exclusive authority tg mgaﬁ@a%d enforce these types of proceedings. See
v Cof
Shore v. Bwld‘l’r(\%g@d.(*,&structlon Trades Council, 50 LRRM at 2141. Accord: Philips

v. Mine Workers, District 19, 218 F.Supp. at 107-08 (charging party has no right to

continue 10(1) decree or to seek contempt adjudication over objection of Regional

Director).6

4 See also NLRB v. Shurtenda Steaks, Inc., 424 F.2d 192 (10th Cir. 1970); Vapor Blast
Shop Worker's Association v. Simon, 305 F.2d 717 (7th Cir. 1962); NLRB v. Retail Clerks
International Association, 243 F.2d 777 (9th Cir. 1956).

5 See also Moore v. Tangipahoa Parish School Board, 625 F.2d 33, 34 (5th Cir.
1980)(Fed.R.Civ.P. 71 does not allow a nonparty to enforce a court decree where such
person has no standing to sue). Cf. Evans v. International Typographical Union, 81 F.
Supp. 675, 678 (S.D. Ind. 1948)(power to initiate and prosecute temporary injunction
proceeding under Section 10(j) carries with it the incidental and inherent authority to
institute contempt proceedings).

6 Compare the Ninth Circuit's decision in NLRB v. Retail Clerks International, 243 F.2d at
782-83 (charging party has no standing to seek injunctive relief to enforce prior court
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decrees where Board was not seeking such relief) with Retail Clerks v. Food Employers
Council, 351 F.2d 525, 529 (9th Cir. 1965) (district court has jurisdiction, once Regional

Director files 10(1) petition, to grant appropriate relief different from that proposed by the
Regional Director).




OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
MEMORANDUM GC 99-4 June 3, 1999
TO: All Regional Directors, Officers-in-Charge
And Resident Officers
FROM: Fred Feinstein, General Counsel
SUBJECT: Participation by Charging Parties in Section
10(j)Injunction and Section 10(j) Contempt

Proceedings

1. Introduction

The purpose of this Memorandum is to detail the degree
to which charging parties in the underlying unfair labor
practice proceeding may participate in the U.S. district
court Section 10(j) injunction proceeding. Charging parties
in Section 10(j) proceedings should be given the same rights
as charging parties in 10(1l) proceedings: the "opportunity
to appear by counsel and present any relevant testimony.“

Section 10(1l), 29 U.S.C. 160(1l). This part1c1p does
not, however, include the right to formal %ervene as a
party in the 10(j) proceeding. It %%dmo analogous to that
of an active amicus curiae. Aam

1015%°

Such part1c1 qgﬁonNshould apply not only to the initial
10(3) proceeq ich seeks the temporary injunction, but
also to aﬁﬁ*éubsequent proceedings to modify, amend,
reconsider or to oppose a stay of any decree obtained, and
any contempt proceeding which seeks a civil contempt
adjudication and purgation order.’

Set forth below is the legal analysis in support of the
argument that charging parties should be denied formal
intervention as parties in the injunction proceeding, as
well as that supporting the position that charging parties
in 10(j) proceedings should be accorded the right of
participation due to charging parties in Section 10(1)
proceedings. Any charging party motion to intervene should
be opposed and any charging party motion for amicus status
should be supported, relying upon the analysis set forth
below.

' gimilarly, charging parties should be granted amicus
status in any appeal.
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2. The Legislative History of Section 10(7) and the
Policies under the Federal Rules Demonstrate that
Charging Parties Have No Right to Intervene in 10(73)
and 10(1) Proceedings.

In seeking temporary injunctive relief under Section
10(j), the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB or Board)
acts solely "in the public interest and not in vindication
of purely private rights." Senate Report No. 105 on S.1126,
80th Cong., 1lst Sess., p. 8 (April 17, 1947), reprinted in I
Legislative History ILMRA 1947 414 (Government Printing
Office 1985).° Thus, it is well established that the right
to seek a temporary injunction to enjoin unfair labor
practices pursuant to Section 10(j) is exclusively within
the authority of the Board. See Amalgamated Clothing
Workers of America v. Richman Brothers Co., 348 U.S. 511,
516-517 (1955).° 1Indeed, during the debate on Section 10 (j)
and (1) in 1947, Congress defeated a proposed amendment to
Section 10(1l) to allow private parties direct access to the
district courts to seek injunctive relief for certain unfair
labor practices. See Muniz v. Hoffman, 422 U.S. 454, 465-
467 (1975) (discussing legislative history of Taft-Hartley
Amendments). Since intervention would permit a party
independently to appeal or to seek a contempt cidrgdtiion,
granting intervention would 1nappropr1at gudﬁﬁerfere with
the Congressional intent to vest in the® ard the exclusive
authority to prosecute 1njun%§ @mﬂﬁ%oceedlngs Penello v.
Burlington Industries, Inc®;’ LRRM 2165 (W.D. Va. 1963).
See also Sears, Roebugk & Co. v. Carpet, etc. Union, 410
F.2d 1148, 1\5,0\=\i\1‘51 (10th Cir. 1969), vacated on other
grounds a%ﬂﬁ% 397 U.S. 655 (1970) (denying intervention
at appellate level), Philips v. Mineworkers, 218 F. Supp.
103, 105-106 (E.D. Tenn. 1963) (denying intervention for
purposes of dissolving the injunction and instituting
contempt proceedings).

Courts have also reasoned that because the statutory
power to petition for 10(j) and 10(1l) relief is limited to
the Board, a charging party has no independent interest
protectable by intervention under Fed.R.Civ.P., Rule

’ See also Seeler v. The Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 40
(2d Cir. 1975).

’ Accord: Walsh v. I.L.A., 630 F.2d 864, 871-872 (lst Cir.
1980); California Assoc. of Emplovers v. BCTC of Reno,
Nevada, 178 F.2d 175, 179 (9th Cir. 1949); Amalgamated
Assoc. of Street and Motor Coach Emplovees v. Dixie Motor
Coach Corp., 170 F.2d 902, 907 (8th Cir. 1948); Amazon
Cotton Mill Company v. Textile Workers Union of America, 167
F.2d 183, 185-187 (4th Cir. 1948); Brown & Sharpe Mfg. Co.
v. District 64, IAM, 535 F. Supp. 167, 169 n. 2 (D. R.I.
1982) .
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24 (a) (2) or (b)(2). Accordingly, courts have routinely
denied charging parties motions to intervene under that
Rule. Reynolds v. Marlene Industries Corp., 250 F. Supp.
722, 723-724 (S.D.N.Y. 1966); Boire v. Pilot Freight
Carriers, Inc., 86 LRRM 2976, 2978 (M.D. Fla. 1974), aff'd.
515 F.2d 1185 (5th Cir.), reh. denied, 521 F.2d 795 (1975),
cert. denied 426 U.S. 934 (1976); Squillacote v. Local 578,
Auto Workers, 383 F. Supp. 491, 492 (E.D. Wisc. 1974);
Wilson v. Liberty Homes, Inc., 500 F. Supp. 1120, 1123 (W.D.
Wisc. 1980).°

3. Charging Parties in Section 10(j) Proceedings
Should Enjoy the Same Rights of Participation
as in Section 10(1l) Proceedings

Section 10(1l) expressly directs that charging parties
"shall be given an opportunity to appear by counsel and
present any relevant testimony." Given the functional
similarity of section 10(j) and 10(1)° it is appropriate to

‘ Other district courts have denied intervention without

reference to Rule 24. See, NLRB v. Ona Corp., 605 F. Supp.
874, 876 (N.D. Ala. 1985); Gottfried v. Mayco Plastics,
Inc., 472 F. Supp. 1161, 1163, 1164 (E.D. Mich ,ﬁﬁ19) affd.
615 F.2d 1360 (6th Cir. 1980) (table). ég @ﬂggpellate
courts have also denied interventio 20 08 Hirsch v.
Building and Construction Trades 2 \nc1l of Phila. &
Vicinity, AFL-CIO, 530 F02@W§ 307-308 (3d Cir. 1976);
Compton v. N.M.U., 533 @ 2d 1270, 1276 n. 4 (1lst Cir. 1976);
Solien v. Migce®l @neous Drivers etc., 440 F.2d 124, 129-132
(8th Cir.¥@"Cert. denied 403 U.S. 905 (1971); Henderson v.
Operating Engineers, Local 701, 420 F.2d 802, 806 n. 2 (9th
Cir. 1969).

> The two provisions were enacted as companion provisions:

section 10(1l) mandates the Board to seek injunctive relief
in cases involving certain enumerated unfair labor practices
(chiefly, unlawful secondary boycotts); 10(3j) authorizes the
Board, in its discretion, to seek injunctive relief in all
other cases. The standards for determining the propriety of
injunctive relief are generally the same. Kobell v.
Suburban Lines, Inc., 731 F.2d 1076, 1084 (3d Cir. 1984);
Kinney v. Local 150, 994 F.2d 1271, 1276 (7th Cir. 1993).
Although one court has held that the absence of any
reference in 10(3j) to charging party participation
distinguishes it from 10(1l) (see Wilson v. Liberty Homes,
Inc., 500 F. Supp. at 1123), that view has not been adopted
generally and that decision has not been read as a rejection
of all right to participate in 10(j) proceedings. See
Dunbar v. Landis Plastics, Inc., 996 F. Supp. 174, 179-180
(N.D.N.Y. 1998), remanded on other grounds 152 F.3d 917 (2d
Cir. 1998) (table) (distinguishing Liberty Homes and
granting amicus curiae status to charging party).
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accord the same degree of participation to charging parties
in 10(j) proceedings. Such participation comes under the
general rubric of an amicus curiae, a status courts have
often granted to charging parties in Section 10(j) cases.’
Often the court has granted the charging party amicus the
same privileges as would be granted under 10(1).’

To be sure, a 10(j) charging party amicus, like the
10(1) charging party, is not a full party in the district
court proceeding’® and may not vary the theory of violation
being advanced by the Regional Director or initiate an
appeal.’

6

See, e.g., Dunbar v. Landis Plastics, Inc., 996 F. Supp.
at 179-180; D'Amico v. United States Service Industries,
Inc., 867 F. Supp. 1075, 1079 (D. D.C. 1994); Garner v.
Macclenny Products, Inc., 859 F. Supp. 1478, 1479 (M.D. Fla.
1994); Zipp v. Caterpillar, Inc., 858 F. Supp. 794, 795
(C.D. Ill. 1994); Gottfried v. Mayco Plastics, Inc., 472 F.
Supp. 1161, 1163, 1164 (E.D. Mich. 1979), aff'd. 615 F.2d
1360 (6th Cir. 1980); NLRB v. Ona Corp., 605 F. Supp. 874,
876 (N.D. Ala. 1985); McLeod v. General Electric Company,
257 F. Supp. 690, 692 n. 1 (S.D.N.Y.), revd. on,gpher
grounds 366 F.2d 847 (2d Cir. 1966), sta @aﬁ@ed 87 S.Ct.
5, vacated and remanded 385 U.S. 5%%edb9§vg

g A
" See McLeod v. General El&@ﬁ?lc Company, 257 F. Supp. at
692, n. (may aﬁg by counsel, examine and cross examine
w1tnesses anK egal submissions); NLRB v. Ona Corp.

605 F. Suéﬁm at 876 (afforded full opportunity to be heard
to examine and cross-examine witnesses and present evidence
bearing upon the issues); Dunbar v. Landis Plastics, Inc.,
996 F. Supp. at 180 (permitted to file memoranda and
evidentiary affidavits and to participate in oral argument) .

° See rationale above p.2, for denying intervention by
charging parties. See also The Miller-Wohl Co., Inc. V.
Commission of Labor and Industry, State of Montana, 694 F.2d
203, 204 (9th Cir. 1982) (amici are not parties; grant of
motion to intervene is necessary to confer party status);
Morales v. Turman, 820 F.2d 728, 732 (5th Cir. 1987) (same).

’ See McLeod v. Business Machine Conference Board, 300 F.2d

237, 242-243 (2d Cir. 1962); Sears Roebuck & Co. v. Carpet,
etc. Union, 410 F.2d at 1150-1151. See also Moten v.
Bricklayers, Masons, etc., 543 F.2d 224, 227 (D.C. Cir.
1976) (where litigant did not seek intervention, its
position was analogous to amicus; as such it had no
authority to appeal); Richardson v. Alabama State Board of
Education, 935 F.2d 1240, 1247 (1llth Cir. 1991) and cases
cited (refusing to consider arguments of amici not presented
by party).
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4. Charging Party's Right of Participation Extends
to Section 10(j) Civil Contempt Proceedings

The right to institute proceedings for civil contempt
of a temporary interim injunction resides exclusively in the
NLRB as a "public agent;" a charging party has no
independent authority to bring contempt proceedings. Shore
v. Building and Construction Trades Council, 50 LRRM 2139
(W.D. Pa. 1962). See also NLRB v. Retail Clerks
International Association, 243 F.2d 777, 782-783 (9th Cir.
1956) (charging party has no standing to seek injunctive
relief to enforce prior court decrees where Board was not
seeking such relief); Philips v. Mine Workers, District 19,
218 F. Supp. at 107-108 (charging party has no right to
continue 10(1) decree or to seek contempt adjudication over
objection of Regional Director); Moore v. Tangipahoa Parish
School Board, 625 F.2d 33, 34 (5th Cir. 1980) (Fed.R.Civ.P.
71 does not allow a nonparty to enforce a court decree where
such person has no standing to sue). However, consistent
with the general policy set forth above, Regions should
consent to the participation of charging parties as amicus
curiae in Section 10(j) civil contempt proceedings.

5. Conclusion QD\\
ust 29,

Consistent with the analys1s segdﬁﬁf%h above, the
Regions should deny all requ ests oppose all motions of
charging parties to obt %n\ mal party status in any
Section 10(3) progg&@pn However, the Regions should
consent to gn g the charging parties the status of
amicus Cuﬁﬁﬁ and the same degree of participation granted
to charging parties under Section 10(1l) of the Act.

If the Regions have any questions concerning this
guideline memorandum, or if issues arise not clearly covered
herein, prompt telephonic advice should be sought from the
Injunction Litigation Branch in Washington.

cc: NLRBU

Release to the Public

MEMORANDUM GC 99-4

j:10jmanual\AppendM2.doc
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APPENDIX N

DISCOVERY DOCUMENTS

Model Motion for Protective Order to Limit
Discovery Pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c)(1)

Model Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Protective Order to Limit Discovery
Pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c)(1)

Model Order Limiting Discovery Pursuant
to Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c)(1)

Sample Motion to Quash Notice of Deposition
Pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c)(1)

Sample Memorandum in Support of Motion
to Quash Notice of Deposition Pursuant
to Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c)(1)



Model Motion for Protective Order to Limit
Discovery Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c)(1)

[4 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

j:10jmanual\Model26(c)mtn.doc
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Model Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Motion for Protective Order
to Limit Discovery Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c)(I)

[28 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

0"().1
‘Fraﬂ\«\ \. \’\TH ©

j:10jManual\Model26(c)mem.doc
June 2001



Model Order Limiting Discovery
Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c)(1)

[2 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

j:10jmanual\Model26(c)ord.doc
June 2001



SAMPLE MOTION TO QUASH NOTICE OF DEPOSITION

[3 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

\Aoom-x‘“o'

eran V-

j:injlit\10jmanual\quashdepmtn.doc
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SAMPLE MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO QUASH NOTICE OF DEPOSITION

[11 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]

v\oom-x‘\\o'

eran V-

j:injlit\10jmanual\quashdepmem.doc
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United States Government

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
Region 29

One MetroTech Center North

Jay Street and Myrtle Avenue - 10th Floor
Brooklyn, New York 11201-4201

October 11, 2000

The Honorable Frederick Block
United States District Court
For the Eastern District of New York

225 Cadman Plaza East
Brooklyn, New York 11201
Re: ALVIN BLYER V. PRATT TOWERS, INC.
Case No. CV-00-2499
Dear Judge Block:
o\

Enclosed please find a copy of the Decision and Recommended Or gss"i\@d %y Administrative
Law Judge Jesse Kleiman concerning the above-captioned case. In 1§,® on and Recommended Order,
Judge Klelman finds all of the violations of the Natlon Ref2 atxons Act alleged by Counsel for the

General Counsel (Petitioner herein) in the Cons &)@? omplaint in Case Nos. 29-CA-22657, 29-CA-
22660 and 29-CA-22666". Specnﬂcal% Judge Kleiman found, inter alia, that Respondent violated Section
8(a)(3) of the National Labo jas Act by unlawfully refusing to reinstate six striking employees to
their former posntkg ‘dﬂe‘l‘nployment upon their unconditional offer to return to work. Respondent has
been ordered to reinstate the six strikers with full backpay and interest. In addition, the Judge found that
Respondent “engaged in a predetermined and planned course of conduct designed to undermine the status
of the Union and to convince employees that it would be futile to continue to support the Union...” in
violation of Section 8(a)(5) of the Act. Respondent has been ordered, upon request, to bargain in good faith
with the Union over the terms and conditions of employment of its employees.

Judge Kleiman's Decision strongly bolsters the Petitioner’'s contention that there is reasonable
cause to believe that Respondent violated the Act as alleged by the Regional Director in the Petition for
injunctive relief under Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act. See, e.g. Silverman v. JRL Food
Corp., 196 F.3d 334, 335-337 (2d Cir. 1999); Seeler v. Trading Port, Inc., 517 F.2d 33, 37, n.7 (2d Cir.
1975); Rivera-Vega v. ConAdgra, Inc., 70 F.3d 153, 157 n.3, 161 (1st Cir. 1995).

As noted in earlier correspondence, the Administrative Law Judge’s decision is not the final
administrative decision of the Board. See, e.g. Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing & Heating, Inc., 250
F.3d 962, 968 (6th Cir. 2001); Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225 F.3d 1130, 1136 (10th Cir. 2000). The
Petitioner has been advised by Respondent that it will file exceptions to the ALJ’s decision, and that

! The ALJ did not decide on the allegation that Respondent unlawfully withdrew recognition from the
Union, as alleged in Case No. 29-CA-23137. Petitioner anticipates that the ALJ will issue his Decision and
Order in that matter in the very near future,



appendix o

Respondent intends to request a one month extension of time for filing from the current deadline of October
25, 2000. Furthermore, in accordance with the Board’s Rules and Regulations, Petitioner may file an
answering brief opposing Respondent’s exceptions, and Respondent could then file a reply brief. In view

of the numerous stages remaining in this administrative proceeding, along with the length of the Judge's

decision, it is likely thai the Board will require a considerably long period of time to review the record,
analyze the ALJ’s 75-page decision, analyze the exceptions tothe ALJ’s factual and legal findings, and

issue its Decision. Thus, Petitioner anticipates many more months of administrative litigation. See, e.g.

Levin v. Fry Foods, Inc., 108 LRRM 2208, 2209 (N.D. Ohio 1979), aff’'d. 108 LRRM 2280 (6th Cir. 1981)

(issuance of ALJD does not terminate 10(j) decree.) See also, Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc., 859

F.2d 26, 28 and 31, 129 LRRM 2660 (6th Cir. 1988) (error for district court to limit duration of 10(j)

decree to commencement of ALJ hearing.) Thus, as the administrative litigation is still ongoing and the

time before a final Board Order may be considerable, the risk of irreparable harm to the discriminatees and
to the Union’s bargaining strength not only continues, but also increases. Moreover, in light of the ALJ’s
finding that Respondent never intended to bargain in good faith with the Union and that Respondent
deliberately devised a plan to rid itself of the Union by, among other things, dragging out negotiations to
allow for the expiration of the certification year (ALJD, p.67, In. 36-45, p.69, In. 12-15), the Respondent
should not further benefit from its unlawful conduct by allowing more time to pass without interim
injunctive relief. ' :

Based on the above, it is clear that the Administrative Law Judge has found that Respondent has
violated the Act in the manner set forth in the 10(j) Petition. Further, despite the ALJ’s decision, injunctive
relief is still warranted.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. + 29 20\ A
US ?
é%;qu&% y submitted,

W

AN A Nancy K. Reibstein
K\ V- \/\T\’\ co Counsel for Petitioner
pra®



APPENDIX P
Instructions and Sample Letter, Motion and Memorandum
to Expedite District Court Decision
Instructions for Expediting a District Court Decision

Sample letter to district court to expedite decision in
Blyer v. Pratt Towers, Inc.

Sample Motion to Expedite Decision in
Moore-Duncan v. Aldworth Company, Inc.

Sample Memorandum in Support of Motion to Expedite in
Moore-Duncan v. Aldworth Company, Inc.




Instructions for Expediting District Court Decision

[2 pages redacted, exem. 5, attorney work product, 2, and 7(E)]
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United States Government

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
Region 29

One MetroTech Center North

Jay Street and Myrtle Avenue - 10th Floor
Brooklyn, New York 11201-4201

September 13, 2000

The Honorable Frederick Block
United States District Court

For the Eastern District of New York
225 Cadman Plaza East

Brooklyn, New York 11201

Re:  ALVIN BLYER V. PRATT TOWERS, INC.
Case No. CV-00-2499
20\
Dear Judge Block: on AUy
cnive
On May 2, 2000, this office filei ;gﬂﬁ?oﬁ“for injunctive relief pursuant to Section
10(j) of the National Labor ReI%gi'Qn@A with the Court in the above referenced matter.
On May 9, 2000, Petiti\qweir fifled a Motion to Try the 10(j) Petition on the Basis of
Administrativgﬁe&iﬁ‘g Transcripts and Exhibits. All such materials were submitted to
the Court by May 25, 2000. On August 8, 2000, Counsel for Petitioner spoke with law
clerk Patrick Walsh who indicated that the matter is pending, but that he did not know
when a decision would be made...

Although we recognize that the Court is faced with a heavy calendar, we were
hopeful that by this time we would have a decision, keeping in mind the need for
expedition, in light of the priority nature of this case under 29 U.S.C. Section 1657(a) and
the legislative intent behind Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act. See,
Kaynard v. MMCI, Inc., 734 F.2d 950, 954 (2d Cir. 1984)(Congress intended Section
10(j) as a "swift interim remedy to halt unfair labor practices.”) See also Hoeber v.
IBEW, Local No. 3, 498 F. Supp. 122 (D.N.J. 1980) (while district court has authority to
refer 10(j) petition to a magistrate, court remained cognizant of statutory priority and
mandated expedited processing.)

Moreover, any further delay only increases the on-going risk of irreparable harm
to the discriminatees, the Union and the public interest. See Maram v. Universidad
Interamericana, 722 F.2d 953, 960 (1st Cir. 1983) (even if passage of time while case is
pending before court may "diminish the curative effect of the relief,” an interim injunction
would still be more effective to restore the status quo than the Board's ultimate order



without interim relief.) Cf. NLRB v. Mastro Plastics Corp., 354 F.2d 170, 181 (2d Cir.
1965), cert. denied 384 U.S. 972 (remedial action must be speedy in order to be
effective.")

Furthermore, it should be noted that even when the Administrative Law Judge’s
decision issues, it will not be the final administrative decision of the Board, and the
Board's review of exceptions which may be filed by either party may entail many more
months of administrative litigation. See, e.g. Schaub v. West Michigan Plumbing &
Heating, Inc., 250 F.3d 962, 968 (6th Cir. 2001); Sharp v. Webco Industries, Inc., 225
F.3d 1130, 1136 (10th Cir. 2000). See also, Fleischut v. Nixon Detroit Diesel, Inc., 859
F.2d 26, 28 and 31 (6th Cir. 1988) (error for district court to limit duration of 10(j) decree
to commencement of ALJ hearing.)

Accordingly, this letter is to inquire about the status of the case and again
request an expeditious decision and recommended order.

Respectfully submitted,

April M. Wexlert?t? o0\
Counos((\ehf\g@\ﬁsé oner
j:10jmanual\ExpLtr.doc
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNCAN, Regional Director of the
Fourth Region of the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS
BOARD, for and on behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR
RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner

V.
Civil No. 99-CV-3568 (JBS)

ALDWORTH COMPANY, INC. and DUNKIN’ DONUTS
MID-ATLANTIC DISTRIBUTION CENTER, INC.,
JOINT EMPLOYERS

Respondents

9,20\
PETITIONER’S MOTION TO EXPE(I)I\)\I‘I@D?I":%ISION

yel
one
The Petitioner hereby moves thiéoﬁéa?’tb‘?or an expedited decision on the Petition for
No-

Injunction UnderFS(g(C\{j\Qﬂ ©0(3) %?‘t%é National Labor Relations Act, As Amended, filed on July 28,
1999 in the above-captioned case. The Petitioner urges that the action herein for injunctive relief
under Section 10(j) of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, is a matter designated under 28
U.S.C. Sec. 1657 as warranting expedited treatment. The reasons supporting this motion are set

forth in the accompanying memorandum. Oral argument is not requested.

Respectfully submitted this 9™ day of August, 2000.

RICHARD P. HELLER

Counsel for the Petitioner

National Labor Relations Board, Region Four
One Independence Mall, 7" Floor

615 Chestnut Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106
(Telephone: (215) 597-7633)

j:10jmanual\ExpMtn&Mem.doc
June 2001



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

DOROTHY L. MOORE-DUNCAN, Regional Director of the
Fourth Region of the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS
BOARD, for and on behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR
RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner

V.
Civil No. 99-CV-3568 (JBS)
ALDWORTH COMPANY, INC. and DUNKIN’ DONUTS
MID-ATLANTIC DISTRIBUTION CENTER, INC.,
JOINT EMPLOYERS

Respondents

2
ugust 2

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF:MOTION TO EXPEDITE
10537
No-

orp-
WY T O7 | Statement of the Case
Fra

This proceeding is before this Court on a petition filed by the Regional Director for Region
Four of the National Labor Relations Board, herein called the Board, pursuant to Section 10(j) of the
National Labor Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat. 149; 73 Stat. 544; 20 U.S.C. Sec. 160(j)), herein
called the Act, for a temporary injunction pending final disposition of the matters involved herein
pending before the Board on charges filed by United Food and Commercial Workers Union Local
1360 a/w United Food and Commercial Workers International Union, AFL-CIO-CLC, herein called
the Union, and by William A. McCorry, an individual. The charges allege that Aldworth Company,
Inc. and Dunkin’ Donuts Mid-Atlantic Distribution Center, Inc., Joint Employers, herein called
Respondent Aldworth and Respondent Dunkin’, respectively, or Respondents, have engaged in, and

are engaging in, unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1), (3) and (5) of the Act.



The Petition herein is predicated upon the Petitioner’s conclusion that there is reasonable cause to
believe that Respondents have engaged in the unfair labor practices charged and that injunctive relief
IS necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of the Act.

A hearing on the same factual issues as those raised by the Petition herein was duly held
before Administrative Law Judge William G. Kocol of the Board beginning on June 21, 1999, and
ending on September 16, 1999, with all parties being present and participating therein. On July 28,
1999, the Petitioner moved this Court to receive the transcript and exhibits before the Administrative
Law Judge and to have this Court base its determination as to whether the Petitioner has shown
reasonable cause to believe that Respondents have violated the Act as alleged in the Petition on that
record. This Court received copies of the transcript and exhibits before the Administrative Law
Judge. The parties appeared before this Court on November 18, 1999,2(§pgoaéain on December 20,

\
AUQUS
1999, and made their arguments concerning the pg{og(r&gtye@fcme injunction sought by the Petitioner.
16

Briefs were filed with this C&“étoRy* me-ﬁ%fﬁ%gner on November 16, 1999 and December 2, 1999,
and by Respondeﬁt@%‘ﬁ \I{I'c;\/fember 9 and 10, 1999.

By letter of March 6, 2000, the undersigned inquired concerning the status of this matter and
respectfully requested an expeditious decision and order. This Court responded to this request on
March 10, 2000. On April 20, 2000, Administrative Law Judge Kocol issued his Decision in the
administrative proceeding. By letter of April 25, 2000, the undersigned enclosed a copy of Judge
Kocol’s decision, and set forth the pages of his Decision which supported the allegations of the
Petition and the injunctive relief requested therein. The letter also noted the continuing risk of
irreparable harm to the individual employees Judge Kocol found to be victims of Respondents’

discriminatory conduct and the likely erosion of bargaining strength the Union was being forced to

sustain in the absence of injunctive relief.



The Court acknowledged receipt of Judge Kocol’s Decision on April 27, 2000, and afforded
Respondents until May 11, 2000 to file their responses to his Decision which would complete the
record in the proceeding before the Court. On April 28, 2000, Respondent Aldworth notified this
Court that it had new evidence to present, and followed that letter with an 18-page letter brief
attaching a petition purporting to show that Respondents” employees did not wish to be represented
by the Union. For its part, Respondent Dunkin’ submitted a response on May 10, 2000, asking the
Court to act affirmatively on the positions advocated by Respondent Aldworth and to urge that the
Petition be denied. Because Respondents’ submissions raised new matters, the undersigned sought
leave to respond and attached a letter of May 19, 2000 setting forth the Petitioner’s objections to
Respondent Aldworth’s new information. The Petitioner submitted that the attachments to

Respondent Aldworth’s letter were procedurally improper and of nozlgggb’edffect. The Petitioner

s\
L _ pugy o .
urged the Court to consider this “evidence” as afgram@(mado?“the need for injunctive relief. In this
09
. 0:\5 N .. .
regard, the undersigned’s Iette%g%egﬁ@nﬁ it is well-settled, that anti-union petitions, like the one

P
\.
attached to Respcﬂf@éﬁ% Aldworth’s May 10 letter, are not reliable indicators of employee sentiments

concerning union representation since they are the unfortunate consequence of Respondent’s
prolonged and unremedied coercion. This legal principle was noted in the undersigned’s May 19
response. On May 30, 2000, Respondent Aldworth forwarded to the Court 55 statements from
employees purporting to show that their signatures on the anti-union petition were uncoerced. By
letter of June 6, 2000, the undersigned requested that these newly-submitted documents be excluded
from the record.

In the May 19, 2000 letter objecting to Respondent Aldworth’s submission of these
documents, the Court was advised that the Union had filed unfair labor practice charges alleging that
Respondents had unlawfully solicited employees to sign the petition and engaged in further coercive

conduct surrounding the circulation of the petition. The Regional Director has recently determined



that the unfair labor practice charges have merit and that Respondents’ agents were responsible for
circulating the anti-union petition and soliciting employees to sign it. Accordingly, an Order
Consolidating Cases, Consolidated Complaint and Notice of Hearing issued on July 28, 2000, a copy
of which is attached hereto. The Consolidated Complaint further alleges that Respondents have
unilaterally implemented new working conditions and a disciplinary policy pursuant to which at
least five bargaining unit employees have been suspended. Finally, the Consolidated Complaint
alleges that an agent of Respondents unlawfully interrogated an employee. In bringing this
information to the Court’s attention, the Petitioner does not seek additional relief, nor does she wish
to contribute to any further delay in the Court’s consideration of the extant Section 10(j) Petition.
The injunctive relief already sought, if granted, would be entirely adequate to restrain Respondents

from the conduct found by Judge Kocol as well as that set forth inzggez@’ohsolidated Complaint

s\
. o OOV -
attached hereto. All parties understand that tEeaﬁl}@g@ér%(l\ Director’s determinations are not
09
. 0-\2 . .
conclusive and that these nevvc Oa‘gegéﬂoﬁs must be proven in a separate proceeding before an

pie
\.
Administrative Lﬁv@‘]‘ﬁ\dge of the Board, not before this Court. However, just as the allegations of

the Consolidated Complaint have yet to be proven, Respondents should not be able to maintain that
the anti-union petition enjoys some presumptive validity. As noted above, the petition is defective
as a matter of law, and, ultimately, may be found, as a matter of fact, to be the latest unlawful salvo
in Respondents’ crusade against the Union.
An Expedited Decision is Warranted In This Matter

The instant petition warrants expedited treatment. Until 1984, Section 10(i) of the Act
provided that “petitions filed under [the NLRA should] be heard expeditiously, and if possible
within 10 days after they have been docketed.” Public Law 98-620, “The Federal Courts Civil
Priorities Act” (FCCPA) repealed Section 10(i) of the Act and other such priority statutes and

replaced them with a uniform provision, 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1657(a) which requires the courts to



“...expedite the consideration of...any action for temporary or preliminary injunctive relief.”
Therefore, based upon the priorities established by the FCCPA, this matter warrants expedited
treatment. See also Kaynard v. MMIC, Inc., 734 F.2d 950, 954 (2d Cir. 1984) (Congress intended
Section 10(j) as a "swift interim remedy to halt unfair labor practices™); Hoeber v. IBEW Local No.
3, 498 F.Supp. 122, 125 (D.N.J. 1980) (while district court has authority to refer 10(j) petition to a
magistrate, Court remained cognizant of statutory priority and mandated expedited processing).
Moreover, any further delay only increases the on-going risk of irreparable harm to the
discriminatees, the Union and the public interest. See Maram v. Universidad Interamericana, 722
F.2d 953, 960 (1st Cir. 1983) (even if passage of time while the case is pending before the Court
may "diminish the curative effect of the relief,” an interim injunction would still be more effective to
restore the status quo than the Board's ultimate order without interim rglﬁigf)ﬂ Cf. NLRB v. Mastro

WA
AUQUS
Plastics Corp., 354 F.2d 170, 181 (2d Cir. 196§)évg@\xt.edé?ﬁed, 384 U.S. 972 (1966) (“'remedial

40-5%°
action must be speedy in ordte\f\ tgo% efféective™).
\
\.
In additioﬁmﬁ\é\Courts have recognized that the very nature of 10(j) and 10(l) cases qualifies
them for expedited treatment independent of the statutory provisions for expedition. In Fuchs v.
Hood Industries, Inc., 590 F.2d 305, 397 (1979), for example, the First Circuit held that a 10(j) or a
10(l) petition must be granted priority status not solely as a result of the mandate of Section 10(j) of
the Act, but because the very nature of these proceedings dictates expeditious judicial consideration.
The Court held in Fuchs that it was an abuse of judicial discretion for a District Court to refuse to
consider the merits of a 10(j) petition until after the issuance of an Administrative Law Judge’s
Decision in the underlying administrative proceeding. The Court concluded:

The injunctive relief provided for in Section 10(j) is interlocutory in

nature; it is designed to fill the considerable gap between the filing of the

complaint by the Board and the issuance of its final decision...By

declining even to review the petition before the administrative law judge

renders his decision, ... the court in effect summarily denied the petition
for the duration of much of its useful life. 590 F.2d at 397.

6



With specific reference to Section 10(l) cases, the courts have similarly concluded that the
enumerated violations require prompt judicial relief to avoid obstructions to the free flow of
commerce and to prevent violators of the Act from carrying out their unlawful objectives before the
Board can act. See, e.g. Hirsch v. BCTC of Philadelphia, 530 F.2d 298, 302 (3" Cir. 1976);
Henderson v. the 1.U.O.E., Local 701, 420 F.2d 802, 808-809 (9" Cir. 1969); Squillacote v. Graphic
Arts International Union (GAIU), Local 277, 513 F.2d 1017, 1023 (7" Cir. 1975). Thus, “judicially
created priority” with respect to petitions filed pursuant to Section 10(j) or 10(l) of the Act, has been
recognized. The legislative history of the FCCPA makes it clear that it was not intended to eliminate
or discourage the continuation of judicially created priorities which experience has shown are
warranted. Sec. 130 Cong. Rec. No. 129, S 12930 (daily ed. October 3, 1984)(remarks of Sen.

20\
Leahy and Sen. Dole). Based on the foregoing, there are t\(/\vg\\@s‘é*sngon which to expedite the
(0)

decision in this matter, the statutory magd%@,%%ﬁé EES\SZ and the judicially created priority.

The Petitionae((\((qpqgﬁﬁ&(){r?éf the Court has a heavy calendar and that the record in this case
IS extensive. Hovf/(ever, due to the need for expedition noted above, and especially since the issuance
of Administrative Law Judge Kocol’s decision, it is respectfully submitted that too much time has
passed without a decision on the Petition. The position of the aggrieved parties has continued to
seriously erode during this long hiatus. The Petition already chronicles instances of unilateral
changes implemented by Respondents, some of which have led to the suspensions or discharges of
bargaining unit employees, several of whom are major Union activists. The attached Consolidated
Complaint refers to more unilateral changes that have resulted in the suspensions of additional
bargaining unit employees. The employees no doubt sought Union representation, in part, to
negotiate changes in their terms and conditions of employment and to enjoy the benefits and

protections that flow from collective bargaining. It is asking a great deal of them to keep in mind

that ultimately a retroactive bargaining order may protect them, especially as they witness the
7



decline in their ranks under new rules and policies. Without an immediate decision on the merits of
the Section 10(j) Petition, the strength of the Union may be irretrievably lost. See e.g. Frye v.
Specialty Envelope, Inc., 10 F. 3d 1221, *1226 (6™ Cir. 1993)(citing Asseo v. Centro Medico del
Turabo, 900 F. 2d 445 (1* Cir. 1990), (10(j) order the only effective way to prevent irreparable
erosion of employee support for the Union, notwithstanding intervening decertification petition).
The Petitioner therefore respectfully submits that prompt judicial consideration is mandated herein
by the Congressional and judicially recognized need for the interim relief in such proceedings and to
avoid frustration of the policies and remedial purposes of the Act. See generally, Sheeran v.
American Commercial Lines, Inc., et al., 683 F2d 970, 979 (6" Cir. 1982).
I1l.  Conclusion

The facts herein, as set forth in the Petition and the record ewdegcg@eétabllsh a need for an

uQ“
expedited decision due to the great volume of umZ;ur é@t@wdp‘?gctlces committed by the Respondents
09
. .. 0- AD
and their continuing nature. ,No- !
o) CO“Q
Al
Fran®

Respectfully submitted,

RICHARD P. HELLER

Counsel for the Petitioner

National Labor Relations Board, Region Four
One Independence Mall, 7" Floor

615 Chestnut Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106
(Telephone: (215) 597-7633

j:10jmanual\ExpMtn&Mem.doc
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APPENDIX Q
SAMPLE CONTEMPT MEMO AND PETITION FOR CONTEMPT
Sample memorandum authorizing the institution
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

PHILIP E. BLOEDORN, Acting Regional Director
of the Thirtieth Region of the National Labor
Relations Board, for and on behalf of the
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner

V. Civil No.
95-C-0524-C

WIRE PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING CORPORATION,
Respondent, and

ROGER C. DUPKE, ROBERT E. HILL, and
RAYFORD T. BLANKESNHIP,

Additional Respondents in Contempt

PETITTION FOR ADJUDICATION AND ORDER Bﬁ\\

CIVIL CONTEMPT AND FOR OTHER CI}\)\]ULJ\;\S’R%fEF
on

Comes now P?&%&p@EﬁoBloedorn, Acting Regional Director
of RegionFG@wgf the National Labor Relations Board (herein
Board or Petitioner), and petitions this Court, for and on
behalf of the Board, to adjudicate Wire Products
Manufacturing Corporation (herein Respondent), and certain
additional respondents in contempt, Roger C. Dupke (herein
Dupke), Robert E. Hill (herein Hill) and Rayford T.
Blankenship (herein Blankenship) (herein collectively
Additional Respondents), in civil contempt of this Court and
to grant other civil relief for having violated and
disobeyed, and for continuing to violate and disobey, the

temporary injunction Order issued by this Court on
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September 28, 1995. 1In support thereof, Petitioner
respectfully shows as follows:

1. On July 20, 1995, Petitioner filed in this Court a
Petition for Injunction under Section 10(j) of the National
Labor Relations Act, as amended (herein Act), 29 U.S.C.
Section 160(j), seeking a temporary injunction order
enjoining and restraining Respondent from engaging in
certain conduct violative of the Act, and affirmatively
directing Respondent to take certain ameleorative action
including, inter alia, to bargain, upon request, with
District No. 200, International Association ?g Maphinists

st &7

and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO (he%%%aoUﬁfgn), as the
A A©

. . 790 .
exclusive collective-ba gaﬂhﬁ%@ representative of
GO"Q .

Respondenté&wggﬁa@ction and maintenance employees employed
at its Meirill, Wisconsin facility.

2.(a) On September 28, 1995, District Judge Barbara B.
Crabb issued an Opinion and Order in Civil No. 95-C-0524-C
granting Petitioner's request for a temporary injunction
during the pendency of the administrative litigation now
pending before the Board in Cases 30-CA-12645, et al.
(attached hereto as Exhibit A);

(b) The Court's Order of September 28, 1995 enjoined
and restrained Respondent from a variety of unlawful
conduct, including, inter alia,: (1) refusing to meet and

bargain with the Union (cease and desist para. 9); (2)

withdrawing recognition from the Union (cease and desist
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para. 10); (3) dealing directly with employees regarding
wages, hours and conditions of employment (cease and desist
para. 7); (4) unilaterally changing wages, hours and the
terms and conditions of employment (cease and desist

para. 8); (5) refusing to recall employees from layoff
because of their union activities (cease and desist

para. 1); and (6) in any like or related manner interfering
with, restraining or coercing employees in the exercise of
their rights guaranteed them by Section 7 of the Act (29
U.S.C. Section 157) (cease and desist para. 11);

(c) The Court's Order of September 28, Lgﬁﬁ also

ust 22
affirmatively ordered Respondent t%ﬁedbwpgg request, bargain
c
. . £ & .
with the Union as the e SlﬂBﬁﬁé representative of
core- .
Respondent'swpgﬁa@ctlon and maintenance employees employed

pra®
at its Merrill, Wisconsin facility (affirmative para. 1);

(2) rescind, and notify all employees that the Respondent
has rescinded any rule prohibiting union solicitation and
activity on company premises (affirmative para. 2); (3) post
copies of the Court's Opinion and Order at the Merrill,
Wisconsin facility at all locations where Respondent notices
to employees are customarily posted (affirmative para. 3);
and (4) within 20 days of the issuance of the Court's Order,
file an affidavit from a responsible official setting forth
with specificity the manner in which Respondent has complied

with the terms of the Order (affirmative para. 4).
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3.(a) The Court mailed copies of its September 28,
1995 Opinion and Order on that date to counsel for the
parties;

(b) Counsel for the Board received a copy of the
Court's September 28, 1995 Opinion and Order on
September 29, 1995;

(c) Consistent with U.S. Postal regulations and
practice, service of the Court's September 28, 1995 Opinion
and Order upon counsel for the Respondent, R. Scott Summers,
was presumptively effected on or before October 2, 1995.

4.(a) The Court's temporary injunction Ogdgﬁ\in Civil

ust 2
No. 95-C-0524-C has been in full fa&g@oaﬁggeffect since its
A BC
issuance on September 2 A9 and has been binding upon
1\ o
ofp-
Respondent, I 596% lcers, attorneys and agents within the
vy

pra®
meaning of Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure (Fed. R. Civ. P.) since service was effected upon
Respondent's counsel on or before October 2, 1995;

(b) This Court has jurisdiction under Section 10(3j)
of the Act to enforce the terms and conditions of the
Court's injunction Order of September 28, 1995 through
appropriate civil contempt proceedings.

5. At all times material herein, and as admitted in
the record before the Court on the Petition for a temporary
injunction in Civil No. 95-C-0524-C, the following persons

have been and continue to be agents of Respondent acting
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within the meaning of Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d) and the scope of
their agency authority:

(a) Roger C. Dupke is a co-owner of Respondent and
is its President and Treasurer;

(b) Robert E. Hill is a co-owner of Respondent and
1s 1ts Vice-President and Secretary;

(c) Rayford T. Blankenship is labor representative
of Respondent and is the designated bargaining
representative of Respondent.

6. Based upon information and belief, Petitioner has
and there i1s clear and convincing evidence thaglﬁﬁépondent
and the Additional Respondents have @ésﬁﬁéyed and failed and

g a0
refused, and continue t OdﬂBﬁ%ey and fail and refuse, to

comply wit%}%@@?@?oégglons of the Court's temporary
injunctioi(order described above in paragraph 2. More
particularly:

(a) (1) On October 2, 1995, by letter to Rayford T.
Blankenship, as labor representative of Respondent, the
Union requested a resumption of bargaining on behalf of the
production and maintenance employees employed by Respondent
at its Merrill, Wisconsin facility;

(2) Since October 12, 1995 and continuing to
date, Respondent has failed or refused to negotiate in good

faith with the Union concerning the wages, hours and other

terms or conditions of employment of Respondent's production
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and maintenance employees at its Merrill, Wisconsin
facility.

(b) (1) On October 2, 3, 4, 5 and 9, 1995, and on
various dates in December 1995 known more particularly by
Respondent, Respondent laid off involuntarily production and
maintenance employees at its Merrill, Wisconsin facility;

(2) The layoffs described above in paragraph
6.(b) (1) are a mandatory subject of collective bargaining
within the meaning of Section 8(d) and 8(a) (5) of the Act,
29 U.S.C. Sections 158(d) and 158(a) (5);

(3) The acts and conduct descrlbed %

paragraph 6. (b) (1) were 1mplemente% %aDmﬁterally without

C
B "
prior notice to and bar grﬁﬁgg with the Union in good faith
CorP-
to impasse OQ\@@Eéement as to the manner and means of their
Frat
implementation.

(c) (1) On October 18, 1995, Roger C. Dupke issued a
notice to Respondent's Merrill, Wisconsin production and
maintenance employees that laid off employees would receive
an additional 30 days (to 60 days) of Employer-paid portions
of unit employee health insurance premiums;

(2) The Employer health insurance premiums
described above in paragraph 6. (c) (1) are a mandatory
subject of collective bargaining within the meaning of
Section 8(d) and 8(a) (5) of the Act;

(3) The acts and conduct described above in

paragraph 6. (c) (1) were implemented unilaterally without
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prior notice to and bargaining with the Union in good faith
to impasse or agreement as to the manner and means of their
implementation.

(d) (1) On October 19, 1995, by letter to Rayford T.
Blankenship, the Union requested information regarding the
layoffs described above in paragraph 6. (b) (1) ;

(2) On November 17, 1995, at a negotiating
session between the parties, the Respondent, through its
labor representative, Rayford T. Blankenship, denied the
Union's request for a copy of written information compiled
by Respondent regarding the layoffs describe%zgpgmé in
paragraph 6. (b) (1) ; e OﬂPM@ﬁ

(3) The Resp 8déhg£§g§ failed or refused since

CoP-
October 19&m%%98T@o provide the Union with the reasons for
the layofis described above in paragraph 6. (b) (1).

(e) (1) Commencing on October 9, 1995, and on wvarious
dates thereafter, Respondent began recalling employees laid
off as described above in paragraph 6. (b) (1) ;

(2) The manner of recall of laid off employees
described above in paragraph 6. (e) (1) is a mandatory subject
of collective bargaining within the meaning of Section 8(d)
and 8(a) (5) of the Act;

(3) The acts and conduct described above in

paragraph 6. (e) (1) were implemented unilaterally without

prior notice to and bargaining with the Union in good faith



Civil No.
95-C-0524-C

to impasse or agreement as to the manner and means of their
implementation.

(f) (1) Subseguent to September 28, 1995 and during
the month of October 1995, on a date unknown to Petitioner
but known to Respondent and its agents, Respondent caused to
be transported an existing employee bulletin board from the
east restroom in its Merrill, Wisconsin facility to the
employee break area;

(2) Commencing on October 2, 1995 and continuing
to date, Respondent has failed or refused to post a copy of

the Court's Opinion and Order of September 28, Lgﬁﬁ on its

ust 2
east restroom employee bulletin bo%§@d@ﬁﬁugn an employee
c
. oph A" . .
press room bulletin boaﬁglﬁ&ﬂ59ts Merrill, Wisconsin
I ) CO"O“
facility. ) A\a
W
pra®

(g) Since October 2, 1995, Respondent has failed or
refused to properly and adequately notify all production and
maintenance employees at its Merrill, Wisconsin facility
that the Respondent has rescinded any rule prohibiting union
solicitation and activity on company premises.

(h) (1) By letter of November 1, 1995, more than
twenty (20) days after issuance of the Court's Opinion and
Order of September 28, 1995, Respondent by counsel
transmitted to the Court the sworn affidavit of Roger C.
Dupke of October 31, 1995, concerning Respondent's

compliance with the terms of the Court's injunction Order;
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(2) In the affidavit described above in paragraph
6.(h) (1), Respondent inaccurately described when certain

notices from Respondent manager Dennis Glenn had been posted
in Respondent's Merrill, Wisconsin facility and whether the
Court's Opinion and Order of September 28, 1995 had been
posted at all of Respondent's employee bulletin boards
customarily used.

(1) (1) Since October 2, 1995, Respondent has failed
or refused to recall from layoff employee George Gaydos;

(2) Respondent has engaged in the conduct

described above in paragraph 6. (1) (1) becausezgﬁxgéorge

. . o ygust
Gaydos' Union membership, act1v1t1%§egnﬂﬁhpport.
. g AC
(73) (1) On Novemﬁgrﬂﬁﬁﬁ 1995, Respondent announced
. core .
that the MerﬁleTHW1scon51n facility would shut down

pra®
operations from December 21, 1995 through January 1, 1996;

as part of such shutdown unit employees with accrued paid
vacation days are required to take such vacation days; and
unit employees without accrued vacation days are to be laid
off without pay;

(2) On November 22, 1995, Respondent announced
that unit employee pay for December 31, 1995 and January 1,
1996 would be included in employee paychecks for the period
ending December 30, 1995;

(3) The terms or conditions of employment

described above in paragraph 6.(j) (1) and (2) are mandatory
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subjects of collective bargaining within the meaning of
Section 8(d) and 8(a) (5) of the Act.

(4) On November 29, 1995, the Union requested
that the Respondent bargain over implementing the terms or
conditions of employment described above in paragraph
6.(3) (1) and (2); to date the Respondent has not responded
to the Union's bargaining request.

(k) (1) By letter of November 30, 1995, Respondent
announced that effective December 4, 1995, work hours per
week for production and maintenance employees at its

Merrill, Wisconsin facility would be reduced frogﬂéo hours

ugust =’
per week to 32 hours per week; “NeGO“P
. arofh A
(2) The redu 5;ﬁ&ﬂ5%n unit employee work week
. CorP- .
hours descrlggdﬂagove in paragraph 6. (k) (1) is a mandatory

pra®
subject of collective bargaining within the meaning of

Section 8(d) and 8(a) (5) of the Act;

(3) The acts and conduct described above in
paragraph 6. (k) (1) were implemented unilaterally without
prior notice to and bargaining with the Union in good faith
to impasse or agreement as to the manner and means of their
implementation.

7. By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraph 6, Respondent and the Additional Respondents have
failed or refused, and are failing or refusing, to obey and

comply with the terms of the Court's injunction Order of
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September 28, 1995 in Civil No. 95-C-0524-C and are in civil
contempt of said decree. More particularly:

(a) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraph 6. (a) (1) and (2), Respondent and the Additional
Respondents have disobeyed and failed to comply with cease
and desist paragraphs 9 and 10 and affirmative paragraph 1
of the Court's Order;

(b) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6. (b) (1), (2) and (3), Respondent and Additional
Respondents Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to
comply with cease and desist paragraphs 7, 8, %,gﬂd 10 and

uS"z ’
affirmative paragraph 1 of the Courtegoo

(c) By the acts nﬂbg%%ggg; described above in
paragraphsﬁwac%X@ and (3), Respondent and Additional
Respondenis Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to
comply with cease and desist paragraphs 7, 8, 9 and 10 and
affirmative paragraph 1 of the Court's Order;

(d) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6. (d) (1), (2) and (3), Respondent and the
Additional Respondents have disobeyed and failed to comply
with cease and desist paragraphs 9 and 10 and affirmative
paragrpah 1 of the Court's Order;

(e) By the acts and conduct described above in

paragraphs 6. (e) (1), (2) and (3), Respondent and Additional

Respondents Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to
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comply with cease and desist paragraphs 7, 8, 9 and 10 and
affirmative paragraph 1 of the Court's Order;

(f) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6. (f) (1) and (2), Respondent and the Additional
Respondents have disobeyed and failed to comply with
affirmative paragraph 3 of the Court's Order;

(g) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6. (g), Respondent and Additional Respondents
Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to comply with
affirmative paragraph 2 of the Court's Order;

(h) By the acts and conduct describedzgpgmé in

ygust
paragraphs 6. (h) (1) and (2), Respo%%%@bﬂﬁhg Additional

gk 21°
Respondents Dupke and H'%lﬂhﬁ%e disobeyed and failed to
GO"Q .

comply witgmaﬁfﬁﬁﬁative paragraph 4 of the Court's Order;

(i§ By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6. (1) (1) and (2), Respondent and Additional
Respondents Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to
comply with cease and desist paragraphs 1 and 11 of the
Court's Order;

(j) By the acts and conduct described above in
paragraphs 6.(3j) (1), (2), (3) and (4), Respondent and the
Additional Respondents have disobeyed and failed to comply
with cease and desist paragraphs 7, 8, 9 and 10 and
affirmative paragraph 1 of the Court's Order;

(k) By the acts and conduct described above in

paragraphs 6. (k) (1), (2) and (3), Respondent and Additional
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Respondents Dupke and Hill have disobeyed and failed to
comply with cease and desist paragraphs 7, 8, 9 and 10 and

affirmative paragraph 1 of the Court's Order.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully prays for the
following:

1. That the Court issue an order causing this
Petition, its exhibits, attachments, affidavits and
accompanying Memorandum of Points and Authorities, to be
served upon Respondent and each of the Additional
Respondents, individually, in an appropriate m%ngﬁﬁ under

ust 2
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedugg d@ﬁ&‘ghat proof of such

c
g &
service be given to the %?9

2. ggﬁﬁvtﬁé Céﬁgt issue an order directing Respondent
and each of the Additional Respondents, individually, to
file with the Court and serve upon Petitioner, by a date
certain, answers to this Petition, specifically admitting or
denying, or meeting by affirmative defense, each and every
allegation of this Petition, and to file with the Court and
serve upon Petitioner, by a fixed date, counter affidavits
or declarations in support of any such denials or
affirmative defenses;

3. That the Court issue an order directing Respondent
and the Additional Respondents to appear before this Court

at a time and place to be fixed by the Court, and show

cause, 1f any there be, why said Respondent and Additional
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Respondents should not be adjudged in civil contempt for
disobeying and refusing to comply with the Court's
injunction Order of September 28, 1995;

4. That upon return of said order to show cause, and
after a hearing on the merits of this Petition, Respondent
and the Additional Respondents should be adjudged in civil
contempt of the Court's September 28, 1995 injunction Order
and that the Court issue the following purgation orders:

(a) That Respondent Wire Products Manufacturing
Corporation and the Additional Respondents in Contempt,

Roger C. Dupke, Robert E. Hill, jointly and sggegﬁlly,

vst
shall: eaon PV
o At
(1) Fully compl Owﬂkﬁﬁgll the terms and provisions
corP- . .
of the Court@%_ﬁégtember 28, 1995 injunction Order;

pra®
(2) Within three (3) business days after service of

the Court's contempt purgation order, recognize in writing
the Union, District No. 200, International Association of
Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO, as the exclusive
collective-bargaining representative in the appropriate unit
described in the Court's Order of September 28, 1995 and
commence bargaining with the Union in good faith at
reasonable times concerning said employees' wages, hours and
other terms and conditions of employment, including the need
for and manner of implementing any employee layoffs, plant

shutdowns, reduction in work hours and/or the manner of
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recalling employees from layoff and restoring normal
employee work hours;

(3) Notify by individual writing all unit employees
that the Respondent has rescinded any rule prohibiting union
solicitation and activity on company premises;

(4) Restore the east restroom employee bulletin
board in its Merrill, Wisconsin facility as it existed on
September 28, 1995 and post thereon a copy of the Court's
Opinion and Order of September 28, 1995; post a copy of such
opinion and order on the press room employee bulletin board;

post a copy of the Court's contempt opinion a%g,gpﬁgation

ugust
order at all three customary bulle%&%dbﬁﬁkg locations, i.e.,
¢
g o .
east restroom, press ro gﬁﬁhﬁﬁkear the employee time clock;
. cof®- .
maintain al%w%uﬁﬂﬁpostlngs while the Court's Order of
Fra

September 28, 1995 is outstanding, free from all
obstructions and defacements; and grant to agents of the
Board reasonable access to its Merrill, Wisconsin facility
to monitor this posting requirement;

(5) Mail to their known address or deliver
personally to all unit employees employed at the Merrill,
Wisconsin facility as of July 20, 1995, copies of the
Court's September 28, 1995 injunction Order and the Court's
contempt opinion and purgation order;

(6) Within three (3) business days of service of the
Court's contempt purgation order, reinstate to their former

jobs all employees who have been improperly laid off under
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the terms of the Court's Order since October 2, 1995, via a
normal layoff or plant shutdown, who have not yet been
recalled; after computation, make all improperly laid off
employees whole by paying to them net backpay, plus interest
normally charged in Board proceedings, for all lost wages;
in the event that the parties cannot agree on the amounts
owed, the Court shall set the matter for a supplemental
hearing;

(7) Immediately restore the unit employees to a 40
hour work week, and maintain this schedule until the
Respondent has bargained with the Union in goog,ﬁﬁith to an

agreement or impasse concerning an%vggdﬁ@tlon in the work

p A
week; after computation,omﬁkgswhole all unit employees who
CorP-
have lost wag@sﬂéé a result of the unilateral reduction in

Fraf
the work week by paying to them net backpay, plus interest

normally charged in Board proceedings, for all lost wages;
in the event the parties cannot agree on the amounts owed,
the Court shall set the matter for a supplemental hearing;
(8) Immediately reinstate employee George Gaydos to
his former position or a substantially equivalent position;
after computation, make Glados whole by paying to him all
lost wages that he suffered as a result of the Respondent's
refusal to recall him from layoff, plus interest normally
charged in Board proceedings; in the event that the parties
cannot agree upon the amount owed, the Court shall set the

matter for a supplemental hearing;
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(9) Promptly provide the Union, in writing, with all
requested relevant information not yet provided concerning
the layoff and recall of unit employees commencing in
September 1995;

(10) Within ten (10) days after service of the
Court's contempt purgation order, file with the Court and
serve a copy upon Petitioner, a sworn affidavit by a
responsible official of Respondent, and by each individual
Additional Respondent Dupke and Hill, setting forth with
specificity the manner in which each Respondent has complied
with the terms of the Court's contempt purgai%g?xpﬁder,
including the exact manner and loca%%@nﬂfﬁggzspondent's

A A©
Merrill, Wisconsin faci %t&y posting the required material

Corp-
and the mgg&@&_dfﬁmailing or personally serving the required
documents; and

(11) Pay to the Board compensatory damages for all
the costs and expenditures incurred in the investigation and
prosecution of this contempt proceeding; these costs shall
include attorneys fees of Board personnel; in the event that
the parties cannot agree upon the amount owed, the Court
shall set the matter for a supplemental hearing.

(b) That Additional Respondent Rayford T. Blankenship

shall:

(1) Fully comply with all the terms and provisions

of the Court's September 28, 1995 injunction Order;
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(2) Within three (3) business days after service of
the Court's contempt purgation order, recognize in writing
the Union, District No. 200, International Association of
Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO, as the exclusive
collective-bargaining representative in the appropriate unit
described in the Court's Order of September 28, 1995 and
commence bargaining with the Union in good faith at
reasonable times concerning said employees' wages, hours and
other terms and conditions of employment, including the need
for and manner of implementing any employee layoffs, plant
shutdowns, reduction in work hours and/or the magﬂér of

. ygust =
recalling employees from layoff andwggsﬁgklng normal

goh
employee work hours; O\OAB

Corp-

(BQWmQQsBB?e the east restroom employee bulletin
board in Respondent Wire Products Manufacturing
Corporation's Merrill, Wisconsin facility as it existed on
September 28, 1995 and post thereon a copy of the Court's
Opinion and Order of September 28, 1995; post a copy of such
opinion and order on the press room employee bulletin board;
post a copy of the Court's contempt opinion and purgation
order at all three customary bulletin board locations, i.e.,
east restroom, press room and near the employee time clock;
maintain all such postings while the Court's Order of

September 28, 1995 is outstanding, free from all

obstructions and defacements; and grant to agents of the
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Board reasonable access to its Merrill, Wisconsin facility
to monitor this posting requirement;

(4) Promptly provide the Union, in writing, with all
requested relevant information not yet provided concerning
the layoff and recall of unit employees commnecing in
September 1995; and

(5) Within ten (10) days after service of the
Court's contempt purgation order, file with the Court and
serve a copy upon Petitioner, a sworn affidavit setting
forth with specificity the manner in which Additional
Respondent Blankenship has complied with the tSFgﬁ\of the

ust 2
Court's contempt purgation order, %&gé@ﬁfﬁg the exact manner

c
L g & . . .
and location in RespondﬁgtﬂBﬂﬁérrlll, Wisconsin facility of

. corP- .
posting the ﬁggﬂﬂ?ed material.
pra®

5. That to further assure future compliance with the
Court's contempt purgation order and to prevent further
breaches of the Court's September 28, 1995 injunction Order,
the Court should impose suspended compliance fines against
each of the Respondents in the following amounts:

Wire Products Manufacuring

Corporation - $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars)

Roger C. Dupke - $10,000 (ten thousand dollars)

Robert E. Hill - $10,000 (ten thousand dollars)

Rayford T. Blankenship - $10,000 (ten thousand dollars)
Such fines fines should be suspended upon future compliance
with the Court's injunction Order of September 28, 1995 and

the contempt purgation order. Upon the failure of
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Respondent or the Additional Respondents in Contempt to
comply with any of the terms of the purgation order, or upon
further breach of the Court's September 28, 1995 injunction
Order by any of them, the Court should, upon motion of
Petitioner, rescind the suspensions and impose the stated
fines upon the appropriate Respondent(s).

6. That upon the failure of Respondent and/or any of
the Additional Respondents in Contempt to fully purge
themselves of civil contempt, the Court should, upon motion
of Petitioner, cause a writ of body attachment to be issued
for the persons of Roger C. Dupke, Robert E.‘%%}gﬂénd/or
Rayford T. Blankenship, which will %@@@B@g%gie Messrs.

g\
. £k A .
Dupke, Hill and/or Blan Snﬁhgg until such time as Respondent

GorP-

and the Agg%ﬁygﬁéﬁ Respondents have completely purged
themselves of their contumacious conduct, or until the
expiration of the Court's September 28, 1995 injunction
Order, whichever occurs sooner.

7. That the Court order any further relief or
procedure of a remedial nature that the Court deems "just
and proper" to coerce future compliance with the terms of
the Court's injunction Order of September 28, 1995.

8. That the Court grant expedited consideration to
this Petition consistent with 28 U.S.C. Section 1657 (a) and

the Congressional intent underlying Section 10(j) of the

Act.
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Respectfully submitted this _ day of December, 1995.
j:10jmanual\ContemptPet.doc
June 2001
o\
. on A9
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OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
Division of Operations-Management

MEMORANDUM OM 01-62 May 10, 2001

TO: All Regional Directors, Officers-in-Charge,
and Resident Officers

FROM: Richard A. Siegel, Associate General Counsel

SUBJECT: Use of Special Informal Settlement Language in Cases
with Outstanding Section 10(j) - 10(l) Injunctions

From time to time, cases in which the Board has obtained interim Section
10(j) or 10(I) relief are subsequently settled by an informal settleragm agreement.
This Memorandum provides revised settlement language, %hould be used in
such cases to avoid any questions that the i |nJ ggd@‘é%ntmues in effect during
the compliance period. Use of this | r\ngagé“wnl insure that there is no
procedural impediment to msUtutmé roceedings for contempt of the injunction if
a respondent fails tomh%&%vﬂh the settlement.

Fron”

Section 10(j) and 10(l) of the Act permit the Board to obtain temporary
injunctive relief to remedy unfair labor practices pending the entry of the Board's
final remedial order. It is well settled that any Section 10(j) or 10(l) injunctive
order terminates by operation of law upon the Board's final disposition of a

case.l We would normally take the position that the closing of a case on
compliance, rather than execution of a settlement agreement, is the more
accurate time for determining that a settled case has been "finally disposed of."

The language of the standard form informal settlement agreement
currently provides, however, that approval of the settlement agreement
constitutes withdrawal of the complaint. This provision creates the potential for a

1 See Sears, Roebuck & Co. v. Carpet, Linoleum, etc. Local Union No. 419, 397
U.S. 655 (1970) (final decision of Board in ULP proceeding ends 10(l)
jurisdiction); Levine v. Fry Foods, Inc., 596 F.2d 719 (6th Cir. 1979) (same
principle under Section 10(j)); Barbour v. Central Cartage Co., 583 F.2d 335 (7th
Cir. 1978) (same); Johansen v. Queen Mary Restaurant Corp., 522 F.2d 6 (9th
Cir. 1975) (same).
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respondent to conclude that the case has been disposed of with the execution of
the settlement and that the injunction thereupon expires by operation of law.
Such an interpretation could interfere with our ability to institute proceedings for
contempt of the injunction based on continued misconduct during the compliance
period, even if such action would constitute a breach of the settlement agreement
sufficient to justify setting aside the agreement and litigating the unfair labor
practice case.

Accordingly, to preserve the Board's authority to seek contempt sanctions
under the 10(j) or 10(l) decree, and to avoid a controversy over the continued
viability and enforceability of the outstanding 10(j) or 10(l) injunction during the
compliance period of the settlement, the Region should modify the language of
the standard form Board settlement agreement to make it perfectly clear that the
respondent’s entering into the settlement will not result in the withdrawal of the
ULP complaint, dismissal of the charge or the vacating of the 10(j) or 10(l)
injunction. Rather, by use of the special language set forth infra, the Region will
clearly put the respondent on notice that the ULP complaint will be withdrawn
and/or the charge will be dismissed only after the case is closed on compliance
and that the 10(j) or 10(l) decree will remain in effect and enforceable as long as
the complaint is outstanding or the charge still pending. This will peqnit the
Board to initiate contempt proceedings before the district coqr@gw?%\‘n otherwise
warranted, where the misconduct takes place priordtgdl#e’%‘fose of the compliance
process. ol archNe
4059
Thus, when inf%g\n@ljyosé\t\ﬁi'ng the underlying administrative case where
the Board hasaq\mair% a Section 10(j) or 10(l) injunction, the Region should
modify the standard informal settlement agreement by substituting, for the final
sentence in the paragraph "Refusal to Issue Complaint,” the following:

The Complaint and any Answer(s) in [the captioned

administrative cases and numbers] shall be withdrawn only

upon closing of these matters on compliance. The

Respondent agrees not to move to vacate, modify,

dissolve, clarify or alter the injunction decree in [caption

and case number of the Section 10(j) or 10(l) decree] on

the basis that this Settlement Agreement has been

reached. The closing of these matters on compliance will

be considered the final adjudication of these cases before

the Board for the purposes of [caption and case number of

the Section 10(j) or 10(l) decree]. Until these matters have

been closed on compliance, the injunction in [caption and

case number of the Section 10(j) or 10(l) decree] will

continue in full force and effect for all purposes.

If a Section 10(l) decree is obtained prior to the issuance of the ULP

complaint, the special language of the settlement should be modified to provide
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that the dismissal of the charge will be held in abeyance until the case closes on
compliance.

The Regions are instructed to seek such special language in all cases
where respondents are prepared to enter into informal settlements after the entry
of Section 10(j) or 10(I) injunctions. The Regions should continue to use
established criteria in deciding whether a particular case can be adjusted through
an informal settlement agreement. See Casehandling Manual (Part One),
Section 10140.2. If a respondent is unwilling to accept the special language
described supra, the Region should consult with the Injunction Litigation Branch.

Any questions concerning this matter should be addressed to your
Assistant General Counsel or Deputy.

s/
R. A. S.

cc: NLRBU

Release to Public
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[The substance of this section exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions 5, attorney
work product, 2, and 7(E), but disclosed at the discretion of the General Counsel]

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA
SHREVEPORT DIVISION

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
*
HUGH FRANK MALONE, Regional Director *
of Region 15 of the National Labor * CIVIL ACTION
Relations Board, for and on behalf of * NO.
the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, *
*
Petitioner, *
V. *
*
BEAIRD INDUSTRIES, INC., *
*
Respondent. *
* 20'\’\

29

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * P\\Xg\_)s\-
on

STTPULATION AND ORDER CONTINUING CASE
ot V- ONDER 29 U.S.C. SECTION 160 (3)

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the
Petitioner, Hugh Frank Malone, Regional Director of Region 15 of
the National Labor Relations Board, for and on behalf of the
National Labor Relations Board ("the Board") and the Respondent,
Beaird Industries, Inc. ("the Company"), by their respective

attorneys and subject to the approval of the Court, that:

1. On [date], after securing authorization from the Board,
the Petitioner, for and on behalf of the Board, filed a petition

with this Court pursuant to Section 10(j) of the National Labor



Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 160(j), seeking a temporary
injunction against the Company, pending the final administrative

disposition of certain unfair labor practice charges now pending

before the Board, from violating Section 8(a) (1)[, (3) and (5)]
of the Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 158(a) (1)[, (3) and (5)].
2. In consideration of the following undertakings of the

Company, the Board agrees that the hearing before the Court on
this Petition [now scheduled for {date}]lshall be postponed
indefinitely and that this cause of action shall be placed on the

Court’s 1nactive docket.

A
. 204 _
3. The parties further agree that thewggmﬁé%y, pending the
. . . o ned of
Board’s final administrative ad%&gngﬁion of NLRB Cases 15-CA-

0. 407
11334-1, et al., w%&}cgﬁagg and desist from:
\,\

(a) Fafl@ggvbr refusing to recognize the United Automobile,
Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America ("the
Union") as the exclusive collective-bargaining representative of
its employees in the appropriate unit, of which the Union was
certified as the exclusive bargaining representative on March
30, 1990;

(b) Failing or refusing to meet and bargain in good faith
with the Union upon request;

(c¢) Failing or refusing to provide relevant information
requested by the Union; and

(d) In any other manner failing or refusing to recognize

and, upon request, bargain in good faith with the Union as the



exclusive collective-bargaining representative of its employees
in the unit of which the Union was certified as the exclusive

bargaining representative on March 30, 1990.

4. The parties further agree that the Company will
affirmatively continue, pending administrative completion of NLRB
Cases 15-CA-11334-1, et al., to engage in the following
affirmative conduct:

(a) Recognize and, upon request, meet and bargain in good
faith with the Union as the exclusive collective-bargaining
representative of its employees in the unit of which the Union
was certified as the exclusive bargaining representative on
20.20"

March 30, 1990; and Oﬂpﬂqﬁﬁ

. . \ a

(b) Promptly provide the qugnﬂﬁﬁ¥% all requested
409

information relevaqﬁAé@ﬂb§¥6aining.

gran¥ Y-
5. The parties further agree that if, upon investigation,
the Board concludes that there is [reasonable cause to believe] [a
likelihood of success in demonstrating]' that the Company, after
the date of this stipulation, has resumed any of the acts or
conduct described in paragraph 3, above, or failed to perform any

of the acts or conduct set out in paragraph 4, above,

(a) the Board shall by motion apply to this Court for, and

be granted, notwithstanding any local rule of this Court, an

' Choose the language appropriate to the 10(j) standards in the
applicable circuit.



expedited hearing to be conducted no less than seven (7) days
after said motion is filed, for the purpose of determining
whether such [reasonable cause][likelihood of success]’ exists
that the Company has failed to comply with the undertakings

described in paragraphs 3 or 4, above; and

(b) if the Court concludes that such [reasonable
cause] [likelihood of success]’ as alleged by the Board does
exist, the Company shall not contest that interim injunctive
relief is otherwise just and proper and the Court shall enter a
temporary injunctive order to require the Company, pending the

Board’s final administrative adjudication of NLRB Cases 15-CA-

20
11334-1, et al., to cease and desist from t&&xﬁﬁgﬁuct as
on
. . WEe .
described in paragraph 3, abovegggmdd@% comply with the

10-\
affirmative conduc@ﬂ?eg@m§ggd in paragraph 4, above.
\,\

gran¥ Y-

6. Unless the provisions of paragraph 5, above are invoked
by the Board, this case shall remain on the inactive docket of
the Court pending the Board’s final administrative adjudication
of NLRB Cases 15-CA-11334-1, et al. After final disposition of
these unfair labor practice cases, currently pending before the
Board, the Board shall cause this proceeding, including any
injunctive order(s) issued by the Court pursuant to the
provisions of paragraph 5, above, to be dismissed with prejudice

and without costs to either party.

2

See fn. 1, ante.

3

See fn. 1, ante.



DONE at New Orleans, Loulisiana on the date set forth below:

[Name] [Name]
Counsel for Petitioner Counsel for Respondent
[Address] [Address]
Dated at
this day of , 1995
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this day of , 1995.

rz(\'\’\
Judge [name] ug?ﬂs
UNITED STATES V@M@%T COURT
(C
45984 @

0.
T cor-"
J :leManual\sti%@y\k\\J'
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